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Our vision Our strengths

To be the most trusted Specialist

specialist lender in

the UK Expert
Diverse

Our purpose Ambitious

To help more consumers

and businesses fulfil Our values

their ambitions
Customer Focused

Our strategy Risk Aware
Grow Future Orientated
Sustain Teamwork
Care Ownership

Performance Driven
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Strategic Report

Measuring performance
Key Performance Indicators

The following key performance

indicators are the primary

measures used by management

to assess the performance of
“the Group.

Ouring the year the number of key
performance indicators have been
reduced and realigned to the Group’s
new vision and purpose.

Certain key performance indicators
represent altemative performance
measures that are not defined or specified
under International Financial Reporting
Standards (JFRSY). Definitions of the
financial key performance indicators,

their calculation and an explanation of
the reasons for their use can be found in
the Appendix to the Annual Report

on pages 173 and 174,

Further explanation of the financial key
performance indicators are discussed in
the narrative of the Financial review on
pages 12 1o 17, where they are identified
by being in bold font.

Further explanation of the non-financial
key performance indicators is provided in
the Managing our business responsibly
and Climate-related financial disclasures
sections on pages 38 and 49.

The Directors’ Remuneration Report,
starting on page 76, sets out how
executive pay is linked to the assessment
of key financial and non-financial
performance indicators.

02

Grow

Net interest margin
%

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Shows the interest margin earmed on the
Group’s lending balances, net of funding costs

Annual Growth Rate?
%

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Shows the rate of growth in the Group's
lending balances

Loans and advances to customers’
fm

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Shows the growth in the Group's lending
balances, which generate income

Return on average equity

%
CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Measures the Group's ability to generate profit
from the equity available to it

2024 includes Assets Feld for sale of £1.3 millon.
* Cere lending belances anly. See Aopendix on page 173 far further aatails,
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Sustain

Cost of risk®
%

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Measures how effectively the Group manages
the credit risk of its lending portfolios

Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) ratio
%

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

The Common Equity Tier 1 {CET 1) ratio
demonstrates the Group’s capital strength

Cost to income ratio*
Yo

CHART REMOVED

Why we measure this

Measures how efficiently the Group utilises
its cost base to produce income

Care

Customer Feefo ratings
Stars

CHART REMOVED

{mark out of 5 based on star rating from 937
raviaws, 2020: 1,466, 2019: 1,754)
Why we measure this

Indicator of customer satisfaction with
the Group's products and services

Employee survey trust index score
%

CHART REMOVED

{based on 2021 all employee survey)

Why we measure this

Indicator of employee engagement
and satisfaction

Environmental intensity indicator

CHART REMOVED

{tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent per
£1 million Group income)
Why we measure this

Indicator of the Group's impact on
the environment

' The reduction in the cest of risk in 2021 reflects an irnproving trend.
’ Theincrease in the cost to income ratio in 2021 reflects a dechin'ng trend.
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Strategic Report

Chairman’s statement

Our focus is on our
key specialist markets

Lord Forsyth
Chairrman

IMAGE REMOVED GA3

We have refined the Group's strategy
with a new vision to be the most
trusted specialist lender in the UK.”

| am delighted to report an excellent set of results with a profit before tax of £56.0 million (2020; £19.1 million). This has been achieved
in the shadow of COVI-19 whilst we have continued to suppart our customers, kept our people safe and preserved our capital.

We have refined the Group's strategy with a new vision to be the most trusted specialist lender in the UK. We have a clear plan for
achieving these goals which we outlined on our first Capital Markets Day in November 2021. This renewed cenfidence is reflected in
our policy to return 25% of eamings to sharehclders and the Board is proposing a final dividend for 2021 of 41.1 pence, bringing the
total for the year to 61.1 pence.

We are determined to simplify the Group and focus on our key specizlist markets. During the year, we closed the OneBill product
and successfully disposed of the Asset Finance and Consumer Mortgages portfelios and in March 2022, we announced the sale of the
Debt Managers {Services) Limited's loan portfolio. The remaining businesses recorded growth in lending balances in 2021,

The appointment of David McCreadie as Chief Executive Officer in January 2021 has proved to be transformational and he has
instituted with the Board's support and encouragement a number of important changes to the Group's governance, aperating mode!,
reward structures and engagement with stakehalders. He has achieved a smacth transition in the executive leadership of the Group
and strengthened the management team by bringing in telented and experienced people.

L would like to thank our employees for all their efforts in challenging circurnstances. They have managed to navigate the pitfalls
of the pandemic, delivering excelient service to cur custamers from the office or their homes. Their commitment has been a central
contributing element to the Group's progress this year.

I would also like to thank the Board for the quality of their guidance, input and support. It has been a very busy year for everyone.
It was a real pleasure to welcome Finlay Williamson in July 2021. He is an excellent colleague and brings important experience in
banking and financial services to the Board.

Looking forward, we have ambitious and achievable growth plans. We have emerged positively from both Brexit and the COVID-19
pandemic by improving the quality of our lending and effective risk management. The escalating cost of living crisis and the economic
war with Russia are additional challenges but we are flexible, prudent, fleet of foat and well placed to grasp the opportunities ahead.

Lord Forsyth
Chairman

23 March 2022
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Chief Executive's statément

Agile and strong
market expertise

David McCreadie
Chief Executive Officer

IMAGE REMOVED e

Qur diversified portfolio continues to
support our growth ambitions.”

I reflect on my first year with great pride and satisfaction despite the continuing impacts of COVID-19. We have delivered strong
financial results, but as importantly, we have reset the Group with a new vision and core purpose and the Group is growing strongly
again. We have brought fresh talent intc the management team and our people are telling us that Secure Trust Bank is a great place
to work.

By the end of 2021, core lending balances' had grown by 11.6% to £2,530.6 million compared to the December 2020 position of
£2,266.7 million and net interest margin increased marginally to 6.4% (2020: 6.3%). Average core lending balances' were up 1.9% year
on year, and we finished the year with strong new business growth in the final quarter.

Impairment charges have decreased significantly to £4.5 million (2020: £51.3 million). This primarily reflects the release of impairment
provisions due to the improving macroeconomic faorecasts, which will not reoccur in 2022, and lower default rates.

The investment in growth we have made has had an adverse impact en our cost to income ratio, which stands at 63.2% for 2021
{2020: 55.7%). With the anticipated future growth in lending and a renewed focus on cost contral, we expect to improve the cost
to income ratio in line with our medium-term target range of 50-55%.

As a result we have delivered an excellent financial perfarmance with profit before tax of £56.0 million (2020: £19.1 million).

Capital ratios have remained healthy througheout the year and significantly ahead of regulatory minimums. At 31 December 2021, the
Commeon Equity Tier 1 ratio was 14.5% (2020: 14.0%) and the total capital ratio was 0.5% higher at 16.8% than last year (2020: 16.3%).

The Group's funding comes primarily from personal customers' deposits. This year, we have changed the mix from higher cost fixed
term bonds to ISAs and Notice acecunts, which has resulted in a lower cost of funds of 1.3% (2020: 1.8%).

New vision and purpose

| outlined the Group's new vision and purpase at our first Capital Markets Day on 3 November 2021. As our markets change and the
expectations and needs of our custemers evolve, so the Bank needs to respond accordingly. By asking ourselves, "when are we at our
best?”, our new purpose became clear. We are here to help more consumers and businesses fulfil their ambitions and our new vision is
ta be the most trusted specialist lender in the UK. Across our diverse business units, we achieve this purpose in different ways, whether
it be Real Estate Finance providing financial suppaert for professional property developers and investors or Retail Finance providing
instant credit for the purchase of goods online or in store.

' Excludas the Consumer Martgages and Asset Finance lozn books disposed of in July 2021. Sea Appendix on page 173 for “‘urtmer deta'ls.
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Strategic Report

Chief Executive's statement

continued

Core lending balance! growth

11.6%

2020: Decrease of 1.8%

Profit before tax

£56.0m

2020: £19.1 million

Qur refreshed strategy is set out on page 10 across the three themes of Grow, Sustain
and Care. Our growth ambitions are refiected in a new medium-term target to deliver
15%+ compound annual growth rate in lending balances. We are continuing to invest in
technology to help more customers and to enhance their experience. In 2021, the Greup
invested £1.7 million in transformational growth within Vehicle Finance and Savings.

Technology will also support innovative new products such as the Buy Now Pay Later
('BNPL) product offering within Retzil Finance and Vehicle Finance's Prime Personal
Contract Purchase {'PCP’) solutions for used vehicles. All of this will be underpinned by

. our market expertise, rigorous credit discipline, prudence and effective

risk managernent.

This renewed vision and purpose is consistent with focusing on our core' businesses
where we see the largest growth potential. We completed the sale of the Asset Finance
and Consumer Mortgages partfolios in July 2021, closed the OneBill product and in
March 2022, we announced the sale of the Debt Managers (Services) Limited's loan
portfolio. We will continue to invest in our remaining businesses across Business Finance
and Consumer Finance and will teke advantage of any M&A opportunities which
complement our core markets.

On 25 November 2021, we announced the purchase of AppToFPay Limited, subject to
regulatory approval, which will allow us to offer digital BNPL products. We see it as a
natural step for us, opening up attractive new opportunities for our existing customers
and providing us with access to a new, fast-growing specialist lending market. We plan to
launch this digita| offering alongside our other Retail Finarce products in 2022.

Lending performance

The impact of COVID-19 changed as we went through the year. During the first quarter,
the UK was in lockdown and whilst restrictions eased gradually through the summer
months, the policies of national governments varied. By the final quarter of 2021, the
UK’s nominal GDP output recovered back to 2019 levels. The success of the vaccination
prograrmmes and the UK Government's economic interventions have created more
favourable economic conditions and enabled us to return to pre-pandemic lending
criteria gradually through the yesr.

Our diversified portfolio continues to support our growth aspirations despite the drag in
tha first quarter from COVID-19. It is pleasing to see our strategy driving growth in core
lending balances' of 11.6% in 2021,

Total core lending balances' in our Business Finance businesses have grown by 10.9% to
£1,422.9 million {2020 £1,282.6 million). New lending has been partly driven by aur
Greener Homes Scheme supporting property developers and investors to meet the UK’s
clean growth strategy by 2035 and high client retention allied with higher utilisation of
lending facilities in Commercial Finance. During the year we offered our existing
customers access to the Government guaranteed Recovery Loan Scheme ('RLSY, which
replaced the Coronavirus Business Interruption Loan {'CBIL} Scheme and Coronavirus
Large Business Interruption Loan {CLBIL) Scheme.

Total core lending balances’ in our Consumer Finance businesses have grown by 12.6%
to £1,107 7 million {2020: £984.1 million). Our offering of market leading software and
strong retailer partnerships is driving retailer growth in interest free credit products.

In March 2021, we launched the new Prime Hire Purchase lending product for used car
finance and followed it up in November 2021 with a Prime PCP offering,

The current and longer-term impacts of climate change are an important consideration
within our future plans. Whilst we have made good progress with understanding these
impacts, we recognisa we need to embed further the impact of climate change on the
Group’s strategy. This work will be progressed in 2022. Further information on our
progress and plans for 2022 are presented on page 11.

! Excludes the Consumer Morigages and Asset Finance loan bocks d'sposed cfin July 2021. See Appendix on page 173 for
further details.

06 Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2021




Supporting our customers
As we have refined our strategy, our custamers remain at the heart of what we do. Cur enduring 2im is to make Secure Trust Bank easy
to deal with and the new technology will allow customers to transact with the Group when it is convenient for them.

uoday mbajeng

| am pleased that our customer service scores continue to reflect the positive ways we supported them during the pandemic. The most
recent ratings, measured through Feefo, achieved an average score of 4.6 stars out of 5 {2020: 4.7 stars out of 5). In addition we were

recently awarded Customer Service Excellence for the ninth consecutive year.

Within the Consumer Finance businesses, customers have completed their COVID-19 payment holidays arrangements.
One challenging area for our service delivery in the second half of the year has been the difficulty in recruiting contact centre staff due
to the tightness in the UK labour market although we have been able te continue to support our customers.

Our People

| am pleased with the smooth transition within the executive management team during my first year in office. | was delighted to
welcome Chris Harper as Chief Risk Officer, Katie Docherty as Chief Operating Officer and Charles Mayo as General Counsel to the
team. Chris held the sare role at RBS International; Katie previously held a similar role for HSBC, Retail Banking and Wealth
Management, Australia and Charles joined us from Sirmmons & Simmons. These appaintments complement and broaden the
experience of the executive team.

I have enjoyed tremendous support from colleagues across the Group and would like to thank them for their ongeing commitment.
For a second year running, they have coped admirably with the challenges of COVID-19 and the restrictions imposed on them. All the
COVID-19 policies and procedures have been co-ordinated by a central team, composed of representatives from all our locations.
They have changed and evolved based on the guidance available and regularly updated by the UK and Welsh Governments.

The majority of colleagues have continued to wark from home and we have closely managed the engagement, motivation and
wellbeing of all emplayees through the year. In November 2021, 81% of colleagues said that Secure Trust Bank was a Great Place to
Wark®, maintaining a similar score to 2020, despite enduring a second year of restrictions.

We continue to take the issue of wellbeing and mental health extremely seriously. We have extended cur offer of a ‘wellbeing hour’,
where employees can take time to participate in activities which promote good mentat health and positivity, to being a manthly event.
This is in addition to other initiatives, including our network of mental health first aiders across the organisation.

In the second half of the year, we moved to a hybrid working model where colleagues split their time between warking from the office
and from home. Qur colleagues have supported these changes and we expect the hybrid model to continue after the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic has reduced.

Outlook

The outlook for the UK economy is uncertain in 2022 but unemployment rates are expected to ke low and stable. There are a number
of economic headwinds and the increasing geopolitical tensions as a result of Russia’s invasion of Ukraine are likely to lower

growth projections.

There is concern about the impact of rising inflation on customers’ net disposable income and ability to repay debt. The Consumer
Prices Index rose to 5.4% for the year to 31 December 2021 and is forecast to increase further in 2022. In response, the Bank of England

has increased the Base Rate three times which now stands at 0.75%. GDP growth continues to be adversely affected by supply side
constraints and the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic with growth projections for 2023 and 2024 being ravised downwards.

Although, the degree of the uncertainty around the ecenomic outlook is unusually high, on balance, we are positive about the outlook
far Secure Trust Bank.
One year into the role, | am very optimistic about our ability to take advantage of the diverse opportunities within our specialised

lending businesses, despite the potential for economic headwinds. My confidence is founded on our excellent performance in 2021,
our simplified structure, and our clear plan to deliver further lending growth and attractive returns.

We are a specialist lender in diverse markets. We are agile with strong market expertise and partner relationships. We continue to
leverage and invest further in our digital capabilities and all of our decisions are underpinnad by rigorous credit discipline, prudence
and effective risk management.

[ am looking forward to the pericd ahead with confidence and excited to be working with my colleagues to help more customers as we
progress on our journey to become the most trusted specialist lender in the UK.

David McCreadie
Chief Executive Officer

23 March 2022
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Strategic Report

Our business model
How Secure Trust Bank does what it does

How we help

What we do

How we
connect with
customers

08 Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2021
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Consumer

|

-

Retail
Finance

Vehicle
Finance

Debt
Management

LOGO REMOVED

LOGO REMOVED

LOGO REMOVED

Instant credit for the
purchase of goods online
and in store

* We operate a market leading
online service to retailers,
providing unsecured, prime
lending products to the UK
custormers of its retail partners to
facilitate the purchase of a wide
range of consumer products.

* The onling processing system
affows custorners to digitally sign
their credit agreements, thereby
speeding up the pay-out pracess,
and removing the need to handle
sensitive personal docurments.

Finance solutions for
used vehides

» Finance is provided in the form of
hire purchase or personal contract
purchase to prime and near
prime customers.

*» Lending is provided via UK mator
dealers, brokers and intemet
introducers, with the technology
platform used allowing an
automated end to end
custamer journey.

Support for
customers repaying their
existing debts

* Adebt collection business which
primarily invests in purchased debt
portfolios from third parties, 25 well
as fellow group undertakings.

= WWork with customers te repay their
debts over the longer-term, and
providing specialist support
where required.

* InMarch 2022, the Group
announced its decision to exit
the debt purchase market.
Further information can be found
in the Financial review on page 14.
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Business
Finance

Real Estate
Finance

LOGO REMOVED

Financial support for
professional developers
and investors

+ Real Estate Finance lends on
portfolios of residential property
where the rental income will repay
the underlying borrowing over a
fixed term period, as well as the
development of new
build property.

+ lendingis sourced and supported
both directly and via introducers
and brokers.

Commercial
Finance

LOGO REMOVED

Working capital solutions
for SMEs with the benefit
of asset based security

* Lending is predominantly against

receivables, typically releasing 90% -

of qualifying invoices under invoice
discounting and factoring senvices.

» The business has also provided
additional fending to existing
customers through Govermnment
guaranteed schemes.

* Commercial Finance is sourced
and supportad both directly and
via introducers.

Savings

Personal

LOGO REMOVED

Simple, digital
savings accounts

+ We offer a range of savings
accounts that are purposefully
simple in design, with a choice of
products from same day withdrawal
to 180-day notice, and one to
seven year fixed terms across both
bonds and ISAs.

Cur products are supported
through a highly commended
anline banking service.

Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2021 09



Strategic Report

Strategic priorities

Vision

To be the most trusted specialist lender in the UK

Purpose

Strategy

Grow
in specialist segments

and drive cost efficiency

Strengths

Specialist
Focus on attractive returns in our
core markets

Values
Customer Risk Aware
Focused
Because they are at It keeps

the heart of everything | our customers
we do and us safe
and secure

* Generate growth and attractive returns

* Exploit digital cepabilities to build scale

Expert
Strong market experuse,
relationships and digital capabilities

To help more consumers and businesses fulfil their ambitions

Sustain

 Create sustainable value through
market expertise and deep
customer knowledge

» Utilise strong cradit discipline,
capital allocation and risk
management capabilities

Diverse

and business lending

Future Teamwork
Orientated
Embracing change We achieve

mare when we
wark well together

and implementing
good ideas give
us a competitive
advantage

1 O Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2021

Diverse portfolios in consumer

Care

¢ Help custorners with simple, clear and
compelling preducts

* Deliver consistently excellent customer
care and swift outcomes

Always act with integrity and transparency, delivering value for all stakeholders

Ambitious

Clear opportunities for growth and
strateqy for long-term value creation

Performance
Driven

We wili only be the
most trusted specialist
lender in the UK

by each of us

taking personal
accountability for

our performance

Ownership

Each of us need
to take personal
responsibility




How will it be delivered

Progress we are making

Targets and future priorities

Grow 7

* Generate growth and attractive
returns in specialist segments

¢ Exploit digital capabilities to build
scale and drive cost efficiency

¢ Consumer and Business Finance
continued to wark with our channef
partners during the year, and as a result
achieved a return on average equity of
15.9%, with an 11.6% annual growth in
the loan book during 2021, and with
growth across most of our core products.

* Non-core loan baoks relating to
Consumer Mortgages and Asset Finance
ware sold during the year.

Vehicle Finance launched two new
praducts, Prime Hire Purchase and Prime
PCP, and the Group agreed to acquire
{subject to regulatory approval}
AppToPay Limited, which will provide the
technology for Retail Finance to enter the
digital Buy Now Pay Later sector.

« Deliver growth in the balance sheet,
targeting in the medium-term 15%+
compound annual growth in the loan book,
whilst maintaining return on average equity
through scaling our specialist businesses.

vodoy nbsieng

* Build out on our existing digital capabilities
to win share and drive scale, including
launching a new digital, interest free Buy
Now Pay Later product in 2022 and
establishing our new Prime Hire Purchase
and Prime PCP products.

* Widen our distribution and addressable
markets, both through these new products in
Consumer Finance, whilst expanding cur UK
footprint and regional model in Business
Finance to underpin growth.

Sustain

» Creatle sustainable value through
market expertise and deep
customer knowledge

s Utilise strong credit discipline,
capital allocation and risk
management capabilities

Building on experienced specialist
teamns, deep expertise and knowledge to
deliver sustzinable value growth.

Maintzined strong capital ratios through
strong profit performance.

Gradual raturn to pre-pandemic credit
lending policy by the end of 2021.

Ongoing investment in regulatory
compliance and financial
crime prevention.

» Drive sustainable scale and growth whilst
maintaining credit discipline, risk
management and optimising our
capital allocation.

* Manage the mix and risk profile of the
business to ensure the CET 1 ratic is
maintained above 12%.

» Focus on reducing our cost to incomae ratio
by achieving benefits through strategy,
simplification and re-engineering, driving
value through areas such as digital and
operationz| efficiency, sourcing and supplier
management, technology and
property optimisation.

Care

* Help customers with simple, clear
and campelling products

* Deliver consistently excellent
customer care and swift cutcomes

* Strong customner satisfaction and
advocacy across all areas-of the Group as
evidenced by independent customer
review ratings.

Continued mvestment in digital
platforms, allowing brokers and retailers
to integrate searmlessly, as well as
continuéd growth of online engagement
and self-service.

» Commitment to a positive and healthy
working environment in both the office
and from home.

* Improved savings proposition and
custorer journey with the scaling of
I1SAs and Access accounts and simpler
application processes with easier
self-service.

* Enhance gender diversity and progress cur
Inclusion Agenda whilst continuing to invest
in all our people.

* Develop new products, including Buy Now
Pay Later and Prime PCP, as well as seizing
opportunities presented by emerging green
rarkets, such as the Greener Homes
Scheme, consumer and retail demand for
finance on green energy products and
ancillary services and expanding into electric
vehicles as used stock increases.

Build cut digital and mobile services,
including a Savings proposition delivering
native mobile apps, biometric authenticatian,
security, open banking access and

paymant capabilities.
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Strategic Report

Financial review

IMAGE REMOVED

(6

Strong results reflecting a retumn
to growth and an improving
macroeconomic environment.”

Restated

Income statement £m?l(lji§;l1 ﬁﬁfg Movemes
Interest income and similar income 180.0 192.5 (6.5)
Interest expense and similar charges (29.2) (41.6) (29.8)
Net interest income 150.8 150.9 0.1)
Fee and commission income 14.3 16.0 (10.6)
Fee and commission expense (0.6} {0.8) (25.0)
Net fee and commission income 13.7 15.2 2.9
Operating income 164.5 166.1 (1.0)
Net impairment charge on loans and advances to customers {4.5) {51.3) 91.2)
Gains/{losses) on modification of financial assets 15 3.1 (148.4)
Loss on disposal of loan books (1.4) - -
Losses from derivatives and hedge accounting Q.1 - -
Operating expenses (104.0) (92.6) 123
Profit before income tax 56.0 19.1 193.2
Income tax expense {10.4) (3.7 181.1
Profit for the year 45.6 15.4 196.1
Basic earnings per share {pence) 2447 82.7 195.9
Selected Key Performance Indicators and performance metrics

Net interest margin 6.4% 65.3% 0.1pp
Cost of funds 1.3% 1.8% 0.5pp
Cost to income ratio 63.2% 55.7% 7.5pp
Cost of risk 0.1% 2.3% (2.2pp
Return on average equity 15.9% 5.9% 10.0pp
Comrnon Equity Tier 1 {CET 1°) ratio 14.5%, 14.0% 0.5pp
Total capital ratio 16.8% 16.3% 0.5pp

PO represents the percentage point moverment
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Certain key performance indicators and performance metrics represent alternative performance measures that are not defined or
specified under IFRS. Definitions of these alternative performance measures, their calculation and an explanation of the reasons
for their use can be found in the Appendix to the Annual Report gn page 173. In the narrative of this financial review, key
performance indicators are identified by being in bold font. Prior year results and key performance indicators have been restated
to reflect the IFRS Interpretations Committee’s clarification on the accounting treatment of Software-as-a-Service arrangemnent.
Further details are provided in Note 1 to the financial statements on page 115.

The Directors’ Remunaratinn Report, starting on page 74, sets wul huw executive pay 1s inked to the assessment of key financial
and non-financial performance metrics.

Profit and earnings

The Group has achieved a strong set of financial results. Profit before tax was paositively impacted by a significant reduction in
impairment charges driven by a more favourable economic outlook than in 2020. Operating income was impacted by lower average
lending balances year an year and higher costs reflect increased activity.

Statutory profit before tax increased by 193.2% to £56.0 million (2020: £12.1 million). Consequently, earnings per share increased from
827 pence per share to 244.7 pence per share and return on average equity increased from 5.9% to 15.9%. Detailed disclosures of
earnings per ordinary share are shown in Note 11. The components of the Group's profit are analysed in more detail

in the sections below.

Net interest income

Net interest income of £150.8 million was 0.1% lower than the prior year. Excluding the non-core portfoiios sold in the year, net interest
income was £149.2 million, 1.6% higher than the prior year. Loans and advances to customers excluding the non-core partfolios
increased by 11.6% from £2,266.7 million to £2,530.6 million. Despite the balance sheet growth in the year, with total loans and
advances to customers increasing by 7.3% from £2,358.9 millicn to £2,531.9 million {including assets held for sale of £1.3 million relating
to a small leasing book), everage lending balances over 2021 were 1.3% lower than the average over 2020 as a result of the lockdowns
in the first quarter of 2021.

Interest income centinued to be impacted by the change in the overall mix of lending brought about by the pandemic, and away from
higher margin products. Vehicle Finance’s average lending balances reduced from £292.1 million in 2020 to £245.8 million in 2021
driving & reduction in revenue of £6.2 millicn year on year.

The Group continued to manage down the levels of relatively high-cost fixed rate funding as it matured and was replaced with |SAs
and Notice products. As a result of this interest expense was £29.2 million {(2020: £41.6 million), a reduction of 29.8%. The cost of funds

reduced to 1.3% (2020: 1.8%).

The Group's net interest margin improved to 6.4% (2020: 6.3%), with the impact of lower cost of funding, partly offset by the transition
to lower yield interest free Retail Finance lending and the product mix shift from higher margin Vehicle Finance lending.

Net fee and commission income

Net fee and commission income fell by 9.9% to £13.7 million (2020: £15.2 million). This was driven predominately by the closure of the
OneBill preduct in the year with the resulting reduction of £3.4 million of net fee and commissicn in the year. Both core Business and
Consumer businesses retumed to growth in the year with an increase of 17.3% in net fee and commission income, reflecting the
increased activity.

Impairment charge
In 2021 the cost of risk reduced from 2.3% in 2020 to C.1%. The impairment charge for the year was £4.5 million {2020: £51.3 million).

As in previous years, the majority of cur impairment charge arises from the Consumer Finance businesses. The decrease in the
irmpairment charge is predominantly driven by the IFRS 9 requirernent to account for forward-looking factors rather than actual defaults
experienced in the year. Our IFRS § models use the correlation between macrceconomic variables, such as unemployment and house
price indices, and historic credit losses to derive estimated future losses given a range of forecast variables. The more positive
macroeconomic assumptions as at 31 December 2021 reduced the 2021 impairment charge by £13.2 million.

The 2021 impairment charge includes an additional £5.1 million from the impact of applying additionzal expert credit judgements in the
year, which has led to a total of £13.3 million of overlays being added to provision levels estimated using the Greup's IFRS 9 models as
at 31 December 2021. In response to the rising cost of [ving, a new expert credit judgement for customer affordability was introduced
at £4.6 million (2020: £nil} offsetting the release of £3.1 million in COVID-19 related provisions.
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CHART REMCVED

CHART REMOVED

Overall, tha impairment provision as a proportion of the gross loarnis and advances ta
custorners reduced from 3.4% as at 31 December 2020 to 2.6% as at 31 December 2021.
This reflects the changes in the macroeconomic assumptions outlined above and
improving credit quality of the book. A breakdown of the charge by product is shown in
Note 3. Further analysis of the Group's loan book and its credit risk exposures is provided
in Notes 15, 17 and 38.

Disposal of loan baoks

During the year the Group disposed of the Asset Finance and Consumer Mortgage
portfolios. The loss on dispasal relates primarily to the sale of the Consumer Mortgage
book {loss of £1.3 million), with the beneficial interest being assigned to the purchaser as
at 31 December 2020. £1.3 million of interest income is recognised within net interest
income, resulting in a overall nil profit impact. The Asset Finance sale resulted in a

£0.1 million loss. Both had limited impact on Group's operations as the service delivery of
both portfolios were outsourced to third party praviders.

Following a strategic review, the Board has decided to exit the debt purchase market
and, on 11 March 2022 announced that it had agreed to sell Debt Managers (Services)
Limited’s portfolio of loans to Intrum UK Finance Limited. The value of the portfolio as at
30 September 2021 was £84.7 million and the value of the consideration for the portfolio
as at 30 September 2021 was £94.0 million. The Group estimates that in 2022 the sale will
{taking into account anticipated market exit costs} generate a net profit before tax
benefit and the release of around £72 million of risk weighted assets on completion.
Completion is subject to approvals from originators of the loans which is expected to
complete by June 2022.

Operating expenses

2020 was a year of reduced activity due to the pandemic. In 2021 activity levels increased
and as a result the Group's cost base has increased by 12.3% to £104.0 million

{2020: £92.6 million). The main drivers of this increase are £5.2 million of higher employee
costs, the one-off VAT reclaim of £3.3 miilion in 2020 not recurring and an uplift in activity
level leading to higher legal collection costs. As a result, the Group's cost to income
ratio increased from 55.7% in 2020 to 63.2%.

Taxation

The effective statutory tax rate has reduced to 18.6% (202C: 19.4%). The effective rate for
2021 has decreased below the Corporation Tax rate of 19% as the banking surcharge
cost has been more than offset by the deferred tax credit arising from a reassessment of
the rates at which the deferred tax asset would reverse out in future periods.

The previous rates had assumed the level of Corporation Tax would remain at 19% but
legislation has been enacted during the periad, so with effect from 1 April 2023 the
Corporation Tax rate will increase to 25%. The revised rates continue to assume banking
surcharge of 8% on any taxable profits of Secure Trust Bank PLC in excess of £25 million
in an accounting period. The Gavernment is legislating to reduce the banking surcharge
to 3% on bank tax profits in excess of £100 million with effect from T April 2023, however
the Finance Bill containing these changes was not substantively enacted until after

31 Decernber 2021. The reduction in the closing deferred tax asset from applying the
legislation is expected to be less than £0.9 million. Further information is provided in
Note 10.

Distributions to shareholders

The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend for 2021 of 41.1 pence per share
which, together with the interim dividend of 20,0 pence per share represents a total
dividend for the year of 1.1 pence per share (2020: 44.0 pence per share).
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Balance sheet 2
. Restated g
Summarised balance sheet émilhon o %
Assets Tgi
Cash and balances at central banks 235.7 181.5
Laans and advances ta hanks 50.3 63.3
Debt securities o 25.0 -
Loans and advances ta customers! 2,530.6 2,358%9
Derivative financial instruments 3.8 4.8
Other assets 40.5 527
2,885.9 2,661.2
Liabilities
Due to banks 39038 2764
Depaosits from customers 2,103.2 1,992.5
Tier 2 subordinated liakilities 50.9 50.8
Derivative financial instruments 6.2 é.1
Other liabilities 324 67.8
25835 2,393.4

' Excludes Assets held for sale of £1.3 million {2020: nif), which is includes with'n Other assats.

The assets of the Group increased by 8.4% to £2,885.9 million as at 31 December 2021 (2020: £2,661.2 million). The liabilities of the
Group increased by 7.9% to £2,583.5 million (2020: £2,393.6 million).

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances ta customers (which include secured and unsecured loans and finance lease receivables) increased by 7.3% to
£2,531.9 million {including assets held for szle of £1.3 million) as at 31 December 2021 {2020: £2,358.9 million). Excluding nen-core
portfolios which were sold during the year the annual growth was stronger &t 11.6%.

Loan originations in the year, being the total of new loans and advances to customers entered into during the year, increased by 42.1%
to £1,464.4 million (2020: £1,030.2 million).

Further analysis of loans and advances to customers, including a breakdown of the arrears profile of the Group's loan books,
is provided in Notes 15, 16, 17 and 38.

Debt securities and Due to banks

Debst securities consist solely of sterling UK Government Treasury Bills (T-Bills’). As at 31 December the Group held £25.0 million of
T-Bills {2020: £nil) which was temporarily required to be utilised as collateral against Term Funding Scheme with additional incentives
for SMEs {'TFSME").

Amounts due to banks consisted primarily of drawings from the Bank of England TFSME facility. During the year Term Funding Scheme
{TFS) funding was replaced with TFSME funding. Overzll funding increased by £117.0 million, which supported lending.

Deposits from customers

Customer deposits include Fixed term bonds, 1SAs, Notice and Access accounts. Customer deposits increased by 5.6% during the year
and closed at £2,103.2 million (2020: £1,992.5 million). Total funding ratic increased to 112.4% (2020: 109.5%), in part to fund expected
Commercial Finance drawdowns in the first quarter of 2022, As set out on page 17, the mix of the deposit book has continued to
change, with a continuation of the shift from long-term Fixed term bonds into 1SAs. This has brought about the improvement in cost of
funds referred to on page 13.

Tier 2 subordinated liabilities

Tier 2 subordinated liabilities represent two £25.0 millicn tranches of 6.75% Fixed Rate Callable Subordinated Notes, including interest
accrued. Further details of the note issuances are provided in Note 32. The Notes qualify as Tier 2 capital.
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Financial review
continued

Capital

Management of capital

Qur capital management poticy is focused on optimising shareholder value over the long term. Capital is allocated to achieve targeted
risk adiusted returns whilst ensuring appropriate surpluses are held above the minimum regulatory requirements.

Key factars influencing the managament of capital include:

« The level of buffers and the capital requirement set by the Prudential Regulation Authority {PRA})
* Estimated credit losses calculated using IFRS 9 methodology, and the applicable transitional rules
& New business volumes

* The preduct mix of new business.

Capital resources

Capital resources increased over 2021 from £325.9 million to £350.6 million. This includes the propased 2021 dividend of £7.7 million.
The increase was wholly due to CET 1 capital and was driven by retained earnings growth, offset by the impact of changes to the
IFRS 9 adjustment as set out below.

Restated

2021 2020

Capital £million £million
CET 1 capital 303.6 280.8
Tier 2 capital 47.0 45.1
Total capital 350.6 325.9
Total risk exposure 2,087.4 1,999.7
Restated

. . 2021 2020
Capital ratios % 5
CET 1 capital ratic 14.5 14.0
Total capital ratio 16.8 16.3
Leverage ratio 10.3 10.3

The Group has elected to adopt the IFRS 9 transitional rules. For 2021, this allows for 50% (2020: 70%) of the initial IFRS 9 transition
adjustment, net of attributable deferred tax, to be added back to eligible capital. The same relief is allowad for increases in
provisions between 1 January 2018 to 31 Decemiber 2019, except where these provisions relate to defaulted accounts. The same
relief is allowed for increases in provisions since 1 January 2020, however as a response ta the COVID-19 pandemic, this is applied
at 100% (2020: 100%). All transitional relief will taper off by 31 Decernber 2024,

The Group's regulatory capital is divided into:

» CET 1 capital, which comprises shareholders’ funds, after adding back the IFRS 9 transition adjustment and deducting qualifying
intangible assets, both of which are net of attributable deferred tax.
» Tier 2 capital, which is solely subordinated debt net of unamortised issue costs, capped at 25% of the capital requirement.

The Group operates the standardised approach to credit risk, whereby risk weightings are applied to the Group's on and off
balance sheet exposures. The weightings applied are those stipulated in the Capital Requirements Regulaticn.

Excluding the impact of the IFRS 9 transitional rules, the Group's CET 1 capital ratio and total capital ratio would reduce to 14.0% and
16.2% respectively.
Capital requirements

The Total Capital Requirernent, set by the PRA, includes both the calculated requirement derived using the standardised approach and
the additional capital derived in conjunction with the Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (1TCAAP’]. In addition, capital is
held to cover generic buffers set at a macroeconomic level by the PRA.
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) Restated

2021 2020

£million fmillion

Total Capital Reguirement _ 196.7 191.4
Capital conservation buffer 51.9 50.0
Countercyclical buffer - -
Total 248.6 2414

The increase in lending balances through the year resulted in an increase in risk weighted assets over 2021, bringing the total risk
exposure up from £1,999.7 million to £2,087.4 million.

The capital conservation buffer has been held at 2.5% of total risk exposure since 1 January 2019. The countereyclical capital buffer was
. 0% throughout 2021 as part of the PRAS response to COVID-19.

Liquidity

Liquidity resources

We continued to hold significant surplus liquidity over the minimum requirements throughout 2021, managing liquidity by holding
High Quality Liquid Assets (HQLA) and utilising predominantly retail funding balances from customer depasits over 2021, Some of the

additional liquidity will be used to fund planned Commercial Finance drawdowns in 2022, Total liquid assets increased to £303.0 million
as at 31 Dacember 2021 (2020: £232.1 million).

The Group is a participant in the Bank of England's Sterling Maney Market Operations under the Sterling Monetary Framework and
has drawn £390.0 millicn under the TFSME. The Group has no liquid asset exposures outside of the United Kingdom and no amounts
that are either past due or impaired,

Liquid assets 2021 2000
Aaa— Aa3 259.0 180.5
Al1-A3 38.9 46.5
Unrated 5.1 5.1

303.0 2321

We continue to attract customer depesits to support balance sheet growth. We continue to focus on attracting ISA account funding,
with less emphasis on retaining more expensive fixed term bonds. The composition of customer deposits is shown in the table below.

Customer Depaosits . 20%31 20232
Fixed term bonds 46 54
Notice accounts 37 35
ISA 12 7
Access accounts 5 ‘ 4

100 100

Management of liquidity

The Group uses & number of measures to manage liquidity. These include:

¢ The Overall Liquidity Adequacy Requirement (OLAR’), which is the Boards view of the Group's liquidity needs as set out in the
Board approved Internal Liguidity Adequacy Assessment Process ('ILAAPY). .

¢ The Liquidity Coverage Ratio ("LCR", which is a regulatory measure that assesses net 30-day cash outflows as a propartion of HOLA.

* Totsl funding ratio, as defined in the Appendix to the Annual Report.

¢ High Quality Liquid Assets {HQLA!) are held in the Bank of England Reserve Account and UK Treasury Bilfs. For LCR purposes the
HQLA excludes UK Treasury Bills which are encumbered to provide ccllateral as part of the Group’s TFSME drawings with the Bark
of England.

The Group met the LCR minimum threshold throughout the year and, as at 31 December 2021, the LCR was 439.1%.
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Business review

Consumer Finance

GG
Retall Fl nance The outcome was a great success for us and V12
played a significant part in it, keeping our ability

Retail Finance includes lending products to offer finance during those interesting times.
for in-store and online retailers to enable Having V12 as one of our partners is both a
consumer purchases. strength and a pleasure.

Ben Aelberry, Head of Customer and Store Support
Watches of Switzerland

2021 2020 Mavement Maovement

£million £millon £million %

Lending balance 764.8 46584 106.4 16.2
Total revenue 67.7 70.7 (3.0) (4.2)
Impzirment charge 5.0 14.5 2.5) {65.5)

What we do

* We gperate 2 market leading online e-commerce service to retailers, providing unsecured, prime lending products to the UK
customers to facilitate the purchase of a wide range of consumer products including cycle, music, furniture, cutdoor/leisure,
electronics, dental, jewellery, home improvements and foothall season tickets. These markets include a large number of household
names such as Watches of Switzerland, DFS, Sofology, Performance Cycles and Watchfinder.

* The finance products are either interest bearing or have promotional credit subsidised by retailers, allowing customers to spread the
cost of purchases into more affordable monthly payments.

¢ The online processing system zllows customers to digitally sign their credit agreements, thereby speeding up the pay-out process,
and removing the need to handle sensitive personal documents.

* The business is supported by a highly experienced senior team and workforce.

2021 performance

Retail Finance reported strong lending growth and revenue performance in the second half of 2021. Overall, revenues in 2021
decreased by 4.2% or £3.0 million to £67.7 million (2020: £70.7 million) recovering from a 10.9% decline year on year for the first six
months of 2021. Since our retailer partners re-opened their stores in mid-April after the national lockdown in response to COVID-19,
new business levels have responded positively and total new lending in 2021 was £771.5 million, 26% higher year on year

(2020: £614.5 million).

As a result, at 31 December 2021, lending balances reached £7464.8 million (2020: £658.4 million), an increase of 16.2%, providing a
" strong platform for revenue growth for 2022, The mix of new business towards interest free lending, however, has reduced the overall
gross yield. The growth in 2021 has come primarily from the furniture, jewellery and healthcare sub-markets.

Impairment charges reduced to £5.0 million (2020: £14.5 million), which is driven by a non-recurring release in provisions from
mare benign macroeconomic conditions and improved customer credit guality due to the increased mix of interest free lending.
All the payment holiday arrangements introduced since the start of COVID-19 had concluded by 31 December 2021.

We anticipate further lending growth from our existing retail partners and our operational plans are focused on improving the
customer journey for both our channel partners and customers. The planned launch of new Buy Now Pay Later products using the
technology from the proposed acquisition of AppToPay will promote additional lending.
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. . GG

Veh|C|e Flnance What a simple application to be accepted, a quick
: ' and simple process, not having to answer a million
Finance is arranged through motor different questions was refreshing!”

dealerships, brokers and internet introducers
and involves fixed rate, fixed term hire
purchase and personal contract purchase
arrangements on used cars,

Customer feedback
Feefo, Vehicle Finance customer

0n 2020 Movement Movement

£million £milfign £fmillion S

Lending balance 263.3 243.9 19.4 8.0
Total revenue 393 455 (6.2) (13.6)
Impairment charge 0.1 20.7 {20.6) (99.5)

What we do

* We provide hire purchase lending products for used cars primarily to near-prime customers. [n 2021 we launched a hire purchase
lending and Personal Contract Purchase {'PCP) product into the consumner prime credit market, and in 2019 a Stock Funding
product to allow dealers to finance vehicles on their forecaurt as part exchanges, from auction partners or from other trade sources.

* Finance is provided via technalogy platforms allowing the business to receive applications online from its introducers; provide an
automated decision; facilitate décument production through to pay-out to dealer; and manage in-life loan accounts.

+ All lending is secured against the vehicle being financed.

2021 performance

The number of used vehicles bought on cansumer finance at point of sale increased by 10% in 2021 over 2020, but remained 9% lower
than in 2019. The amount advanced increased by significantly more year on year, up 19%, to £19.2 billion in 2021, reflecting the
increase in used vehicle values,

In 2021, our Vehicle Finance business advanced £134.4 million of new business lending to consumers and £45.4 million in Stock
Funding to used car dealers, both significantly ahead of the amount recorded in 2020 {Consumer: £85.9 miillion and Stock Funding:
£12.7 millicn). The new Prime Hire Purchase cffering, which launched in 2021, delivered £14.6 million of new lending. The new Prime
PCP product was launched in November 2021.

New lending accelerated in the second half of the year whilst lending balances at 31 December 2021 reached £263.3 million, which is
8.0% higher year an year (2020: £243.9 million), average lending balances in 2021 were 15.9% lower than in 2020, As a result, revenues
. were 13.6% or £6.2 million lower at £36.3 million (2020: £45.5 million).

The impairment charge for 2021 was £0.1 million (2020: £20.7 million). This result was driven by a release in provisions arising from mere
benign macroeconomic conditions, which will not be repeated in 2022, and lower than expected defaults.

In 2021, we amended the credit policy to allow lending to acquire both electric and hybrid vehicles, which now armounts to 1% of
the portfolio.

In 2022, we are locking to increase the lending growth from the new Prime Hire Purchase and PCP products faunched in 2021.
Furthermore, we will utilise the technology investment and enhanced customer journeys delivered by our Motor Transformation
Programme across all our preducts to improve growth and enhance earnings.

" Source. Finance & Leasing Assaciation,
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Consumer Finance continued

Debt Management

Credit management services for the Group
and external dients,

(B4

Agent was super friendly, heloful and courteous
helped sort out my payment issue and informed
me of the online service you have she is a credit
to your organisation big pat on the back.”

| Customer feedback

DMS customer

2021 2020 . Movement Movement

£nmiflion £millior £million %

Lending balance 79.6 818 2.2 (2.7
Total revenue 14.6 14.8 0.2) (1.4)
Impairment {eredit)/charge (0.6} 8.9 9.5 {106.7)

What we do

+ Debt Managers (Services) Limited (DMS') is a credit management services business and primarily invests in purchased debt
portfolios from third parties and fellow Group undertakings. In addition, it collects debt on behalf of a range of clients.

* Debt purchase allows DMS to acquire paying and non paying accounts and recover amounts due over an extended period.

« All customer-facing staff receive training on how to effectively use industry recognised techniques to help identify signs of
vulnerability. We aim te provide all customers with the best possible customer service by recognising every customer is different.

* Customers that need additional support are managed by a specialist Customer Care Team. We work closely with debt charities to

ensure that customers recelve an appropriate service for thern.

2021 progress

Reverues decreased marginally by £0.2 million to £14.6 million in the year to 31 December 2021 (2020: £14.8 millien). Lending balances
reduced by £2.2 million to £7%.6 million at 31 December 2021 (2020: £81.8 million).

New portfolios acquired in 2021 from external parties were £23.3 million (2020: £20.5 million). This was lower than expected due to
fewer portfolios available in the market, as selling arganisations deferred debt sales into 2022.

The impairment credit for the year was £0.6 million (2020: £8.9 million) reflecting that, across the year, the actual collections performed

in line with the forecast collections.

Following a strategic review, the Board decided to exit the debt purchase market. On 11 March 2022, it announced that it had agreed
to sell the DMS's portfolio of loans to Intrum UK Finance Limited. Further information can be found in the Financial review on page 14.
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Business Finance

uoday nbsleng

] 616
Real EState Flnance Secure Trust Bank has been an invaluable partner

in the development, providing support and advice

Supports SMEs in providing finance throughout. They understand the challenges
principally for residential development and complexities of being a small housebuilder
and residential investment. and are willing to be flexible in order to meet

individual requirements.”

Alan Saville
Director, Saville Homes

2021 2020 Movement Movement

£million £mill'on £million %

Lending balance 1,109.6 1,051.9 57.7 55
Total revenue 54.8 54.0 0.8 1.5
Impairment charge 0.1 5.2 5.1 {98.1)

What we do

» Real Estate Finance lends on portfolios of residential property and the development of new build property.

+ Lending enables the development of new build property, comnmercial to residential conversions.

* Lending is sourced and supported both directly and via introducers and brokers and is typically provided over a term of up to five
years with conservative loan-to-value criteria.

» We have an experienced, specialist tearm with many years of property expertise, who are nimble and responsive within the market.
Through a difficult trading periad, our partnerships with aur brokers, introducers and customers have been key to a growth in
lending balances in 2021. We maintain a strong risk management framework to existing and prospective customers, giving us a
strong foundation.

2021 performance ,

Real Estate Finance experienced a slower first half of the year due to the COVID-19 restrictions and so it was pleasing to report a
5.5% growth in lending balances in 2021 to £1,109.4 million (2020: £1,051.9 million). New business lending doubled to £376.1 million
(2020: £182.5 million). Revenues wera 1.5% or £0.8 million higher at £54.8 million (2020: £54.0 millicn) as the mix in the book moved
towards investment loans from higher margin development loans, The mix of investment loans increased from 74% to 8/7% in 2021,
reflecting the maturity of a number of larger development loans.

The new Greener Homes Scheme supports property develepers and investors to meet the UK Government'’s Clean Growth Strategy
by 2035, The new product launched in June 2021 generated new loans of £134.9 million in the year.

The macroecenomic environment has been less adversely impacted than expected. There was a small impairment charge of
£0.1 million in 2021 (2020: £5.2 million) reflecting the impact of more favourable macroeconomic assurmnpticns applied during the year,
alow number of loans in default, and continued strong portfolio management. None of our custorers had payment holidays at the

end of the year,
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Business review continued

g GG
Com merC|a| Finance From the outset we felt very comfortable

- with Secure Trust Bank and, locking forwards,
Provision of invoice discounting and factoring | this partnership will enable us to grow our
to SME businesses. portfolio of work and continue to deliver
outstanding returns.”

Gwilym Jones
Managing Ditector, Henderson & Jones

2021 2020 Movement Movement

£million £million fmillion %

Lending balance 3133 230.7 82.6 35.8
Total revenue 17.4 15.2 2.2 14.5
Impairment {credit)/charge {0.2) 1.‘1 (1.3} {118.2)

What we do

 Lending remains predominantly against receivables, typically releasing 90% of qualifying invoices under inveice discounting and
factoring services. Other assets can also be funded either long or short-term and for a range of loan-to-value ratios alongside
these facilities.

» Commercial Finance has also provided additional unsecured lending to existing customers through the Government guaranteed
Coronavirus Business Interruption Loan ('CBIL) Scheme, Coronavirus Large Business Interruption Loan {'CLBIL) Scheme and
Recovery Loan Scheme ('RLS’).

* Commercial Finance business is sourced and supported both directly and via introducers.

» The Commercial Finance team has a strong reputation across the Asset Based Lending market. Its experienced spedialist team
works effectively with its partners across private equity and accountancy practices.

2021 performance

Commercial Finance maintained its strong first half performance into the second half of 2021, Lending balances increased by 35.8% to
£313.3million by the end of Decernber 2021 {2020: £230.7 million). Average lending balances increased by 17.0% year on year whilst
clients’ undrawn availability ran et historically high levels with undrawn funds averaging £109.1 million through the year. As a result,
revenues grew by 14.5% or £2.2 million to £17.4 million in 2021 (2020: £15.2 million).

This perfarmance was driven by healthy levels of new business and low client attrition. There was a small impairment credit of

£0.2 million in 2021 {2020: £1.1 million charge) reflecting our strong and effective credit risk practices and the strength of our lending
security, notably our clients’ receivables. The 2020 impairment charge reflected worsening macroeconomic ferecasts not

customer losses.

In the 2021 Interim Report, we reported that the British Business Bank had approved the Group's application to offer our clients
support under the Recovery Loan Scheme {'RLS’) where the UX Government guarantees up to 80% of each RLS facility. By the end of
December 2021, five deals had been completed with facilities totalling £13.0 million. The Group will continue offering facilities under
the amended RLS scheme where applications from 1 January will benefit from a revised 70% guarantee level.

Of the £52.9 million advanced under the previous UK Government CBILs and CLBILs which closed in March 2021, the balances at
31 December 20271 were £32.1 million. Commarcial Finance took the conscious decision not to participate in the UK Government's
Bounce Bank Loan Scheme.

Looking forward, Commercial Finance starts 2022 with a strong new business pipeline and a stable customer base.

22 Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2021



Savings

vodey nibsleng

) GG

Sa\"ngs Nover banked before with Secure Trusl but
everything has been easy to put in place. More
The Group attracts funding primarily via retail | importantly they do what they promise in their
savings, offering individuals competitive, literature. Very impressed so far with their
simple products, applied for and serviced account management.”

online and backed by the UK Financial
Services Compensation Scheme.

Customer feedback .
Trust Pilat, Savings customer

2021 207 Movement Maverert

Emillion gmillicn £million %

Fixed term bonds 974.6 1,076.4 {101.8) {9.5)
Notice accounts 771.9 7051 b6.8 95
ISAs 255.0 129.4 1254 96.8
Access accounts - 101.7 814 203 249
2103.2 1,992.5 110.7 56

What we do

* We offer a range of savings accounts that are purposefully simple in design, with a choice of products from same day withdrawal
to 180-day notice, and one ta seven year fixed terms across both bonds and 15As.

¢ Accounts are made available and priced in line with our ongoing funding needs, allowing each individual to hold & maximum
balance of £1 million.

* Ourrange of savings products enables us to access the majority of the UK personal savings markets and compete for
significant liquidity paols, achieving a lower marginal cost with the volume, mix and the rates offered optimised to the dernand
of our funding needs.

2021 performance

The Savings business has continued to raise deposits in an increasingly competitive market through our renge of retail savings
products. Over £1.0 billion of new deposits were generated in 2021, the majority of which came from external new funding
{£661.4 million). This increased total savings balances to £2.1 billion by the end of 2021 (2020: 2.0 billion).

Our strategy to diversify our product range through our Fixed Rate ISA and Access products has enabled us to reduce our cost of retall
deposits, despite acquisition rates across savings products increasing during the second half of the year.

ISA balances have almast doubled to £255.0 million (2020; £129.6 million), while variable rate depaesits have similarly grown to
£873.6 million (2020: £774.8 million), driven by customers’ continued preference far shorter-dated deposit accounts. The operation has
been further simplified during 2021 through the closure of our OneBill account and a small book of nen-personal savings products.

Alignment of existing savings rates to market reductions during the first half of 2021 reduced the cost of retail deposits. We expect a
continued rise in the cost of retail deposits in 2022 through further increases in the Base Rate and continued competition for new
deposits. We will therefore continue our strategy to diversify our product range by launching our Access account to new and existing
custormers during the first quarter of 2022,

To support this our new digital proposition will be delivered during the year, creating a platferm to enable the growth of retail deposits
in a cost-effective way. .
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Strategic Repert

Economic and regulatory environment

Economic review
Recent developments

In 2021, the UK Gross Domestic Product (GDP') grew by 7.5% after an annual 9.4% decline in 2020. The lifting of COVID-19 restrictions
gradually through the year across the UK nations has been supported by the success of the UK's vaccination programme.

Econemic activity has responded and by December 2021, supported by Government support programmes, GDP had recovered back
above its pre-COVID-19 levels (February 2020).

From a COVID-19 perspective, the adverse impact on the economy has been significant but 2021 has been a year of economic
recovery. The greater transmissibility of the newer Omicron variant towards the end of the year, however, reminds us of the ongoing
economic and sodial risks of this pandemic. Whilst future strains may be less deadly, the impact on businesses from employee
shortages and self-imposed restrictions on custamer behaviour will continue to temper economic growth.

The UK labour market outperformed expectations. The Labour Force Survey unemployment rate fell to 4.1% in the three months to
November and vacancies have reached a peak of 1.247 million. The unemployment rate has fallen consistently through the year
(December 2020: 5.2%). Over a million jobs were furloughed immediately before the Caronavirus Job Retention Scheme closed at the
end of September 2021, but this closure has not led to significant redundancies.

The UK inflation rate, measured by the Consumer Prices Index ("CPY), accelerated through the year, reaching a peak in December of
5.4% (December 2020: 0.6%). This has been attributed to supply side disruptions and rising energy and food prices. 1t is expected to
continue to nise in 2022 and the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) in its February 2022 report forecasted a peak
of 7.25% in Aptil 2022, with that further increase accounted for predominantly by the lagged impact of energy bills from increases in
whaolesale gas prices. CPllevels are not expected to return to the MPC's 2% inflation target until 2024. Average pay growth has
matched or exceeded CPlincreases in 2021, but further growth in CPlin 2022 is expected to outstrip pay growth.

The MPC sets monetary policy to meet a CPl inflation target of 2%. In response, the UK Base Rate was increased to 0.25% in
December 2021. On 3 February 2022, the MPC announced a second increase of 0.25% to 0.5% and on 17 March 2022 a further
increase of 0.25% to 0.75%. Future increases in the Base Rate are expected by the financial markets during 2022. The increases inthe
real cost of living will adversely impact on consumers’ dispasable income and will raise questions abaut the affordability of household
bills and consumers’ appetite for discretionary spending.

Gutlook

In February 2022, the MPC forecast the UK economy to grow by 3.75% in 2022 with low ongeing unemployment rates.

Economic headwinds remain present and the degree of the uncertainty around the economic outlook is unusually high. The increasing
geapoalitical tensions as a result of Russia's invasion of Ukraine may further lower growth expectations and increase inflationary
pressures. COVID-19 will continue to be disruptive but is expected to be less so than in 2021, Rising inflation and the higher costs of
living will stretch consumers’ incomes during the coming year increasing the risk of customer default.

Government and regulatory

Recent developments

This has been another busy year for Government and regulatory announcements impacting the Graup. The key announcements in
2021 are set out below:

In February 2021, Financial Conduct Authority (FCAY issued guidance, which highlights the actions firms should take to understand
the needs of vulnerable customers to make sure that they are treated fairly.

In March 2021, the Governmenit issued a Consultation Paper “Restoring trust in audit and corporate governance”. The final proposals
will set out the plans to strengthen the UiCs framework for major companies and the way they are audited.
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The 2021 March Budget included an extension to business support schemes, including Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme which
concluded at the end of September 2021, Other measures introduced included a capital allowance super deduction, aimed at
stimulating business investment.

As noted in the Economiic reviewy, the successful vaccination prograrme has enabled the Government to limit the level of COVID-19
related restrictions through the year. Despite the advice to work from home where possible in response to the spread of the Omicron
variant in Novermber, the Government did not announce any further extensions to the Coronavirus Jok Retention Scheme.

Joday d1Bsieng

An increase to Corporation Tax rates was announced in the Bidget Tha Corporation Tax rate will increase liom 19% 1o 25% with effect
from 1 April 2023. At the same time, the banking surcharge will reduce from 8% ta 3% and the surcharge allowance svailable to
banking groups will increase from £25 million to £100 million.

In April 2021 the PRA published its discussion paper DP1/21 on ‘A strong and simple prudential framework for non-systemic barks and
building societies'. The paper set out several proposals for ways in which the regulatory regime could be simplified for smaller firms
over the coming years. The discussion paper slicited responses from over 40 firms and the PRA issued feedback paper F51/21.

The industry-wide feedback was broadly consistent with our views that a streamlined approach would be preferable to a new regime
with excessive conservatism, which could lead to higher capital and liquidity requirements for impacted firms. We welcome the overall
aims set out in the paper as the requlatory burden can be a barrier ta growth for smaller firms and preventing new entrants, thereby
harming competition.

In May 2021, the Debt Respite Scheme (Breathing Space) was introduced in order to give someone in problem debt the right to legal
protections fram their creditors. The Group amended its systems and processes to support this important protection for
our customers.

In October 2021, the PRA published P522/21 ‘Implermentation of Basel Standards: Final Rules’, effective from 1 January 2022.

The policy staternent broadly aligns with the EU's Capital Requirements Regulation |l and impacts the Group's regulatory requirements,
including capital, net stable funding and leverage. In addition, the new requirements will enable the Group to reduce the scope of
Pillar 3 reporting requiremenis which is primarily due to its size and simple structure.

In December 2021, the MPC announced a 0.15% increase in the UK Base Rate to 0.25%, a second increase of 0.25% to 0.5% on
3 February and a further increase of 0.25% to 0.75% on 17 March 2022. The MPC’s updated central projections in its February 2022
report are conditioned on a market implied path for the UK Base Rate that rises to 1.5% by the middle of 2023.

Also in December 2021, the Financial Policy Committee {FPC’) annauniced that the UK Countercyclical Capital Buffer rate will be
increased to 1% from 13 December 2022, having been reduced tc 0% in March 2020 because of the pandemic. The FPC also set the
expectation of a further increase to its ‘normal’ level of 2% from mid-2023, subject to the economy continuing to recover in line

with expectations.

Finally in December 2021, the FCA issued a Consultation paper {CP21/13), which included proposals to introduce a new Consumer
Duty that would set higher expectations for the standard of care that firms provide to cansumers.

The PRA plan to issue a consultation paper on the implementation of Basel 3.1 in the final quarter of 2022, The PRA intends to consult
on a proposal that these changas will become effective on 1 January 2025, which is in line with cther major jurisdictions.

We expect the high level of Government and regulatory change, which directly impacts the Group, to continue. Qur horizon scanning
pracessas should ensure that we are able 1o assess this change on a timely basis.
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Strategic Report

Principal risks and uncertainties

Risk management

A fundamental element of the Group's strategy is the effective management of risk, in order to
protect the Group’s depositors, borrowers and shareholders, to ensure that the Group maintains
sufficient capital, liquidity and operational control at all times and acts in a reputable way. This is
reflected in the Group’s strategy and values, in particular the ‘Sustain’ strategy and 'Risk Aware’
value, which demonstrate the Group's commitment to protect the reputation, integrity and
sustainability of the Group. ‘

The Group'’s Chief Risk Officer is responsible for leading the Group's Risk Function, which is independent from the Group’s operational
and commercial functions. The Risk Function is responsible for ensuring that appropriate risk management processes and controls are
in place, and that they are sufficiently robust, to ensure that key risks are identified, assessed, monitored and mitigated, The Chief Risk
Officer is responsible for reporting to the Board that the Group's principal risks are appropriately managed and that it is operating
within its risk appetite.

Risk appetite

The Greup's Board approves the firm's risk appetite statements that confirm the risk parameters within which the strategic aims and
vision of the Group are to be achieved. The Group has identified the risk drivers and major risk categories relevant to the business to
enable it 1o produce a comprehensive suite of risk appetite statements and metrics which underpin the strategy of the Group.
Governance

The Group's risk management framewarks, pelicies and procedures are regularly reviewed and updated to ensure that they accurately
identify the risks that the Group faces in its business activities and are appropriate for the nature, scale and complexity of the Group’s
business. The Group's risk management framewaorks suppart decision-making across the Group and are designed to ensure that each
risk is managed, monitored and overseen through & dedicated risk-specific committee.

Effective risk committees are cperating at Board, Group and individual business unit level to ensure there is clear accountability for risk
management, a robust framewerk and risk identification and mitigation strategies are in place across the Group.

In 2021 a new Executive Risk Cemmittee ((ERC), chaired by the Chief Risk Officer was established to further embed and align the
Group's risk management frameworks. The Committee reviews key risk management information from across the risk disciplings, with
material escalated to the Executive Committee {'ExCo?) and/or the Risk Committee of the Board 'BRC') as required.

The Group cperates a ‘Three Lines of Defence’ model for the management of its risks. The Three Lines of Defence, when taken
together, control and manage risks in line with the Group's risk appetite. The three lines are:
« First Line: the Business Line Managers who own and manage risk;

» Second Line: functions that oversee or specialise in risk managernent or compliance (Information Security, Operational Risk,
Prudential Risk, Credit Risk, Financial Crime and Compliance Teams); and

* Third Line: Internal Audit.
Each line of defence effectively ensures a robust risk framework within the Group. The Group ensures that each line understands its

respective responsibilities and those of the other linas and has the appropriate resaurce and expertise in order to fulfi
its responsibilities.

The Group operates an Enterprise-Wide Risk Management Framework ({ERMF') , which supports the coordination of risk management

disciplines across the Group. Underneath the ERMF sit individual risk discipline frameworks and policies which set standards on:

» Risk identification: activities are embedded through integration with key business processes 1o ensure the Group:
— Censiders how existing activities may impact the current and future risk profile
— Considers the implications of new products
— Has an awareneass of how external influences may affect risk.

« Risk management: focuses on the application of tools, technigues and processes to quantify risks in order to effectively measure risk
and its change over time.

« Risk manitoring: Board and senior management are provided with timely identification of the risk position, current emerging risks,
material threats and opportunities to enable appropriate management actions.

* Risk reporting: The Board, Cormnmittees, and senior management are infarmed of any changes in the Groupss risk profile or pasition
and necessary actions via regular reporting. In addition, ad-hoc reporting to address any specific concerns affecting risk
management or straiegies must be available.
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Further details of the Group’s risk management framework, including risk appetite, governance arrangements and key committees,
can be found on the Group’s website: ’

www.securetrustbank.com/our-corporate-information/risk-management

Risk overview :

Executive management performs ongoing manitoring and assessment of the principal risks facing the Group, including those that
would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity. The following table shows the principal risks facing the
Group, the movement indicates how the risk prolile for each individual nsk has shitted over the course of 2021. This year Financial
*Crime and Climate Change have been split out frem Regulatory and Operational Risk respectively to provide further insight into the
work currently being undertaken by the Group.

P . Change to the risk
Prln(:lpal rISk profile over 2021

Credit risk .
o X . i . . . Improving
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to satisfy their debt servicing commitments when due,

Liquidity and Funding risk Stable

The risk that the Group is unable to meet its obligations as they fall due or can only do so at excessive cost.

Capital risk
Capital risk is the risk that the Group will have insufficient capital resources to meet minimum regulatory requirements
and to support the business. '

Stable

Market risk
The risk that the value of, or revenue generated from, the Group’s assets and liabilities is impacted as a result of market
mavements, predominantly interest rates.

Stable

Operational risk
Cperational risk is the risk that the Group may be exposed to direct or indirect loss arising from inadeguste or failed
internal pracesses, personnel and succession, technology or infrastructure, or from external factors.

Stable

Conduct risk
The risk that the Group’s products and services, and the way they are delivered, result in poor outcomes for customers,
or harm to the Group.

Stable

Regulatory risk Stable
The risk that the Group fails to be compliant with zll relevant regulatory requirements.

Financial Crime risk
The risk that the Groug fails to prevent the facilitation of financizl crime by not having effective systems and controls and
does not meet regulatory requirements.

Stable

Climate Change risk
The risk of the potential ‘physical’ effects of climate change and the ‘transitional’ risks from the UK's adjustment towards a
carbon neutral economy on the Group's strategy, performance and cperational resilience.

Stable

Notes 38to 41 to the financial statements provide further analysis of credit, liquidity, market and capital risks.

Further details of the principal risks, the changes in risk profile during the 2021 financial year and the Group's risk management
framework are set out in the following section. There is also analysis of some of the key strategic and emerging risks which may

impact the Group.
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Strategic Report

Principal risks and uncertainties
continued

Credit risk

Desctiption

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to satisfy their debt servicing commitments when due. Courterparties include the
consumers to whom the Group lends on a secured and unsecured basis and the small and medium size enterprises { SME") to whom the Group
lends on a secured basis as well as the market counterparties with whom the Group deals. ‘

Mitigation

The Group manages credit risk through internal contrals and through z three lines of defence model. The Consumer Credit Risk Committee and
SME Credit Committees, which are the monitoring committees for credit risk, report to the Risk Committee. The ERC approves lending autherities
in respect of SME lending. Each consumer lending product has a monthly portfofic review which reviews business performance. Policy and
scorecard chianges are approved at the Consumer Credit Risk Committee.

For Real Estate Finance and Commarcial Finance, lending decisions are made by their respective Credit Committees, using expert judgement and
assessment against criteria set out in the lending policies. Exposure to credit risk is also managed in part by obtaining security. Vehicle Finance
loans are secured against motor vehicles. Real Estate Finance loans are secured against property. Commercial Finance advances are secured
against a debtor book, inventory, plant and machinery or property if a commercial mortgage is provided.

Management monitors the credit ratings of the counterparties in relation to the Group’s foans and advances to banks. There is no direct exposure
to the Eurozone and peripheral Eurczone countries.
Forbearance

The Group does not routinely reschedule contractual arangements where custorners default on their repayments. it may offer the customer the
aption to reduce cr defer paymeants for a short periad, in which cases the loan will retain the normal contractual payment due dates and will be
treated the same as any other defaulting cases for impairment purposes.

Consumer Finance credit risk

Application, arrears and loss trends for the Retail Finance and Viehicle Finance portfolios are manitored monthly by the Credit Risk function.

Since the end of lockdown Retail Finance business volumas have returned to pre-pandemic levels. Portfolio quality continues to improve driven by
the proportion of new business in the lower risk furniture and jewellery sectors. Arrears cases remain below expectations as reflected by the higher
quality business being written.

Vehicle Finance has seen volumes steadily increasing, particularly in the second half of the year, as credit policy has returned to pre-pandemic
standards. The Prime Hire Purchase product is starting to see higher volumes as introducers are aware of our risk appetite, and the Prime PCP
procuct was launched in December 2021. Impairments are performing well and are lower than expectation.

The increase in inflation in the second half of 2021 resulting in rising energy prices and the cost of fiving will impact customers that had low levels of
dispasable income, meaning that they will have to prioritise the debts that they pay. This is likely to result in increased impairments on the
Consumer partfolios. The Group has implementad an Expert Credit Judgement overlay to account for the heightened risk of default from the
highest risk, lowest income customers.

Business Finance credit risk

New business origination activities in Business Finance returned to business as usual as the UK exited lockdown during the year. New business in
Real Estate Finance was driven in part by the launch of the Greener Home Scherne product, which against some {arge scheduled repayments saw
the balances grow modestly throughout the year. In Real Estate Finance, the majority of customers impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic saw
rental income recover and as a result there was no need to extend the forbearance measures previously agreed; with laaris moved back ta

original terms.

in Commaercial Finance the Government guaranteed loan schemes (CBILS, CLBILS, RLSj were deployed in response to COVID-19. The business has
successfully provided circa £65.9 million of loans and has received circa 30% in repayments so far. Commercial Finance took the conscious decision
nat to participate in the UK Goverament’s Bounce Back Laan Scheme. The overall Cormmercial Finance partfolio has grown through the year,
despite significant unutilised headroom.

The Group has nat relaxed any of its key risk appetite parameters during the year. Management cortinues to monitor each of the portfolios closely
and regularly reviews the external events and changes to the wider environment that could have a material impact on any of them.

Concentration risk

Management assesses the potential concentration risk from geographic, product and individual loan cancentration. Due to the weli diversified
nature of its lending operations, the Group does not consider there to be a material exposure arising fror concentration risk.

Model risk and the impact of IFRS ¢

The 1FRS ¢ models have been monitared closely throughout the year and found to be working effectively. A new Probability of Default model was
implemented for the Real Estate Finance business in the second half of 2021 and has performed well. Minar enhancements have been made to the
models where appropriate ahead of a routine full review, and where appropriate, redeveloprment in 2022. The extreme econamic conditions brought
about by COVID-19 have required particular focus on the macroeconomic variables that drive the forward-looking elements of the IFRS 9 models {the
Economic Response Model). Unemployment rate has the largest influence on the Economic Response Model elemeant of IFRS 9, with House Price
Index also playing an irfluence in the Real Estate Portfolio. Throughout the year the Bank has continued to stress the IFRS 9 modals with a number of
unemployment scenarios, to assist with business planning and forecasting. Payment holidays have kept the provision levels produced by the (FRS

9 models artificially low in the first half of 2021, so where necessary overlays were used to maintain provision cover at appropriate levels.

Change during the year — Improving

Given the positive response seen from the portfolios to the pandemic and the robust credit appetite controls that continue o be applied, the
overall assessment of credit risk improved during the year. Despite the low numbers of defaults experienced throughout the year, however, difficult
economic conditions are expectad in 2022. Inflation is expected to rise and labour shertages and supply chafn disruption are expected to continue.
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Liquidity and Funding risk

Description

Liquidity and funding risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its obligations as they fall due or can only do so at excessive cost. The Group
maintains adequate liquidity resources and a prudent, stable funding profile at all times to cover liabilities as they fall due in normal and

stressed conditions.

The Group manages its liquidity in line with internal and regulatory requirements, and at least annually assesses the robustness of the liquidity
requirements as part of the Group's Internal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Process {ILAAP).

voday siBaeng

Mitigation

Risk tolerance and stress testing

The Board sets and appraves the Group's liquidity and funding risk appetite. Liquidity and funding risk is managed by the Group's Treasury function

and is overseen by the Assets & Liabilities Committee (ALCO"). The Group’s ALCO monitors compliance with the Group’s policies and oversees

the overall strategy, guidelines and limits so that the Group's future plans and strategy can be achieved within risk appetite.

The Liquidity Working Group (LWG", a working group of ALCO including representation from Business Unit Finance Directors, embeds the

identification, menitoring, measurement and management of liquidity and funding risks in the day-to-day activities of the Group. The Risk Function

is responsible far ensuring that appropriate risk management processes and controls are in place, and that they are sufficiently robust to ensure

that key risks are identified, assessed, monitored and mitigated.

Liquidity and funding metrics are monitored daily through daily liquidity reporting and on an ongoing basis through morthly ALCO meatings.

Metrics are also included in the monthly information pack presented at the Group's ExCo, the BRC and the Board.

~ The aim is not to measure liquidity and funding with a single metric but rather a range of principles and metrics which, when taken together, helps
ensure that the Group’s iquidity and funding risk is maintained at an acceptable level. The primary measures used by management to assess the

adequacy of liquidity is the Cverall Liquidity Adequacy Rule (OLAR) {which is the Board’s own view of the Group's liquidity needs as set out in the

Board-approved ILAAP), the Liquidity Coverage Ratic {LCR’), and the Funding to Loan Ratio. The Group manages liquidity by working to ensure

compliance with the most binding metric.

In line with the Prudential Regulation Authority’s (' PRA] self-sufficiency rule {the OLAR) the Group seek at all times to maintain liquidity resources

which are adequate, both as to amount and quality, to ensure that there is no significant risk that its liabilities cannot be met as they fall due under

stressed conditions. The Group defines liquidity adequacy as the:

* Ongoing ability to accommodate the refinancing of liabilities upon maturity and other means of withdrawal at acceptable cost;

» Ability to fund asset growth; and
*» Capacity to otherwise meet contractual obligations through unconstrained access to funding at reasonable market rates.

Te meets its liquidity requirements the Group maintains a buffer of unencumbered High Quality Liquid Assets {HQLAY).

The Group conducts reqular and comprehensive liquidity stress testing to identify sources of potential liquidity strain and to ensure that the
Group's liquidity position remains within the Board Risk Appetite and prudential regulatory requirements and limits. Stress testing covers
idiosyneratic, market-wide, and combined stress scenarios, with additional stress scenarios including reverse stresses and combinations of

sensitivity anzlysis across individual items.

Contingency funding plans

If for reasons which may be beyond the business’ control, the Group was to encounter a significant and sustained outflow of deposits or cther
stress on liquidity resource, the Recovery Plar incorporates the Group's plans to ensure that it remains sufficiently liquid to remain a viable
independent financial institution during a severe liquidity stress event. Recovery Plan Early Warning Indicators and Invocation Trigger Points are
regularly monitared and reported against.

The Recovery Plan is applied consistently with the-Group's ILAAP as part of the overall liquidity risk management framework dealing with
contingent funding requirements as they arise. The Group also retains access to the Bank of England liquidity schemes, including the Discount
Window Facility.

Change during the year ~ Stable

The Group has maintained its liquidity ratics in excess of requlatory requirements throughout the year and continues to hold significant levels

of HOLA.

A number of enhancements were made to the liquidity and funding risk management in 2021. These ineluded a further review of the guantum of
liquidity the Group halds to suppert its franchise in business-as-usual and stressed conditions. A thorough review of the Group’s regulatory liquidity
reporting has alse been completed. The stress tests performed as part of the ILAAP confirmed that the Group has sufficient funds to satisfy the
OLAR requiiremnent and there is no significant risk that liabilities cannot be met as they fall due. The Group’s LCR as at 21 December 2027 was
significantly higher than the requlatory requirement.
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Strategic Report

Principal risks and uncertainties
continued .

Capital risk

Description

Capital risk is the risk that the Group will have insufficient capital resources to rneet minimum regulatory requirements and to support the business.
The Graup adopts a conservative approach to managing its capital and at least annually assesses the robustness of the capital requirements as part
of the Group's Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process [ICAAPY).

Mitigation

Capital Management is defined as the operational and govemnance processes by which capital requirements are established and capital resources
maintained and allocated, such that regulatory requirements are met while maximising returns. These processes arid associated roles and
respensibilities are set out in the Group’s Capital Managemenit Palicy, which is approved by the BRC. The Board regularly reviews the current and
forecast capital position to ensure capital resources are sufficient to support planned levels of growth.

In accordance with the EU's Capital Requirements Directive V ('CRD V') and the required parameters set out in the EU's Capital Requirement
Regulation, which have been preseribed into UK law following Brexit, the Group maintains an ICAAP which is updated at least annually.

The ICAAP is a pracess that brings together the management framework {i.e. the policies, procedures, strategies and systerns that the Group has
implemented to identify, manage and mitigate its risks) and the financial disciplines of business planning and capital management.

Not ali material risks can be mitigated by capital, but where capital is appropriate the Board has adopted an approach to determine the level of
capital we need to hold. This methad takes the Pillar 1 capital formula calculations (standardised approach for credit, market and cperational risk)
as a starting point, and then considers whether each of the calculations delivers a sufficient capital sum adequate to cover management’s
assessment of anticipated risks. Where it is considered that the Pillar 1 calculations do not reflect the risk, an additional capital add-on in Pillar 2 is
applied, as per the Total Capital Requirement issued by the PRA.

A complete assessment of the Group’ capital requirement is contained in its Pillar 3 disclosures. Fillar 3 disclosures for the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 are published as a separate document on our website.

Change during the year — Stable

. As set out in the Financial review, the Group's capital position improved in 2021, reflecting the growth in profits. The Group continues ta mest its

I capital ratio measures. Details of the CET 1, total capital ratio and leverage ratic are included in the Financial review on page 14.

The 2021 ICAAP showed that the Group continues to be able to meet its minimum capital requirements, even under extreme stress scenarios.

In addition to the ICAAP, the Group performs regular budgeting and reforecasting exercises which consider a five~year time horizon.

These forecasts are used to plan for future lending growth at a rate that both increases year-on-year profits and maintains a healthy capital surplus.
They considered the impact of known and anticipated future regulatory changes including the estimated impact of the re-introduction of the
countercyclical capital buffer ({CCyB prior to its announcement in December 2021,

The PRA’s proposed increases in CCyB explained on page 25 will not challenge the Group’s minimum regulatory capital position. The Group will
continue to monitor its future capital requirements as it grows its risk weighted assets over the reporting period.

The Group also models a number of stressed scenarios looking aver a five-year time horizon, which consider a range of growth rates over those
years as part of the viability and going concern assessments.

The 2020 pandemic demonstrated the benefit of the relatively short duration of the Group's lending portfolios. As the crisis took hold, the
reduction in certain of our markets and our tightening of credit risk appetite led 1o a swift reduction in our balance sheet, thereby reducing pressure
on capital levels. This feature of our balance sheet allows us to flax future growth rates in response to changing economic conditions.

The Group adopted transitional provisions in respect of the implementation of IFRS 9. These provisions zllow the capital impact of the standard to
be phased in over a five-year period. As a response to the pandemic, further capital relief was made available, and the Group's reported capital
position takes account of this relief. Further details are provided in the Financial review on page 16.
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Description Pl
The Group's market risk is primarily linked to interest rate risk. Interest rate risk refers to the exposure of the Group financial position to adverse B

movements in interest rates.

When interest rates change, the present value and timing of future cash flows change. This inturn changes the underlying value of the Group’s
assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet instruments and hence its economic value. Changes in interest rates also affect the Group’s eamings by
altering interest-sensitive income and expenses, affecting its net interest income.

The principal currency in which the Group operates is Sterling, although a small number of transactions are completed in US dollars, Furos and
other currencies in the Commercial Finance business. The Group has no significant exposures to foreign currencies and hedges any residual
currency risks to Sterling.

Mitigation

Risk tolerance and stress testing

Market risk is managed by the Group’s Treasury function and is overseen by the ALCO. The Group does not take significant unmatched positions
and does not operate a trading baok.

The Group's risk rmanagement framework, policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and updated to ensure that they accurately identify the
risks that the Group faces in its business activities and are appropriate for the nature, scale and complexity of the Group’s business.

The Group uses an interest rate sensitivity gap analysis which informs the Group of any significant mismatched interest rate risk positions that
require hedging. The Group reports the interest rate mismatch on a menthly basis to ALCO, cansidering Market Value Sensitivity {MVS) as a
proportion of the cverall capital position of the Group and Eamings at Risk as a proportion of forecast net interest income. These are mainly
assessed against 200bps and 100kps paralle! shifts in rates respectively. These measures also assess the Group’s exposure to a potential negative
interest rate environment.

The Group zlso monitors its exposure to the Economic Value of Equity ('EVE') as a proportion of own funds and CET 1 against a 200bps parallel
shift in rates, as well as the six standardised shocks prescribed by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS').

The Greup also monitors its exposure to basis risk, optionality, and any residual nan-GBP paesitions. Processes are also in place to review and react
to movements to the Bank of England Base Rate.

All such exposures are maintained within the risk appetite set by the Board and are moenitored by ALCO.

Change during the year — Stable

The Group's exposure to market risk continues to be primarily focused on interest rate risk, with only modest exposures to foreign exchange risk. ©
Performance against risk appetite is closely tracked and reviewed to align with Group Strategy. The Group remained within risk appetite in respect
of market risk throughout the year.

The Group has made further enhancements to market risk management in 2021 and regularly reviews the risk management framewaork.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
continued

Operational risk

Description

Operational risk is the risk that the Group may be exposed to direct or indirect loss arising from inadequate or failed internal processes, persannel
and succession, technology/infrastructure, or from external factors.

The scope of Operational risk is broad and includes business process, business continuity, third party, Financial Crime, Change, Human Resources,
Information Security and IT risk, including Cyber risk. The Group's customers, operations, processes, products and people are exposed to these
inherent risks sa it has made significant investments to carefully manage and mitigate these risks and ensure there is a robust and effective
Operational Risk Framework in operation across all areas of its business.

Mitigation
The Group has an Operational Risk Framework designed in accordance with the 'Principles for the Sound Management of Operational Risk' issued
by the Basel Committee on Banking Supenvision. This Framewark defines and facilitates the following activities:

* ARisk and Control Self-Assessment process to identify, assess and mitigate risks across all business units through improvements to the
contral environment

* The Governance arrangements for managing and reporting these risks
* Risk appetite staterments and associated thresholds and metrics

« An incident management process that defines how incidents should be managed and associated remediation, reporting and root-
cause analysis.

The design and effectiveness of the Group’s Operational Risk Framework is regularly audited by the Group’s Internal Audit function.

The Framework ensures appropriate governance is in place to provide adequate and effective oversight of the Group's operational risks.
The governance framework includes the Group Operational Risk Committee, the ERC and the BRC.

The Group has a defined sat of qualitative and quantitative operational risk appetite measures. These measures cover all categories of operational
risk and are reported and manitored monthly.

In addition to the delivery of Framework requirements Operational Risk has also focused on these thematic areas in 2021:

& COVID-19 (business disruption) — The pandemic has increased the inherent risks faced by our business across a number of operational risk
categories and has remained a key area of focus in 2021. As well as working to minimise the operational implications through changes to our
operating practices, the Group has also been focusing on the safe retum of colleagues to the offices over the second half of the year. The threat
of new variants remains, and we continue to closely monitor the situation. The pandemic has increased the competitiveness of the UK jok
market with hybrid working allowing recruiters to lask naticnally for new talent. Inflationary pressures have also increased pressure on wages
across the sector, further increasing the importarice of succession planning and mitigating key person rigk.

» Supplier management — The Group uses & number of third parties to support its IT and operational processes. The Group racognises that it is
important to effectively manage these suppliers and has embedded a suite of standard contrels for all its material suppliers to reduce the risk of
operational impacts on these critical services. This has been particularly importart during the COVID-19 pandemic, so we have remained in
regular contact with our key suppliers and gained assurances over their ongoing ability to support our operations. Further tools have been
developed, and are being rolled out, to helo understand the quality of the resilience controls in operation at our critical suppliers. This will
continue to be an area of focus for 2022,

Operational and IT resilience — Many elements of the Operational Risk Framework support the ongoing resilience of the Group's operational
and IT services, including business continuity management, disaster recovery, incident management, process management, and the cyber
strategy. The Group has defined a formal plan 1o respond to the new requirements of the Consultation Papers issued on this subject by the
Financial Conduct Autharity {'FCA) and PRA. Compliance with these requirements and continuing to enhance the resilience of our services
rernains a key priority.
s Information security and cyber risk — The Group has paid considerable attention to ensuring the effective management of risks arising

fram a failure or breach of its infermation technology systems that could result in customer exposure, business disruption, finandial losses,

or reputational damage.
* Change Management - The effective delivery of Change Management programmes plays an important role in meeting the Group's regulatory
requirements, improving services and delivering cur strategic plans. Ineffective change management processes could lead to poor customer
outcomes, business disruption, financial loss and regulatory breaches. Change Management processes and govemnance are defined and
embedded across the Group.

Change during the year — Stable

The Group uses the The Standardised Approach’ for assessing its operational risk capital, in recognition of the enhancements made to its
framework and embedding this across the Group. The Group continues to invest in resource, expertise and systems to support the Operational
Risk Framework and Policy. in 2021 the Group has continued 1o enhznce these standards and has introduced a number of impravements to the
control framewarks in place across our princinal operational risks.

Whilst the pandemic increased the inherent operational risk across a number of key areas of our business, the Group continues to adapt
successtully to the new working conditions and demonstrated its operational resilience. Overall, the assessmeant is that the level of risk has
remained stable,
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Conduct risk

Description
We define Canduct Risk as the risk that the Group’s products and services, and the way they are delivered, result in pocr outcomes for customers,
or harm to the Group. This could be as a direct result of poor or inappropriate execution of the Group’s business activities or staff behaviour.

poday nifsieng

Mitligation

The Group takes a principles-based approach and inciudes retail and commercial custamers in our definition of ‘customer’, which covers all
business units and both regulated and unregulated activities. Detziled policies are in place to address the fair treatment of customers, with the
Conduct Risk Policy setting out the overarching approach to managing conduct risk.

Change during the year — Stable
The Group has continued to operate within overall risk appetite, remaining focused on delivering good customer outcomes.
As reported in the 2021 Interim Report, pressure has been seen on some conduct risk metrics. For example some contact centre service levels have

been outside tolerance for some periads with resources not matching requirements. The number of affardability complaints received has also been
flagged for attention in Vehicle Finance - increased volumes have also been noted by other motor finance lenders according to the Finance &

Leasing Association.

The Group anticipates that the drivers of conduct risk will continue to be the ongoing resourcing challenges (being experienced acrass the financial
services industry as competition for recruitment increases) and related conduct considerations, and the long-term impact of the pandemfc on the

Group’s customers.

Regulatory risk

Description

Regulatory Risk is the risk that the Group fails t¢ be compliant with all relevant regulatory requirements. This could occur if the Group failed to
interpret, implement and embed processes and systems to address regulatory requirements, emerging risks, key focus areas and initiatives or deal
properly with new laws and regulations.

Mitigation

The Group seeks to manage regulatory risks through the ERMF. The Group Compliance and Regulatory Risk Committee, Group Financial Crime
Committee and Prudential Herizon Scanning forum are responsible for reviewing and monitoring regulatory changes. The committees monitor
operational incidents with a regulatory impact, and ensure that appropriate actions are taken. They also review and approve the relevant risk
management framewaork.

Change during the year — Stable

In the year ended 31 December 2021, new and revised regulations and legislation that have come inta force have been actioned. These changes
included the introduction of Breathing Space through the Debt Respite Scheme, the FCAS guidance on vulnerability, the application of the FCA
Directory requirements to other entities in the Group, changes to identification of Material Risk Takers, and the PRAS final rules for the
implementation of Basel Standards.

The Group took part In a number of FCA reviews and surveys during the year, including car repaossessions prior to the FCA COVID-19 guidance
being changed, forbearance survey, credit broking survey, coronavirus financial resilience survey and the pilot diversity and inclusion survey.
Naotifications were submitted to the regulators in the year relating to the sale of the asset finance, and mortgage portfolios; and

material outsourcings.

Projacts and initiatives are in place for changes in 2022 including outsourcing and third-party risk management, regulatory retums, operational
resilience, UK GDPR data transfers. )

The Group’s horizon scanning activities track industry and regulatory developments including the PRAS work on a strong and simple prudentia!
framework for non-systemic banks and building societies, the FCAS new Consumer Duty, the Government's national data strategy and the PRA
and FCA’ transformation agendas related to data. ‘
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Strategic Report

Principal risks and uncertainties
continued

? Financial Crime risk

Description

The risk that the Group fails to prevent the facilitation of financiat crime by not having effective systems and controls and does not meet
regulatory requirements.

Mitigation

The inharent risk of the Group is assessed with the use of the recognised ERMF methodology. Investment continues to be made in enhancing

I skills, systems and econtrols and this is an area which is closely monitored by the ExCo. This remains an important area of focus for the Group and as
such has now been reflected as a separate risk. The Group appointed a new Money Laundering Reporting Officer who was approved by the FCA
in December 2020. The Group continues to have no appetite for establishing or maintaining custorner relationships or executing transactions that
facilitate financial crime and has no appetite for sanctions breaches. Horizon scanning is conducted to identify emerging trends and typologies as
well as preparing for new legislation and regulation. This also involves participating in key industry forums {or associations) such as those hosted by
UK Finance. Financial Crime policies and standards were updated in 2021 to ensure alignment with our regulatory obligations.

Change during the year — Stable

The Group continues to invest in recruitment for both the first and second Lines of defence and in colleagues’ development to improve their
capabilities through industry-recognised financial crime qualifications. The Group has built a systam of controls designed to comply with the UK
Bribery Act 2010 and the Criminal Finances Act 2017. To strengthen our financial crime contrals there has been focus in areas such as further
improving sancticns screaning, assessing risks prasented by products and appropriate transaction monitering and reinforcing horizon scanning,
policies and governance to adhere to our risk appetite and stay abreast of increasing regulatory expectations. The Financial Crime Risk team own
our control framework with accourtability for execution owned by our colleagues within the first line. In crder to monitor the effectiveness of our
control framework, key performance indicators are defined, reported against and escalated through our Governance Committee structure.

To support culural awareness an internal campaign under the banner of *Spot the signs, stop the crimes” has been initiated.

Climate Change risk

Description

Climate change, and society’s response to it, present financial risks to the UK financial services sector. While these risks will crystallise in full over the
coming years, they are already becoming apparent in the shorter tamm as consumers’ preferences change and governments implement theie
strategic responses. The Group has now established processes 1o monitor our risk expasure in relation to both the potential Physical’ effects of

‘ climate change and the Transitional’ risks from the UKS adjustment towards a carbon neutral economy.

Change during the year — Stable

Overall, our assessment of the combined risk associated with Climate Change is ‘Stable’. The Group has installed robust controls to manage the
assaciated risks and will continue 1o develop our business plans in the future as the risks evolve and our customer, clients and businesses adapt to
the changes required in our markets to meet the UK’s target to bring all greenhouse gas emissions to net zero by 2050. Enhanced disclosures are
made in this year's Annual Report and Accounts in line with the guidance from the Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures’,

Specific detail on each of the key risks identified and mitigation are covered within the "Strategy’ section of our Climate-related financial disclosures
on pages 49 to 55, )
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~ Strategic and emerging risks

In addition: to the principal risks disclosed above, the Board and Executive considers strategic and emerging risks, including key
factors, trends and uncertainties which can influence the results of the Group. These are reviewed monthly by the ERC and biannually
by the ExCo. Below are some of key risks themes which have been areas of focus over the course of 2021:

uodayiBaleng

Macroeconomic environment and market conditions

The Group operates exclusively within the UK and its performance is influenced by the domestic macroeconemic environment.

The econamy affects demand for the Group's products, margins that can be earned from cur lending assets and the levels

of impairment. :

Economic uncertainty continued throughout 2021 due to combination of the giobal ramifications of COVID-19 and the UK markets
adjusting to leaving the European Union. The start of 2021 saw continued use of lockdowns to curk the spread of COVID-19,
suppressing economic activity.

The second half of 2021 saw a rebound in many sectors, with many asset prices increasing due to pent up demand and, in the case of

vehicles, global supply chain difficulties. Inflationary pressures on the economy, raises the likelihcod of future increases in interest rates,
after a decade of historically low Base Rates.

The Group closely monitors the macroeconomic environment and performs reqular stress testing to ensure that the implications of any
economic shocks can be sustained and managed.

People
The pandemic has increased the competitiveness of the UK job market with hybrid working allowing recruiters to look nationally for
new talent. Inflationary pressures have also increased pressure on wages across the sector.

In 2021 the Group intraduced a new Hybrid Working Policy and continues to monitor the wider employment market and respend
as required.

Inflation

There have been growing inflationary pressures on the UK economy in 2021 and this is forecast to stretch into 2022, with economists
predicting higher Base Rates as markets price in Base Rate increases over the course of 2022. The cutlock rernains far from clear and is
turther complicated by COVID-19.

In response to increasing inflation rates in 2021, the Group introduced a £4.6 million provision to reflect the expected increase in
delayed repayments and defaults if customers struggle to pay all their bills on a timely basis. The Group will cantinue to maonitor
customer affordability dosely and will tighten lending parameters if required.
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Strategic Report

Viability and going concern

Going concern

In assessing the Group as a going concern, the Directors have given consideration to the factors likely to affect its future performance
and development, the Group's financial pesition and the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, as set out in the Strategic
Report. The Group uses various short and medium-term forecasts to monitor future capital and liquidity requirements and these
include stress testing assumptions to identify the headroom on reguiatory compliance measures. The details of the forecasts and stress
tests are explained the Business viability section below.

Accordingly, the Directors conclude that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for a period of at least 12 months from the date of the approval of the financial statements and therefore it is appropriate to continue
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts.

Business viability

In accordance with provision 31 of the UK Cerporate Governance Code, the Directars confirm that there is a reasonable expectation
that the Company and the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet their liabilities as they fall due, for the period up to

31 December 2026. As the Group’s financial planning horizon is five years and overall economic and market uncertainty is lower than
last year, the Group will adopt a five year planning horizan for its viability assessment for the first time. In the previous year the planning
horizon was three years.

The Directors zre confident of the Group's viability over the longer term after considering all the principal risks affecting the Group,
including the following factors:

* The Group has delivered strong profit growth and capital management in 2021 and the 2022 annual budget process indicates
long-term growth potential. '

* The Group has navigated successtully through the real-life business and financial stresses resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic.
The Group has adopted new working practices and demonstraied its cperational resilience throughout the pandernic.

¢ Our stress testing indicates the Group’s ability to manage its capital and liquidity requirements through the regulator's prescribed
financial stresses. The Group has maintained capital levels in excess of its early warning indicators and regulatory requirements
throughout the year and is forecast to continue to do sa over the five year period.

* In the area of climate change, the Board recognises the long-term risks and, in October 2021, approved a formal review of the
medium to longer-term implications, risks and opportunities that climate change presents to the Group’s strategy and plans.

Furthermore, the Board considers that the circumnstances required to cause the Group to fail, as dernonstrated by the stress testing,
are sufficiently remote.

The Directors have based their assessment on the results of the following activities:

s The latest annual budget process, which contains information on the expected financial and capital positions and performance of
the Group over the 2022 to 2026 period.

* The Graup monitors its key performance indicators across profit, capital, liquidity and different risk categories to mitigate any
changes in risk outside of its risk appetite.

* |n addition to the annual budget process, key sensitivities are measured through other forecasting activity undertaken over the
course of the year, which wauld impact on profitability over the planning herizon.

¢ The Group's ILAAP process approved by the Board in July 2021 provides assurance that the Group can maintain liquidity resources
which are adequate, both as to amount and quality, to ensure that there is no significant risk that its liabilities cannot be met as they
fall due. This risk was tested under the financizal stresses outlined below. The Group has maintained liquidity levels in excess of its
liquidity risk appetite and regulatory requirements throughout the year and is forecast to continug to do so over the [LAAP
planning horizon.

s The Group's ICAAP, which considered the PRAs published macroeconomic stress and severe scenarios and in order to assess the
adequacy of capital resources over the 2021 to 2025 period, was approved in November 2021, Within this process, the Group
considered the extent of the credit, aperational and market risks and how this affects its capital levels. Under the macroeconomic
stress, the details of which are set out belew, at no point were minimum capital requirements breached and there was only imited
use of capital buffers.

The latest Group Recovery Plan was approved in February 2021 and confirmed that the Group has sufficient recovery options
available to recover from the severe scenario medelled over the 2021-2025 period. The primary recovery options are to raise new
deposits and reduce its level of new lending.

s Consideration of the other principal risks as set out on pages 26 to 35, to identify any other severe but plausible scenarios that could
threaten the Group's business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity.
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A summary of the different financial stresses are set out below:

ILAAP
The Group'’s 2021 ILAAP included idiosyncratic, market wide and combined stress scenarios.

Lodey a1Baieig

The idiosyncratic liquidity stress test assumed a sustained outage of the Group’s deposit platform and resultant reputational impacts,
which restricted cash inflows into the business thus creating a liquidity strain. The market wide stress is based upon the UK economy
antering a severe recession with rising unemployment and inflation which resuits in higher detfaults on lending and higher deposit
attrition. The combined stress indudes elerments of the idiosyncratic and market stresses whereby the UK economy enters a severe
recession and the Group suffers operaticnal issues in the deposits function at the same time. In addition, the ILAAP includes sensitivity
analysis to model the impact of adverse variances in stress assurmnptions used in each of the above scenarios.

Reverse stress test modelling was also performed to identify the type and severity of a stress required for the Group to be no longer
able to meet its liquidity requirements. The chosen scenario included the impact of an immediate partial repayment of TFSME funding.

ICAAP

The Group's ICAAP considered the PRA published macroeconomic stress and severe scenarios to assess the adequacy of capital
resources over the 2021 to 2025 period. Under the macroeconomic stress, which included an unemployment peak of 12% in Q4 2021
and a 33% property price decline by mid-2022, with an economic recovery beginning in 2023 and more normal levels of economic
activity restored by late 2024. At no point were the Group's capital requirements breached and there was a limited use of

capital buffers.

Reverse strass tast modelling was also performed to assess the level of stress required far the Group to be no longer able to meet its
capital requirements. This required a significantly more severe scenario, including peak unemployment of 15%.

The ICAAP also utilised scenario madelling for elements of the Group's Pillar 2A capital assessment to support the assessment of
operational risk and credit risk.

Recovery Plan :

The latest Group's Recovery Plan confirmed that the Group has sufficient recovery options available to recover from the severe stress
scenarios modelled over the 2021 to 2025 period. The combined capital stress test included peak unemployment of 15%, a 33%
decline in property prices, an increase in Base Rate to 4% and operational losses due to a cyber event. The idiosyncratic liquidity stress
test assumed a sustained outage of the Group’s deposit platform and resultant reputational impacts, which restricted cash inflows into
the business thus creating a liquidity strain.
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Strategic Report

Managing our business responsibly

Integrity, transparency
and value for
all stakeholders

Our new vision of becoming the most trusted specialist lender in the UK, combined with a
refreshed purpose and strategy, clearly sets out the future ambition of our organisation. It is
underpinned by a commitment to act with integrity and transparency delivering value for all
stakeholders and in a way that contributes to the sustainable future of the environmental and
social systems that we all depend upon. This section incorporates both our approach to Managing
Business Responsibly and also our section 172 statement, as required by the Companies Act 2006.

Responsible business and Environmental, Social and Governance {'ESG')

In 2021 we continued to wark with Business in the Community {BiTC), the Responsible Business Network set up by HRH The Prince

of Wales. The stakeholder engagernent work completed in 2020 has helpad us to define our Responsible Business strategy, in line with
our vision, purpose and strategy, which is focused on our key stakeholders. In 2021 we took part in BiTCs Responsible Business Tracker
for the first time, which is a comprehensive audit of all of cur business activities. The results are due in 2022 and will be used by & new
Responsible Business/ESG steering group to drive our strategy forwara.

The following table details how we have considered each of our key stakeholders as part of managing our business responsibly and
develaping strategy.
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Customers

Link to strategy

Care

LOGO REMOVED

Why we act responsibly for our customers

We are committed to helping more consumers and businesses fulfil their ambitions, by
providing straightforward transparent solutions, acting responsibly and treating our customers
fairly. The strateqy is designed to focus on achieving good customer cutcomes, promoting a
customer centric culture, and making sure that preducts and services are sustainable whilst
safeguarding and maintaining a profitable business.

There are rigorous pelicies and procedures in place which define the underwriting approach to
make sure that our lending is responsible, fair and appropriate to the customer’s circumnstances,
thereby providing customers with the ability to make informed borrowing decisions.

We approve lending only when we have established and adequately verified the customer's
creditworthiness and capability to meet repayments, in line with regulatory obligations.

The customer experience is considered at every point in the design process for products and
services. We regularly seek customer opinion on new initiatives before promoting these to the
wider population and the customer design approval process makes sure that we can provide
strong evidence that customer needs have been considered before a new product is launched.

Throughaut the pandemic we have continued to place particular focus on maintaining positive
customer experience. For example, we have implemented a customer portat for our customers
in the Debt Managers Servicas business. This allows customers the ability to view details
regarding their account such as payments and remaining balance. There have also been
improvements to the income and expenditure completion process including the cption to
populate the assessment through Open Banking.

Within the Vehicle Finance business, we rolled out a digital finance calculator for dealers and
their customers. The finance calculator automnatically matches customers with a Prime or
near-prime product, providing them with financial terms and monthly payments. The software is
integrated onto & dealer’s website, providing customers with finance and affordability
information at the start of their journey.

LOGO REMOVED

LOGC REMOVED

Two way engagement

Listening to our customers is paramount. We continue 1o use Feefo as an independent source
of customer feedback, providing valuable insight into our customer relationships. In addition,
our customers are able to use Trustpilot to share their views about the Group. Feefo scoring
and customer service awards are discussed by the Board. We are keen to learn from where we
may be going wrong and complaints data is reviewed by the Executive and Board Committees.

Cur average Feefo rating for 2021, based on 937 reviews was 4.6 out of 5 (2020: 4.7 from 1,466
reviews). The average Trustpiiot rating for 2021, based on 3,754 reviews was 4.6 out of 5

[2020: 4.6 from 2,624 reviews). When poor feedback is received, we treat each case individually
and attempt to resolve the issue with the customer. This feedback is monitored alongside
complaints data and where emerging trends are noted we seek to design and implement
solutions to fix the problem. We take pride that our Feefo scores demonstrate STB's culture of
putting the customer at the centre of what we do.
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Strategic Report

Managing our business responsibly
continued

Customers continued

Outcomes

Customer service awards

For the ninth successive year, the Group has been accredited with the Government backed Customer Service Excellence quality mark. This follows
an in-depth external assessment against criteria which research has indicated are a priority for customers, with particular focus on delivary,
timeliness, information, professionalism and employee attitude. The standard puts an emphasis on developing customer insight, understanding
the users experience and robust measurement of senvice satisfaction and is designed to offer organisations a practical tool for driving customer-
focused change.

The final written report was very positive, particularly in relation to putting the customers first, as demonstrated by this short excerpt:

"We are delighted to recognise Secure Trust Bank Group ('STB') for its excellent customer service. Fram our in-depth assessment,

STB dearly lives its values and puts customers at the heart of everything that they do. We are espedially pleased to distinguish some key
areas with a Compliance Plus rating such as charity and community efforts and putting customers first through extensive colleague training
and customer initiatives. The culture that employees at all levels have fostered is very well deserving of the Customer Service

Excellence standard."

Feefo Trusted Awards

We also continue to be recognised through the Feefo Trusted Awards. In February 2022 it was announced that the Group had once again gained
Trusted Service awards across all its businasses that collect Feefo reviews. The Vehicle Finance and Retail Finance businesses both achieved
a Platinum award whilst the Savings business achieved a Trusted Service award.

This independent seal of excellence recognises that our businesses are delivering exceptional experiences, rated by real customers.

The Board

The Board receives updates on customer views. This helps us to shape the products and services we offer to suit our customers’ needs.
Key topics discussed at meetings have included;

* Meeting the neads of our customers (for example, thase most vulnerable}

* Adapting to the changing preferances of customers during 2021

» Focusing on key business streams and Lending products

* Adding a Feefo objective to Management’s remuneration scorecard, aligning the customer experience with pay.

How has the customer voice helped the Board make decisions on strategy?

Following feedback from customers and suppliers, it was clear that there was derand far 2 Buy Now Pay Later offering. The Board considered
various options and following due and careful consideration, elected to acquire AppToPay Limited, owner of a digital Buy Now Pay Later
technology platform, subject to requlatory approvals. The decision to acquire AppToPay has aligned our customer needs with eur growth strategy,
which is at the care of our shareholders interests. For more examples of strategic initiatives we have launched during the year in response to
customer needs, please see the Business Review on pages 1810 23.
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Shareholders

Link to strategy

Uoday nbseng

Grow Sustain

Why we act responsibly for our shareholders
The views of those who own STB and support us financially are important as they provide us with the capital we use to run our business.

Two way engagement

The Boeard has received feedback from our principal shareholders during 2021 via our Chairman and CEQ. The committee chairs, as well as the
Senicr Independent Director, are available to meet with shareholders on request and all seek engagement.

Following feedback received from shareholders during the investor audit conducted in 2020 and 2021, members of the Executive team held a
Capital Markets Day in 2021 with investors. [nformally, the Board alsc receives updates from the Company Secretary on correspondence received
from shareholders throughout the year.

Outcomes

In response to the scale of the pandemic at the time of publishing the Notice of Meeting for the 2021 AGM, to avoid uncertainty and considering
the health and well-being of our shareholders and our Board, physical attendance from shareholders at the 2021 AGM was discouraged. To allow
shareho!ders to voice concerns and raise questions at the AGM, they were provided with the opportunity to submit questions electronically ahead
of the meeting with responses published on our corporate website. We look forward to resuming physical AGMs and welcoming our shareholders
to attend when safe to do so.

Later in the year in Novermnber 2021, we hosted a Capital Markets Day and were pleased to take the opportunity to welcome familiar faces in a
COVID-19 safe manner. It provided an opportunity for shareholders to meet new members of the Executive team and enabled us to communicate
our updated strategy. For stakeholders who were unable to attend in person, we recorded the session and made a webcast of the presentations
avallable on the website afterwards.

The Board

The Board is responsible for safeguarding our shareholders’ investment and we seek their feedback on our stewardship.
Key topics discussed by the Board this year have included:

s Dividends

* AGM planning and engagement

* The results of the investor audit, including reviewing feedback which identified more could be done to articulate the Board's strategy and
culminating in the Capital Markets Day.

How has the shareholder voice helped the Board make decisions on strategy?

Due to the uncertainty regarding the impact of the pandemic on the UK economy and to protect the long-term interest of the stakeholders, the
Board made the decision in 2020 to suspend dividends. The Board remains certain that by consenving capital at that time, this was the best way to
safeguard the long-term success of the company through the pandemic for all stakeholders, inclusive of shareholders. Meetings were held
between the Chairman/CEO and principal shareholders who were supportive of this approach in the short term. During 2021, using madelling and
reflecting on §TB's experience of the pandemic, the Board was pleased to be able to confidently reinstate the dividend and an interim dividend of
20p a share was declared,
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Strategic Report

Managing our business responsibly
continued

Employees

Link to strategy

Care Grow Sustain

Why we act responsibly for our employees

We firmly believe that providing our employees with an effective voice contributes to building trust innovation, productivity and erganisational
improvement. The employee voice is pivotal in creating inclusive and safe working environments.

Two way engagement

We continue to operate Employee Councils in each of our businesses, consisting of department representatives elected by their colleagues.
The Councils meet on a regular basis and encourage a two-way process of communication between employees, senior managers and the Board.

In addition, we have 2 Group Employee Council that meets with the CEO, HR Director and is chaired by the independent Non-Executive Director
designated for workforce engagement, Baroness Neville-Rolfe. The aim of the Employee Council is to promote further employes engagement and
provide a structured forum for teams to share their views, enabling colleagues to provide insight, feedback and suggestions to make Secure Trust
Bank Group a great place to work. Throughout 2021, our Employee Cauncils were pivotal in helping us shape our future waorking practices and
ansuring that the views of all colleagues were fully considered. Lucy Neville-Rolfe provides an update to the Board following each meeting and
ensures that the employee voice is heard by the Board.

We complete an annual Your Voice' employee survey conducted by the Great Place to Work® (GPTW®) Institute. This comprehensive survey
explored the levels of trust and employee engagement across the Group and includes values such as credibility, fairness, respect, camaraderie,
honesty and pride. By completing this annually, GFTW® enabled benchmarking of Secure Trust Bank’s amployee experience against many of the
most progressive workplaces in the UK. The results of the annual survey are considered by the Board.

In November 2021 the Group participated in the survey for the fourth time. Despite the chalienges presented by the pandemic and our teams
adapting to the new ways of warking, we were delighted to maintain a high Trust Index rating of 80% which is broadly in line with the previous
score of 82% in 2020. This was based on a respanse rate of 85%, with 81% of respondents stating that 'Secure Trust Bank is & great place to work’
compared to 84% previously. The Trust Index is the average of ihe core survey statements and used as the Group’s key performance indicater in
respect of amployee satisfaction.

Our Your Vaice resufts are used to drive continuous improvement at both Group and team favel throughout the year. Progress is communicated
and enabled by a team of calleague volunteers called Your Voice champions. Our Your Voice Champions meet quarterly acting as a conduit
between senior management and the wider colleague cammunity and are instrumental to driving and reporting progress in key areas identified
using our survey data. )

We were delighted to be recagnised at the Best Workplace awards in May 2021, being ranked 23rd in the UK Best Warkplaces Large category
{2020: 28th) and now also ranked as 13th in the UK Best Workplaces for Women category. We have also maintained our partnership with the
Employer Network for Equality and inclusion 'ENEY) and once again completed the TIDE diversity benchmarking tool to identify areas of focus,

In 2021 we were awarded the silver standard for our approach to and progress on diversity and inclusion. The results of the evaluation have shown
an increase in our score to 74% from 60% in the previous year and 41% in 2019. This is the third consecutive year that we have been ewarded bath a
UK Best Workplaces for Women award and an ENE| TIDE Mark, proving that employees feel a strong sense of trust, fairness and wellbeing in

their workplace.

During 2021, STB made an offer to all eligible employees to participate in the Save as you Earn Scheme. $TB communicated with employees via
news articles on the intranet, a webinar and communications in team huddles. Following closure of the application period, STB ran a survey
seeking to understand motivations for participation in the scheme and will use the data gathered to formulate communications in the scheme

in 2022.
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Employees continued

Qutcomes

Employee development _
Employee development remains a priority and we have a comprehensive induction programme for new employees, a wide range of specialist
professional qualifications and numeraus other development opportunities. These include 2 comprehensive fourlevel leadership academy and
'ICE” our Individual Contributor Excellence Programme for those in specialist and non-leadership roles. These prograriines have been delivered
virtuafly during 2021 to ensure that the focus on personal development is mzintained. We also launched a number of line manager masterclasses
to further bulld confidence in leading teams. We continue to partner with Everywoman to provide extensive online and self-managed learning that
is s0 important for our remote teams.

Our personal growth programme sponsored by our Non-Executive Director, Baroness Lucy Neville-Rolfe, helps colleagues to build confidence,
plan their progression and make it happen. It remains extremely popular and oversubscribed at each intake and includes a variety of prestigious
external speakers who help attract excellent feedback.

Following the loss of our esteemed General Counsel, Alan Karter, in 2020 the Chairman launched the Alan Karter scholarship fund to give four
individuals the opportunity to attend professional development programmes with Cranfield Business School. The programme provides individuals
with the required leadership skills to help them move into more senior roles within the Group. It also provides thern with training on how to
develop impact and influencing skills for use in their roles.

Employee engagement and recognition

Research has cansistently shown a clear link between high performance and team engagement. To ensure that colleagues are recognised for their
cantribution, our suite of recognition schemes celebrate exceptional performance and behaviours. These range from simple e-thank you cards to
the Group's arnual Qutstanding Achievers awards, where 30 winners are selected by a panel of judges.

These schemes together with our annual incentive programme continue to help embed excellence within the culture. As the majority of employees
have been working from home, we adapted our processes to ensure that our teams continued to be recognised for their contributions. We provide
colleagues with a wide range of training for personal and professional development. The Bank supports staff in achieving recognised qualifications
from the London Institute of Banking and Finance Banking Certifications.

uoday aibaieig

Employee wellbeing

Providing a positive and healthy working environment, where colleagues have the opportunities and support to enhance their own wellbeing is of
critical importance to us. Fellowing positive feedback, STB has continued to focus on employee wellbeing during 2021, building on the wellbeing
progress made in 2020. In 2021 we launched a wellbeing hour which gives colleagues an hour each month during their working day to dedicate to
supporting thefr wellbeing. We have also maintained the Weflbeing Cafes launched in the panderic which allow colleagues te connect with others
with the support of one of our many Mental Health First aiders.
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Strategic Report

Managing our business responsibly

continued

At the year-end, the split by gender of the
Group's employees was as follows:

CHART REMOVED

CHART REMOVED

CHART REMQVED

LOGO REMGOVED

Employees continued

‘Gender diversity

In 2021, we published our fourth Gender Pay Report and supponing commentary. We are
committed ta diversity in the workplace at all levels and the actions cutlined in the report
demonstrate this and show our commitment to improving the position at senior manager level,
Following the appointment of Rachel Lawrence to the role of Chief Financial Officer in
September 2020 we were delighted to appoint Katie Docherty to the role of Chief Operating
Officer in June 2021. Cur diversity agenda remalns an area of focus for us and we are conscious
we still have more to do.

We continue to work closely with Everywoman in progressing our Inclusion Agenda with the HR
Director and Sales Director in the Vehide Finance Division and now our Chief Financial Officer
having been appointed as Everywoman Ambassadors,

The launch of aur new HR system in April 2021 has provided us with the ability to gather more
robust data and this is an area of increased focus for us moving forward. In addition, in Qctober
2021, BITC facilitated a focus group to gather evidence of lived experience of diversity,
indusion and wellbeing at Secure Trust Bank Group. This feedback will further enable us to
update and deliver a refreshed Diversity & Inclusion strateqy in 2022 that will include us
becoming signatories of the Women in Finance Charter.

The Board

The Board acknowledges that the strength of our service is set by our pecple. It is clear that
having a talented, healthy, diverse family of individuals whe are engaged in their roles is
essential to bringing the STB vision to be the most trusted specialist iendar in the UK to life and
fundamental to the long-term success of the Group. By protecting mental health and listening
1o employee feedback and implementing ideas for improvements, we stand the best chance of
maintaining merale, boosting productivity and retaining the individuals that make 5TB work on
a day-to-day basis.

Key topics discussed by the Board this year have included:

* Changing needs of employees as a result of changes to the working environment

s Diversity
s Your Voice' resulis

e Linking the Great Place to Work scores to management remuneration via a specific cbjective
to assist in driving employee engagement

* Upskilling existing employees ta provide a talent pipeline for the Group through initiatives
such as the Alan Karter scholarship.

How has the employee voice helped the Board make decisions

on strategy?

We have adopted a hybrid working policy which enables employees to work remotely as well
as in the office. The decision to move to a hybrid working policy was based on feedback
received that employees wanted the flexibility to continue with more opportunities to

waork remotely.
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Environment

Link to strategy

uodaey oibajeng

Care Grow

Why we act responsibly towards our environment

We continue to recognise the importance of acting respensikly in relation to the environment and our Responsible Business Strategy, which has
been developed following engagement with a wide range of stakeholders, includes environment as a key focus area for 2022 and beyond.

Two way engagement

During 2021 an Erwironment Acticn Plan for our Sclihull head office has been progressed with the support of 18 Eco Champions {employee
volunteers) and similar work has taken place at our other main offices in Cardiff and Rotherham. This programme of work will continue throughout
2022 aided by a newly formed Environment Steering Commiitee and governance framework. The Committee will use the outputs from Business in
the Community’s Responsible Business Tracker survey, to guide our environment strategy which will build on our existing Group Environmental
Policy and help the Group develop its approach to reducing CO, emissions and improving its green credentials. '

Qutcomes

Our Group Environmental Policy sets out key areas of focus for the business and also commits the Group to following environmental guidance,
where reasonably practicable, provided by the UK government, the financial services secter and environmental organisations. This includes
reporting cur progress using key metrics related to our environmental footprint. More infarmation about aur progress in this area can be found in
the following section which sets out how we are disclosing information in line with the expectations of the Task Force on Climate Related
Financial Disclosures.

We monitor our emissions and recognise STB's impact on the environment. We review the business model to assess the indirect impact of
financing of certain industries, such as Vehide Finance can have on the environment.

The Board

The Beard recagnises that our impact on the environment is crucial to our legacy. We acknowledge that being accountable for direct and indirect
actions of our Group, and making decisions which help to improve our impact on the environment, are essential to understanding our
sustainability. It also enables us to agree STB' priorities in line with the expectations of future generations of customaers.

Key topics discussed by the Board this year have included;
= Emissicns

* Operating model

» Carbon neutrality

How has the environment voice helped the Board make decisions on strategy?

In developing strategy, environmental impact has been a key feature of Board room discussicns. The Board continues to be mindful of of bath its
direct and indirect impacts on the environment. A strategy to offset its emvironmental impact is being developed. In doing so, the Board has
received specific training on climate change risk and ESG. It has also approved strategic initiatives such as finance for second-hand electric

battery vehicles.
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Strategic Report

Managing our business responsibly
continued

Wider society

Link to strategy

Care Grow

Why we act responsibly towards our society

We remain mindful of our need to act responsibly in society. In part we meet these requirements by complying with the wide range of laws and
regulations which are applied to financial services companies in the UK.

Two way engagement

Cur established community-focused schemes remain in place and our charity committees continue to empower colleagues from different business
areas to drive forward charitable activities. .

Although fundraising activity was adversely impacted by the COVID-19 crisis, in 2021 we supported 20 charities and raised over £57,000 for

good causes.

The STB Volunteers Scheme, which entitles all colleagues to use one paid day to make a difference in their local area, had also been impacted by
the pandemic resulting in a significant reduction in hours used by colleagues.

We are proud of the work done to date in this area and we fully anticipate that our ongoing partnership with Business in the Community and the

results fram our first Responsible Business Tracker will guide our Responsible Business strategy and result in new initiatives which address
additional social issues that are of high importance to our stakeholders.

Outcomes

The Group has a governance framework and range of policies which are designed to ensure that we meet these responsibilities and adhere to the
highest prafessional and ethical standards when dealing with customers, suppliers, employees, iocal communities and other stakeholders
The scope of our Group-wide palicies and regulations includes:

» Anti-bribery and corruption

* Anti-money laundering

s Employment health and safety

¢ Whistleblowing

* Human rights and tackling modern slavery

All staff are required to complete the relevant requlatory training on an annual basis with further training offered when required

The Board

The Board is proud that 5TB is a good corporate citizen. We are mindfui of our impact on wider society and supportive of our employees” efforts
with local communities and stakeholders.
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Regulators

Link to strategy

yoday d1Bsieng

Sustain

Why we act responsibly with our Regulators

We have a duty to make sure that we engage transparently and proactively with our regulators.

Two way engagement

We interact with cur regulatars through meetings on a monthly basis with our Directors and senior management. Engagement is also conducted
through thematic reviews in which the Group participates. Informally we give regular consideration to correspondence and publications from the
reguiatory sphere. Engagement is often conducted through UK Finance, the relevant trade body.

We adhere to the FCAS 11 Principles for business, which is the foundation for firms operating in a requlatory environment.

Outcomes

We ensure that our people act with integrity and they undertake the necessary training to conduct themselves with due skill, care and diligence.
Amongst cther things, this approach ensures the suitability of our advice provided for our customers.

Participation in thematic reviews and Consultaticn Papers allows us to understand where kay risks and opportunities may be within the industry and
aflows us to learn from our peers on industry wide challenges. This enables us ta evolve cur business processes to become more resilient and to
identify opportunities to take advantage of our specialisations and/or our technology, such as aur digital Buy Now Pay Later product. This helps us
to serve our customers in the best way we can.

Our horizon scanning processes and controls safeguard against the risk of missing or not responding to regulatery change impacting the Group as
set out on page /5.

The Board

By taking part in regulatory initiatives and having transparent communication with our regulators, we are able to understand the key drivers for
regulatory change which, in the Board's view, promotes the long-term success of the Group. It also provides us with a platform to provide input into
the regulatory environment in which we cperate. By supparting the regulatory regime in which we have been granted a licence to aperate, we
ensure, collectively with cur peers, continued customer confidence in the industry.

Key topics discussed by the Board this year have included:
+ Operational and cyber resilience

* Thematic reviews

s Bank of England CQUEST inftiatives

How have the Regulators’ voices helped the Board make decisions on strategy?

Knowing regulatory and industry expectations allows us to enhance our existing operating model and to adapt as required. It also provides us with
a steer on what is needed when implementing our growth strategy through acquisitions such as AppToPay Limited.
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Strategic Report

Managing our business responsibly
continued

Suppliers

Link to strategy

Care Grow

Why we act responsibly for our Suppliers

Qur suppliers support a wide range of services and systems which underpins our operating model

Two way engagement
The Group has a structured supplier governance framework operated by management to manage material suppliers.

Outcomes

The Board and Risk Committee have considered resilience of all of our cutscurced IT services and are content with provision of services
and diligence undertaken by management in assessing the continuity of services.

The Board

Delivery of our vision to be the most trusted specialist lender in the UK depends, in part, on ensuring the continuity of our services. Key topics
discussed by the Board this year have included:

e Operational resilience of material suppliers
*  Commitments to avoid madem slavery by our suppliers

Non-financial information statement

The Group complies with the non-financial information reporting requirements contained in sections 414CA and 414CB of the
Companies Act 2006. This is intended to help stakeholders understand the Group’s position on key non-financial information.

Information regarding environmental matters, employees, social matters, respect for human rights and anti-corruption and anti-bribery
matters are included in this 'Managing our business responsibly’ section.

The location of the other information required is set out in the table below:

Reporting Requirement Section Pages

Policy embedding, due diligence and outcomes Principal risks and uncertainties 26t0 35
Description of principal risks and impact of business activity ~ Principal risks and uncertainties 2610 35
Description of the business model Qur business model 8to 9
Non-financial key perfermance indicators Key performance indicators 2to3
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Climate-related financial disclosures

Climate change

Climate change, and society's response to it, presents financial risks and opportunities to the UK financial services sector. While some
of these risks may not crystzllise in the short term, the industry needs to take action now to support and help mitigate the medium to
long-term implications of climate change. .

uodsy afateng

The Group has assessed its risk exposure to both the potential ‘physical’ effects of climate change and the “transitional’ risks from the
UK’ target to bring all greenhouse gas {{GHG') emissions to net zero by 2050.

In order to clearly express how the Group is responding to these risks this report has been structured to align with the four key parts of
the guidance from the ‘Task Force for Climate-Related Financial Disclosures’ (TCFDY), being Governance, Strategy, Risk management
and Metrics and targets. The key risks, their mitigants and assessments are covered under the Strategy and Risk management sections
of this report below.

The Group has complied with the requirements of the Finandial Conduct Authority's Listing Rule 9.8.4R{8) by including climate-related
financial disclosures consistent with the TCFD recommendations and recommended disclosures except for the following matters:

* The resilience of the organisation’s strategy, taking into consideration different climate-related scenarios, including 2°C or

lower scenario.

— The Group has analysed a number of scenarios associated with climate change (as described within the Strategy section below) to
evaluate the resilience of its strategy and considered this proportionate given the relatively low level of risk associated with climate
change for the Group. However, in 2022, we plan to expand this analysis and consider our medium and longer-term strategic
responses to climate change and to align these scenarios to more formal climate-related forecasts and, therefore, plan to include
a disclosure that is consistent with all of the TCFD recormmendations in 2022

+ The targets used by the organisation to manage climate-related risks and opportunities and performance against targets.

— The Group supports the UK Government’s commitment to réduce greenhouse gas emissions to net zero by 2050 and plans to set
specific targets and asscciated commitments as part of its medium and longer-term strategic response to dimate change.

This work will be undertaken in 2022, and will include defining an emissions reduction target for our scope 1 and 2 emissions which
will be published in our next Annual Report and Accounts, consistent with the TCFD recommendations. The Group has defined
risk appetite metrics to measure and manitar the level of climate change risk across the Group, as cutlined within the Metrics and
targets section below.

Governance

In accordance with the requirements of the S53/19 - PRA’s Supervisory Statement ‘Enhancing banks’ and insurers’ approaches to
managing the financiai risks from climate change’, the Group has allocated responsibility for identifying and managing the risks from
climate change to the Chief Risk Officer {CRC') (as the relevant Senior Management Function). The CRO chairs the Climate Change
Risk Working Group ( CCRWG?), with represantatives from across the first line risk owners and the second line leads that are managing
the key risks identified across the Group. The CCRWG is responsible for identifying, assessing and defining mitigating responses to
these risks.

The CCRWG reports to the Executive Risk Committee 'ERC”) chaired by the CRO. The CCRWG produces and reviews a detailed
progress repart and action plan, at each business unit level, covering each section of the associated PRA’s requlations. The ERC
manitors progress and oversees all aspacts of climate change risk, including proposing associated risk appetite staternents and metrics
for approval at the Board and the Risk Committee of the Board (BRC) respectively.

The Beard has delegated responsibility for oversight of climate change risk to the BRC. The BRC has undertaken periodic reviews of
the risk assessments in relation to dimate change and is kept informed on management’s responses to these risks. It reviews and
approve all associated risk appetite metrics and thresholds and receive associated reporting against these metrics.
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Strategic Repont

Climate-related financial disclosures
continued

Reporting over the course of 2021:

¢ The CCRWG met an seven occasians to review progress against a2 defined plan and where necessary initiated new initiatives to meet
the PRA regulations and manage the associated risks.

¢ The ERC was established in June 2021. Since then, matters for escalation have been reported on a monthly basis. Prior to this a
summary risk report was issued to the Executive Committee in May 2021.

s The BRC has approved climate change metrics throughout 2021 and has received two detailed reports on our progress and
future plans.

e In January 2021 the Board received a climate change awareness and training session, hosted by extemal experts.

s In October 2021, the Board held a strategic planning review, which included 2 report on the Group's progress on meeting the
requirements of PRA's S5 3/19 and an overview of further action required in 2022. Whilst good progress has been made, and dimate
change risks and epportunities are factored into the businesses' short-term plans, the Board recognised and approved a forma!
review of the medium to longerterm implications, risks and opportunities that climate change presents to the Group's strategy and
plans. The review is planned for 2022 and will include:

- defining a Board strategic response to climate change risks and apportunities over the short, medium and long-term.

— the areation of a robust process to assess, measure and track our current emissions, including those related to supply chain and
business lending emissions ta enable i) the evaluaticn of our current emissions output, i) the identification and prioritisation of
new opportunities to reduce our emissions and any impact on business and strategy, and iii) what commitments and associated
targets the Board should consider in relation to reducing our ernissions over the short, medium and long-term.

The CRO and a senior member of the risk funttion are members of the UK Finance TCFD, Disclosure & Consultations Working Group.
They attend numerous industry meetings and have engaged with external experts to enhance their skills in erder to develop the
Group's response to the risks associated with climate change. This knowledge and understanding is disseminated to first-line business
leads through the CCRWG.

Strategy

The Group, through the Governance model described above, have identified a number of risks and oppertunities associated with
climate change and these are described belaw with supporting commentary on the implications for our future strategy. The Group
plans to expand on the analysis of the risks and cpportunities associsted with climate change in 2022, in particular in relation to how
this may influence our longerterm strategy.

Operations - Disruption to the Group's and third-party suppliers’ operational sites through climate change related impacts, such
as severe weather.

The Greup has undertaken a review of the physical risks associated with the location of each of its internal operational sites. Similarly,
we have consulted with our material suppliers in relation to their contingency plans in the event of the increased risk of flooding and
severe weather, Fram the flood risk data and energy performance ratings of our internal sites and the responses from our material
suppliers, we do not consider there to be any material risks in the short-term. Further work in 2022 in relation to our supply chain will
assess whether there are any longer-term implications.

In strategic terms, these risks and their assaciated Board approved risk appetites wilt be assessed, and influence any proposed
changes to our operational sites and during the selection and on-boarding processes for any new suppliers.

In additicn, scenario analysis has been undertaken in relation to the cperational impact of a severe flood at ane of our key sites.
Given the operational changes we have introduced during the pandemic {including our employees working from homeg), the
operational impacts of such a scenario are limited and we would be able to continue to operate within service levels and risk appetite.

In 2022, we plan to evaluate the emissions associated with our awn aperations and supply chzin. This will quide our plans on where we
can most effectively reduce or eliminate emissions and, therefore, inform any associated commitments we wish to make.
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Vehicle Finance — Transitional impacts within the motor industry, as consumers and the industry respond to the move towards
non/low-carbon fuelled vehicles,

The Group has undertaken a review, using external expertise, to assess a range of scenarios in relation to the potential implications of
an accelerated transition to the use of non fossil fuelled vehicles’ on the residual values of our security of petrol/diesel fuelled vehicles.
The results of the scenario analysis identified the most significant risk to be the increased cost of customers returning their vehicles
earlier than planned. Our current planning assumption is based on an orderly transition to non fossil fuelled vehicles. If the risk were to
increase, the Group remains resilient to these impacts, and would continue to hold sufficient capital to absorb such a potential impact.
Further work in 2022 will assess whether there are any longer-term implications and how the Group will respond 1o these

transitional changes. -

uoday sibaieng

As part of our strategic planning process, we have amended our credit policy to allow lending to acquire both electric and hybrid
vehicles. Given that we operate in the used car sector, the current level of lending asscciated with these types of vehicles is relatively
smazll at circa 1% of our total vehicle finance portfolic. However, we are commitied to supporting our customers where they wish to
transition to electric and hybrid vehicles. To sugport this, we are actively enhancing our market intelligence in this sector, and closely
monitoring the key factors that will influence changes in this market {e.g. customer preferences, Government intervention,
infrastructure and vehicle developments). In additian, we are working with our ‘Introducer’ base to understand how we can develop
our product base and lending criteria to better support demand for electric and hybrid vehicles.

To support the strategy outlined above we have set risk appetite metrics that limit and monitor the proportion of older vehicles {with
higher emissions) that we are willing to fund and metrics that monitor customer behaviour. For example, custemers may voluntarily
terminate their contract in order to transition to lower emission vehicles,

Climate change related impacts on the valuations of property securing our Real Estate Finance portfolio.

The Group is reviewing the geographic distribution and the corresponding levels of fload risk to property assets held as security, and,
therefore, the potential credit risks associated with the level of security cover. Whilst to date we haven't been able to complete a full
review against all our security assets, we are confident that the level of risk is not currently considered to be material, as our existing
due diligence processes requires a full valuation from a RICS qualified surveyor and includes an assessment of the flood risk. Based on
this information, the Group may choose not to proceed, or will look to mitigate the risk through acceptakle insurances, It should also
be noted that the maximum term of our loan facilities is currently five years so this limits the potential impact from any change to the
level of flood risk.

This position will continue to be monitored as the Group seeks to enhance its climate change risk data in relation te real estate and
assesses the longerterm implications on this part of the Group's business.

The Group has also undertaken a review of the Energy Performance Certificate {EPC'} of assets in the portfolio, to understand any
potential impacts from further regulatory tightening in standards across the UK, noting that the legal minimum EPC Grade for any
existing tenancies was raised to 'E” as of 1 April 2020, Less than 1% of the residential portfolio is rated below E. The level of risk s not
considered to be material since our existing due diligence processes require EPCs to be provided by clients and reviewed prior to any
funds being drawn and any ratings below a rating of E that require remediation are monitored by the Group.

In addition, we have initiated a review, using external expertise, to assess the implications of a range of stressed scenarios that, should
they oceur in the future, may increase the level of risk within this portfolio (this includes the potential for policy changes to minimum
EPC requirements). The results of this review will be factored into our strategic plans and appropriate action taken to mitigate any
future risks.

In June 2021 the Group identified an opportunity to support its clients through enhancing its existing loan products to specifically
support barrowers investing in higher energy performance rated properties or upgrading less efficient properties. This product offers
favourable interest rates and has been popular with our customers since its launch in June 2021 and to date we have committed
fadilities totalling £134.9 million.

Our Real Estate Finance business will continue to explore opportunities to further develop its range of products and to work with its
clients to understand their current and future climate change risks {both regulatory and physical) and assist them as they transition to
meet these new requiremenits.
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Climate-related financial disclosures
continued

Commercial Finance — the potential impacts on our Commercial Finance clients as they respond to any changes to their business
from the effects of climate change and associated transitional impacts on their dients.

The Group has developed an approach to formally assess the climate change risks associated with each of its Commercial Finance
clients. The assessments consider all of the following areas of risk: (i) client risk; (i) geography; (i) product risk; (iv) debtor risk; (v} supply
risk; and (vi) collateral risk.

This bespoke model allows our Commercial Finance business to focus on the most relevant areas of our credit risk assessment and
thereafter engage with those current and prospective clients that may have material or specific risks ta understand and support them
with any mitigations necessary.

To support this approach, the Group has defined its risk appetite such that it will not engage with clients whose residual risk rating from
this assessment is considered to be 'high' risk in relation to the impacts and implications of climate change. Rather than sector specific
risk appetite, Cormmercial Finance operate a business model that makes appropriate client by client decisions to refiect the climate
change risk associated with each individual facility.

Whilst the client risk reviews have provided useful insight, the level of risk is not currently cansidered to be material since the
Commercial Finance portfolio is primarily composed of ‘on demand’ revolving credit facilities {typically two months) secured on
short-term debtor payables and inventory, and should there be any material concerns or rigks relating to the impact of climate change
on the viability of the client, these facilities can be reviewed, reduced or additional collateral can be taken where required.

Risk management .

The management of climate change risk has been integrated and embedded within existing risk management frarmeworks and
assaciated processes, and is governed through existing risk governance structures, including reporting to the ERC and the BRC and
monitoring for any new regulation through established harizon scanning processes. .

Physical risks and transitional risks are managed and integrated within the Operational Risk Framework and the Credit Risk Framework
respectively. This includes how risks are identified, assessed, mitigated and any associated stress testing and scenario analysis.
However, all climate change risks are reported and registered as a group to enable the Executive and Board to understand and
consider the scale and breadth of the climate change risk profile. Whilst the Group's key climate change risks have been identified and
referenced above, further work is planned in 2022 to analyse the implications of climate change and build on the granularity of these
risk assessments.

CO,e emissions Metrics and targets

Risk management

The Board has approved an averarching risk appetite statement in relation to climate
change of: ‘Secure Trust Bank seeks to undarstand and quantify its climate change risk
exposure, sc the Bank waorking with its customers and clients can minimise the financial
CHART REMOVED risks assoclated with the transition to a low carbon economy and any impacts from
climate change to our business'.

This statement is supported by a set of metrics and thresholds, approved by the BRC,
that measure and monitor the leve! of risk for each key risk identified. We expect these
metrics and thresholds to develop aver time and encompass more forward-looking,
longer-term targets for each of the key areas of risk.

The metrics and thresholds include:

» Operations — No appetite for any internal sites with medium or high flood rating or
EPC rating below rating E.

Supply chain — Metrics that monitor whether there are any material risks that could
affect the service offering from cur material suppliers.

Vehicle Finance — A series of metrics that measure and limit the concentration within
the portfolio of funding for older (higher emission) vehicles. Metrics that monitor
customer preferences and the potential impacts on the residual values of carbon
fuelied vehicles.

Real Estate Finance — Metrics that monitor the proportion of the lending portfolio that
is secured on properties that are within high or medium risk of flood or require
investment to improve their energy performarice to acceptable levels,

Commercial Finance — No appetite for funding customers that are assessed as having
an overall 'high’ residual risk (internally rated assessment) to the impacts and
implications of climate change.
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Scope 1, Scope 2, and Scope 3 GHG emissions.

This section of the report cavers the Group's Scope 1, 2 and 3 GHG emissions, with the exception of emissions ralating to our finznced
and supply chain emissions. The Group is undertaking further work in 2022 to evaluate our financed and supply chain emissions,

and once understood, will consider what targets and metrics to introduce.

The following tables set aut the Group's energy consumption and CO; equivalent (COze) emissions for 2021 in accordance with TCFD
and the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directars’ Report) Regulations 2013 and the Companies (Directors' Report) and
Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations 2018. The information detailed in the tables below was prepared
using the 1eporting period | January - 31 December in each reporting year. We have calculated our emissions using the GHG Protocol
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard {revised edition). GHG emissions are reported as a single total, by converting them to
the equivalent amount of COye using emission factors from the UK Gevernment’s GHG Conversian Factors for Company Reporting
2021. This is consistent with previous years:

Year on Year

2024 2020 Variance
Measure . kwh kWh %
Building energy — gas consumption 194,723 186,693 4.3
Building energy — electricity consumption 1,475,676 1,402,793 52
Total energy consumption ’ 1,670,399 1,589,486 51
2021 2020 Year on Year
COze CO0ze Variance
Measure tonnes tannes %
Scope 1 —Direct emissions from the combustion of fossil fuel 132.4 118.2 12.0
Scope 2 — Indirect emissions from purchased electricity 3133 3271 {4.2)
Scope 3 - Other indirect emissions 452 62.6 {27.8)
Total scope 1 to 3 CO.e emissions 490.9 507.9 (3.3)
Year on Year
Measure 2021 2020 Variance (%)
Group income £ million 164.5 166.1 {1.0)
Environmental intensity indicator {Total
scope 1 to 3 emissions per £m Group income) 3.0 3.1 (3.2

* Scope 1 emissions resulting from activities owned and controlled by the Group. These are direct emissions and includes the
combustion of natural gas for heating buildings and fuel for Group owned vehicle emissions.

* Scope 2 emissions are indirect emissions generated from purchased electricity in relation to the Groug's activities, but occur at
sources which the Group does not own or control.

* Scope 3 emissions are indirect emissions generated by the Group's activities, but occur at sources which the Group does not own or
control, not included in Scepe 2 and relate to electricity transmission, distribution and grey fleet. This currently excludes emissions
relating to other business travel, suppliers and customers. Work to incorporate these will be addressed in 2022.

All energy consumption and emissians relate to the UK and cover all Group entities and therefore is aligned with the financial
reporting of the Group.

COge emissions in 2021 have reduced by 3.3% against emissions in 2020. A reduction in COze emissions has been achieved in the
following areas: :

* Electricity emissions reduction of 13.8 tannes COse.
* Employee owned vehicle emissions reduction of 17.0 tonnes COze.

This has been partly offset by an increase in COze emissions in the following areas:

* (Gas emissions increase of 1.3 tonnes CO»e.

* Group owned vehicles increase of 12.9 tonnes COse.
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Strategic Report

Climate-related financial disclosures
continued

Energy consumption five-year trend
Energy consumption (kWh/miles)

' CHART REMOVED

Energy consumption reduced significantly during 2020 as COVID-19 lockdowns and Government restrictions caused some offices to
close {building energy -12%) and heavily restricted vehicle travel {vehicle mileage -56%). In 2021 as COVID-17 restrictions have eased,
energy consumnption for gas, electricity and Group owned vehicles has increased but remains below pre-pandemic levels. However,
energy consumption from employee owned vehicles continues to decrease in 2021, as office based employees become increasingly
comfortable with replacing face to face meetings with remote meetings using Microsoft Teams.

CO,e emissions five-year trend
CQOsze emissions (tonnes)

CHART REMOVED

As expectad, COse emissions follow a similar trend to energy consumption in most categories,
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Environmental Plan and Governance
In 2021 the Group established an Environmental Palicy that sets out five key areas of focus for the business:

* Manage buildings efficiently to reduce the consumption of electricity, gas and water and to censider the use of renewable energy.

= Work with employees to encourage the use of hybrid and electric vehicles and to reduce the vehicle mileage of employess travelling
to work and employees travelling on business.

* Optimise the recycling of waste and ensure compliance with the Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment Regulations and the
Environmental Protection Act.

* Reduce the use of single use products, re-use items wherever possible and encourage the use of items manufactured from recycled
materials or sustainable sources.

* Promote environmental objectives with, and reduce the carbon footprint of, the Group's supplier base.

nodey o1Bajeng

In addition, the Group has undertaken a ‘Responsible Business' survey, which will be used in 2022 to develop our approach 1o reducing
COse emissions and defining associated targets and metrics. This will include defining an appropriate governance and the creation of
an environment strategy, including strategic objectives and COze reduction targets.

Work has already commenced in some areas of our business, with the support from employee champions. Some initiatives are already
underway, including:
+ Switching to renewable energy and improving the energy efficiency of our premises.
+ Reducing business mileage and switching to electric Group owned vehicles.
* Recycling equipment and switching to sustainable products. )
The Strategic Report was approved by the Board on 23 March 2022 and signed on its behalf by:
. q .
Aa,u.,af M Coeashro
David McCreadie
Chief Executive Officer
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Board leadership
Board of Directors

Strong leadership

The Rt Hon Lord Forsyth David McCreadie FCBI Rachel Lawrence ACMA
of Drumlean PC Kt Chief Executive Officer ['CEQ) Chief Financial Officer { CFO)
Non-Executive Chairman ‘

IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED
Appointed to the Board on 1 March 2014 Appointed 1o the Board on 17 December Appointed to the Board and as CFO on
as an Independent Nen-Executive Director 2019 and as CEQ on 5 January 2021, 23 September 2020.
and as Chairman of the Company on 19 . . . .

October 2016, He is also Chair of the Skills and experienice Skills and experience
Nomination Committee and member of the David McCreadie has many years of Rachel has considerable experience in
Remuneration Committee. banking experience and is a Fellow of the financial services gained from a career
Skill d . Chartered Banking Institute. He spent spanning more than 20 years. She has

Nis and expenence 22 years at The Royal Bank of Scotland held senior finance roles in Metro Bank
Lord Forsyth is a former Chairman of ('RBSY holding roles in Branch Banking, where she was part of the original team
Hyperion Insurance Group, and former Consumer Finance and several Group that set up the bank and Shawbrook Bank
Deputy Chairman of JP Morgan UK and central functions. From 2004 to 2008 Dawid where she was part of the successful Initial
Evercore Partners International. He was was appointed as the Chief Executive Public Offering. Prior 1o joining STB Rachel
appointed to the Privy Council in 1995, Ofhcer of Krogar Personal Finance, a joint was Chief Financial Officer at AIB Group
knighted in 1997, and jained the House venture between RBS and Kroger Co, (UK) plc. She brings a wealth of banking
of Lords in 1999. He was 2 member of the based in Cincinnati, USA. David joined experience focused on high growth start
House of Commans for 14 years and served Tesco Personal Finance in 2008 and was up organisations and wider financial
in Govarnment for 10 years, latterly as a a member of the executive team that services experience gained in asset
Cabinet Minister. built Tesco Bank, David was an Executive management, life, pensions and general

. R Director and Managing Director of Tesco insurance. She is & qualified chartered

Long term contributions: Bank, with a responsibility for the banking managernent accounant.
His background in the public and private and insurance businesses, from 2015 to

Long term contributions:
Rachel’s considerable experience in finance

sectors has given Lord Forsyth a bread 20m9.
experience of matters relevant to the

business of the Group including strategy, Long term contributions: ' and banking which proves invaluable
governance, operations, marketing, risk and His executive career and wealth of . in her role as CFO. She has a deep
human capital. His experience enables him experience in banking, risk management, understanding of the Group's businesses
to provide valuable insights at committee governance, consumer facing businesses and strategy and has a strong track record
meetings and to chair the Board effectively. and retailing, as well as previous CEO of creating shareholder value.

. R experience, provide David with the skills
Other appointments include: needed to manage the day to day business
Lord Forsyth is the Senior Independent of Secure Trust Bank PLC {'STE'). His strong
Director of J&J Denholm Limited and a leadership and strategic expertise enable
director of Denholm Logistics Group Limited. him to lead the Group in a sustainable way
He served a full term of 4 years as Chairman that creates fong-term shareholdar value.

of the House of Lords Economic Affairs
Committee and stepped down in January
2022. He was elected as Chairman of the
Assaciation of Conservative Peers in
September 2021.
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Ann Berresford ACA

Senior Independent Director

IMAGE REMOVED

Appointed to the Board on 22 November
2014 as an Independent Non-Executive
Director, as Chairman of the Audit
Committee on 23 September 2017 and as
Senior Independent Director on 24 June
2020. Member of the Risk and Nomination
Committees.

Skills and experience

Ann Berresford is a Chartered Accountant
with a background in the financial services
and energy sectors. She has held positions
at Bath Building Society, the Pensions
Regulator, Hyperion nsurance Group,
Triodos Renewables plc, the Pension
Protection Fund, Bank of Ireland Group,
Clyde Petroleum plc and Grant Thornton.

Long term contributions:

Her career has given Ann experiance

in mortgages, pensions, operations,
accounting, finance and risk. Her previous
experience in the renewable sectors gives
her a long-term outiock. The insights she
has gained from her career mean that she
is a strong Senior Independent Directar
and an excellent addition to the Board
and committees she serves. Her financial
background makes her an excellent
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Other appointments include:

Ann is the Senior Independent Director
and Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of Albian Venture Capital
Trust PLC.

Paul Myers ACIB

Independent
Non-Executive Director

IMAGE REMOVED

Appointad to the Board on 28 Novernber
2018 and as Chairman of the Risk
Committee on 31 March 2020. Member
of the Remuneration and Nomination
Committees.

Skills and experience

Paul Myers has many years of banking
experience, gained initially in Barclays
where he spent 24 years in a variety

of retail banking roles. He was part of

the small team that founded and built
Aldermore Bank, where he served as Chief
Operating Officer, Corporate Development
Director and an the Board as an Executive
Director. Paul is an Associate of the
Chartered Institute of Bankers. Paul was,
until February 2019, the Chief Executive
Officer and an Executive Director of GKBK
Limited, a new banking venture.

Long term contributions:

Paul’s career has given him a wide range
of experiences and responsibilities
including IT, operations, transformation,
marketing and digital as well as building
and developing retail and SME savings
operations. His insight into banking and

particularly IT and operations provide a

unique viewpaint that complements the
Board and the Committees he serves well.
His broad experience positions him well as
Chairman of the Risk Committee.

Victoria Stewart

Independent
Non-Executive Director

IMAGE REMOVED

Appointed ta the Board an 22 November
2014 and as Chairman of the Remuneration
Committeg on 21 July 2017. Member of the
Audit and Nomination Committaes.

Skills and expérience

Victoria Stewart has over 25 years'
experienca in the financial services sector
and was for many years a fund manager and
investor in UK smalt companies. Victoria
has knowledge of corporate structures and
capital markets with particular experience
in smaller companies listed on the Main
Market and the Alternative Investment
Market. She has held 2 number of positions
at Royal London Group and Chiswell
Associates {formerly Cantrade Investment
Management Limited and now part of
Sarasin & Partners).

Long term contributions:

Her background has given Victoria vast
experience in remuneration, govermance,
corporate strategy, investor relations,
accounting, finance and risk. Her investor
relations experience provides her with
valuable insight from a shareholder
perspective which the Board benefits
from. Her experience in remuneration and
governance positions her well as Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and as a
rember of the Nomination Committee.

Other appointments include:

Member of the ICAEW Corporate
Governance Committee and investment
Committea Victoria s a Non-Executive
Directer of Aberforth Smaller Companies
Trust ple, Artemis Alpha Trust plc and JP
Morgan Claverhouse investment Trust ple.
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Board leadership
Board of Directors :

continued

Baroness Lucy
Neville-Rolfe DBE CMG

Independent Non-Executive Director

IMAGE REMOVED

Appointed to the Board on 28 Novermber
2018 as an Independent Non-Executive
Director and appointed as the Non-
Executive Director designated for
workforce engagement and Chairman of
the Employee Council on 24 June 2020.
Member of the Audit, Nomination and
Remuneration Committees

Skills and experience

Baroness {Lucy) Neville Rolfe DBE CMG has
had a distinguished career in business and
in public service. She became a member
of the House of Lords in 2013 and was

a Minister in the Business and Culture
Departments and in HM Treasury from 2014-
2017. In the period 2013-14 she was a Nan-
Executive Director of [TV plc, of Metro AG,
of 2 Sisters Food Group, of PwC's Advisory
Board and Chairman of EuraCommerce

in Brussels. Earlier in her career she was a
civil servant in No 10 Downing St and the
director of the Deregulation Unitin the
Cabinet Office. Lucy was an executive at
Tesco plc for 15 years including serving for
aver gix years on the main board.

Long term contributions:

Her experience in custamer facing
businesses and financial services,
communications, corporate strategy

and M&A as well as, econamic issues,
requlations and governance enable her to
provide valuable input and challenge at
Board and committee meetings. Her wark
in communications works particularly well
in her role with the wider workforce.

Other appointments include:

Lucy is currently a director and Trustee

of Thomson Reuters Founders Share
Company Limited and the Chairman of the
UK-ASEAN Business Council and Chairman
of Crown Agents. She is Chairman of

the House of Lords Built Environment
Committee. Lucy is also carrying out an
independent report commissioned by

the UK Government to contribute to the
evidence-base that will inform the state
pension age review.

Finlay Williamson

Independent Non-
Executive Director

IMAGE REMOVED

Appointed to the board on 30 June 2021
and member of the Risk and Nomination
Committees.

Skills and experience

Finlay Williamson is a qualified accountant
with many years of banking experience,
gained inttially at The Royal Bank of
Seotland Group PLC (now NatWest Group
plc} and then at Virgin Money Holdings
(UK) plc where he was Chief Financial
Officer prior to the IPO. Finlay was
previously a Non-Executive Director at
Paragon Banking Group PLC, chairing the
Group and Bank Risk Committees.

Long term contributions:

His career has given Finlay experience in
retail, SME and auto finance banking as
well as real estate domain experienca,
He alse has experience of corparate
acquisitions and subsequent integrations,
with significant experience of change
and transformation. Finlay has develaped
good relationships with the FCA and PRA
during his career and 1s up to date with
their priorities and processes. He also has
prior appeintments on ple Boards and
Committees. The skills and experierice

he has gained from his career mean that
he is a strong addition to the Board and
committees he serves.

Other appointments include:

Finlay is currently the Chairman of the
Audit Committee and is appointed as
Senior Independent Director of Hampden
& Co PLC.
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Mark Stevens FCG

Company Secretary

IMAGE REMOVED

Appointed as Company Secretary in June
2019 and a.member of the Exacutive
Commitiee. .

Skills and experience

Mark Stevens is a Chartered Secretary and
qualfied governance professional with

a wealth of exparience in the financial
services sector. Mark previcusly was
Group Company Secretary of Amlin ple,
a FTSE 250 international company, where
he overhauled the governance practices
and teams, and implemented a new
governance framewark in six jurisdictions
in consultation with local requiators.
Frior to his role in Amlin, Mark was
Deputy Secretary of the retailer 'Dixons’,
worked at BT Global Services as Head of
Governance, MENA and trained with
Ernst & Young.

Long term contributions:

His long career has given Mark experience
ininsurance, banking, telecoms

and retail, working within multiple
regulatory environments and complex
remuneration structures. A qualified share
schemes practitioner, Mark brings his
extensive experience and knowledge of
remuneration and corporate governance
to Board and Executive Commitiee
discussions.



Corporate Governance report

Board leadership and Company culture

The corporate purpose, values and strategy of Secure Trust Bank have been developed and
adopted by the Board. To embed these into the Group's culture, all employees are set measurable
objectives which are aligned to these aims. Every year an all-employee staff opinion survey is issued
and the feedback is reviewed by the Board to assess how well these aims are understood and
followed by the workforce. The result of this year's survey, conducted by Greal Place to Work®,
was positive. Further information can be found on pages 42 to 44,

The Board acknowledges the importance of our employees and the wider workforce being able to raise cancerns in confidence and,

if they wish, anonymously, Further detail on the Group’s Whistleblowing arrangements and how the Greup Employee Council operates
can be found on pages 71 and 69 respectively. Regular interaction with key stakeholders takes place via the Chairman, the Non-
Executive Director designated for workforce engagement and each of the commiittea chairmen. This enables stakeholder impact to
be fully considered in Board discussions across a range of topics. In addition, workforce engagement is a standing itemn on the Board
agenda. Further information on this can be found on pages 42 to 44 and elsewhere in this report.

The Chairrman of the Board and CEQ meet with analysts and institutional investors to understand their views and report back to the
Board. In 2021 5TB held & Capital Markets Day during Novemnbaer which facilitated this. The committee chairmen are available to
engage with sharehslders on significant matters relating to their areas of responsibility, should they need to. For example, the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee writes to STB's top twenty shareholders for input into the Directors’ Rernuneration Policy.
Further detail can be found in each of the committee reports in this section and the Managing Business Responsibly section starting
on page 38.

Loday a3UBLIBA0D) 518100107

The Board has delegated authority to executive management to run the business and to implement the strategy set by the Board.

A brief description of the responsibilities of the Executive Committee and a description of the governance framework can be found

on STB's corparate website. Two members of executive management, the CEC and the CFO, are Executive Directors of the Board.

As reported in the 2020 Annual Report and Accounts, Paul Lynam resigned from the Board as CEO with effect fram 5 January 2021 and
was succeeded by David McCreadie. Since David's appointment as CEQ he has assumed the role of Chairman of the

Executive Committee.

The setting of a risk appetite and the oversight of risk management practices is an important rele for Board members.
Regular confirmation is sought that the necessary resources are in place for STB to meet its objectives and measure performance
against themn.

The Board meets regularly and, both as a Board and through its'varicus committees, provides oversight of and directicn to
management through constructive challenge, strategic guidance and specialist advice.

Division of responsibilities

The Board is led by the Chairman who is responsible for the Board's overall effectiveness and who encourages a culture of openness
and debate. The Board provides strategic leadership to the Group, sets its long-term strategic objectives and exercises oversight over
the implementation of the strategy and the activities of management. The Board is aware of its responsibilities to all of its stakeholders
and is mindful of this in Beard discussions. Please see the Managing Business Responsibly section on pages 38 to 48 for more detail.

The Board has appointed Ann Beresford as the Senior Independent Director ('SID’). Ann is available to shareholders if they have
cancerns where contact through the normal channels of Chairman, CEQ or other Executive Directors has failed ar is inappropriate.
Ann was appointed as the Senior Independent Directar in June 2020 and fulfilled this role throughout 2021.

UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code’) — Statement of Compliance

Throughout the period under review, the Board confirms that the Group has complied with the principles of the Cade. The following
sections of this repont describe the Group's governance arrangements and how the Board has applied the principles of the Code.
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Corporate Governance report

continued

Board membership
and meetings

Composition as at 31 December 2021

CHART REMOVED

Board attendance

Board  Eligible to
attend

Number of scheduled

" meetings during 2021 16

Lord Forsyth 16 16
Finlay Williamson 11 11
Ann Berresford 16 14
Vietoria Stewart 146 16
Baroness Neville-Rolfe 15 16
Paul Myers 16 16
David McCreadie 14 16
Rachel Lawrence 16 14

The responsibilities of the Chairman, CEQ and Senior Independent Director are outiined
in writing and a brief summary of their roles can be found on STB' corporate website.
The Board has delegated specific authorities to its committees, via respective terms of
reference. Copies are available to view on the STB website. There is a schadule of
matters reserved for consideration by the Board. These include, amongst other matters,
the determination of dividends, material acquisitions or disposals and the issue of new
shares. The Board exercises aversight of the work of its committees via formal updates
from committee chairs at subsequent Board meetings. There is a clear division of
responsibilities between the leadership ol the Board and the executive leadership of
the Company.

Internal processes are in place to enable the Board to have access to necessary
information and resources to function effectively, including the maintenance of anline
portals of up-to-date cormpany policies, timely dissemination of information and access
to independent professional advice at the expense of the Company. All Directors have
access to the Company Secretary’s advice and services. Directors have access to the
necessary information and resources to be able to effectively discharge

their responsibilities.

The Company Secretary provides support and acts as a first point of contact for the
Chairman and Nan-Executive Directors. The Coempany Secretary is also responsible for
the induction of new independent Non-Executive Directors.

Composition, succession and evaluation

Information on Beard and Committee succession planning can be found within the
reports of the Nomination Commitiee.

The length of service for each Non- Executive Director as at 31 Decembaer 2021 is
autlined on this page. David McCreadie was appointed CEO on 5 January 20271 and is
né longer a Non-Executive Director although remains a member of the Board as an
Executive Director. The Nomination Committee considered the membership and tenure
of the Board as a whole and considered proposals for refreshing membership when
evsluating the Board composition. Finlay Williamson was appointed to the Board as a
Non-Executive Director during the year. Further information about the role of the
Nomination Commitiee and the appointment of Finlay Williamson is available on

page 64.

CHART REMOVED

Audit, Risk and Internal Control

Information on cur Audit, Risk and Internal Contral practices and §TB's compliance with
the Code can be found in the reports of the Audit Committee and Risk Committee on
pages 6510 75.
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Conflicts of interest

All Directors are required to disclose to the Board any outside interests which may conflict with their duties to the Group (including any
related party transactions). The Board is required to approve any actual or potential conflicts of interest. On appointment, new
Directors are required to disclose their ather interests. Conflicts of interest are also governed by the Artictes of Association of the
Company and company law, Directors are under a continuing obligation to disclose external appointments and to confirm they have
sufficient time to discharge their duties to the Group. An internal schedule of conflicts is maintained.

Financial reporting

A description of the respensibilities of the Directors for the preparation of the Annual Report and Accounts is set out on page 97.
The approach taken by the Board to ensure that the Annual Report and Accounts are fair, balanced and understandable is set out on
page 67 and the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s position and performance is set out in the Strategic
Report starting on page 2. An explanation of the business model and the strategy for delivering the objectives of the Company is set
out on pages 8o 11. A statement of the responsibility of the external auditors for the Annual Report and Accounts is set out on page
105. The basis on which the Board reached its decision to adopt the going cancern basis of accounting is described on pages 36

and 37. :

Internal control

The Board has cverall responsibility for the Group's system of internal control, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
and for reviewing its effectiveness, This system is designed to manage rather than eliminate risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against the risk of material misstaternent or loss. The system of
internal control was in place througheut the financial year, and up to the date of the approval of the Annuzl Report and Accounts, and
was reviewed by the Board and its committees.

vodey axuruisron seicdion

The Board, through the Risk Committee, confirms that in reviewing the Annual Report it has completed a robust assessment of the
Group's emerging and principal risks and has included a description of its principal risks as set out on pages 26 to 35.

The Board has adopted a Group risk appetite staterment which sets out the Boards attitude to risk and internzl control. Key risks
identified by the Directors are formally reviewed and assessed annually by the Board and the Risk Committee. Key business risks are
also identified, evaluated and managed con an ongoing basis by management. The Board and the Risk Committee also receive regular
reports on any material risk matters. Significant risks identified in connection with the development of new activities are considered by
the Board and the Risk Committee in conjunction with the approval of any such new activity.

The effectiveness of the internal control system is reviewed reqularly, and at least annually, by the Board and the Audit Committee,
which also receives reports of reviews undertaken by the Internal Audit function. The Audit Committee receives reports from the
external auditors, Deloitte LLP. which include detalls of internal control matters they have identified as part of their external audit.
Certain aspects of the system of internal contrel are also subject to requlatary supervision, the results of which are menitored closely
by the Board and its Committees.

Key elements of the Group's systern of intemal control include ragular meetings of the executive and business unit risk committees,
together with annual budgeting, monthly financial and operational reporting for all businesses within the Group. Conduct and
compliance are monitored by management, the Risk team, Internal Audit and Compliance and, to the extent necessary to support its
audit report, the external auditor. Oversight is also exercised by the Board and the Audit and Risk Committees.

The Board regularly reviews actual and forecast performance compared with annual plans as well as other key performance indicators
as described on pages 2 and 3.

The Group's policies and procedures are reviewed and updated at least annually along with a training programme for their rollout.
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Statement by the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee

Lord Forsyth
Chairman of the
Nomination Committee

IMAGE REMOVED dc

The Board is performing well
and its merbership continues
to be effective.”

2021 has continued to be a period of change for the Company. As disclosed in the 2020 Annual Report, the approved succession plan
was implemented, and David McCreadie succeeded Paul Lynam as the CEOQ in January 2021, David has settled well into the role
following his transition from Non-Executive Director to CEQ, demonstrating excellent leadership in his first year as an executive.

The transition of David McCreadie from non-executive director to CEO resulted in a vacancy for a new non-executive with risk and
banking experience. Following a rigerous search and appointment process, Finlay Williarmson was identified as having the requisite
skillset and experience to serve on our Board. He was subsequently appointed to the Board as a Non-Executive Director in June 2021
and as a member of both the Risk and Nomination committees shortly thereafter. Following a successful induction, he has integrated
wel| with the Board and bolstered the committees he serves, providing useful insights and challenge.

Board members have been recruited based on merit and skillset. This has been achieved whilst maintaining an equal gender balance
on the Board throughout 2021, Succession planning for the Executive Committee reflects STB's ambition to increase diversity
throughout the organisation without the need for specific targets. The Committee is cognisant of other forms of diversity when
recruiting candidates but will continue first to seek the best candidates for the business.

An assessment of the effectiveness and compasition of the Board and its committees was undertaken during the year. The results
confirmed the Board is operating effectively whilst also identifying areas for improvement. | conducted individual evaluations with each
of the Non-Executive Directors; and Ann Berresford, as SID, undertook an evaluation of me as Chairman, seeking feedback from both
the Executive and Non-Executive Directors. Further information on the evaluations can be found on page 64, together with
nformation on the activities of the Committee throughout 2021. '

Lard Forsyth
Chairman of the Nomination Committee
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Nomination Committee report

Membership and meetings

As at 31 December 2021 the Nomination Committee comprised six members, 25 set out
in the attendance table on this page, and was compliant with the Cade provision
regarding its compaosition throughout 2021. David McCreadie ceased to be a member of
the Committee in January 2021 and Finlay Williamson was appointed as an additional
member of the Committee from June 2021,

The Committee meets at least twice a year or as frequently as its Chairman may require.
The Committee held five meetings during 2021 and was supported by sub-committee
meetings during the process for each of the Director appointments.

The Company Secretary, or their zlternate, acts as Secretary to the Commiittee.
Others attend at the request of the Committee Chairman. During the year the
Chief Executive Officer attended meetings by invitation.

The Chairman of the Committee reports to the Board on the outcome of Committee
meetings and any recornmendaticns made by the Cammittee.

Role and activities of the Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is responsible for considering the size, composition and
balance of the Board; the retirement and appointment of Directors; succession planning
for the Board and senior managerment, focused on the development of a diverse
succassion pipeline; and making recommendations to the Board on these matters.

The Committee’s roles and responsibilities are covered in its terms of reference which
were reviewed and updated during the year and are available on our corporate website
www.securetrustbank.com

Succession planning

The Nemination Committee has considered the Company's succession plans, both at
Board and at Senior Manager level. The plans identify potential internal candidates,
short-term solutions in the event of unanticipated changes in circumstances and external
recruitment, as well as reallocating regulatory responsibilities as required. The need for
regulatory approval of the persans performing Senior Manager Functions under the
Senior Managers Regime is incorporated into the suggestions of proposed individuals
outlined in the succession plan.

The Committee, when considering the succession plans for individuals on the Board and
in Senior Managsment, reviews the contingency {immedizte), medium (one to two year)
and longer-term {two to three year) proposals. The Committee also receives updates on
the mentoring programmes for 'High Potential” individuals identified by the Executive
Committee. More information on developing a diverse talent pipeline can be found on
page 43.

Director recruitment
CEQO Recruttment

As reported last year, the Committee, having conducted a detailed review of the
successicn plan during the year, decided that David McCreadie was a suitable successor
for the CEO role without the need to conduct any further external recruitment process.
The Committee identified that David possessed the key skills needed from a new CEQ in
line with the evolving Board dynamic, the mix of Board skilis and experience, the existing
strategy and the external environment. The sub-committee created to overses the
process, (consisting the Chairman, SID and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee),
recommended that David McCreadie be appointed as CEO. The Committee and Board
subsequently approved this and he was appointad CEQ from 5 January 2021.

Nomination Committee

membership and meetings

Composition

CHART REMOVED

Meeting attendance

The number of planned meetings held
during 2021 and the attending members

are shown in the table below:

Nomination
Committee

Eligible to
attend

Number of meetings
during 2021

Lord Forsyth

Ann Berresford

Paul Myers

Baronass Neville-Rolfe

Victoria Stewart

[T B O N & B &2 BT

Finlay Williamsan

N noan
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Nomination Committee report
continued

Non-Executive Director

The Committee, having reviewed the succession plan and the mix of the Board’s skills and experience, decided that a further
Non-Executive Director was required following the transfer of David McCreadie from Non-Executive to CEO. Fallowing a rigorous
appointment process, a list of desirable skills for the new Non-Executive Director was identified and was used as a basis for the search
conducted by Ridgeway Partners. Finlay Williamson was determined to be the successful candidate and appointed to the Board and
as a member of the Risk and Nomination Committees on 30 June 2021. Ridgeway Partners does not have any other significant
connection with the Group or its Directors other than the provision of Board recruitment services.

Board policy on diversity

The Board appointment process and compaosition is overseen by the Nomination Committee. The Committee conducted the annual
review of the Board policy on diversity, which autlines the Group's commitment to providing equal opportunities and the Board's belief
that diversity includes each of the protected characteristics. A copy of the Board policy on diversity is available on our

Company website.

Any appointments made to the Board are made an merit, against objective criteria and with due regard for the benefits of Diversity on
the Board at the time of the appeintment and having regard to long-term planning in relation to Board cemposition and strategy.

The Committee has not set quotas or targets for the Board's composition. The Board currently has a gender equal Board, which is in
excess of the 33% target set by the Hampton-Alexander review. During 2021 the composition of the Board exceeded the FTSE
Waomen Leaders Review Report recommendation of a minimum of 40% women'’s representation by the end of 2025, 4 years ahead of
target. At present, the Board has not reached the target set by the Parker review to have one director from an ethnic minority
background appointed to the Board. Diversity, including ethnic diversity, will continue to be a factor teken into consideration during
future appointments and as part of Board refreshment.

Board effectiveness and Non-Executive Director evaluation

During 2021 the Board conducted an internally facilitated review of the effectiveness of the Board, its Committees and Directors using
a combination of questionnaires and virtual face-to-face meetings. The Committee raviewed the results and a report by the Chairman
on the individual Directors’ performance evaluations as well as a report from the Senior Independent Director on the Chairman’s
effectiveness. The Committee concluded that the Board was performing well and exercising the right level of judgement with due
regard to the duties placed on Directors under company law, including section 172 of the Companies Act 2006. The Committee
acknowledged that the Directars had been mindful of the provisions of the Code and their responsibilities as Directors and, where
applicable, as senior managers under the Senior Managers Regime, when reaching their assessment of Board effectiveness and
individual Directar contributicns.

The 2021 Board effectiveness review noted the evolving Board dynamic following the recent new Executive Director appointments
as well as the potential to improve the quality, timeliness and detail of information provided to the Board and its Committees.
Awholesale review of Board papers was undertaken during the year which resulted in a new structure for reports. It is expected that
once the new reporting style is embedded, it will address the comments raised on informaticn received.

Composition and independence

The Committee confirmed to the Board that it is satisfied that all Non-Executive Directors are independent and Lord Forsyth, on his
appointrment as Chairman, met the independence criteria set out in the Code.

The Committee reviewed the Board’s corposition during 2021 and concluded it had the right balance of skills, knowledge and
experience. The Committee continues to be mindful of the compasition of each of the Board Committees and the Board to have
at least half of the Board members as independent non-executive directors.

Board training and development

The Board receives detailed reparts from managerment on the performance of the Group at its meetings. Updates are provided on
relevant legal, corporate governance and financial reporting developments. In addition, the Board, on the recommendation of the
Committee, adopted a training programme during 2021 and received training on strategic, requlatory, ESG and Financial Crime
matters. Due ta restrictions from COVID-19, there was limited scape for in-person training and most training was delivered online.
Directors are encouraged to attend external seminars on areas of relevance to their role and to keep a record of their external training.
A training plan for 2022 is being considered.

David McCreadie received a comprehensive induction programme when he joined the Board as a Non-Executive Director in 2019
and this was supplemented with a streamlined induction programme when he transitioned to the rele of CEQ. On appointrment,
Finlay Williamson received a comprehensive induction programme.,
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Statement by the Chairman
of the Audit Committee

Ann Berresford
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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The Committee has continued to
closely monitor the consequences

of the COVID-19 pandemic.”

IMAGE REMOVED
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| em pleased to present the report of the Audit Committee for the financial year ended 31 Decermnber 2021 and this report sets out
some of the key matters covered over that period.

Once again, one of the most significant priorities has been to support the Board in monitoring, on a continuing basis over the year,

the accounting and financial reporting consequences of COVID-19 as the Group transitions to a post-pandemic environment. Last year,
| reported that the Committee’s focus had been on understanding the impact of the pandernic on custormers and, as a consequence,
on modelled credit losses and accounting judgements, provisions and disclosures. Over the course of this year, the Committee has
cantinued to closely monitor the impact on provisions of an unstakle and uncertain macroeconomic environment.

The Committee has alse continued to dosely menitor the internal cantrol environment in light of new working practices.

Reports received over the year indicate that the Group’s internal control environment has been resilient. Where weaknesses have been
identified remedial action has been planned, executed, and delivered to address these needs. Reassuringly, and despite significant
change te working practices, employees have ensured that the business areas reviewed have continued to demonstrate alignment to
the Group's values.

The Group continues to develop its regulatory reparting capabilities and this has been ancther area of focus for the Committee over
the last year. Another key consideration, following clarification from the International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRSs’)
Interpretations Committee, has been the accounting treatment of software-as-a-service arrangements. The impact on the Group's
accounts is addressed on pages 115 and 116,

The assurance pracess behind TCFD disclosures were reviewed by the Committee, along with the increase to the viability statement
period from three to five years. Where the Group has sold various parts of the business during the year, the accounting treatment
associated with it has afso come under scrutiny by Committee members.

The Committee has continued to receive valued support from a number of internal and external stakeholders including the Chief
Internal Auditor, Chief Risk Officer, Chief Financial Officer and the external auditors. The Commiittee receives an pdate at every
meeting on internal audit activity and | met with the Chief Internal Auditor each month to discuss the control environment and to
receive an update on progress against the interna! audit plan. In line with auditing standards, the Committee commissicned an
external quality assessment of the internal audit function during the year and the Committee discussed the outcome of the
assessment, which concluded that the function is effective, with the independent assessor in September.

| have also continuad to meet with the external audit partner on a regular basis and to discuss STB's approach to a range of topics
including those arising from the pandemic. The Committee has assessed the guelity and effectiveness of the external audit process
and remain satisfied, as Deloitte approaches the conclusion of their fourth year of appointment, that the external audit process is
effective. On this basis the Committee recommended to the Board their reappointment as auditor at the 2021 AGM.

Ann Berresford
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Audit Committee membaership
and meetings
Composition

CHART REMOVED

Meeting attendance

The number of planned meetings held
during 2021 and the attending members
are shawn in the table below:

Audit  Eligible to
Committee attend

Number of meetings

during 2021 4
Ann Berresford 4 4
Baroness Neville-Rolfe 4
Victoria Stewart 4 4

Committee governance

The Audit Committee met four times during the year, down from six in 2020, leveraging
the experience gained regarding COVID-19 to date. Details of members and their
attendance is summarised in the table on this page.

Meetings of the Committee were attended throughout the year by the Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Internal Auditor, the Chief Financial Officer and the Head of Financial
Reporting, as well as the external audit partner and other members of the Board at the
invitation of the Committee Chairman. The Committee maintains a close and open
dialogue with the external auditor and Chief Internal Auditor, routinely holding a private
in-camera session with them both following 2ach Committee meeting and as and when
required between meetings.

The Chairman of the Committee reports to the Board on the eutcome of its meetirigs
and any recommendations arising from discussions. The Company Secretary, or their
alternate, acts as Secretary to the Committee. Committee materials and minutes from
the meetings are made available, as appropriate, to all Board membars.

The Code provides that for smaller companies, such as the Company, the Board should
establish an Audit Committee of at least two independent Non-Executive Directors.
The Chairman of the Company may not be a member of the Committee. The Company
considers that it has complied with this provision throughout 2021. Ann Berresford is
considered by the Board 1o have recent and relevant financia! experience and the
Committee, as a whole, has campetence relevant to the sector in which the

Group operates.

Role of the Audit Committee

The Committee assists the Board in discharging its responsibilities for regulatory
reporting, financial reporting, including monitoring and reviewing the integrity of the
Group and Company’s annual financial statements, reviewing and monitoring the extent
of the non-audit wark undertaken by external suditors, advising on the appaintment,
reappointment, removal and independence of external auditors and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company's internal audit activities, intemal controls and risk
management systems including the Company's whistleblowing framework. The ultimate
responsibility for reviewing and approving the Annual Report and Accounts and the
interim Report remains with the Board. The Board confirms the Annual Report, taken as a
wheole, is fair, balanced, and understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group and Company's position, performance, business model
and strategy. The Audit Committee assists the Board in reaching those conclusions,
including reviewing significant financial reporting judgements, following appropriate
executive governance, and assessing that the narrative reporting in the front of the
Annual Report accurately reflacts the financial staternents in the back. The Audit
Committee is supported in this assessment by an effective external audit, the assessment
of internal controls by internal audit and by challenging management on the integrity of
financial and narrative statements.

The Committee’s terms of reference is reviewed annually end published on the
Group’s website.

Matters discussed at Audit Committee meetings during 2021

Meetings of the Committee are scheduled to coincide with key dates in the Group's
financial reporting eycle. The Committee maintains a schedule of standing agenda items
to facilitate the even distribution of items for cansideration. In addition te standing
reports {e.g. internal audit, finance and corporate governance items) the Committee
dealt with other matters as they arose. These included the ongoing impact of COVID-1$
and the unwinding of Government support, the Task Force on Climate-Related
Disclosures {TCFDY) requirements, and the impact of the darification by the International
Finandial Repaorting Standards Interpretations Committee of the accounting treatment of
software-as-a-service arrangements. The Audit Committee also reviewed the Internal
Audit Charter and the engagement contract with the external auditors.
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Financial and regulatory reporting

The Audit Committee has reviewed the following matters in connection with the 2021 annual and interim financial statements and
considers that the Group and Company has adopted apprepriate accounting policies and made appropriate estimates
and judgerments:

Accounting policies, The Audit Committee reviewed the key accounting judgements proposed by the Executive following rigorous
key judgements and  review by the Assumptions Committee in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
assumptions used in 2021, the interim financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2021, and the press releases and
preparing interim investor presentations that accompanies those statemeants. The Committee considered changes to

and annual accounting standards that had an impact on the 2021 Annual Report and Accounts and also reviewed the new
financial statements.  disclosures related to cimate (see pages 49 to 55).

Building on the experience gained during 2020 of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on Secure Trust
Bank, the Committee continued to pay attention to management’s accounting judgements supporting the
guantum and rationale for impairment provisions and also considered the impact on these and the business
as STB transitions to & post-pandemic enviranment. Recognising the increase to inflation, the Committee
approved the introduction of the customer affordability provision for 2021. See note 17 for more information.

In March 2020, the Board resolved to suspend dividends whilst the impact of COVID-19 was determined as
part of plans to seek to limit the operational and ecenamic impact of the virus. In July 2021, following
continued growth and a prudent approach to responding to the pandemic, the Audit Committee consideraed
whether the Company had sufficient distributable reserves to pay a dividend and confirmed to the Board that
the Board could pay an interim dividend on that basis.
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During the year, the IFRS Interpretaticns Cormmittee published an agenda decision clarifying how
arrangements in respect of software-as-a-service cloud technology arragements should be accounted for.

The Committee considered this agenda decision, and determined that the Group should change its
accounting policy in respect of these arrangements. This resulted in a prior year adjustment reducing opening
retained earnings at 1 Janaury 2020 by £2.1 million, reducing profit after tax for the year ended 31 December
2020 by £0.8 million, and as a result reducing retained earnings at 1 January 2021 by £2.9 million. Further detail
on this can be found in Note 1.3 on pages 115 and 116.

External factors have continued to evolve over the course of the pandemic and the Committee has
considered updates and overlays to judgements and assumptions to take account of devetopments and
dernonstrated impacts to factors such as the house price index and unemployment.

In making its recommendations to the Board to approve the annual and interim financial statements the
Committee has considered matters raised by the external auditor on matters of judgement. ’

Use of the going The financial statements are prepared on the basis that the Group and Company are each a going concern.
concern basis in The Audit Committee has reviewed management'’s explanations as to the appropriateness of the going
preparing the concern basis in preparing the Group and Company financial statements and has not identified any material
financial statements  uncertainties as to the Group and Company's ability to continue as a going concern for the period of

and long-term 12 months from the approval of the accounts,

iability of th
viability of the group The Audit Committes has reviewed and challenged the basis for assessing long-term viability, including the

pariad by reference to which viability is assessed, the principal risks to long-term viakility and actions taken or
planned to manage those risks. This included consideration of specific stress tests and combinad risks related
to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, and the Committee’s conclusions are taken into account in the Board's
viability statement on pages 36 and 37.

Presentation of a The Audit Committee, having reviewed the content of the Annual Report and considering relevant matters
fair, balanced and including the presentation of material sensitive items, the representation of significant issues, the consistency
understandable of the narrative disclosures in the Strategic Report with the financial staterments, the overall structure of the
Annual Report Annuzal Report and the steps taken to ensure the completeness and accuracy of the matters included, has
and Accounts advised the Bosrd that the 2021 Annual Report and Accournts include a fair, balanced and understandable’

assessment of the Group and Company's businesses.

Regulatory Reporting The Committee has monitored requlatory reporting processes and oversees developments in the overall
control environment for requlatory reporting.
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External audit

Deloitte LLF, as external auditor, and Matthew Perkins, as the external audit partner, have continued in their positions since their
appointment in May 2018. It is contermplated that 2022 will be the final year that Matthew Perkins acts as the Company's external sudit
pariner under the FRC Ethical Stendards ard is expecied 1o rotzte off following the completion of the 2022 audit in early 2023,

The Committee will provide an update on this matter in 2022, During the year the Committee reviewed and approved the external
audit terms of engagement, the scope of the extemal audit, timetable, materiality and audit strategy.

The Audit Committee reviews written reports prepared by the externzl auditors setting out their audit approeach and conclusions on
matters of judgement impacting the financial statements, any internal control findings identified during the external audit and their
independence, including the approval of additional services and related fees. The external auditers also highlighted upcoming areas
of intarest to the Committee to assist with its horizon scanning. The principal matters that the Committee discussed with Deloitte are
set out in their report starting on page 98.

During 2021 the Commitiee assessed the effactiveness of the external audit process for 2020, considering the capabilities of the
external audit team, their independence and challenge of management, the scope of the work, the quality of their communications,
and fees. The assessment also considered the views of the finance team. The Committee concluded that the external audit process
was satisfactary and that the auditors are performing well. A further review regarding the 2021 external audit process is ongoing and
initial feedback has not highlighted any reason for the Audit Committee not to recommend their reappointment.

The Audit Committee agreed an increased fee with the external auditors in 2021. Prior to approval, the step increase in the external
audit fee had been robustly challenged by management and the Committee, with confirmation provided by the external auditors that
such significant increases would not be a regular feature in future years. After significant discussion, the Committee was satisfied that
the level of audit fees payable in respect of the audit services provided, being £689,000 (2020: £483,000) was acceptable and that an
effective audit could be conducted for such a fee. The existing authority for the Audit Committee to determine the current
rermuneration of the external auditors is derived from shareholder approval granted at the AGM held in May 2021 and 2 similar
resciution is proposed at the AGM 1o be held in May 2022.

Independence of the external auditor, fees, and non-audit services

Deloitte has confirmed to the Audit Commitiee that it has policies and procedures in place to satisfy the required standards of
objectivity, independence, and integrity, and that these comply with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

The Audit Committee has considered matters that might impair the independence of the external auditor, including the non-audit fees
paid to the external auditor, and has confirmed that it was satisfied as to the independence of the external audit firm Deloitte.

The Group has agreed a policy on the provision of non-audit services by its external auditor. The paolicy ensures that the engagement
of the external auditor for such services reguires pre-approval by appropriate levels of management or the Audit Committee and does
not impair the independerice of the external auditor, and that such engagements are reported to the Audit Committee on a regular
basis. The extarnal auditor will only be selected for such services when they are best suited to undertake the work and there is no
conflict of interest. The provision of any non-audit services, save those below the threshold delegated to the CFO, provided by the
external auditors requires prior approval from the Audit Committee.

The total of audit and non-audit fees paid to Deloitte during the period is set out in Note 8 on page 126. The non-audit services fee of
£110,000 (2020: £58,000) was in respect of, but not limited to, the review of the Interim Reports and other ad hoc advice for services
such as assurance in relation to our participation in the TFSME scheme. In the case of each engagement, management considered it
appropriate to engage Deloitte for the work because of their existing knowledge and experience of the organisation.

Internal audit
The Group has an independent Internal Audit function led by the Chief Internal Auditor, augmented by external subject matter experts.
frorm a panel of internal audit co-source providers. The Chief Internal Auditor reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee and they
meet each month.

The primary role of the Internal Audit function is to help the Board and Executives protect the assets, reputation and sustainability of
the Group, by providing independent and objective assurance on the design and operating effectiveness of the Group's governance,
risk management and control framework and processes, following a risk-based approach.

The Committee reviewed and approved the internal audit plan for 2022 and has overseen internal audit activity throughout the year,
inctuding adjustments to the plan to respond to external and internal events and priorities. In approving the plan the Committee was
satisfied that the team has the appropriate resources to deliver their plans.
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The Committee received and considered all reports issued by Internal Audit. Key themes addressed in 2021 included:

* Health and Safety measures taken in response to the pandemic;

= The effectiveness of financial crime risk management framewaorks;

+ Data management strategy and data governance;

* Operational Resilience;

» Assurance in relation to the ongoing Moter Transformation Programme.

The Committee also reviewed the Internal Audit function’s assessment of the overall effectiveness of the governance and risk and
control framework, and Internal Audit’s conclusions on staff behaviours in the context of the Group’s framework of values and culture.

Internal Audit Quality and Independence

During the year the Committee commissioned an external quality assessment of the Internal Audit function which was undertaken by
an independent firm, Board Alchemy. Noting high-quality reports, strong relationships and the value of the assurance provided, they
concluded that the internal audit function is independent and effective and makes a positive impact, with robust work underpirned by
effective planning. A small number of areas for further development of the function will be addressed in the normal course of business.

Internal controls and risk management
The Audit Committee monitors the effectiveness of the Group’s governance, risk, and control framework. A statement approved by
the Committee regarding the cperation of the risk and control framework is set out on page 61.

During 2021 the Committee reviewed the procedures for detecting fraud affecting financial reporting, and a report from the
Chief Compliance Officer on the systems and coentrals for the prevention of bribery.
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Whistleblowing :

The Audit Comrnittee is responsible for oversight of the effectiveness of whistleblowing arrangements and the Chairman of the
Audit Committee is the Whistleblowers' Champion. The Committee receives a report in every meeting on any new cases raised since
the previous meeting and has ensured that the effectiveness of whistleblowing arrangements was reviewed by the Chief Compliance
Officer during the year. There were two new cases during the year. Cases are assessed and, where required, subject to investigation
in accordance with the Group’s Whistleblowing Policy. ’

Audit Committee effectiveness

During the year the Committee considered and evaluated its own effectiveness. It did this by means of an in-depth questionnaire
which members of the Committee and regular Committee altendees completed and which was then discussed within the Commiittee.
The averall result of the assessment was that the Committee, under the leadership of the Audit Committee Chairman, was performing
effectively, that it was effective in supporting the Board and that liaison with other Commiittees, in particular the Risk Committee,

was good.

Looking ahead

The Committee’s priorities for 2022 will include a continuing focus on regulatory reperting and financial reporting as the external
environment resets to a new post-pandemic normal, along with the finance team’s progress in enhancing regulatory reporting,
the impact of the Moter Transformation Pregramme and responding to developments resulting from the UK Government’s
consultation and proposals for the future of the UK external audit market.
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Risk management is core
" to our business model.”

| am pleased to present the report of the Risk Committee for the financial year ended 31 Decernber 2021. This report reflects a period
of continued focus on the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, both short term and longer term and as the Group emerges into the
start of a post pandemic warld. This has invalved reviewing credit madels, including forensically reviewing operational and credit risk
10 assess whether risk appetite continues to support the Group’s medium-term strategy, given the changing risk environment both at
a macro and an operational level,

The year was another busy one for the Committee, albeit the number of Risk Committee meetings held reduced from nine in 2020 to
six in 2021. This reflected a growing maturity in the way the Group approached and evalved its monitering of COVID-19, facilitating &
mare business as usual approach as the impact of the pandemic became clearer and better understood. The Committee has
continued ta monitor the full range of risks facing the Group, including the specific impacts of COVID-19 on STB's credit performance,
operational resilience and business continuity plans, The Group has continued with a largely remote working model, acknowledging
the haightened risk challenges this peses to its operating model, espedially its IT infrastructure and our ability to continue delivering
great senvice to customers. The Committee has received reports from Management on the various steps taken to mitigate risk and
maintain a robust working model, including building on lessons leamed intemally, across the market and in the wider financial
services industry,

The Committes continues to review the Group's current information security practices and policies to make sure that the Group is
abreast of challenges in a continually changing threat landscape, scrutinise publicised external incidents to make certain that STB is
protected against similar threats and to confirm that potential weaknesses are identified and addressad.

Throughout 2021, the Committee continued to focus on financial crime, which remains a key issue for UK regulators. The Committee
has continued to receive regular reports on the Group’s Financial Crime Transformation Programme {FCTF), which continues into
2022. The objectives of the programme are to enhance the Group' financial crime risk management framework and capabilities.

Climate change has been another key area of focus for the Committee. In early 2021, the Beard received specific training on the risks
arising from climate change and the Committee has received updates from Management on the steps being taken by the Group to
establish its climate impact and mitigate climate risk 5o that meaningful commitments can be given for future action. During the year,
the Committee approved a range of metrics and thresholds to support the Group's monitoring of its climate risk exposure.

The Committee zlso reviewed the assurmptions in and updates to the Group's Recovery Plan, ICAAP and ILAAP documents, with
particular emphasis on updates to reflect COVID-19 exgerience and confirming that scenarics used for all caleulations aligned both
for modelled ‘events’ and expected outcemes.
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The Risk and Compliance teams continue to provide the Committee with effective
oversight of the risk landscape within the Group despite the backdrop of ever-changing
requlation. Regulatory updates through reqular reporting were zlso considered, these
included the outputs of the Compliance Monitoring Programme and emerging
regulatary requirements.

A new management govermance structure was established during 2021. An Executive
Risk Committes (ERC) was astablished, reporting ta the Group Fxecutiva Committes
The Chief Risk Officer briefs the Risk Committee on matters discussed at the ERC.
Additionally, the Group’s Assets & Liabilities Committee (ALCO) has been repesitioned
so that it also reports inte the Group Executive Committee. The CFO provides updates
to the Risk Committes cn any key matters discussed at the ALCQ. These changes have
added further robustness and maturity to the Group's underlying governance

reporting framework.

As we lock ahead to 2022 and beyond, there are econemic headwinds for the UK arising
from rising energy prices and general inflation, with these issues likely to be exacerbated
by the current situation in Ukraine. The assessment of customer affordability is the
cornerstone of our lending decisions and the Group will be monitoring closely how the
economic environment affects this key metric. Our credit appetites, policies and criteria
are always kept under close review and will be adjusted if necessary to reflect changing
circumstances and to ensure we continue to provide appropriate support to

our customers.

Finally, | would like to thank Kevin Hayes, the Group’s previous Chief Risk Officer, for his
valued contributions to STB gver many years and | wish him well in his retirement.
Chris Harper, the Group’s current Chief Risk Officer, joined in April 2021. Chris is an
experienced banking risk professionzl and has already made a significant impact since
joining. The Committee alse welcomed Finlay Williamson in September. His significant
experience in banking, risk and his previous executive career has further enhanced the
collective skill, and experience of the Committee.

Further information on the activities of the Committee during the year is provided in the
following report and additianal information about risk-related matters can be found in
the Principal Risks section on pages 26 to 35.

Paul Myers
Chairman of the Risk Commiittee

Risk Committee membership
and meetings
Composition

CHART REMOVED

Meeting attendance

The number of planned meetings held
during 2021 and the attending members
are shown in the table below:
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Risk Eligible
Committee  to attend

Number of meetings

during 2021 b
Paul Myers b 6
Ann Berresford 4]
Finlay Williamson o3 3
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Composition

At the start of 2021 and following the appcintment of David McCreadie a5 CEO, the Risk Cammittes was comprised of two members
and was chaired by Paul Myers. Finlay Williamson joined the Committee in September 2021, following his appointment to the Board as
a Non-Executive Director. The chart and table on the prior page demonstrate the current composition and membership of the

Risk Committee.

The Group has had separate Audit and Risk Committees for a decade and both Committees continued to aversee the development
and evoluticn of the risk management and internal cantrol frameworks in 2021, as they have done since inception. The Code provides
that where a company has a separate risk committee it should be comprised of independent non-executive directors. The Company
considers that it has complied with this provision during 2021.

The Risk Committee meets formally at least four times a year and otherwise as required. The Committee had six planned meetings
held (attendance of the Directors is shown on the previous page).

The Company Secretary or thair alterate acts as Secretary to the Risk Committea. Other individuals attend at the request of the Risk
Committee Chairman. During the year the CEQ, Chief Risk Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Group IT Director,
Chief Internal Auditer, Chiel Compliance Officer, Group Head of Operational Risk, Chief Information Security Officer, Group Treasurer,
Head of Financial Crime and other senior managers attended meetings to present their reports and answer questions from

the Committee.

The Chairman of the Risk Committee reports to the Board on the cutcome of each Committee meeting and any recommendations
arising from the Committee.

Role of the Risk Committee

The Risk Committee reviews the design and implementation of risk management policies and systems as well as risk-related strategies
and the procedures for monitoring the adequacy and effectiveness of this process; considers the Group's risk appetite in relation to the
current and future strategy of the Group; oversees the Greup's Recovery Plan, ICAAP and ILAAP processes and outputs from these;
and oversees the risk and credit exposures of the Group.

The Committee exercises its internal control and risk management role through the comprehensive management information and
reparting it receives across all risk disciplines. This includes regular updates from the ERC {via the Chief Risk Officer), the Assets and
Liabilities Committee (via the Chief Financial Officer) and the Executive Committee, as well as other reports via the Chief Internal
Auditor, the CEQ, other members of management, internal and external auditors and consultants.

Qther matters within the remit of the Committee are the risk profile of the Group, risk appetite frameworks and limits, the risk
management operating model, risk architeclure, the technaology infrastructure supporting the risk management framework,
operational risk, conduct risk, credit risk, financial risk and regulatory and compliance matters. The Committee continued to assess
emerging trends impacting the Group's inherent risks with particular focus on the many impacts of COVID-19 and assessing how this is
likely to affect credit and operational matters in 2022 and beyand. Climate change is a key focus for the Group and the Committee is
focused on the direct and indirect impacts to its risk profile. The Committee has reviewed the Group's approach to new green
initiatives, including the financing of pre-owned electric battery vehicles and the performance of new products such as the Real Estate
Finance’s Greener Homes Scheme as set out on page 51.

Matters discussed at Risk Committee meetings since 1 January 2021

The Risk Committee has a schedule of meetings with standing agenda items so that all relevant matters are dealt with over the course
of the year. The standing agenda is regularly reviewed by Committee members and is updated to include any new or emerging issues
pertinent to STB in a rapidly evolving landscape.

ftemms on the 2027 standing agenda included operational resilience, financial crime, the regular review of its stress testing and
assurmnptions supporting the ICAAP, ILAAP and Recovery Plan. In additien to standing agenda items, the Committee also deals with
other matters that arise during the year. In 2021 this included emerging risks such as the continued impact of COVID-19 on the Group’s
operations and climate change risk.

578’ operational resilience has continued to be a key area of focus and the Group’s ability to implement and update its business
continuity plans at pace and adapt its aperating model where necessary has been a recurring discussion point. Regular reviews are
undertaken to ensure lessons are learnt from any operational issues encountered and operating model changes are applied as
appropriste. Discussions at the Committee have also focused on the changing macro risk environment, the impact on the Group’s key
risks and appetites, and the cngoing development of the Group's Management Information and early warning indicators.

During the year the Risk Committee reviewed its terms of reference and a range of key docurmnents, policies and plans. In addition to
the Recovery Plan, ICAAP and ILAAP, this included the Compliance Monitoring Plan for 2021 and 2022, the Business Continuity Plan
and the Operstional Risk Management Palicy. The Committee also reviewed and approved a range of changes to credit policies and
mandates across the various STB lines of business. The establishment of the Executive Risk Committee will enable some of the more
detailed changes to credit and ather policies to be dealt with at a management level.
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The principal matters discussed during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Subject area

Matters considered

Group risk appetite
statement and key
risk indicators

The Group’s key risk appetite metrics, which are reviewed annually and recommended for approval to the
Board. The Committee reviewed performance against agreed risk appetites by reference to the key risk
indicator metrics and supporting management information provided to each meeting. A number of changes
and enhancements were made, reflecting latest views on local and macro risk environments,

Strategic risks

Strategic risks (those arising from the internal environment and the external environment that could have an
effect on management's ability to deliver an the Group strategic plan) were discussed and challenged both
on an annual basis as well as in each meeting, where relevant to items raised on the agenda.

COVID-19

Reviewed and approved the assumptions and methodolagy adopted in specific stress-testing. This enabled
the Board, on the recommendaticn of the Risk Committee, to assess and conclude on the going concern
and viability statements in light of the pandemic. This allowed for a tharcugh analysis of capital adequacy to
take place for various scenarios. The Committee received regular reports on operational resilience and
considered the risks arising from the pandemic alongside the Group's key risk profile and other areas such as
credit risk and collections, where Government and FCA guidance was followed in relation ta, for example,
resuming vehicle recavery activity. The Committee also mzintained oversight on any temporary changes that
were necessary in the Group's risk and control frameworks to enable effective ongoing service to be
provided ta customers throughaut the period. The impact of lockdown measures on culture, staif absence
and morale were also considerad.
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Credit risk

Credit risk performance for all businesses was kept under reqular scrutiny and ‘deep dive’ reviews were
undertaken on status and plans for individual large exposures or portfolios that warranted specific focus.

The Committee approved changes to some Group-wide mandatss and policies including single
counterparty limits and credit risk policies set for individual business areas. The approaches to provisioning
were considered in light of the changing economic background of 2020/2021. Previous policy and cradit
appetite measures taken in 2020 to de-risk the portfolio were assessed during the year to ensure effective
oversight of any ‘normalisation” measures as management gainad more confidence in the impacts and
future direction of the pandemic on the Group’s businesses. This included monitaring the performance of
pandemic measures such as payment holidays for retail borrowers and the take up of Government-
supported lending schemes by some SME barrowers.
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Risk Committee report

continued

Operational Resilience  The Committee oversees the operational risk policy including metrics and key risk indicators {KRIs')

and risk, including
Cyber, Information
Security Resilience
risk and Business

repcrting and business unit management risk and control self-assessment. It receives complaints data and
has reviewed the Group Governance Manual. It has also developed the Group's strategic approach to
manage the entity, business and financial risks arising from climate change by agreeing appropriate climate-
related risk metrics and considering new initiatives from a risk perspective prior to approval by the Board.

Continui . . - . "
ty The Committee had oversight of the rollout of the business continuity plan and the operaitonal resilience

plan during 2021 and further evolution of it following a lessons learned exercise, which included modelling
for flooding and other natural events. The Committee also received reports explaining the measures taken
to provide safe office working environments for staff as well as any resulting operational impacts.
This enabled the Committee to monitor the Group's changing operating model| and the changing key
risk profile.
The Committee approved the annual Operational Risk and Control Self-Assessments and received reports
on the maturation of the Operational Risk Management Systermn reparting.
The Committee received updates on the strategies undertaken within the Group to understand, identify,
monitor and respond to current and upcoming cyber threats. The Committee spent significant time
monitoring and supporting progress on enhancing finandial crime controls and reporting, which
management is delivering via the FCTP.
The Committee reviewed ongoing progress on development of the Operational Resilience Plan and
frameworks against agreed tolerances, using information sourced from various initiatives. Tolerances have
been drafted with reference to the PRAS strategic goals for 2021/22, these include:
* Ensuring robust prudential standards and supervision
* Adaptability to market changes and horizon scanning
s Maintaining financial resilience
* Providing eperational resilience ‘
* Continuing plans to enable recovery and resolution
* Facilitating effective competition
» Noting any indirect consequences, and management of these, of the UK's exit frarm the European Union
* Operating effectively and efficiently
Group activities were assessed by Management with reference to each of the sbove goals and relevant PRA
pricrities and PRA activities. The positions were then mapped on an impact vs likelihood chart and provide
an overall rating. This mapping exercise has enabled tolerances to be set using the underlying risk appetite.
The Committee challenges Management on the ratings supplied in reporting to make certain that the
tolerances applied remain appropriate.

Capital The Committee has primary responsibility for reviewing and making a recommendation to the Board on the

and liquidity risk

Group’s ICAAP and ILAAP and the Resoclution and Recovery Plans. The Committee reviewed key
assumptions, including stress testing scenarios and outputs, prior to reviewing and recommending for Board
approval of the 2021 ICAAP and ILAAP and the 2020 Recovery Plan. The Commitiee also reviewed and
approved the Group's Pillar 3 disclosures.

Regulatory and
conduct risk

The Committee received regular reports on the key risk indicators for regulatory, reputational and conduct
risk. Any exceptions were discussed and challenged with management. The Committee reviewed the annual
regulatory risk assessment and approved the Compliance Monitoring Plan for 2021 and 2022, as well as the
Annual Report from the Money Laundering Reporting Officer {MLRO).

This table is not @ complete list of mazrers considered by the Committes but highlights sre mast sign ficant matrers f2r the period ir the apin o+ of the Risk Committae.
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Regulatory, compliance and conduct risk monitoring

The Committee oversees the management of regulatory risk for the Group. The Chief Compliance Officer presents an Annual
Compliance Report to the Committee and responds to any challenge from the Committee on the effectiveness of the
Compliance function.

The Committee receives regular reports on key risk indicators for regulatory, reputational and conduct risk, regulatory incidents and
key advisory activities of note, horizon scanning and acfions to implement new and revised regulations or lagislation and the outputs of
the Compliance Maonitaring Drogratnrne. The Cummillee reviews the Regulatory Risk Assessment on an annual basis and approves the
annual Compliance Monitoring Pragramme.

In addition, the Committee receives a detailed review of financial crime focused on anti-money laundering in the MLRO's Annual
Report, which is then presented to the Board.

The Committee also received regular reports on progress with the FCTP which is developing a range of enhancements to the Group's
capabilities in the financial crime prevention arena.

Conduct risk and culture remain a key focus within the Group and are managed through the Customer Focus Committee which reports
ta the Board via the Executive Committee. The Committee considered emerging risks associated with a larger propor‘tlon of the
workforce continuing remote working in these areas.

Strategic and operational risk

The Cemmittee ovarsees the management of strategic and operational risk across the Group. The Group Head of Operational Risk
presents annually an Qperational Risk Management Policy to the Committee and responds to any challenge from the Committee on
the effectiveness of risk management and risk governance throughout the Group.

To assist in undarstanding how the risk framework is embedded within the Group and to challenge the effectiveness of the risk
management function, the Committee receives a quarterly review of material operaticnal risk events/losses, performance against the
key Operational Risk Appetite Metrics, together with the key findings from annual Risk and Control Self Assessments. This includes a
key focus on the effectiveness of the Operational Resilience control framewaork and plan.

The Committee conducts an annual review of the Group Risk Appetite Statement and the supporting meatrics and recommends the
Group Risk Appetite Statement to the Board for approval.

In assessing strategic risk, the Committee has regard to the identified strategic risks set out on on page 35, which the Committee
reviews annually.

When reviewing the strategic and operational risks the Committee also gives consideration to emerging risks, including the likelihood
and impact upon the Group. Where appropriate, these emerging risks are identified through our Operaticnal Risk Management
Framework and our Risk and Controls Self Assessment and reported to the Committee. More information on this process can be found
on page 32 and in the Internal Control section on page 61.

In assessing strategic risks, the Committee has due regard to the existing process and internal contrels in operation and reviews the
recommendations from the Risk and Compliance functions on how to adapt the controls to mitigate thase risks.

Credit risk

The Committee receives reports on key risk indicators for credit risk, together with quarterly assessments of each portfolio’s credit
profile including impairments, bad debts, watch-lists, collections data and any policy exceptions. With the establishment of the
Executive Risk Committee, these items will be reviewad at a granular detail by this management committee first and reported up to
the Risk Committee an an exception to appetite basis. These assessments are underpinned by the associated credit risk policies which,
together with the Responsible Lending Policy, set out the credit risk framework which is reviewed by the Commiittee at least annually

Risk committee effectiveness

During the year the Committee considered and evaluated its own performance. It did this by means of a questionnaire which members
of the Committee completed. The Chairman of the Committee then collated the responses and produced a report to the Committee.
The result of the evaluation was that the Committee considersd that it was performing effectively. ’

Afull copy of the terms of referance for the Risk Committee can be obtained by request to the Company Secretary or via the Group's
website at: www.securetrustbank.com
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Statement by the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee

Victoria Stewart
Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee

IMAGE REMOVED ' 66
The Committee has enhanced

existing reward structures to align
with the promotion of leadership
and to create a talent pipeline.”

On behalf of the Remuneration Committee, | am pleased to present the Directors’ Remuneratlon Report for the financial period which
ended on 31 December 2021. The repert is split into two sections:

» The Annual Statement surmmmarising the work of the Committee in the year and showing the wider context of remuneration at Secure
Trust Bank; and

s The Annual Report on Remuneration, which sets out the remuneration arrangements and incentive outcomes for the year under
review and how the Committee intends to implement our Directors’ Remuneration Policy ('Policy’) in 2022.

| would like to thank cur shareholders for their support of cur Directors’ Remuneration Policy, which was approved at our 2020 AGM by
over 98.7% of our shareholders voting. A full version of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy can be found within our 2019 Annual Report
which is available at www.securetrustbank.com/investors.

The Directors’ Remuneration Report for 2021 will be subject to the normal annual advisory shareholder vote at the Annual General
Meeting on 12 May 2022 )

2021 ~ a year of change

2021 has seen significant change for the Group. The Cemmittee has enhanced existing reward structures to further align them
throughout the organisation, promote leadership and to create a talent pipeline. As mentioned earlier in the Governance section,
David McCreadie was appointed as the new CEQ from 5 January 2021. When setting remuneration for the new CEO, consideration
was given to the views of sharehalders and industry benchmarks. David's base salary is lower than the previous incumbent by £250,000
and his pension contributions are ¢.5% of salary (which is aligned to the rest of the workforce). The Chief Financial Officer {CFO",
Nen- Executive Directars and Chairman received increases to base salaries aligned to the rest of the workforce and are disclosed in
the Directors’ Remuneration Report. Details of David’s remuneration arrangements are summarised in the table following this Annual
Statement and details of the remuneration arrangements for the former CEQ, Paul Lynam, are disclosed as required throughout the
Directors’ Remuneration Repart.
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To enhance alignment of senior management variable pay structures with the Executive Directors, the Committee approved the use of
annual bonus scorecards, which include shared Group objectives which are cascaded from Executive Director bonus criteria, as well as
more localised cbjectives. We also reviewed our mechanisms for longer term incentives and, where appropriate, we introduced
restricted stock awards for certain roles including those in control functions. As a business, we did not furlough any staff during the
switch to homeworking over the last two years, and no other assistance under Government support programmes {such as business
rates relief or deferment of tax payments) was sought. The Committee therefore approved management’s recommendation to
increase employee salaries for 2022 by an average of 2.98%, with the majority increase targeted towards lower paid staff, noting their
irmpurlance o e continued operation of the Group. Also, over 650 colleagues recsived an annual bonus for 2021 including a
minimum threshold for the lowest paid. An explanation of the correlation between Executive Director pay and workforce pay was
provided to the Employee Works Council with an overview of how the two fit together.

In July 2021, the Committee undertook its annual review of wider workforce pay and benefits, including analysis by gender, and
progress made by the Group on dlosing the Gender Pay Gap. Since January 2022 the Cammittee has received updates on Group
initiatives surrounding diversity and inclusion and has embedded these into reward structures.

| was delighted to welcome Baroness Neville-Rolfe to the Committee in March. Her extensive skillset and particularly her experience
in communications mean that she is an excellent addition to the Committee. Lucy serves as our Non-Executive Director with
responsibility for workforce engagement and helps to bring the voice of employees to Committee discussions. | would like to thank all
the Committee members for their contributicns this year.

Executive Remuneration in 2021- pay and performance

2021 was a year in which the Group performed strongly and also set itself on a new path as set out at the Capital
Markets Day.
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As a Committee, the following aspects of Greup performance in the year were noted:

* Statutory profit before tax was £56.0 million (2020: £19.1 million}. We have zlso reviewed the pre-provision release profit amount and
are content that the performance objective is still met in full.

Return on Average Equity in 2021 of 15:9% showed material year-on-year growth from 2020 (5.9%) and was ahead of pre pandemic
perfarmance in 2019 (12.0%).

Capital strength continued to grow with STB% 2021 CET1 ratic 14.5% {2020 14.0%).

¢ High levels of employee trust {as measured under the employee survey trust index score) were maintained at 80%, even during

a challenging year (2020: 82%).

Cantinued high customer service Faefo rating of 4.6 out of 5 stars (2020: 4.7}

There was also strong progress on daveloping our strategy including:

1. taking steps to focus the business on attractive and specizlist markets and the divestment of non-care businesses;
2.significant strengthening of our senior leadership team and talent pipeline planning;

3. maintaining a diverse portfolio in consumer and business finance with several new client wins; and

4. maintaining rigorous credit discipline, prudence and risk management.

1 298% excludes Dabt Managers (Services) Umited (DMS. Including DMS the average employse increase is 3.38%. Pleass see note 46 to the accounts for mere information.
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Remuneration Committee
continued

Against this background Executive Directors scorecard outcomes were 74.6% {out of a possible 100% of base salary) for the CEO and
CFO. Having carefully reviewed the financial performance for 2021 both pre and post provision releases and the significant progress on
strategic initiatives over the year, the Committee considered it appropriate for 20215 annual bonus scorecard outcomes ta be allowed
ta apply without further moderation.

In accordance with the Policy, 50% of bonus outcomes for Executive Directors are deferred into shares under the Deferred Bonus Plan.
Deferred shares will vest in equal tranches after one, two and three years following deferral.

For completeness, although neither our CEQ nor CFO participated in 2019 LTIP awards which vested by reference to three-year
performance measured to the end of the 2021 financial year, these awards vested at 40.63% of the maximum level. Please see page 86
for more detail.

Use of discretion during 2021

During the year the Committee did not exercise discretion in assessing performance for any incentive plans.

Implementing the Policy for 2022
A surmnmary of the approach to the implementation of the Remuneration Policy from 1 January 2022 is as follows:
= Any change to base salary levels in 2022 for the CEQ and CFO will be in line with employee level increases only and as set out
on page 90.
» The CEQ and CFO will continue to receive a pension allowance of ¢.5% of salary and no changes wilt be made to benefits provisions.
» Annual bonus maximum will again be 100% of base salary for the CEQ and CFO, with the metrics balanced between financial
metrics (including risk) at 65% weighting and strategic initiatives at 35% weighting. LTIP awards will be made in line with the Policy.
Concluding thoughts

As Secure Trust Bank continues to execute its strategy, the Committea is satisfied that the Policy remains appropriate and that the
management team is aptly incentivised and retained. The Committee welcomes all input on remuneration and if you have any
comments or questions on any element of the Annual Report on Remuneration please email me via Mark Stevens, Group Company
Secretary, at companysecretariat@securetrustbank.co.uk

Finally, | would like to thank our shareholders for their continued support throughout the year.

Victoria Stewart
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Executive Directors: Summary of Recruitment
and Termination Arrangements

Executive Director Recruitment and Termination Arrangement

David McCreadie * Base salary— £650,000 per annum
Appointed CEO “

Pansion cantribution — 5% base salary
5 January 2021

s Annual bonus — 100% base salary maxirmum bonus for 2021
¢ LTIP - to participate in 2021 LTIP; annual award 100% base salary
s Buy-outs on appointment ~ none

Remuneration Committee
membership and meetings

Composition

CHART REMOVED

Rachel Lawrence » Base salary — £408,000 per annum

Appointed CFO * Pension contribution — 5% base salary
7 September 2020

* Annual bonus ~100% base salary maximum bonus for 2021; no annual
bonus entitlement for FY2020

* LTIP —to participate in 2021 LTIF; annuel award 100% base salary.
Received a pro-rata LTIP award for 2020 (25% base salary}

* Buy-outs on appointment — none

Paul Lynam * To receive only contractual base salary, benefits (including payment in
Resigned as CEO lieu of accrued holidays) and pension contributions until 31 March 20271
5 January 2021 when employment within the Group ceased.
+ No annual bonus entitlement for FY2020 and no participation in annual
bonus for 2021.

All unvested share awards lapsed on resignation. Mr Lynam retains the
right to exercise his vested but unexercised 2017 LTIP awards (3,950
shares) which vested in April 2020 and are subject to a two year holding
period until 25 April 2022.

As at 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee comprised four members and
was compliant with the Code provision regarding the composition of the Remuneration
Committee throughout 2021, The Code contemplates that, in relation to the Company,
the Board should establish 2 Remuneration Cormmittee of at least two independent
Non-Executive Directors. The Company Chairman may alsc be a member of the
Committee where, as is the case with Secure Trust Bank PLC, he was considered
independent on appointment as Chairman.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least twice and ordinarily four times a year and
when required te address non-routine matters. The Committee had four scheduled and
two ad hoc meetings during the course of 2021.

The Company Secretary or their alternate acts as Secretary to the Remuneration
Committee. Other individuals attend at the request of the Remuneration Committee
Chairman and during the year the CEO, HR Directar, Chief Internzl Auditor, other senior
managers and the external remuneration consultant attended meetings to report to or
advise the Committee.

The Chairman of the Remuneration Committee reports to the Board on the outcome of
Committee meetings and any recommendations arising from the Committes.

During the year the Committee reviewed and approved its terms of reference.

Adull copy of the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee can be obtained
by request to the Company Secretary or via the Group's website at
www.securetrustbank.com

Role of the Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation
ta remuneration including, amangst other matters, determining the policy for individual
remuneration and benefits package of the Executive Directors and the senior
management below Board level. The Committee reviews workferce remuneration,
related policies and how executive and wider workforce pay are aligned and has regard
to the culture of the Group.

Meeting attendance

The number of plannad meefings held
during 2021 and the attending members
are shown in the table below:
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Remuneration Eligible to

Committee attend
Number of scheduled
meetings during 2021 6
Victoria Stewart 6 &
Lord Forsyth b b
Paul Myers <] b
Baroness Ne\.fillefRoffe:1 5 5

Lucy ‘ained the Commiztee on 24 March 2021,
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

continued

Key matiers considered by the Committee from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021

ttem

Comment

Executive Directors’
variable pay

Chairman and Executive
Director remuneration

In March 2021, the Committee reviawed the propeosed Group bonus provision to be paid in April 2021 in
respect of performance for the 2020 financial year. The Committee, having regard to the guidelines
issured by institutional investors regarding reward, the continuing pandemic, guidance from the Group’s
requlators, as well as the review of the Going Concern and Viability staternents conducted by the Audit
and Risk Committees, concluded that the payment of a bonus to all employees was appropriate and in
the best interests of the Company. The Committee reviewed and agreed managerment’s
racommendation concerning the distribution and guantum of the Group Bonus Pool. Due to changes in
Executive Leadership in 2020 and early 2021, neither Executive Director received an annual bonus in
respect of 2020 for payment in April 2021.

The Committee considerad the impact of the Capital Rights Directive V {'CRD V) on the ratio of 2:1
variable and non-variable remuneration alongside the existing Policy, the LTIP and annual bonus
structures contained therein. A resolution, for technical compliance with CRD V, was presented and
approved by shareholders at the 2021 AGM.

The Committee reviewed the performance metrics for the 2018 LTIP grant, which matured in April 2021
with a 15% vesting. The Committee elected not to utilise its discretion to medify the formulaic outcome
af the vesting of the awards.

" The Committee reviewed the metrics for the 2021 LTIP grant which were identical to those used for the

delayed 2020 award and which the Committee determined remained likely to reflect the market
conditions of 2021 and for a significant proportion of the performance period. The Committee
considered that the performance metrics were appropriate, given the market conditions at the time of
grant, as well as continuing to be stretching and safeguard shareholders’ best interests in light of the
impact of COVID-19, please see page 87 for more detail.

Malus and clawback provisions were reviewed and clauses were updated for inclusian in all LTIP and
Deferred Bonus Plan {'DBP" standard documentation.

The Committee considered the Chairman’s fee during the year. The Chairman received an increase in
line with the all-employee population and other Non-Executive Directars, A mechanica) process was
implemented in 2019 to increase the Chairman's and Non-Executive Directors’ fees in line with
employees’ average salary increases in the prior year. The Committee decided, after consideration, not
to deviate fram this process in the current year.

The Committee reviewed the terms of the service agreements for the incoming CEOQ. The Commitiee
also determined the terms of the termination arrangaments for the outgoing CEO. Benchmarking was
conducted as part of the exercise. Information made available pursuant to section 43%2B) Company’s
Act 2006 in relation to Paul Lynam is available on the Company website.

The CEO pay ratio against the wider workfarce was also considered during the year. The ratio for 2021
includes the lower CEQ salary and bonus payments for David McCreadie. The ratio for 2020 did not
include bonus payments as Paul Lynam was not eligible to receive a payment. When compared to the
2019 ratio, the ratio has narrowed and also reflects an overall increase to the STB Group’s minimum
employee's salary.

The Chairman of the Group Employee Council explained the aperation of the fixed and variable
remuneration of each of the Directors to the Group Employee Council following the announcements of
the annual results in 2021, .
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item

Comment

Wider workforce
remuneration

The Committee reviewed the dashboard information, precess and guidelines for annual remuneration
for the entire employse workforce including the compliance and risk functions. The Committee
identitied and approved individual remuneration for Material Risk Takers {{MRTs") and assessed and
approved employee participants, including the quantum of their awards, for the LTIP and DBP grants.
A new methodology for assessing MRT bonus performance was approved by the Committee and has
been applied to the 2021 performance period. The Committee alsw reviewed and approved increases
to entry level salaries for the wider workforce.,

The Committes reviewed and approved remuneration packages for several senior roles within the
business, balancing the need for packages to remain competitive whilst appropriate for a group the size
of Secure Trust Bank.

The Committee reviewed the Group's benefits package and recommended approvals to the Board.

The Committee also reviewed the outcomes of the Group's gender pay gap reporting which, whilst not
where we would seek to be, has continued te improve with each year.

The Committee has reviewed a number of workforce policies including the Application of
Proportionality and Material Risk Takers policies as well as the All-Employee Remunaration Policy.
The Remuneration Policy Staterment was also approved.

The Committee also discussed alternative share-based models widely used within the markst.
Consideration of the appropriateness of adopting one of these models continued to be a focus for the
Committee in 2021 culminating in the use of “restricted stock” in selected cases below Board level, in
particular for those in control functicn roles.

Directors’ Remuneration
Report ('DRR’) and
other disclosures in

the Annual Report

and Accounts

The Committee considered the disclosures required in the Annual Report and Accounts.
The Committee received advice from the Company Secretary, HR Director and FIT Remuneration
Consultznts when compiling the DRR and the additional disclosures in the notes.

All-Employee Sharesave
plan and dilution

The Committee reviewed and approved the 2021 Sharesave invite to zll employeas who had passed
their probation period as at 20 August 2021,

Governance matters

The Committee reviewed its terms of reference and approved these for recommendation to the Board.
The Committee received and reviewed the cutcomes of the annual internal audit of the implementation of
the remuneration policy. The Committee considered and evaluated its performance by way of a
questionnaire of the Committee members and executive atlendees. The result of the evaluation was that
the Committee considered it was performing effectively with actions having been adopted in areas it feels
it could further improve. The Committee agreed a standing agenda and calendar of meetings for 2022,
Five meetings are scheduled to be held in 2022 to address routine matters.

A review of the effectiveness of FIT Remuneration Consultants LLP {'FIT') as remuneration advisers took
place in February 2022. It was concluded that they remained appropriate advisers for STB.

This wele s not a complete list of matters corsidered by the Cormmittes but nighlights the mest significant matters for the pariod in the oinion of the Ramuneration Committee.
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
continued

Remuneration Consultant and Committee advice
During the year, the Committee received external advice from FIT. The appcintment of FIT to advise the Commillee was made in
September 2020 following & competitive tender process.

FIT has no other significant connection with the Group or its Directors other than the provision of advice on executive and employee
remuneration, and related matters. FIT is 2 member of the Remuneration Consultants” Group and abides by its code of conduct that
requires rermuneration advice to be given objectively and independently. The total fee paid for the provision of advice ta the
Committee during the year was £94,645 (excluding VAT). FIT also provided support to the HR and Legal teams on remuneration
implementation. The Committee is satisfied that the advice provided in the year by FIT on remuneration matters is objective

and independent.

The Committee recaived advice on specilic matters from internal advisers, management and the Company Secretary.

The Committee is satisfied that the Committee has exercised independent judgement when evaluating the advice received from all
its advisers.

Directors’ Remuneration Report
The information contained in the Directors’ Remuneration Report is subject to audit, where indicated in the Report, in accordance with
The Large and Medium- sized Companies and Groups {(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 {as amended).

The Directors’ Remuneration Report contains the Annual Remuneration Report which explaing the operation of remunaration-related
arrangements for 2021,

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy for Executive and Non-Executive Directors for the period 2020 to 2023 was approved by
shareholders at the 2020 Annual General Meeting can be found within the Annual Repart and Accounts for 2019 which is available on
the Company's website at www.securetrustbank.com

How we link executive remuneration to our strategy
The key principles behind the Directars’ Remuneration Policy are to:

* be simple and transparent in order to reflect the Group's purpose
* promote the long term success of the Group, with transparent and demanding performance conditions
* provide alignment between executive reward and the Group's values, risk appetite and shareholder returns

* have a competitive mix of base salary and short and long-term incentives, with an approgriate proportion of the package linked to
the delivery of sustainable iong-term returns.

In developing and implementing the Remuneration Policy we have also had regard to regulatory requirements for senior managers

under the Senior Manager Regime. The Group is currently a Level 3 firm within the classifications applied by the financial regulatars far

regulated entities. That means that the Group is not required to satisfy in full all elements of the remuneration codes.

Notwithstanding this, in formulating and applying the Remunaration Policy the Committee has had regard to the remuneration codes
when considering existing and proposed remuneration.

The Committee has been compliant with the Directors’ Remuneration Policy approved by shareholders at the 2020 Annuzl General
Meeting and Principles P, Q and R of the Code. Within the Directors’ Remuneration Policy, the Committee takes account of
compliance with rermuneration provisions 32-41of the Code.
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Single figure table {audited information)

The following table sets out total remuneration earmed for each Director in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 and the
prior year.
Total Total fixed Tatal variahle
Salary and fees Benefits Annual bonus Pension Shares? remuneration remuneration remuneration

2021 2020 2021 2020 201 2020 2021 2020 z2an 2020 2021 2020 2021 220 2021 2020
£'000 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £700 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £700

Executive

Directors

David

McCreadie? 650 79 1 1 485 - 32 — 2z - 1,170 80 683 80 487 -

R Lawrence* 406° 128 22 7 304 -3 20 7 - 3 752 145 448 142 304 3 o
Non-Executive é
Directors 3
M Forsyth 217 211 39 - - - - - 20 212 20 212 _ - A
A Berresford® 116 104 1 1 - - - - - - 117 105 117 105 - - %
P Myers 9 8 - - - — - 9 8 9 8 - §
L Neville-Rolfe 80 77 - - — — - - - - 80 77 80 77 - — ;
V Stewart B2 g4 1 1 - - - - - - Q7 95 Q7 @5 - - -(SD
F wWilliamson’ 38 - 1 - - — - - - - 39 ~ 39 - - - §
Former

Director

P Lynam® 12 97/5 1 3z - =3 I 35 - 3 14 1,045 14 1,042 - 3

Total 1,707 1,757 30 43 789 - 53 42 2 & 2,581 1,848 1,790 1,842 7 6

* Tnisindudes the valug of the Sharesave option granted < the Executive Directors an 21 Seprember 2020 (calculatad using the number of shares in the aption {3,388 shares) multiplied by the diffarence
betwaen the option price (532.1p) and the market value of shares on 21 September 2020 (632p)} or on 20 September 2021 {caleutated using e rumber of shares in the option {1,683 shares) multialisd
by the difference baiween the option price {1,06%.4p) and the markat value of shares on 21 Septernber 2020 {1,192.50p3).

David MeCreadie was appointed as CEQ on 5 Jan.ary 2021 and was appointed as 2 Non-Executive Director throughaut 2020.

Neither David McCreadie nor Rachel Lawrence received an annual bonus for 2020. Paul Lynam did not receive a bonus in respect of the 2020 financial year. In respect of the 2021 financial year, Dawd
McCreadie received an annual bon us of £284,900 of which £242 450 has been defarred into share awards and Rachel Lawrence received an annual bonus of £304,348 of which £152,184 has been
deferred into share awarcs.

Racnel Lawrence was zopointed as ar employee on 7 September 2020 and became CFO on 23 September 2020

Racrel Lawrence rece’ved a 2% increase on her 2020 base salary with effect frem 1 April 2021, Tae amount paid ncluded in the table reflects the time pro-rating within 2021,

>

Ann Berresford was appoited as Seniar Indepandent Director an 24 June 2020 and her fee in 2021 re‘lects & full year of holding that position.

Finlay Williamson was appairted to the Bozrd on 30 Juna 2021,

Paul Lynzm stepoeq down from the Board on 5 Jancary 2021, his salary, benefits and pensions have been pro rated for T me served. Please see page 8%, for more information on payments for
loss of office.

The figures in the table above are derived from the following:

- Salary and fees The amount of salary/fees received in the year.

Benefits The taxable value of benefits received in the year. Thase are principally private medical health insurance, and
car and travel allowances. ’

Annual bonus The value of the bonus earned in respect of the financial year (including the proportion of the amount earned
which is subject to deferral).

Pension The amount of payments in lieu of Company pension contributions received in the year.

Shares The value of share options received in the year which are not subject to performance conditions. These are
principally the value of Sharesave Scheme options granted during the year. Sharesave Scheme options are
valued based on the difference between the market value of the shares at grant and the exercise price. A
grant of Sharesave options was made to the CEC on 20 September 2021,
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Additional disclosures in respect of the single figure table (audited information)
Base salary and fees

Base salaries for the Executive Diractors in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 are as follows:
2021 base salary 2020 bese sakary
£000 £000

David McCreadie - 650 n/a

P Lynam G900 975
R Lawrence 108 400

Paul Lynam’s salary in 2020 reduced to £900,000 (£1,200,000) from 1 April 2020, and so the figure above for 2020 is a blend of those
two rates in the year. Rachel Lawrence’s 2020 salary is the annual rate of salary as paid from appointment to the board as CFO on
23 September 2020 (annual rate of salary, £400,000).

Bonus arrangements

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021, Executive Directors were eligible for an annual bonus awerd of up to 100% of salary;
&5% of the bonus was subject to finandial metrics and risk perfarmance {‘Financial’) metrics and 35% of the bonus wes subject to a
mixture of strategic, custormer, operational and staff engagement performance (Non-financial’) metrics. On target performance for
each objective, both financial and non-financial, is paid out at 50% of bonus opportunity.

Financial and risk performance metrics

The financial and risk performance metrics were based on the delivery of Board agreed KPJs in accordance with the schedule below.

Executive Directars

Threshald On-target Stretch Bonus
Objective (0% payable) {50% payable) (100% payable} Achieved Weight ’ payable
Grow
Group statutory profit before tax £20.57m £24.20m £27.83m £56.00m . 20% 20.0%
Return on average equity 6.03% 6.70% 7.37% 15.9% 10% 10.0%
Sustain
Adjusted cost income ratia’ &67.50% 64.30% 61.10% 63.66% 5% 3.0%
Costs £105m £102m £98m £104.05m 10% 1.6%
Cost of risk 1.55% 1.40% 1.27% 0.19% 10% 10.0%
Common Equity Tier 1 ratio 12.97% 13.65% 14.33% 14.50% 10% 10.0%
Total 65% 54.6% .

For definitions of the objectives listed above please refer to the KPls on pages 2 and 3.

! The adjusted cost income ratio excludes income of £1.3 milhion cecognised on the mortgage portiolia, wrich was sold during the year.
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Non-financial objectives

Banus

QObjective Targets {summary) Achievermnent Weight payable
CEO Undertake a review of * Manage an effective CEO transition.  # CEO transition was effective with 15% 10%
Executive management . Revi fe E X relationships built with
structure including Cewew.t e Executive existing management.
reward strUCTLTES. ommittee structure. ' -
. tured ah " Refreshed Exccutive Committes
rupsUst d ore Structured appro structure to drive future performance.
ta senior employee reward schemes.
* Oversaw review of senior employee
remuneration to bring greater structure
and linkage between objectives and
reward outcomes {bath annual bonus
and LTIP allocations).
Review Operating s Review the Group operatingmodel,  # Initiated Group-wide cost 10% 5%
Effectiveness of organisation design and governance control project.
the Group. ar ts and hanges
© P FANGIMENTS and Propese chang * Oversaw Group restructure to focus on
ta simplify the running and ] "
. core business lines to promate growth
effectiveness of the Group. )
in shareholder value.
Develop a plan * Maintain effective and censtructive s Enhanced relations with the PRA. 10% 5%
for developin relationshi ith the Group's
Sciakel'\:oldzr 9 re aualz?;rslps w & broup * Strategy refresh as shared with investors
enqagement g ' at the Group's Capital Markets Day in
929 ’ s Develop a plan for the rearticulation November 2021
of the Group5 strateqgy and for
© Lroupss strategy + [ncrease in new shareholders
ongoing communication te - ister
shareholders, non-holders joning register.
and brokers. * Strong colleague engagement
scores maintained.
* Develop a plan for colleague
engagement and communication.
CFO Undertake a review of the # Review the Finance function structure  * Improved operational efficiency and 10% 7.5%
Finance Function to and implement changes to enhance alignment with divisional operations.
improve efficiency and ownership, accountability - o
) Lo . * Improved efficiency inirternal
output. Review reparting - and efficiency. -
1o the Board and budgeting processes.
. . + Devel d h t
Executive Committee. gc?\\::rgsnacz rsrgﬁ?rfe changes o * Sale of non-core divisions concluded in
Pragress on the Group's i & July 2021. Support provided for
restructure. * Progress processes for the disposal/ acquisition of AppToPay.
sale/run-off of non-core elements of
the Bank, in line with the Board's
approved strategy.
Regulatory + Develop a robust plan to manage the  * Enhanced regulatory reporting. 10% 5%
Reporting. Group’s regulatory reporting.
Shared Review Operating & Review the Group operating model,  * Worked with the CEO on the Group 10% 5%
ohjective Effectiveness of the organisation design and governance restructure process.
with CEO Group. arrangements and propose changes
to simplify the running and
effectiveness of the Group.
Shared Develop aplan ¢ Maintain effective and constructive * Enhanced relations with the PRA. 5% 2.5%
objective  [or ceveloping felationships with the « Strateqy refresh as shared wth investors
with CEO s ey ’ at the Group's Capital Markets Day in
engagement.
November 2021.

Develop a plan for the rearticulation
of the Group strategy and for
ongaing communication to
shareholders, non-holders

and brokers.

Increase in new shareholders
joining register.
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2019 LTIP awards maturing by reference to 2021 performance

LTIP awards were granted on 25 April 2019 which were capable of vesting by reference to performance conditions measured to
31 December 2021. These performance conditions can be summarised as follows:

Measurement basis and % weighting Relative TSR vs peer group (40 %) Absolute EPS growth (40%) Risk Management {20%)

Target range Median to upper guartile 10% to 30% 3-year CAGR Maintaining appropriate risk
Peer group is: Arouthnot practices over the Performance
Banking Group, Close Brothers Period reflecting the longer-term
Group, OSB Group, Metro Bank, strategic risk management of the
Paragor Banking Group, Group, including consideration of
PCF Group nle, Provident e the number of customer
Financial and S&LU. complaints received

* the number and nature of
material risk evernts within
the Group

credit losses compared to the
Board's assessment of the
Group's risk appetite

* management of regulatory
capital limits

The outcomes for total shareholder return {TSR} was 13.83% of that part vesting, and for Risk management the determined outcome
was 10.00%. For EPS the vesting was 16.80%. Thus resulting in 40.63% vesting of the 2019 LTIP award.

As noted above, na current Executive Diractor participates in this award.

Awards exercised during the financial year (audited information)
Neither Executive Director exercised an award during 2021.
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Awards granted during the financial year {audited information)
2017 Long Term Incentive Plan {'LTIPY)
Nominal-cost share options were granted to Executive Directors on 26 April 2021 in accordance with the rules of the LTIP as follows:

Face value of

Recipient Date of grant Basis of award Number of shares award £°000 Performance periad
David McCreadie 26 April 2021 100% of salary 55,319 650 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023
Rarhel lLawrence 26 Npril 2021 100% of salary 34,723 400 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023

Based on a share price of £11.75 being the average mid-marker price determined between 21 and 23 Apn| 2021,
Vesting of the share options is subject to a blend of three TSR and risk management performance metrics, assessed over a three-year
performance period as summarised below.

Measurement basis and % Relative TSR vs peer graup Relative TSR vs FTSE SmallCap Absolute TSR Risk Management
weighting (25%) {ex. IT}{25%) {25%) (25%)

Target range Median to upper quartile  Median to upper quartile  10% to 30% 3-year CAGR  Maintaining appropriate

risk practices over the
performance period
reflecting the langer-term
strategic risk management
of the Group, including
consideration of:

Peer group is: Arbuthnet  Measured against -

Banking Group, Close constituents of FTSE

Brothers Group, OSB SmallCap {Ex. IT)

Group, Metro Bank,

Paragon Banking Group,

PCF Group ple, Provident

Financial and S&U. » the number of customer
complaints received

® the number and nature of
material risk events within
the Group

« editiosses compared
to the Board'’s assessment
of the Group's
risk appetite

* maznagement of
regulatory capital limits

Underpin Vesting for TSR elements also subject to an underpin as follows:

(a) the Board's assessment of the Group's general financial performance and shareholder experience over the
performance period,

(b) the Board's assessment of the Group's risk management performance over the performance period; and

() the Board's assessment of progress against strategy, in particular growth in respensible lending, progress on
balance sheet management and customer satisfaction.

Fer each metric, threshold attainment is 25% of that part, with vesting on a straight-line basis to 100% for max. attainment.

For all TSR elements, TSR will ba measured using a market normal three-month average TSR to at the beginning and end of the
performance period {which is the three financial year period from 1 January 2021).

Awards vest to the extent that the parformance metrics are achieved and are subject to a further two-year holding period.
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Statement of Directors’ shareholding and share interests (audited information)

A formal sharcholding guideline requires Executive Directors to build up and maintain a shareholding of at least 100% of base salary,
over time, by retaining all awards under the LTIP that vest {nat of income tex and National Insurance).

The interests of the Directors and their connected persons in the Company's ordinary shares as at 31 December 2021 are as set out
below. Any change to a Director’s shareholding is set out in the notes below the table.

Directors’ shareholding and share interests

Unvested,
Shares Options Options. Optians hat subject Unvested,
Total as at  purchased granted ([exercised) {lapzad) Total as at 1o subject to
Director Type e eves  mayer theven UUTIOR aait wmeaecieed condmions © - condiions
D McCreadie! Shares 5,000 - - - - 5,000 50002 - - -
) 2017 LTiP3 - - 55319 - - 55,319 - - - 55319
2017 SAYE? - - 1,683 - - 1,683 - - 1,683 -
R Lawrence'  Shares - - - - - - - - - -
2017 \TIP? 10,204 - 34,723 - - 44927 - - - 44,927
2017 SAYE 3,388 - - 3,388 - - ~ 3,388 -
M Foirsyth Shares 5300 71,2008 - - - 4,500 6,500 - - -
A Berresford  Shares - - - - - - - - - -
P Myers Shares 5,500 — — — - 5,500 5,500 - — —
L Nevilie-Rolfe Shares 1,271 - - - - 1,271 1,271 - - -
V Stewart Shares - - - - - - - - - -
FWilliamson  Shares - - - - - - - - - -
Former Directors
P Lynam' Shares 70,382 - - - - 70,382 70,382 - - -
2017 LTIPS 155,111 - - — (155,111 - - - - -
2017 DBP* 43,830 - - - (43,830) - - - -
2017 SAYE® 3,388 - - - (3,388) - - - - -
Phantom
share
options’ 187,500 - - - (187,500 - — — - -
490,874 1,200 91,725 - (389,829) 193,970 88.653 - 5,071 100,246

Executive d rectors are required to hold snares nat purchased an the spen market past shair employment in Iine wisr the minimum sharetalding requirements colicy

Beirg recently appeinted, raitver Dawd McCreadie nor Racnal Lawrence hzve achieved the required 100% of base salary shareholding requirement Shares held by David McCreadie (5,000 shares) are
worth £66,500 when using the 2021 year end share price of 13300 (10.2% of base salary} Rachel Lawrence halds no shares,

4 Awards were granted under LTIP rubes on 25 April 2021 as set out on gage 87.

David McCreadie participatad in the 2021 SAYE scheme to the maximur monthly saving amount

Lo-d Forsyth purchased 1,200 shares on 11 August 2021,

Paul Lynam’s award lapsed upon his resigration en 5 January 2021 cor s cessation of emnployrnant or 31 March 2021,

Ezc~ Pnantom Share Ozticn was granted on 23 Merch 2015 znd was subject ta the satisfaction of a perfarmanze conditiar. That perfarmance condition had beer met by the anc of the performance
period; the sptior price was below the market crice, however, and a fril value has been stributed 10 the awards.
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Payments made to former Directors during the year (audited information)

On 5 Jznuary 2021 Paul Lynam {former CEO) resigned from the Board and remained as an employee until 31 March 2021, during which
period he received base salary of £225,000, pension contributions of £8,750 and benefits totalling £5,000 for the period worked in
accordance with his service agreement.

Payments for loss of office made during the year {audited information)
No payments for loss of office were made in the year to any Director of the Company.

Performance graph and historical CEO remuneration outcomes
Total shareholder return

The graph below shows the total shareholder return {TSR') performance for the Company’s shares in comparison to the FTSE
SmaliCap Index (excluding Investment Trusts) for the 10 year period from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2021. For the purposes of
the graph, TSR has bean calculated as the percentage change during the period in the market price of the shares, assuming that
dividends are reinvested. The graph shows the value, by 31 December 2021, of £100 invested in the Group over the period compared
with £100 invested in the FTSE SmallCap Index {excluding Investment Trusts). The FTSE SmaliCap Index {excluding Investment Trusts)
has been chosen as 2 comparator as this is the most appropriate reference point given the capitalisation of the Company.

CHART REMOVED

The table below shows details of the total remuneration, bonus and share options vesting {as a percentage of the maximum
opportunity) for the CEO over the last nine financial years.

Total Bonus as a % of NP asa

remuneration maximum % of maximum

£000 opportunity’ apportunity?

20212 1,170 744 N/A
2020 1,045 nilt nil*
2019 1,804 45 15
2018 1,857 50 N/A
2017 1,657 333 N/A
2016 5,542 N/A 100
2015 . ' 1,459 N/A N/A
2014 _ 3,671 N/A 100
2013 1,031 N/A N/A
2012 870 N/A N/A

" Pre Main Market admission, bon_ses were deterrnined by the Committes on a discretior ary basis taking into accownt Group finandial and ‘ndividual performance duving the financial year
? Nao LTIP shares ware eligible to ves: in respect of the years 2012, 2013, 2015, 2017, 2018 and 2021,
? 2021 reflects David McCreadie 3s CEO.

Pau! Lynam received no annual bonas for 2020 and all of his unves:ed share awarcs lapsed wen ha res'gned as CEO on 5 January 2021,
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Directors’ pay increase in relation to all employees

The table below shows the percentage change in remuneration of the Directors and employees of the business between the 2020 and
2021 financial years as well as between the 2019 and 2020 financial years.

o hsse ey Benetne Banes or base oy Benetns bomus '
Employees' 2.9%2 0% 5.9% 2.9% 1.7% 6.8%
Executive Directors:®
D McCreadie? N/A N/A N/A 2.9% 0.0% N/A
R Lawrence* 2.0% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Non-Executive Directors:>¢
M Forsyth 3.0% 0.0% N/A 29% 0% N/A
A Berresford 3.0% 0.0% N/A 2.9% 0% N/A |
P Myers 3.0% 0.0% N/A 29% N/A N/A
L Naville-Rolfe 3.0% 0.0% N/A 29% N/A N/A
V Stewart ‘ 3.0% 0.0% N/A 259% 0% N/A
F Williamson N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Former Director
Paul Lynam N/A N/A N/A -18.8%’ 10.3% -100.08

The strict legal requirement is to enly provide details of emplayees of Secure Trust Bank PLC, so we have decided veluntarily 10 disclose in respect of all Greup employees.

The calcylaton 1s prepared on an FTE basis,

3 Davied McCreadie’s was appaintad as CEQ with effect from 5 January 2021 therefare o increase salary, benefits or bonus has been captured for 202°, in 2020 Dsvid McCreadie was a
Non-Exgcutive Director

Rachel Lawrence received an increase to salary in ling with employees for 2021, adjusted 1o reflect her jcining STB cart way through the yez«.

" Eack of the Non-Executive Drectors received a 3% increase to their base fee with affect fram 1 Jan_ary 2021 which was based o- the average employee salary increase for 2020,

Where fiquras are shown as N/A L reflects that the individual cammer ced a rale part way thraugh the relevant year o left during the relevant year; and accardngly there is no comparagle previous
year figure.

Paul Lynam's Base Salary was reduced from £1.2 million to £900,000 wit effect from 1 April 2020
° Paul lynam received no annual hanus for 2020 following his resignation as CEQ on 5 Jsnuary 2021,

2021 CEO pay ratio :

Our finalised CEO pay ratio for 2021 is set out in the table below. These figures are on a Group-wide basis, as per the regulations:

25th Percentile Median 75th Percentile

Year Method Pay Ratio Pay Ratio Pay Ratic

2021 - Option A 431 311 17:1

2020 Option A 471 361 19:1

2019 Option A 96:1 71 361
Total UK employee pay and benefits figures used to calculate the CEQ pay ratio for 2021:

Chief Executive 25th Percentils Median 75th Percentiie

Salary £650,000 £20,500 £28,505 £51,000

Total pay and benefits £1,170,000 £21,585 £30,022 £55,434

The Company has chosen Option A methodology to prepare the CEQ pay ratio calculation as this is the most statistically robust
method and is in line with the general preference of institutional investors. The value of each employee’s total pay and benefits, as at
31 December 2021, was calculated using the single figure methodology consistent with the CEQ. No elements of pay have been
omitted. Where required, remuneration was approximately adjusted to be full-time and on a full-year equivalent basis using the
employee’s average full-time equivalent haurs for the year and the proportion of the year they were employed.

The Committee considers that the median pay ratio for 2021 that is disclesed in the above table is consistent with the pay, reward and
progression policies for the Group’s UK employees taken as a whale.
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Spend on pay
The following table sets cut the change from the financial year ended 31 December 2020 in dividends and the overall expenditure on
pay (as a whole across the organisation) as set out in Note 9.

2021 2020 Change

£million £milian %

Dividends, excluding special dividends, and share buybacks 114 8.2 320
Dividends, including special dividends, and share buybacks 11.4 8.2 320
Overall expenditure on pay’ 55.2 51.8 6.4

' The ncrease in overall experditure on pay is dnven by mproved employee salaries and by the recruitment of senior management within the Group during the course of 2021 Additianslly where the
CFQ joined STB in September 2020, the expenciture related to her pay was pro-rated for that year. 2021 reflects payment of her full salary. Further ‘nformasion can be found n Note 8.

Service agreements and letters of appointment

Details of the Directors’ service agreements, letters of appointment and notice periods are set out below: g
Name Commencement of current service agreement/letter of appointment?4 Notice periad [+
D McCreadie : 5 January 2021 12 months ﬂﬁﬁ;
R Lawrence 1 May 2020 ] 12 monthsg %
M Forsyth® & October 2016 & months 3
A Berresford 22 Navember 2016 6 months §
P Myers 28 November 2018 & months -g
L Neville-Rolfe 28 November 2018 & months =
V Stewart 22 November 2016 6 months

F Williamson 30 June 2024 & months

' Entered into new letters of appoiniment prior to the Company's transition from AIM to the Mair Market.

? Eack of the Nan-Executive Directors’ letter of appointment was amended in 2022 by a side letter canfir~ing ther respective Committee membersnip and the'r total fee. No other changas were made
to their existing letter of appointment.

* All Non-Executive Directars are subject to annual re-election.

* Those Non-Executive Directars wha are members of the Remunerauon Committee are set ous or: page 79.

Implementation of Directors’ Remuneration Policy for the financial year ending

31 December 2022

Details on how Secure Trust Bank PLC intends to implement the Directors’ Remuneration Policy for the financial year ending

31 December 2022 are set out below.

Salary

As at the date of this report David McCreadie recaives an annual base salary of £650,000. Rachel Lawrence receives an annual base
salary of £408,000.

The annual salary review date is 1 April 2022, and if 2ny increases are made to the above base salary levels these will be only in line with
firm-wide employee level salary increases.

Pensions

David McCreadie and Rachel Lawrence will each receive a ¢.5% of base salary pension centribution, being aligned to the rate of
pensions contribution for the majority of Group employees.
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Implementation of Directors’ Remuneration Policy for the financial year ending
31st December 2022 continued

Fees

The following table sets out the Non-Executive Director fee structure effective from 1 January 2022,

2022 fee
Role £'000
Chairman’ 223
Non-Executive Director (basic fee)? 73
Senicr Independent Director and Committee Chairman 20

Member of Audit, Risk or Remuneration Committee

Designated Non-Executive Director with responsibility for workforce engagement

! Tre Chair~an does not recelve any additioral fees for his rembership of any of the Boards committees.

* with effec: from 2020 the base fee payable to the Cnaivman and the Nor-Executive Directors increases in line with the avarzge increase of remuneration for staff implemrented within tha annual review
of remuneration in the previous year. The increase takes effect fram 1 January each yaar in respect of the preceding employee lavel salary increase. For 2022 the increase was 2.9%. Other than e
increase ta the base fee and the Chairman's fee, thera were no ather increases to Direciors’ fees

Annual bonus

The proposed maximum annual bonus opportunity for the year ending 31 December 2022 will be equal to 100% of salary. The bonus
will be subject to stretching performance metrics based on a balanced scorecard. 5% of the bonus will be subject to financial and risk
performance metrics and 35% of the bonus will be subject to & mixture of non-financial strategic, operational, stakeholder and
diveristy and inclusion metrics. The financial metrics will include Profit Before Tax (25%), Return On Average Equity (10%), Costs (10%),
Net Interest Margin {5%), Risk {5%) and Capital Ratios {10%). The non-financial metrics will include strategic programmes (20%;,
stakehclder management {10%) and diversity and inclusion (5%).

The Committee considers that the targets are commercially sensitive. A description of the performance targets will be disclosed in the
Annual Report on Remuneration for the year ending 31 December 2022 or at such time when the targets are no lenger considered
commercially sensitive.

50% of any bonus earned will be deferred into shares under the Deferred Bonus Plan. Deferred shares will vest in equal tranches after
one, two and three years following deferral,

LTIP

The Company proposes to grant LTIP awards to the Executive Directors in the form of nominal share options at the level of up to 100%
of salary for the CEQ and CFO. The present intention is that 2022 LTIP awards will be subject to the same mix of metrics as applied for
the LTIP awards made in October 2020 and April 2021, and as further described on page 87 with 75% of awards subject to TSR metrics,
and 25% will be subject to risk management objectives. However, the Committse is continuing to review the mix of metrics and
accordingly if any revisions to the metrics for the 2022 LTIP awards are applied, this will be disclosed in the announcement made to the
Market when the awards are granted.

Statement of voting at AGM

The Remuneration Policy was approved by shareholders at the AGM in 2020. The most recent Directors’ Remuneration Report was
approved at the AGM in 2021; the votes cast were as detailed below.

Proxy of proxy Proxy votes % of proxy Votes
Resolution vates for votes cast against vaotes cast withheld
To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Policy (2020 AGM) 13,595,855 98.57 197,730 1.43 2,323,180
To receive and approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report
(2021 AGM) 13,385,453 99.98 2,887 0.02 503,922
Approval

This Report was appraved by the Board on 23 March 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

.9

Vﬂsﬁoux

Victoria Stewart

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Directors’ report

The Directors submit their report, the related Strategic Report and Corporate Governance Report,
and the audited financial statements of Secure Trust Bank PLC and its subsidiaries {the ‘Group’) for
the year ended 31 December 2021. -

Relevant information required to be included in the Directors’ report includes disclosures required by the UKLAY Disclosure Guidance
and Transparency Rules and Listing Rules (LR 9.8.4) can be found in this report as well as the following sections:

Item

Page/Note reference  Further detail

Strategic Report

Pages 2 to 55 Includes particulars of important events affecting the Company to have occurred
since the end of the financial year. '

Business review and information about
future developments

Pages 5to 23 Describes the principal activity as a bank {including deposit taking and secured
and unsecured lending).

Key performance indicators

Page 210 3

Principal risks

Page 26 to 35

Corporate Governance Report

Page 56 to 97 Contains informaticn about the Group's corporate governance arrangements.

Statement of compliance with UK Corporate
Governance Code in respect of the year

Page 59

poday souswiaaot aeiodion

Results Page 12to 17 The Group made a profit before tax for the period of £56.0 million
(2020: £19.1 million).
For the purposes of DTR 4. 1.5R2 and DTR 4.1 8 this Directors' Report and the
Strategic Report on pages 2 to 55 comprise the management report.
Share capital Note 34, Detalls of the Company’s share capital and movements in the Company’s issued!
Page 155 share capital during the year.
Allotments of cash or equity securities Note 34, {n accordance with LR 9.8.4R
otherwise than to shareholders in proportion  Page 155
to their holdings .
Share plans Note 35, The Company operates a Long Term Incentive Plan, Sharesave Plan and a
Page 155 Deferred Bonus Share Plan. Upon exercise, shares awarded under these plans

have the same rights and rank pari passu with existing ordinary shares.

Details of any long-term incentive plans

Page 79 to 92 In accordance with LR 9.8.4R

Directors in office during the year

Page 56 to 58 During the year there has been a change to the Executive Directors.
David McCreadie succeeded Paul Lynam as Chief Executive Officer with effect
from 5 January 2021 {please see page 892 for infarmation on directors' loss of
office payments). Finlay Williamson joined the Board as a Non-Executive Director
on 30 June 2021. All Directors will ke retiring and standing for either electicn or
re-election at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 12 May 2022

Directors’ interests in share capital Page 79 to 92 Including connected persons.
Related party transactions Note 43, Page 169
COVID-12 impact Throughout The Group moved from mitigating the impact of Covid-19 in 2020 to managing

the impact during 2021 and details on how Covid-19 ¢ontinues to be managed
as part of ‘business as usual’ can be found throughout the Annual Report.

Viability and going concern Page 36

Future developments Page 7

Financial risk management objectives Page 26 Financial risk management objectives and policies in relation to the use of

and palides financial instruments can be found on the Group's website:
www.securetrustbank.com/investors/corporate-information/risk-management

Climate-related financial disclosures Page 49 Required under the Companies Act 2006 {Strategic Report and Directors’ Report)

Regulation 2013 and LR 9.8.6R.

Engagement with stakeholders

Page 3810 48 Relevant information related to 5.172 of the Companies Act 2006 and Companies
{Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulatiors 2018.

TCFD Disclosures

Page 49 to 55 Explains how we have complied and details any non-compliance under Taskforce
on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures £TCFDY).
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Dividends

The Directors recormmended the payment of a final dividend of 41.1 pence per share which represents total dividends for the year of
61.1 pence per share (2020: 44.0 pence per share). The final dividend, if approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting,
will be paid on 19 May 2022 to sharehaolders, with an associated record date of 22 April 2022,

Dividend Policy

The Directors have adopted a dividend policy which takes into account the Company's capital requirements, earnings and cash flow in
the long term balanced with an intention that the Company will distribute 25% of its annual earmnings by way of dividend.

The Directors will have regard to current and projected capital, liquidity, earnings and market expectations in determining the amount
of the dividend. On accasien, the Company may declare and pay a special dividend resulting from special circumstances, however,
no such special dividend is currently envisaged.

Share capital

The share capital of the Company comprises one class of ordinary shares with a nominal value of 40 pence each. As at 31 December
2021 the Company had 18,647,805 ordinary shares in issue. Each ordinary share entitles the halder 1o one vote.

An additional 14,143 cordinary shares of 40 pence each were issued during 2021 (2020:154,162). Since 1 January 2022 and until the date
of the repon, a further 1,745 ordinary shares of 40 pence each were issued in the Company. All the ordinary shares are fully paid and
rank equally in all respects and there are no special rights to dividends or in relation to centrol of the Company.

The powers of the Directors, including in relation to the issue or buyback of the Company's shares are set out in the Companies Act
2006 and the Company's Articles of Association. Shareholders will be asked to grant authority to the Directors to issue and allot shares
at the 2022 Annual General Meeting.

Under section 551 of the Companies Act 2006, the Directors may allot equity securities only with the express authorisation of
shareholders which may be given in General Meeting, but which cannat last more than five years.

Under section 561 of the Cormnpanies Act 2006, the Board may also not alfot shares for cash {otherwise than pursuant to an employee
share scheme) without first making an offer to existing shareholders to allot such shares to them on the same or more favourable terms
in propartion to their respective shareholdings, unless this requirement is waived by special resolution of the shareholders,

Resaclutions permitting such actions will be proposed at the 2022 Annual General Meeting. Details of the resclutions for such authority
are included in Lthe Notice of the 2022 Annual General Meeting and in the related explanatory notes.

The Notice of the 2022 Annual General Meeting also includes resclutions specifically relating to the issue of shares associated with an
issue of Additional Tier 1 Securities. These resolutions are in a similar form to the resolutions proposed and passed at the 2021 AGM.

Under section 701 of the Companies Act 2006 a company may make a market purchase of its own shares if the purchase has first been
authorised by a resolution of the company.

The Company did not repurchase any of the issued ordinary shares during the year or up to the date of this report, although it was
granted authority to do so by shareholders at the 2021 Annual General Meeting on 12 May 2021. That authority expires on 12 August
2022 or, if earlier, the conclusion of the 2022 Annual General Meeting.

At the 2022 Annual General Meeting a special resclution will be proposed autharising the Company to make market purchases of
ordinary shares within the limits set out in the resolution. The resolution is in a similar form to that proposed at the 2021 Annual Genaral
Meeting. The Directors have no present intention of exercising the authority granted by the resolution but regard it as a useful tool to
have available.

On a show of hands, each member has the right to one vote at General Meetings of the Company. On a pelf, each member is entitled
to one vote for every share held. The shares carry no rights to fixed income. No person has any special rights of contro! over the
Company's share capital and all issued shares are fully paid. Voting at the 2022 AGM will be conducted on a poll.

There are no specific restrictions on the transfer of the shares in the Company which are governed by the general provisions of the
Articles of Association and prevailing legislation.
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Substantial shareholders :
In accordance with Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules DTRb, the Company as at 18 March 2022 (being the latest practicable
date before publication of this report), has been notified of disclosable interests in its issued ordinary shares as set out in the
table below.
Substantial shareholders
No. of

ordinary shares %

Columbia Threadneedle Investments 3,169,109 16.99

Fidelity International 1,855,934 9.95

Wellington Mzanagement Company 1,812,604 9.72
Invesco 1,580,488 8.48 o
Mr Steven A Cohen 1,510,412 8.10 é
Unicorn Asset Mgt 1,394,815 7.48 %
Premier Miton Investors 963,307 517 &
Ennismore Fund Management Limited 629,070 3.37 g
Powers of Directors 2
The Directors’ powers are conferred on thermn by UK legislation and by the Company’s Articles of Association. -?.5
pmy

Changes to the Company's Articles of Assaciation must be approved by shareholders by way of a special resolution and must comply
with the Companies Act 2006 and the Financial Conduct Authority’s Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules.

Appointment and retirement of Directors

The appointment and retirement of the Directors is governed by the Company's Articles of Association, the UK Carporate Governance
Code and the Companies Act 2006. Further details can be found in the explanatory notes included in the Notice of 2022 Annual
General Meeting. ’

Directors’ indemnities

The Company’s Articles of Association provide that, subject to the Companigs Act 2004, the Cormpany may indemnify any Director or
farmer Director of the Company or any associated company agzinst any liability and may purchase and maintain for any Director or
former Director of the Company or any associated company insurance against any liability.

The Group has maintained directors’ and officers” liakility insurance throughout 2021.

The letters of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors incarporate by reference the provisions of the Articles of Association in
relation to the indemnity of Directors into the contract established by the letter of appointment between the Non-Executive Director
and the Company.

Conflicts of interest
Directors are invited to declare new conflicts of interest at each Board meeting and where an actual or potential conflict of interest has
been identified appropriate steps are taken to deal with the conflict.

A separate ragister of Diractors’ conflicts of interest is maintained by the Company.

Significant contracts
There are no centracts of significance in which a Director is inlerested.
There are no agreements betwean any Group campany and any of its employees or any Director of any Group company which provide

far compensation to be paid to an emplayee or & Director for termination of employment or for loss of office as a consequence of a
takeover of the Company.

There are ne significant agreements to which the Company is party that take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control
following a takeaver bid for the Company.

Employment policies and equal opportunities

The Group is an inclusive and equal opportunities employer and opposes all forms of discrimination. Applications from people with
disabilities will be considerad fairly and if existing employees become disabled, every effort is made to retain them within the
workforce wherever reasonable and practicable. The Group also endeavours to provide equal opportunities in the training, promotion
and general career development of disabled employees.
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Group policies seek to create a safe workplace that has an open atmosphere of trust, honesty and respect. Harassment or
discrimination of any kind is not tolerated. This principle applies 1o all aspects of employment from recruitment and promation,
threugh to termination and all other terms and conditions of employment. The Board approves policies related to health and safety.

The Group has processes in place for communicating with its employees. Employee communications include information about the
performance of the Group, on major matters affecting their work, employment or workplace and to encourage employees to get
involved in sacial or community events. These communications aim to achieve a cormmon awareness for all employees of the financial
and ecanomic factors affecting the performance of the Group. Further information on how the Group communicates with its
employees is set out in the "Managing our business responsibly’ section starting on page 38.

Research and development
The Group does not undertake research and development activities.

Political donations and expenditure
The Group made no political donaticns and incurred na political expenditure during the year (2020: £nil).

Post balance sheet events

Please see Note 46 for more information.

Disclosure of information to auditor

Each Director in office at the date of this Directors’ repart confirms that, so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware and each Director has taken all reasonable steps that they ought to have taken
as a Director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware of

that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Directors are satisfied that the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable, and provide
the information necessary for members and other stakeholders to assess the Group's position and performance, strategy and
business maodel.

Internal control and risk management

The Directors confirm that they have carried out a rebust assessment of the principal and emerging risks facing the Group, including
those that would threaten its business model, future perfermance, solvency or liquidity. The Board considers that the information it
receives enables it to review the effectiveness of the Group's internal controls in accordance with the Financial Reporting Council’s
Guidance on Risk Management, Internal Control and Related Financial and Business Reporting. Areas where financizl control can be
improved are identified and appropriate actions agreed as part of our internal control systems. Management, the Board and the Risk
Committee regularly monitor progress towards completion of these actions. The Board considers that none of the identified areas for
improvement constitute a significant failing or weakness. :

Modern Slavery

The Board approves the Group's Modern Slavery Statement annually.

Articles of Association
The Articles of Association may be amended by special resolution of the shareholders.

Auditor

Deloitte LLP was reappointed as auditor at the Annual General Meeting held in 2021. As detailed on page 70 in the Audit Committee
report, the Board is recommending the reappeintment of Deloitte LLP as auditor at the 2022 Annual General Meeting.

Annual General Meeting

The 2022 Annual General Meeting will be held at 3 pm on 12 May 2022 at Citypoint, 1 Ropemaker Street, London EC2Y 955.
For more infarmation please see the Chairman's letter and Notice of Meeting for further information.

By order of the Board.

M P D Stevens
Company Secretary
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Directors’ responsibility statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year.

Under that law the directors are required to prepare the group financial statements in accordance
with UK adopted international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.

In preparing the parent company financial statements, the directors are required to:

# select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

s make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

» prepare the financial statemants on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will continue
in business.

In preparing the group financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors:

* properly select and apply accounting policies;
* present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

¢ provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in UK Adopted IFRS Standards are insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial pesition and
financial performance; and

ucdey anuewsaon aelodion

* make an assessment of the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors are respansible for keeping adeguate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonzble accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company's
website. Legislation in the United Kingdem governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

s the Financial Statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework, give a true and fair view of the
assets, liabilities, financial position and profit cr loss of the company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken

as a whole;

the Strategic Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the company
and the undertakings included in the consclidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principz| risks and
uncertainties that they face; and

the Annual Report and Financial Statements, taken as a whole, are fair, belanced and understandable and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's position, performance, business medel and strategy.

This responsibility statement was approved by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2022 and is signed on its behalf by:

By order of the Board

é’7 et AOMJ MCusool

Chairman Chief Executive Officer
Lord Forsyth David McCreadie

23 March 2022 23 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s report
to the members of Secure Trust Bank PLC

Report on the audit of the financial statements
1. Opinion
In our opinion:
*» the financial statements of Secure Trust Bank PLC (the ‘Company’) and its subsidiaries {the ‘Group) give a true -and fair view of

the state of the Group's and of the Company's affairs at 31 December 2021 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

s the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted international
accounting standards and International Financial Reperting Standards (1FRSs") as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board ('1ASB');

 the Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted international
accounting standards and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

» the financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

s the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

s the Consolidated and Company statements of financial position;

s the Consolidated and Company statements of changes in equity;

s the Consolidated and Company statements of cash flows; and

e the related Notes 1 to 464.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law, United
Kingdom adopted internationa!l accounting standards and IFRSs as issued by the |ASB. The financial reporting framework that has

been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom adopted
international accounting standards and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

2. Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standerds on Auditing (UK) (15As {UK)') and applicable law.

Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's {the "FRC's’) Ethical Standard as applied to listed public
interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. The non-audit services
provided to the Group and Company for the year are disclosed in Note 8 to the financial staterents. We confirm that we have not
provided any non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard to the Group ar the Company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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3. Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters The key audit matters that we identified in the current year were:
* Impairment of receivabtes; and
+ Valuation of purchased debt.
Within this report, key audit matters are identified as follows:
0 Newly dentified
'b Increased level of risk

e Similar level of risk

W Lecreasaed level of risk

Materiality The materiality that we used for the Group financial statements and Company financial statements was £2.3 million
(2020: £1.9 million) and £2.2 million {2020: £1.4 million) respectively. This was determined using 0.75% of net assets.
Scoping We have performed a full scope audit on all entities within the Group which is consistent with the prior year. All full scope audits

were performed directly by the Group audit team and executed at levels of materiality applicable to each individual emity.
Audit testing to raspond to the risks of material misstatement was performed directly by the Group audit engagement team.

Significant changes We have previously identified a key audit matter in relation to effective interest rate income recognition; which focussed on the
in our approach appropriateness of the expected life assumptians of both the Vehicle and Retail Finance portfolios. We have determined that the
derivation of the expected life assumpticns is no longer a key audit matter due to the continued stability of the behavioural lives.

uoday sIURLIBACD B)elodion

4. Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Our evaluation of the Directors” assessment of the Group’s and Company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting included:

* Evaluated Management's going concern assessment, to understand the key judgements made by Management;
* Obtained an understanding of relevant controls arcund Management's going concern assessment including Board approval;

* With the involvement of prudential requlation specialists, we read the most recent ICAAP and ILAAP, assessed Managements capital
and liquidity projections, assessed the results of Management's capital and liquidity stress testing, evaluating key assumptions and
rmethods used in the capital and liquidity stress testing models, and tested the mechanical accuracy of the forecasts;

 Read correspondence with regulators to understand the capital and liquidity requirements imposed by the Group's regulators, and

evidence any changes to those requirements;

Obtained management’s income staternent, balance sheet and capital and liquidity forecasts and challenged key assumptions and

their projected impact on capital and liquidity ratios, particularly with respect to lean book growth and potential credit losses;

* Assessed the historical accuracy of forecasts prepared by management; and
* Assessed the appropriateness of the disclosures made in the financial statements in view of the FRC guidance.
Based cn the wark we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events ar conditions that,

individually or collectively, may cast significant deubt on the Group's and Company's ability to continue as a gaing concern for a period
of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In relation to the reporting on how the Group has applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing material to add or
draw attention to in relation to the Directors' statement in the financial statements about whether the Directors considered it
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Cur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going cancern are described in the relevant sections of
this report.
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5. Key audit matters

Key audit ratters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement {whether or not due to fraud)
that we identified. These matters induded those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources
in the audit; and directing the effarts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the ¢ontext of cur audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion therean,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

5.1. Impairment of receivables €

Key audit
matter
description

The Group held allowances for impairment of léans and advances to customers of £67.5 million (2020: £82.7million) against loans
and advances to customers of £2,598. 1million (2020: £2,441.émillion).

For financial assets measured at amertised cost, IFRS 9 requires the carrying value to be assessed for impairment using unbiased
forward-looking information. The maasurement of expected credit losses (ECLY} is complex and involves a number of judgements
and estimates relating to probability of default (PD?), exposure at default, loss given default (LGD") including collateral valuations,
significant increases in credit risk {SICR’) and macroeconomic scenario modelling. These assumptions are informed using historical
behaviour and Managemenit's experience.

* The uncertain economic environment continugs to increase the complexity in estimating ECLs, parrichlarly with regards to
determining appropriate forward-locking macroeconomic scenarios; the key economic variables of which were unemployment
and the House Price Index {'HPI') and the requirement for post model expert credit judgemenis. The ECL provision requires
Management to make significant judgements and estimates. We therefore consider this to be a key audit matter due to the risk
of fraud or error in respect of the Group's ECL provision.

We identified three specific areas in relation to the ECL that require significant Management judgement or relate to assumptions
to which the overall ECL provision is particularly sensitive:

¢ The determination of post model expert credit judgements (EC.Js") applied to the Consumer portfolio;
« The appropriateness of macroeconomic scenarios applied 1o the Consumer and Real Estate Finance (REF) portfolios; and

e The determination of Loss Given Default {'LGD') on the Vehicle Finance portfolio, in particular the cure rate and vehicle recovery
rates used.

In the prior year, our key audit matter in respect of impairment of receivables included the probability of default {PD) refated to
borrowers who had taken advantage of payment holidays. As the payment holiday scheme has now ended, this is no longer a
feature in our loarn impairment provisions key audit matter. In the current year, Management has introduced a past madel expert
credit judgement in relation to consumer finance customer affordability as set out on page 138 which we have included within our
key audif matter.

Impairment of receivables including Managemaent's associated accounting policies is induded in Note 17 of the financial
statements. The corresponding area in the Audit Committee report is on page 47.
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How the scope
of our audit
responded

to the key
audit matter

We obtained an understanding of the relevant controls over the impairment provision with particular focus en contrals over
significant Management assumptions and judgements used in the calculation of ECL.

To challenge the consumer portfolio ECJs we:
* Assessed the rationale for the ECJs applied by Management;

+ With the invalvement of eredit risk specialists, we assessed the methodology applied and accuracy of Management’s ECJ
caleulations including the completeness and accuracy of data used to calrnlate ECJs; and

+ Challenged the completeness of ECJs through consideration of any observations identified by our credit risk specialists review
of the ECL model in the current and pravious years and consideration of the wider econemic environment.

For the macroeconomic scenarios we:

* Assessed the appropriateness of Managements scenarios and probability weightings, with the involvement of economic
specialists, we challenged the Group's economic autlook by referance to other available economic cutlook dats;

* Compared the appropriateness of selected macrogconomic variables and weightings to those used by peer lenders. The key
economic variables were unemployment and HPI; and

* With the involvement of credit risk and modelling specialists, assessed and challenged the changes made to the model
methodology and code in the macroeconomics model which epplies the scenarios to the relevant ECL components having
performed a full review of the computer code of the macroeconomic model in previous audits.

For the Vehicle Finance LGD we:

* Assessed bath the historical and forecast data used to support the cure rate and vehicle recovery rata. We gave specific
cansideration ta the impact of COVID-19 on the ability of customers to cure and the Group to collect vehicles during and after
the periods of lockdown and the subsequent impact on the modelled rate.
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As part of our wider assessment of impairment of receivables we:

* Assessed the quantitative and qualitative thresholds used in the SICR assessment by reference to standard validation metrics
including the proportion of transfers to stage two driven solely by being 30 days past due, the volatility of loans in stage two and
the proportion of loans that spend little or no time in stage two before moving to stage three;

Tested tha completeneass and accuracy of data used in applying the quantitative and qualitative criteria in the SICR assessment
to assess whether loans were assigned to the correct stage;

For the REF portfalio, with the involvement of credit risk specizlists, we performed a full review of the computer code in the
LGD model; .

For the Consumer portfolios, with the involvement of credit risk specialists, we identified and challenged all changes made to
camputer code in the LGD models, having performed a full review of the computer code in pravious audits;

Far the REF portfolio we Tnvolved internal real estate valuation specialists to assess the collateral valuations utilised by
Management within the calculation of the LGD,

* As a stand back test to censider patential contradictory evidence, assessed changes in the overall coverage ratios and
completeness of key judgements adopted by Management through comparisen to industry peers; and

Reconciled the allowances for impairment models to the general ledger and substantively tested a sample of loans to assess
whether the data used in the provision calculation were complete and accurate.

Key
observations

Based on the evidence obtained, we found that the assumptions underpinning the allowances for impairment models were
determined and applied appropriately and the recognised provision was reasonable.
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5.2. Valuation of purchased debt €

Key audit
matter description

The Group held a grass value of purchased debt valued at £76.1 million (2020: £77.1 million) at the year-end. Under IFRS 9, these
loans are classified as Purchased and Originated Credit Impaired POCI) loans. This means that a credit adjusted Effective Interest
Rate {'EIR’) is determined using estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses.

The carrying value of the portfolios is highly sensitive ta changes in forecast collections, demonstrated by the £6.7m impairment
charge recognised in 2020, Whilst some of the uncertainty relating to the impact of COVID-17 has abated, there continues to be
economic uncertainty which presents a heightened risk that the cash collection curves are not appropriate in the context of
customer's ability to pay.

To support the year end valuation, Management performs a reforecasting exercise. This involves updating forecast cash collection
curves and considers a number of factors including recent cash coliections levels, expected future performance as well as the
economic environment.

Given the degree of judgement and estimation involved in determining the expected future collecticns, we also identified that
there is a potential far fraud through possible manipulation of this balance.

POC receivables are included in Note 17 of the financial statements, including Management's associated accaunting policies.
The carresponding area in the Audit Committee report is on page 7.

How the scope
of our audit
responded ta the
key audit matter

Key
observations

We obtained an understanding of the relevant controls over the valuation of purchased debt, including those which relate 1o the
reforecasting exercise undertaken en the debt portfolios.

We assessed the forecast cash flows, having specific regard to the reforecast which was undertaken by Management to suppart
the year end valuation. This included assessing pest year end cash collection performance against the revised forecast. We also
considered Management's historical forecasting accuracy, as well as the methodology applied in order tc determine the
revised valuation.

We assessed whether the medels used to calculate the value of the debt partfolios are operating in line with our understanding
and tested the completeness and accuracy of key inputs, specifically the cash collection data.

We also tested a sample of credit adjusted EIRs to assess whether these have been calculated correctly.

Finally, as part of our stand back assessment, we compared the year end valuation to the consideration expected ta be received in
relation to the agreed sale of the Delbst Managers (Services) Limited debt portfolic, which was announced on 11 March 2022 as
described in Note 44,

Based on the gvidence cbtainsd, we found the valuation of the purchased debt portfolios to be appropriate.
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6. Our application of materiality
6.1. Materiality

We define materizlity as the magnitude of misstaternent in the financial statements that makes it probable that the economic decisions
of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of our zudit
work and in evaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements Company financial statements
Materiality £2.3 million (2020: £1.92 million) £2.2 million (2020: £1.4 millior)
Basis for 0.75% of net assets (2020: 0.75% of net assets 0.75% of nat assets (2020: 0.75% of net assets
determining materiality capped at our 2019 materiality leval ) capped &t our 2019 materiality level )
Rationale for the We have chosen net assets as it is a stable benchmark and censidered a key metric for users of tha financial
benchmark applied statements given the capital requirements which arise from being a regulated Bank. As the majority of the

Group's operations are carried out by the Company, the same materiality basis was used for both.

Materiality in 2020 was capped at 2019 levels in light of COVID-19. We have removed this cap for 2021
given the reduced impact of COVID-17 for 2021,

uoday azueulanon sieiodiony

CHART REMOVED

6.2. Performance materiality

We set performance materiality at a level lower than materizlity to reduce the probakility that, in aggregate, uncorrected and
undetected misstatemnents exceed the materiality for the financial statements as a whole.

Group financial statements Company financial statements
Performance materiality 70% (2020: 70%) of Group materiality 70% (2020: 70%) of Company materiality
Basis and rationale In determining parformance materiality, we considered a number of factors, including: our understanding
for determining of the contral environment and controls reliance obtained; cur understanding of the business; and the

performance materiality number of uncorrected misstatements identified in the prior year.

6.3. Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £0.1 million

{2020: £0.1 million), as well as differences below that threshald that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also
report to the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the ’
financial statements.
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Corporate Governance Report

Independent Auditor’s report
continued |

7. An overview of the scope of our audit

7.1. Identification and scoping of components

Our Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its envirenment, including Group—wide controls, and
assessing the risks of material misstatement at the Group level. Based on that assessment, our Group audit scope focused on all
entities within the Group and covered all of the material balances in the Statement of comprehensive income and Statement of
financial position of the Group.

We have performed a full scope audit on all entities within the Group which is consistent with the prior year. All full scape audits were
performed directly by the Group audit team and executed at levels of materiality applicable to each individual entity which were lower
than Group materiality and ranged from £0.5 million to £2.2 million {2020: £0.2 million to £1.4 million). At the Company level we have
also performed testing over the consclidation process of Group entities.

7.2. Our consideration of the control environment

We identified key IT systerns for the Group in respect of the financial reporting systemn, lending systems for Vehicle Finance, Real Estate
Finance, Commercial Finance, Retail Finance and the deposits system. We involved 1T specialists to perform testing of the general

[T controls ' GITCs') associated with these systems and relied upon IT controls across the systems identified.

We plannead to take a contrals reliance approzach in relation to both the lending and deposits business cycles with the exception of the
debt management lending cycle which is consistent with the approach undertaken in 2020. We tested relevant automated and manual
controls for these business cycles and were able to adopt a controls reliance approach, as plannad. We did not plan or obtain controls
reliance aver impairment of receivables,

7.3.  Qur consideration of climate-related risks

We have cbtained an understanding of Management's process for considering the impact of climate-related risks and controls and
assessed whether the risks identified by Management are complete and consistent with our understanding of the entity as part of our
own risk assessment procedures. These risks are contained within pages 49 to 55 of the Annual Report. Further in conjunction with cur
climate risk specialists we have evaluated the appropriateness of Management’s disclosures in relation to climate change in Note 17.

8. Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our auditors
report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information contained within the Annual Report.

Our opinlon on the financial statements does not cover the other infarmation and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial staterments or cur knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to
a material misstaterment in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

9. Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more Tully in the Directors’ responsibilities staterment, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
staterments and for being satisfied that they give & true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial staternents that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud er error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Compary’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Companry or to cease operations, or have na realistic alternative but to do so.

1 04 Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2021




10. Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as & whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or errcr, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is

a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs {UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

financial staterments.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
~www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

11. Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of nan-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, autlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our
pracedures are capable of detecting irregulerities, including fraud is detailed below.

11.1. ldentifying and assessing potential risks related to irregularities

In identifying and assessing risks. of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws

and regulations, we considered the following:

* the nature of the industry and sector, control environment and business performance including the design of the Group's
remuneration policies, key drivers for Diractors’ remuneration, bonus levels and performance targets;

results of our enquiries of Management, internal audit and the Audit Committee about their own identification and assessment of
the risks of irregularities;

vodsy soueuiaA0sy s1elodion)

* any matters we identified having obtained and reviewed the Group’s documentation of their policies and procedures relating to:

o identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance;
o detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud;
o the internal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations;

* the matters discussed among the audit engagement team and relevant internal specialists, including tax, valuations, share based
payments, data analytics, information technology, prudentizl regulatory and credit risk specialists regarding how and where fraud
might occur in the financial statements and any potential indicators of fraud.

As a result of these procedures, we considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and
identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following areas: impairment of receivables and the valuation of purchased debt.

In commen with all audits under 1SAs (UK}, we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of
managament override.

We also obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the Group operates in, focusing on provisions of those
laws and regulations that had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The key laws and regulations we considered in this context included the UK Companies Act, listing rules and tax legislation.

In addition, we considered provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but
compliance with which may be fundamental to the Group's ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty. These included the
regulation set by the Financial Conduct Authority and by the Frudential Regulation Authority relating to regulatory capital and liquidity
requirements, which are fundamental to the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

11.2. Audit response to risks identified

As a result of performing the above, we identified impairment of receivables and the valuation of purchased debt as key audit matters
related to the potential risk of fraud. The key audit matters section of our report explains the matters in more detail and alse describes
the specific procedures we performed in responsc to those key audit matters.
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Independent Auditor’s report
continued

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to risks identified included the following:

* reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with provisions of
relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

enguiring of Management, the Audit Committee and in-house legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims;

« performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material misstatement
due to fraud;

* reading minutes of meetings of thase charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and reviewing correspondence with
HMRC, Financial Conduct Autharity and Prudential Regulation Authority; and

» in addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness of joumnal entries and other
adjustments; assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and
evaluating the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to zll engagement team members including
internal specialists and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and requlations throughout the audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
12. Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our apinion the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been préperly prepared in accordance with the
Companigs Act 2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

 the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financiat statements
are prepared is consistent with the Financial Statements; and

s the Strategic Report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Company and their environment cbtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Directors’ report.

13. Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Capital Requirements (Country-by-Country
Reporting) Regulations 2013

In our opinion the information given in Note 45 to the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 has been
properly prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the Capital Requirements {Country-by Country Reporting)
Regulations 2013. .

14. Corporate Governance Statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the Directors’ statement in relation to going concern, longar-term viability and that part of the
Corporate Governance Staternent relating to the Group's compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified for our review.

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following elements of the Corporate
Governance Statement is materially consistent with the financial statements and our knowledge obtained during the audit;

the Directors’ statement with regards to the appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis of accounting and any
material uncertainties identified set out on pages 36 and 37;

the Directors’ explanation as to its assessment of the Group's prospects, the period this assessment covers and why the period
is appropriate set out on pages 36 and 37;

the Directors’ statement on fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 67;

*

the Beard's confirmation that it has carried out a robust assessment of the emerging and principal risks set out on
pages 26 to 35;

* the section of the Annual Report that describes the review of effectiveness of risk management and internal cantrol systems set
out on page 61; and

* the section describing the work of the Audit Committee set out on pages 65 to é9.
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15. Matters on which we are required to report by exception
15.1. Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

» we have not received zll the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

» the Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

15.2. Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of Directors’ rernuneration have not
been made or the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited is not in agreement with the accounting records

and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

16. Other matters which we are required to address
16.1. Auditor tenure ’

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appointed by Board of Directors on 16 May 2018 to audit the
financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2018 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted
engagement including previous renewals and reappointments of the firm is four years, covering the years ending 31 December 2018
to 31 December 2021,

16.2. Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the Audit Committee
Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee we are required to provide in accordance with

1SAs (UK,

17. Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to -
them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, er for the opinions we
have formed.

As required by the Financizl Conduct Authority (FCA) Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule {DTR') 4.1.14R, these financial
statermnents form part of the European Single Electronic Format {ESEF) prepared Annual Financial Report filed on the National
Storage Mechanism of the UK FCA in accordance with the ESEF Regulatory Technical Standard {ESEF RTS'). This auditor’s report
provides no assurance over whether the annual financial report has been prepared using the single electronic format specified in the
ESEFRTS.

Matthew Perkins FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Delcitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

Birmingham, United Kingdom
23 March 2022
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Financial Statements

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December

2021

Restated
2020

Naze £million Eenillion
Income statement
Interest income and similar income 4.1 180.0 1925
Interest expense and similar charges 41 {29.2) (41.6)
Net interest income 4.1 150.8 150.9
Fee and commission income 472 14.3 16.0
Fee and commission expense 42 0.6) 0.8
Net fee and commission income 4.2 13.7 15.2
Operating income 164.5 1646.1
Net impairment charge on loans and advances to customers 17 (4.5) (51.3)
Gains/{losses) on medification of financial assets 5 1.5 (B.1
Loss on disposal of loan books & (1.4) -
Losses from derivatives and hedge accounting 7 ©.1) -
Operating expenses 8 {104.0) (92.6)
Profit before income tax 56.0 19.1
Income tax expense 10 {10.4) (3.7)
_ Profit for the year 45.6 15.4
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to the income statement
Revaluation reserve 05 0.4)
Taxation {0.1) 0.2
0.4 {0.2)
ltems that will be reclassified to the income statement
Cash flow hedge reserve (0.4} -
Taxation 0.1 -
(0.3) -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 0.1 {0.2)
Total comprehensive income for the year 45.7 15.2
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 45.6 15.4
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 45.7 15.2
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company during
the year (pence per share)
Basic earnings per ordinary share 1.1 2447 82.7
Diluted earnings per ordinary share 11.2 239.4 81.0

All comprehensive income relates to continuing operations.

The primary statements have been restated to reflect the IFRS Interpretations Committee’s clarification on the accounting

treatment of Software-as-a-Service arrangement. See Note 1.3 for further details.

The Notes on pages 115 ta 171 are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of financial position

As at 31 December

Restated Restated
2021 2020 019
Note £million £million £rmillian

ASSETS
Cash and balances at central banks 235.7 181.5 105.8
Loans and advances to banks 13 50.3 63.3 484
Debt securities 14 25.0 - 250
Loans and advances to customers 15 2,530.6 2,358.9 2,450.1
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk 18 {3.5) 57 .9
Derivative financial instruments 18 38 48 0.9
Assets held for sale 19 1.3 - -
Investrment property 20 47 4.3 48
Property, plant and equipment 21 2.3 9 11.3
Right-of-use assets 22 2.2 29 36
Intangible assets 23 69 77 9.0
Current tax assets 0.8 - -
Deferred tax assets 25 69 6.6 8.0
Other assets _ 26 1.9 156 14.7
Total assets : 2,885.9 2,661.2 2,680.7
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities o
Due ta banks ‘ 27 390.8 276.4 3085 3
Deposits from customers 28 2,103.2 1,‘5"925 2,020.3 ;T
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk 18 {5.3) 47 {0.7} §‘
Derivative financial instruments 18 6.2 6.1 0.4 g
Liabilities directly assaciated with assets held for sale 19 20 - - ’
Current tax liabilities - 1.0 . 33
Lease liabilities ‘ 29 3.1 39 45
Other liabilities 30 31.3 56.3 40.9
Provisions for liabilities and charges 31 1.3 1.9 0.7
Subordinated liabilities 32 50.9 50.8 50.6
Total liabilities 2,583.5 2,393.6 2,428.7
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital ' 34 7.5 75 7.4
Share premium §2.2 822 81.2
Cash flow hedge reserve (0.3) - -
Revaluation reserve 1.3 09 1.1
Retained earnings 2117 177.0 162.3
Total equity 302.4 267.6 252.0
Total liabilities and equity 2,885.9 2,661.2 2,680.7

The financial statements on pages 108 to 171 were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2022 and were signed on its

behazlf by,
. L hn
Soaweid MCusol.6
Lord Forsyth David McCreadie
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

The Notes on pages 115to 171 are an integral part of these consclidated financial staterments.
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Financial Statements

Company statement of financial position

As at 31 December

Restated Restated
2021 2020 2019
Mete £millian fmillion fmilfion
ASSETS
Cash and balances at central banks 235.7 181.5 105.8
Loans and advances to banks 13 47.4 61.7 415.2
Debt securities 14 250 - 250
Loans and advances to customers 15 2,450.3 2,269.8 2,353.6
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk 18 (3.5) 5.7 0.9
Derivative financial instruments 18 3.8 48 09
Investment property 20 5.7 5.3 4.8
Property, plant and eguipment 21 37 4.5 6.5
Right-of-use assets 22 1.5 2.0 25
Intangible assets 23 54 6.2 74
Investments in group undertakings 24 4.3 4.1 4.1
Current tax assets 1.5 - -
Deferred tax assets 25 4.8 7.1 8.6
Other assets 26 99.8 104.4 101.2
Total assets : 2,887.4 2,657 2,664.7
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY . .
Liabilities '
Due to banks 27 390.8 2764 308.5
Depesits from customers 28 2,103.2 1,992.5 2,020.3
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk 18 (5.3 4.7 0.7
Derivative financia! instruments 18 6.2 6.1 0.6
Current tax liabilities - 0.4 2.2
Lease liabilities 29 2.3 29 33
Cther liabilities 30 438 . 418 42.0
Provisions for liabilities and charges 31 1.3 1.9 0.7
Subordinated liabilities 32 509 50.8 50.6
Total liabilities 2,593.2 2,397.5 2,427.5
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 34 7.5 7.5 7.4
Share premium 82.2 822 81.2
Cash flow hedge reserve 0.3) - -
Revaluation reserve 0.7 0.7 07
Retained earnings 204.1 169.2 147.9
Total equity 294.2 259.6 237.2
Tatal hiabilities and equity 2,887.4 2,657.1 2,664.7

The Company has elacted to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2004 not to present the parent company income
statement. The profit for the parent company for the year of £45.8 million is presented in the Company statement of changes in equity.

pancial statements on pages 108 to 171 were approved by the Bagrd of Directars on 23 March 2022 and were signed on its behalf by:
d M TMML

O,

Lord Fors David McCreadie

Chairman Chief Executive Officer Regtstered number: 00541132

[ e

The Notes on pages 115 to 171 are an integral part of these consclidated financial staterments.

1 1 O Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2021



Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Share Shate  Cashflow hedge Reveluation Retained
eapital eremium raserve reserve eamings Total
£million £millon £million £rillion Emillion £million
Balance at 1 January 2020 (as previously stated) 7.4 81.2 - 1.1 164.4 2541
Software-as-a-Service adjustment net of tax {see Note 1.3) - — - - 2.1 2.1
Balance at 1 January 2020 (as restated) 7.4 81.2 - 1.1 162.3 252.0
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for 2020 - - - - 15.4 15.4
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Revaluation reserve - - - 0.4 - 0.4
Tax on revaluation reserve - - - 0.2 - 0.2
Total other comprehensive income ‘ - - - (0.2) - (0.2)
Total comprehensive income for the period - - - (0.2) 15.4 15.2
Trarsactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Issue of ordinary shares 0.1 1.0 - - - 11
Share-based payments - - - ~ 0.3 (0.3
Tax on share-based payments - — — - {0.4) (0.4
Total contributions by and distributions to owners 0.1 1.0 - - 0.7 0.4
Balance at 31 December 2020 7.5 82.2 - 0.9 177.0 267.6
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for 2021 - - — — 45.6 45.6
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Cash flow hedge reserve - - {0.4) - - {0.4)
Tax on cash flow hedge reserve - - - 0.1 - - 0.1
Revaluation reserve - - - 0.5 - 05
Tax on revaluation reserve - - - €.1) - 0.1
Total other comprehensive income - - {0.3) 0.4 - 0.1
Total comprehensive income for the period - - {0.3) 0.4 45.6 45.7
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Dividends — - - - {11.9 {(11.9)
Share-based payments - - - - 1.0 1.0
Total contributions by and distributions to owners - - - - (10.9) {(10.9)
Balance at 31 December 2021 7.5 82.2 (0.3) 1.3 211.7 3024

The Notes on pages 115 to 171 are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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Financial Statements

Company statement of changes in equity

Share Share  Cash flow hedge Revaluation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total
£million £rillion £millon Ervillion £mitfion £miflian
Balance at 1 January 2020 (as previously stated) 7.4 81.2 - 0.7 150.0 239.3
Software-as-a-Service adjustment net of tax (see Note 1.3) - - — - 2.1 (2.1
Balance at 1 January 2020 (as restated) 7.4 81.2 - 0.7 147.9 237.2
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for 2020 - - - - 220 220 i
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity ,
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Issue of ordinary shares 0.1 1.0 - - - i1
Share-based payments - - - - {0.3) 10.3)
Tax on share-based payments - — - — 0.4} {0.4)
Total contributions by and distributions to owners 0.1 1.0 - - 0.7 0.4
Balance at 31 December 2020 7.5 82.2 - 0.7 169.2 259.6
Total comprehensive income for the period
Profit for 2021 : - - - - 458 45.8
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Cash flow hedge reserve _ - {0.4) _ _ 0.4)
Tax on cash flow hedge reserve - - 01 - - 01
Total other comprehensive income - - (0.3) - - {0.3)
Total comprehensive income for the period - - {0.3) - 458 45.5
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Dividends - - - - (11.9) (11.9)
Share-based paymenis - - - - 1.0 1.0
Total contributions by and distributions to owners - - - - (10.9) {10.9)
Balance at 317 December 2021 7.5 82.2 0.3) 0.7 204.1 294.2

The Notes on pages 115to 171 are an integral part of these consolidated finandial statements.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December

Restated
2021 2020
Nate £millian gmillion
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 45.4 15.4
Adjustments for;
Income tax expense 10 104 37
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 21 1.3 1.4
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 22 0.7 0.7
Loss on disposal of intangible assets - 0.5
Amortisation of intangible assets 23 1.5 2.0
Impairment charge on loans and advances to customers 4.5 513
{Gains)/losses on modifization of financial assets 5 {1.5) 31
Share-based compensation 35 1.0 (0.3
Revaluation {gain)/impairment 20,21,22 0.4 1.1
Loss on disposal of loan bhooks & 14 -
Other non-cash items included in profit before tax 04 15
Cash flows from operating profits before changes in operating assets and liabilities 64.9 80.4
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
— loans and advances to customers (238.4) 375
- loans and advances to banks and balances at central banks 4.7 (3.5)
— other assets ' 4.0 (0.9)
— deposits from custormers 110.7 (27.8)
— provisions for liabilities and charges Q.7 {0.7)
— other liabilities (24.2) 15.4
Income tax paid {12.6) {4.8)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (89.8) 95.6
Cash flows from investing activities
Consideration on sale of loan books b 60.4 -
Redemption of debt secyrities 90.0 1300
Purchase of debt securities {20.0) (105.0)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment. 21 {0.2) {0.8)
Purchase of intangible assets 23 {1.1 {1.1)
Net cash inflow from investing activities 59.1 231
Cash flows from financing activities
Drawdown/(repayment) of amounts due to banks 114.4 (317
Issue of ordinary shares - 1.1
Dividends paid 12 {11.9) -
Repayment of lease liabilities 29 {0.9) {1.0)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing activities 101.6 (31.6)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 70.9 871
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 232.1 145.0
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 36 303.0 2321

The Notes on pages 115 to 171 are an integral part of these consclidated financial staternents.
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Financial Statements

Company statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December

Restated
2021 2020
Nee £million fmillian

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 45.8 22.0

Adjustments for:

Income tax expense ‘ 10 9.3 2.8
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 21 0.8 1.0
Depreciation of rigl';t—of-use assets 22 0.5 0.5
Loss on disposal of intangible assets - 0.5
Amortisation of intangible assets ' 23 1.2 1.6
Impairment charge on loans and advances to customers 2.7 11.0
{Gains)/|osses on medification of financial assets 5 {1.5) 31

Share-based compensation 35 0.8 {0.3)
Revaluation {gain)/impairment 20,21.22 (0.4) 1.0
lnvestment income {4.8) —
Loss on dispesal of loan beoks 4 1.4 -
QOther non-cash items included in profit before tax 05 1.5
Cash flows from operating profits before changes in operating assets and liabilities 56.5 4.7
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

~loans and advances to customers (244.1) 404
- loans and advances to barks and balances at central banks 4.7 (3.5
— other assets : 1.7 (3.2}
— deposits from customers 10.7 (27.8)
— pravisions for liabilities and charges ' {0.8) 0.7)
— other liabilities (19.4) 19.8
Income tax paid (11.1) (3.5)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (91.8) 96.2
Cash flows from investing activities

Consideration on sale of loan books & 60.4 -
Redemption of debt securities 90.0 1300
Purchase of debt securities (90.0) {105.0)
Furchase of property, plant and equipment 21 - 0.3)
Purchase of intangible assets 23 . {0.8) 0.9
Net cash inflow from investing activities 59.6 23.8
Cash flows from financing activities

Drawdown/{repayment) of amounts due to banks 1144 31.7)
Issue of ordinary shares - 1.4

Dividends paid 12 1.9 -
Repayment of lease liabilities 29 0.7 ©.7)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing activities -101.8 {31.3)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 69.6 88.7
Cashrand cash equivalents at 1 January 2305 141.8
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 36 300.1 230.5

The Notes on pages 115t 177 are an inteqral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below, and if
applicable, directly under the relevant nete to the financial statements. These palicies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

1.1. Reporting entity i

Secure Trust Bark PLC is & public Finited company incorperated in England and Wales in the United Kingdom (referred to as

‘the Company’) and is limited by shares. The Company s registered in England and Wales and has the registered number 00541132
The registered address of the Company is One Arleston Way, Shirley, Sclihull, West Midlands B90 4LH. The consolidated financial
statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 Decermber 2021 comprise Secure Trust Bank PLC and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as 'the Groug' and individually as ‘subsidiaries’). The Group is primarily involved in banking and financial services.

1.2. Basis of presentation

The Group's consolidated financial statements and the Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with

UK adopted International Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and UK adopted
International Financial Reporting Standards. They have been preparaed under the historical cost convention, as modified by the -
valuation of derivative financial instruments, investment properties and land and buildings held at fair value. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in pounds sterling, which is the functional and presentational currency of the entities within the Group.

IFRS interest rate benchmark reform

During 2020, amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 were published, which require transition away from the London
interBank Offered Rate (LIBOR) to the Sterling OverNight Index Average ('SONIA), phase 2 of which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021. The Group has no material financial assets or liabilities which have LIBOR as a contractual term,
and therefore these amendments had no impact on the Group.

There are no IFRS that are issued but not yet effective that will have a material impact on the Group.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management o exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial staterments
are disclosed in Note 17,

The Directors have assessed, in the light of current and anticipated economic conditions, the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. The Directors confirm they are satisfied that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in business
for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the ‘going concem’ basis for preparing accounts, as set out in the
going concern and viability section of the Strategic Report starting on page 36.

SIUBWSeIS [elnUBUI4

The consolidated financial statements were autherised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2022,

1.3. Software-as-a-Service agreements prior year adjustment

The Group’s previous accounting policy was to treat all configuration and customisation work carried out by the Software-as-a-Service
{'SaaS’) provider, third parties and contractors as part of a Saa$ contract as a prepayment, which was amortised over the underlying
hosting contract.

However, during the year, the IFRS Interpretations Cammittee published an agenda decision clarifying how arrangements in respect
of Saa$ cloud technology arrangements should be accounted for. Only configuration and customisation work carried out by the Saa$
provider ar a subcantractor (agent) of the Saa$ provider, which is distinct from Saa$ access, should be treated as a prepayment, with
the prepayment being amortised over the underlying hosting contract. Configuration and customisation work carried out by third
parties or emplayees or in-house contractors that do not meet the definition of an intangible asset should be expensed as incurred.

Therefore the Group was required to change its accounting policy, to remove costs incurred by third parties and contractors from the
Saa$ prepayment and expense these amaounts, and to adjust the amortisation charge accordingly.

Due to the change in accounting policy, the Group is required to restate its comparatives in accordance with I1AS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. The prior year adjustment reduces opening retained earnings at 1 January 2020 by

£2.1 million (being a £2.6 million restatement of prepayments less deferred tax of £0.5 million) and reduces profit after tax for the.,

year ended 31 December 2020 by £0.8 million (being an increase in operating expenses of £1.0 million less £0.2 million deferred tax).
Accordingly, the prior year adjustment to opening retained earmings at 1 January 2021 is £2.9 million.
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

1. Accounting policies continued
A summary of the impact on the primary statements is as follows:

As onginalty Prior year
stated adwstrment Restated
2019 2019 29
Staternent of financial posit'cn Emillion Erniflion fmillion
Cloud software development prepayment 6.4 (2.6) 38
Deferred tax assets 7.5 0.5 8.0
Cther assets 2,668.9 - 2,668.9
Total assets 2,682.8 (2.1} 2,680.7
Total liabilities 2,428.7 - 2,428.7
Total equity 2541 (2.1) 252.0
Total liabilities and equity 2,682.8 2.1) 2.680.7
As originally Prior year
stated adustment Restated
2020 2020 2020
Income staternant £millon Emillion £million
Operating income 1661 - 1661
Net impairment charge on loans and advances to customers (51.3) - {51.3)
Losses on modification of financial assets 3n - (3.1
Operating expenses (91.4) (1.0} (22.4)
Profit before income tax 20.1 {1.0) 19.1
Income tax expense 3.9 02 (3.7)
Profit for the year 14.2 (0.8) 15.4
Basic earnings per share 87.0 4.3 82.7
As arignally Priac year
stated adjustment Restated
2020 2020 2020
Stateent of financial posit'cn frrullion £rndhan fmillion
Cloud software development prepayment 82 (3.6) 4.6
Deferred tax assets 5.9 0.7 6.6
Other assets 2,650.0 - 2,650.0
Total assets 2,664.1 (2.9)  2,661.2
Total hiabilities 2,393.6 - 2,393.6
Total equity 270.5 (2.9} 267.6
Total liabilities and equity 2,664.1 {2.9) 2,661.2

The impact of the change on the income statement for the year ended December 2021 is an increase in profit before tax of

approximately £0.2 million.

The impact of the prior year adjustrment on the cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2020 is to reduce profit for the
year by £0.8 million, reduce income tax expense by £0.2 million and increase the moverment in other assets included in changes in
operating assets and liabilities by £1.0 million. There is no change to the net increase/decrease in cash and equivalents.

The impact of the prior year adjustment on the primary staterments of the Company is the same as above.
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1. Accounting policies continued

1.4. Consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all investees controlled by the Group. The Group controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable

returns from its involvement with the investes and has the ability to affect those returns through its power aver the investee,
Subsidizaries are fiilly consalidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange
plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in 2
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, Irrespective of the extent of any non-controlling
‘interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition, excluding directly attributable costs, over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recarded as goodwil. If the cast of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the income statement.

The parent company’s investments in subsidiaries are recorded at cost less, where appropriate, provision for impairment. The fair value
of the underlying business of the Company’s only material investment was significantly higher than carrying value, and therefore no
impairment was required.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Discontinued operations

Subsidiaries are de-consclidated from the date that control ceases. Discontinued operations are a component of an entity that has
been disposed of, and represents a major line of business and is part of a single co-ordinated disposal plan.

1.5. Financial assets and financial liabilities accounting policy

Derecognition

Financiz| assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Group has
transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership or in the event of a substantial modification. There have not been
any instances where assets have only been partially derecognised. The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.

SIBLUZRIG [B1oUELIS

Amortised cost measurement

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured
at initial recognition, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the EIR method of any difference between the initial amount
recognised and the maturity armount, minus any reduction for impairment.
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

1. Accounting policies continued
1.5. Financial assets and financial liabilities accounting policy continued
Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer z liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value of assets and liabilities traded in active markets are based on current bid and
offer prices respectively. If the market for a financial instrument is not active the Group establishes a fair value by using an appropriate
valuation technique. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same for which market observable prices exist, net present value and discounted cash flow analysis.

Financial assets {with the exception of derivative financial instruments) accounting policy

The Group classifies its financial assets at inception into three measurement categories; ‘amortised cost’, 'fair value through other
comprehensive income’ FYOCY) and “fair value through profit and loss’ (FVTPL). A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if
both the following conditions are met and it has not been designated as at FVTPL:

» the asset is held within 2 business mode! whose objective is to hold the asset to collect its contractual cash flows; and
» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows on specified dates that represent payments of solely principal and

interest on the outstanding principal amount.

The Group’s current business model for all financial assets, with the exception of derivative financial instruments, is to hold to collect
contractual cash flows and all assets held give rise te cash flows on specified dates that represent solely payments of principal and
interest on the outstanding principal amount. All the Group's financial assets are therefore currently classified as amortised cost, except
for derivative financial instruments. Loans are recognised when funds are advanced to customers and are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.

A debt instrument would be measured at FVOCl only if both the below conditions are met and it has not been designated as FVTPL:

» the asset is held within a business mode!l whose objective is achieved by both collecting its contractuai cash flows and selling the
financial asset; and

* the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows on specified dates that represent payments of solely principal and
interest on the outstanding principal amount.

The Group currently has no financial instruments classified as FVCCL.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive inceme. This election would be made on an investment by investment basis, The Group
currently holds no such investments.

All other assets are classified as FVTPL,

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the Group changes its business
model for managing financial assets. The Group has not reclassified any financial assets during the reporting period.

Financial liabilities (with the exception of derivative financial instruments)

The Group classifies its financial liabilities as measured at amortised cost. Such financial labilities are recognised when cash is received
from depositors and carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

1.6. Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
Maonetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into the Company's functional currency at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary itemns, are included in the incorne statement for the period.
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2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
2.1. Judgements
No critical judgements have been identified.

2.2. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Estimations which could have a material impact on the Group's financial results and are therefore considered to be key sources of
estimation uncerainty all relate (o allowances lur inmpairment of loans and advances and are therefore ot out in Mote 17.

3. Operating segments

The Group is organised into seven aperating segments, which consist of the different products available, disclosed below:

Business Finance

1) Real Estate Finance: lending on portfolios of residential property as well as the development of new build property.
2) Asset Finance: lending to small and medium sized enterprises to acquire commercial assets, which was sold during 2021.

3) Commercial Finance: lending is predominantly against receivables, typically releasing 90% of qualifying invoices under invoice
discounting and factoring services. Unsecured lending to existing customers through the Government guaranteed Coronavirus
Business Interruption Loan Scheme, Coronavirus Large Business Interruption Loan Scheme and Recavery Loan Scheme is
also provided.

Consumer Finance

4) Vehicle Finance: hire purchase lending for used cars primarily to prime and near-prime customers and Personal Contract Purchase
lending into the consumer prime credit market, both secured against the vehicle financed. In addition a Stocking Funding preduct
is zlso offered to allow dealers ta finance vehicles on their forecourt as part exchanges, from auction partners or from other
trade sources.

5) Retail Finance: a market leading online service to retailers, providing unsecured prime lending products to the UK customers of its
retail partners to facilitate the purchase of a wide range of consumer products.

4) Debt Management: a credit manzgement services business which primarily invests in purchased debt portfotios from third parties,
as well as fellow group undertakings. In additicn, it collects debt on behalf of a range of clients.

S1UBLWalelS |BI2UBUIH

7) Consumer mortgages for the self-employed, contract workers, those with complex income and those with a recantly restored credit
history, sold viz select mortgage intermediaries, which was sold during 2021.

Other

The 'Other’ segment includes other products, which are individually below the quantitative threshold for separate disclosure and fulfil
the requirement of IFRS 8.28 by reconciling operating segments to the amounts in the financial statements.

Other includes principally OneBill {the Group's consumer bill management service), which was closed during 2021 and RentSmart
{principally the funding and operation of finance leases through z disclosed agency agreement with RentSmart Limited). Assets and
liabilities in respect of the RentSmart business are included in Assets and lisbilities held for sale (see Note 19 for further details).

The Asset Finance, Debt Management and Consumer Mertgages segments all fall below the quantitative threshold for separate
disclosure, but the Directors consider that they represent sufficiently distinet types of business to merit separate disclosure.

Management review these segments by looking at the income, size and growth rate of the ioan books, impairments and customer
numbers. Except for these items no costs or balance sheet items are allocated to the segments.
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Notes to the financial statements

continued

3. Operating segments continued

Net impairment
charge/feredit)

Interest income Fee and Revenue on leans and Loans and
and similar commissian from external advances to advances ta
Emilion fmilon " Eilion Emilen " Emilhon

31 December 2021
Real Estate Finance 54.5 Q0.3 54.8 Q.1 1,109.6
Asset Finance 0.3 - 0.3 0.1 -
Commercial Finance 8.8 8.6 17.4 {0.2) 3133
Business Finance 636 89 725 - 1,4229
Retail Finance 65.0 27 67.7 5.0 764.8
Vehicle Finance 38.0 1.3 32.3 0.1 263.3
Debt Management 14.3 03 14.6 (0.6} 786
Consumer Mortgages 1.3 - 1.3 - -
Consumer Finance 118.4 43 122.9 4.5 1,107.7
Cther (2.2) 1.1 (1.1 - -
180.0 14.3 194.3 4.5 2,530.8

Net impairment

Interest incone Fee and Reverue Losns anc
and similar commission from external advances to advances to
£mion £~ om “mlion “emilon miion

31 December 2020
Real Estate Finance 54.0 - 54.0 5.2 1,051.9
Asset Finance 1.5 - 15 0.9 10.4
Commercial Finance 7.3 79 15.2 1.1 230.7
Business Finance 62.8 7.9 70.7 7.2 1,293.0
Retall Finance 468.5 22 70.7 14.5 658.4
Vehicle Finance 44.6 0.9 45.5 207 243.9
Debt Management 14.2 0.6 14.8 8.9 81.8
Consumer Mortgages 33 0.1 34 on 77.7
Consumer Finance 130.6 38 134.4 440 10618
Other 09 43 34 0.1 4.1
192.5 16.0 208.5 51.3 2,358.9

Interest expense and similar charges, fee and commission expense and operating expenses are not aligned to operating segments for
day-to-day management of the business, so they cannot be allacated on a reliable basis. Accordingly, profit by operating segment has

not been disclosed.

All of the Group's operations are conducted wholly within the United Kingdom and gecgraphical information is therefora

not presented.
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4. Operating income

All iterns below arise from financial instruments measured at amartised cost unless otherwise stated.

4.1 Net interest income

2021 2020

Emillion fmilion

Loans and advances to customers 182.0 193.8
Cash and balances at central banks 0.2 0.4
Debt securities - 0.1
182.2 1943

Expense on financial instruments hedging assets (2.2) {1.8)
Interest income and similar income 180.0 192.5

Depaosits from customers {27.3) (39.4)

Due to banks 0.3 0N

Subordinated liabilities (3.4 {3.4)

(31.0 (43.5)

Income on financial instruments hedging ligbilities 1.8 1.9

Interest expense and similar charges (29.2) (41.6)
Net interest income 150.8 150.9

Interest income and expense accounting policy

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, the effective interest rate method is used to measure the carrying
value and allocate interest income or expense. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to:

SIUBWBIRIG [BIDURULJ

* the gross carrying amaunt of the finandial asset; or

* the amortised cost of the financial liability.

In calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments, other than assets that were credit-impaired on initial recognition,
the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, early redemption penalty
charges and broker commissions) and anticipated customer behaviour, but does not consider future credit losses. For financial
assets that were impaired on initial recognition (also referred to as purchased or originated credit-impaired assets - ‘POCIY), a
credit adjusted effective interest rate is calculated using estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses.

The calcutation of the effective interest rate includes all fees received and paid that are an integral pant of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts. Transaction costs mclude incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition orissue of a financial instrument.

For financial assets that are not considered to be credit-impaired {'stage 1' and ‘stage 2’ assets), interest income is recognised

by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. For financizl assets that become credit-
impaired subsequent ta initial recognition {'stage 3’ assets), from the next reporting period onwards interest income is recognised
by apolying the effective interest rate to the amartised cost of the financial asset. The credit risk of financial assets that become
credit-impaired are not expected to improve such that they are no longer considered credit-impaired, however, if this were to
occur the calculation of interest income would revert back to the gross basis. The Group's definition of stage 1, stage 2 and stage 3
assets is set oul in Note 17.

For financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial recognition {POCI" assets), income is calculated by applying the credit
adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the asset. Collection activity costs are not included in the amortised cost
of the assets, but are included in operating expenses in the income statement, and are recognised as incurred, in common with
other businesses in the sector. For such financial assets the caleulation of interest income will never revert to a gross basis, even if
the credit risk of the asset improves.

Further details regarding when an asset becomes credit-impaired subsequent te initial recognition is provided within Note 17,
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4. Operating income continued

4.2 Net fee and commission income

2021 2020

frmillion frmillion

Fee and disbursement income 12.5 14.1
Commission income 1.2 1.3
Other income 0.6 0.6
Fee and commission income 14.3 16.0
Other expenses ] {0.6) {0.8)
Fee and commission expense - (0.6) {0.8)
Net fee and commission income 13.7 15.2

Fees and commission income is all recognised under IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts to customers and consists principally of
the following:

= Commercial Finance — discounting, service and arrangement fees.

* Retail Finance — principally comprises of account management fees received fram customers and referral fees received from
third parties. :

» Vehicle Finance — primarily relates to vehicle collection charges made to customers and loan administration fees charged to dealers
in respect of the Stocking Funding product.

s OneBill - weekly and monthly fees. The CneBill product is now closed.

Fee and commission expenses consist primarily of vehicle recovery fees payable recognised as incurred in respect of Vehicle Finance.

Net fee and commission income accounting policy

Fees and commission income that is not considered an integral part of the effective interest rate of a financial instrument are
recognised under IFRS 15 when the Group satisfies performance obligations by transferring promised services to customers and
presented in the income statement as fee and commission income.

Fees and commission income and expenses that are an integral part of the effective interest rate of a financial instrument are
included in the effective interest rate and presented in the income statement as interast income or expense.

No significant judgements are made in evaluating when a customer obtains control of promised goads or services.

5. Gains/(losses) on modification of financial assets

Although not included as an option within customer contracts, following regulatory guidance the Group offered payment holidays to
its Consumer Finance and Asset Finance custorners during 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic, which were not considered to be
substantial. This is considered under IFRS 9 as a modification to contractual cash flows, which requires the carrying value of these loans
to be adjusted to the net present value of future cash flows.

A small number of payment holidays were granted during 2021, resulting in no further loan modification losses being recognised.

The movement during the year in the net present value of the loans remaining to be unwound as a result of the modification was
as follows:

2021 ) 2021 2021 2020 2000 2000
Vehicle Finance Retail Finance Total Vehicle finance Retail Finance Total
£million £million fmillion . fmill'en Emillion £millian
Reduction in net present value

At 1 Janueary 2.5 0.6 3.1 - - -
{Credit)/charge to the income statement (1.1) 0.4 {(1.5) 25 0.6 3.1

Balance remaining to be unwound at
31 December ‘1.4 0.2 1.6 2.5 0.6 3.1
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5. Gains/{losses) on modification of financial assets continued

Of the loan modification loss remaining, £0.9 million {2020: £1.1 million) relates to financial assets with 2 loss allowance based on

lifetime ECL.
2021 2000
Financial assets (with loss allowance based on lifetime ECL) modified during the periad £rmillion fmillion
Gross loans and advances before modification - 527.2
Less: allowances for impairments on loans and advances - {55.6)
- 471.6
Loan madification loss - {0.9)
MNet amoertised cost after modification - 470.7

Modification of loans accounting policy

A customer’s account may be modified to assist customers who are in or have recently overcome financial difficuities and have
demonstrated both the ability and willingness 1o meet the current or madified loan contractual payments. Substantial loan
medifications result in the derecognition of the existing loan, and the recognition of a new loan at tha new crigination effective
interest rate based on the expected future cash flows at origination. Determination of the origination probability of default

('PD") for the new loan is required, based on the PD as at the date of the modification, which is used for the calculation of the
impairment provision against the new loan. Any deferred fees or deferred interest, and any difference between the fair value of the
derecognised loan and the new loan, is written off to the income statemeant on recognition of the new loan.

Where the modification is not considered to be substantial, neither the origination effective interest rate nor the origination
probability of default for the modified loan changes. The net present value of changes to the future contractual cash flows adjusts

the carrying amount of the original asset with the difference immediately being recognised in profit or loss. The adjusted carrying m
amount is then amortised over the remaining term of the modified loan using the original effective interest rate. §
el
2
6. Loss on disposal of loan books @
Both the Consumer Mortgages and Asset Finance loan books were sold in July 2021. The breakdown of the loss on disposal g
recognised in the income statement for the year is set out below. o
Consumer Asset
Mortgages Finance Total
£millian £millian £million
Consideration received 54.4 5.8 60.4
Carrying value of loan boeoks disposed {(54.5) (5.8) (62.4)
Income less disposal costs (1.2} 0.1 0.6
Loss on disposal of loan books {1.3) {0.1) 1.4)

7. Losses on derivatives and hedge accounting

As a part of its risk management strategy, the Group uses derivatives to economically hedge financial assets and liabilities. For further
information on the Group's risk management strategy for market risk refer to the Principal risks and uncertainties section of the Group's

Strategic Repaort on starting on page 26.

Hedge accounting is employed by the Group to minimise the accounting volatility associatad with the change in fair value of derivative
financial instruments. This volatility does not reflect the economic reality of the Group’s hedging strategy, the Group only uses

derivatives for the hedging of risks.

Hedge ineffectiveness recognised in losses from derivatives and hedge accounting in the income staterment is set aut below:

2021 2020
£million Ermillion

Fair value hedges
Fair value movement in period — Interest rate swaps 0.9 1.2
Fair value movement in period — Hedged itemn 0.8} {1.2)
0.1 -
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7. Losses on derivatives and hedge accounting continued

The gain recognised in other comprehensive income in the period is as follows:

2021 2020
£million £million

Cash flow hedges
Fair value movement in pericd - Interest rate swaps 0.4 -
Interest reclassified to the income statement in the period - -
0.4 -

Although the Group uses derivatives exclusively to hedge interest rate risk exposures, income statement volatility can still arise due
to hedge accounting ineffectiveness ar because hedge accounting is not achievable. Where such volatility arises it will trend back
to zero over time. All derivatives held by the Group have been highly effective in the period resulting in minimal hedge accounting
ineffectiveness recognised in the income statement. Future ineffectiveness may arise as a result of:

» differences between the expected and actual volume of prepayments, as the Group hedges to the expected repayrment date tak
into account expected prepayments based on past experience;

» hedging derivatives with a non-zero fair value at the date of initial designation; or
« differences in the timing of cash flows for the hedged item and the hedging instrument.

Mow fair value and cash flow hedge accounting affect the financial statements and the main sources of the residual hedge
ineffectiveness remaining in the income statement are set out below. Further information on the current derivative portfolio and the
allocation to hedge accounting types is included in Note 18.

Derivative financial instruments accounting policy

The Group enters into derivatives to manage exposures to fluctuations in interest rates. Derivatives are not used for speculative
purposes. Derivatives are carried at fair value with movements in fair value recognised in the income statement. Derivatives are
valued by discounted cash flow madels using yield curves based on overnight indexed swap {'OIS') rates. All derivatives are
carried as assets where fzir value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative. Derivatives are not offset in the financia!
statements unless the Group has both a legally enforceable right and intention to offset.

The Group does not hold contracts containing embedded derivatives.

Where cash collateral is received, to mitigate the risk inherent in the amounts due to the Group, it is included as a liability within
the due to banks line within the statement of financial position. Where cash collateral is given, to mitigate the risk inherent

in amounts due from the Group, it is included as an asset in the loans and advances to banks line within the statement of
financial position.

Hedge accounting

Following transition to IFRS 9, the Group has elected to apply 1AS 39 for all of its hedge accounting requirements.
When transactions meet specified criteria the Group can apply two types of hedge accounting:

¢ Hedges of the fair value of recaognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedges).

» Hedges of highly probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised asset or liability (cash flow hedges).
The Group does not have hedges of net investments.

At inception of a hedge, the Group formally documents the relationship between the hedged items and hedging instruments,
as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also decuments its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions
are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values of the hedged iterrs (i.e. the fair value offset between the hedged item and
hedging instrument is within the 80% —125% range).

When the Evropean Union adopted 1AS 39 in 2004, it removed certain hedge accounting requirements, commonly referred
to as the EU carve-cut. The relaxed requirements under the carve-out allow the Group to apply the ‘bottom up’ method
when caleulating macro-hedge ineffectiveness. This option is not allowed under full IFRS. The Group has applied the EU
carve-out accordingly.
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7. Losses on derivatives and hedge accounting continued

Fair value hedge accounting

Fair value hedge accounting results in the carrying value of the hedged item being adjusted tc reflect changes in fair value
attributable to the hedged risk, thereby offsetting the effect of the related movement in the fair valuc of the derivative.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives and hedged items that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the
incoime statement.

In & one-tc-one hedging relationship in which a single derivative hedges a single hedged item, the carrying value of the
underlying asset or liability (the hadged item) is adjustad for the hedged risk ta offset the fair value movermnent of the related
derivative. In the case of a portfolio hedge, an adjustment is included in the fair value adjustments for portfolio hedged risk line in
the statement of financial position to offset the fair value movements in the related derivative. The Group currently anly designates
portfolio hedges.

H the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is terminated, the cumulative fair value adjustment

to the carrying amount of a hedged item is amortised to the income staternent over the period to maturity of the previously
designated hedge relationship and recerded as net interest income. If the underlying item is sold or repaid, the unamortised fair
vzlue adjustment is immediately recognised in the income statement.

Cash flow hedge accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised
in other comprehensive income and presented in the cash flow hedge reserve in equity. Any ineffective portion of changes in

the fair value of the derivative is recognised immediately in the incorne statement. Amounts recognised in the cash flow hedge
reserve are subsequently reclassified to the income statement when the underlying asset or liability being hedged impacts the
income statement, for example when interest payments are recognised, and are recorded in the same income statement line in
which the income or expense associated with the related hedged item is reparted.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any curnulative
gain or loss existing In equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised in the periods when the hedged item affects the
income statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to cccur (for example, the recognised hedged itemn is
disposed of), the cumulative gain or loss previcusly recognised in other comprehensive income is immediately reclassified to the
income statement.

The cash flow hedge reserve represants the cumulative amount of gains and losses on hedging instruments deemed effective in
cash flow hedges. The cumulative deferred gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recagnised in profit or loss only when the
hedged transaction impacts the profit or loss, or is included directly in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the hedged non-
financial items (basis adjustment). As at 31 December 2020, the reserve balance was insignificant, and therefore is not disclased in
the staterent of financial position.

8. Operating expenses

Restatad
2021 2030
£million £rmillion

Employee costs, including those of Directors:
Wages and salaries 47.4 449
Social security costs ‘ 5.8 50
Pension costs 2.0 19
Share-based payment transactions 02 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {Note 27) - 1.3 1.4
Depreciation of lease right-pf-use assets (Note 22) 0.7 0.7
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 23} 15 20
Operating lease rentals 0.4 05
Other administrative expenses 438 362
Total operating expenses 104.0 92.6

As described in Note 3, operating expenses are not aligned to operating segments for day-to-day management of the business,
so they cannot be allocated on a reliable basis.
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8. Operating expenses continued

Post-retirement obligations accounting policy

The Group contributes to defined contribution schemes for the benefit of certain employees. The schemes are funded through
payments to insurance companies or trustee-administered funds at the contribution rates agreed with individual employees.
The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as an
employee benefit expense when they are due. There are no post-retirement benefits other than pensions.

Remuneration of the auditor and its associates, excluding VAT, was as follows:

2021 2020

£000 £000

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company's annual accounts 639 443
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for other services:

The audit of the Company's subsidiaries, pursuant to legislation 50 40

Other assurance services . 110 58

799 541

Other assurance services related to the Term Funding Scheme with additiona! incentives for SMEs addit, Interim independent review
report and profit certification {2020: Interim independent review report and profit certification).

9. Average number of employees

2021 2020
Number Mumbes
Directors 8 8
Management 279 254
Other 686 759
973 1,021
10. Income tax expense
Restated
2021 2020
£million fmillion
Current taxation
Corporation tax charge — current year 1.2 3.0
Corporation tax charge — adjustments in respect of prior years {0.5) (0.5)
10.7 25
Deferred taxation
Deferred tax charge — current year {0.7) 07
Deferred tax charge — adjustments in respect of prior years 04 0.5
0.3 1.2
Income tax expense 10.4 3.7
Tax reconciliation _
Profit before tax 56.0 161
Tax at 19.00% {2020: 19.00%) 10.6 34
Banking surcharge 1.4 -
Rate change on deferred tax assets (1.5) 0.1
Prior period adjustments ' on -
Other - 0.2
Income tax expense for the year . 10.4 3.7
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10. Income tax expense continued
The 2020 tax charge has been restated for the Sza$ prior year adjustment. See Nate 1.3 for further details.

The Government legislated on 10 June 2021 tc increase the main Corporation Tax rate to 25% from 1 April 2023. The Group is also
subject to an 8% surcharge on the profits of banking companies in excess of £25 million. The Government is proposing to raduce the
banking surcharge to 3% on bank tax profits in excess of £100 million with effect from 1 April 2023. The Finance Bill containing these
changes was substantively enacted on 2 February 2022,

Deferred tax is based on the combined effect of Corporation Tex and banking surcharge as enacted at the balance sheet date and
therefore the proposed banking surcharge change has not been reflected in the revised forecast tax rates used in these financial
statements. The main compaonent of the deferred tax asset is deferred tax an the IFRS 9 transition adjustment, which reverses on a
straight-line basis over 10 years commencing in 2018. The raduction in the dlosing deferred tax asset from applying the draft legislation
is not expected to be material.

Income taxation accounting policy

Current income tax which is payable on taxable profits is recognised as an expense in the period in which the profits arise.
Deferred tax is provided in full cn temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or

substantially enacted by the statement of financial position date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

11. Earnings per ordinary share
11.1 Basic
Basic earnings per ordinary share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares as foflows: ﬂ%:
Restated é-

2021 w0

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (fmillion) 45.6 15.4 g
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (number) 18,637,444 18,615,480 %
Earnings per share (pence) 2447 82.7 ®

11.2 Diluted

Diluted earnings per ordinary share are calculated by dividing the prcfit attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as noted above, as well as the number of dilutive share options in issue
during the year, as follows:

Restated

2021 2020

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 18,637,444 18,615,480

Number of dilutive shares in issue at the year-end 407,729 399,713

Fully diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares 19,045,173 19,015,193
Dilutive shares being based on:

Number of options outstanding at the year-end 949,193 789,854

Weighted average exercise.price {hence) 370 477

Average share price during the period (pence) 1,103 1,238

Diluted earnings per share {pence) 2394 81.0
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12. Dividends

2021 2020

£000 £000

2020 final dividend — 44.0 pence per share (paid May 2021) 8.2 _
2021 interim dividend — 20.0 pence per share (paid September 2021) 37 -
11.9 -

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 41.1 pence per share (2020: 44.0 pence per share). The final dividend, if
approved by members at the Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 19 May 2022 with an associated record date of 22 April 2022,

Dividends accounting policy

Final dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are approved by shareholders.
Interim dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are paid.

13. Leans and advances to banks

Maody's long-term ratings are as follows:

Group Group Company Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

£million £rrillion Fmillian fmillion

Al - A3 45.2 58.2 42.3 56.6
Arbuthnot Latham & Co. Limited — No rating 5.1 5.1 5.1 5.1
50.3 63.3 47.4 61.7

None of the loans and advances to banks are either past due or mpaired.

Loans and advances to banks includes restricted cash of £6.3 million (2020: £11.7 millicn). See Note 36.7 for & reconciliation to cash and
cash equivalents. :

14. Debt securities

Group and Company

Debt securities of £25.0 million {(2020: £nil) consist solely of sterling UK Government Treasury Bills (T-Bills"). The Group’s intention is to
hold the asset to collect its contractual cash flows of principal and interest and, therefore, they are stated in the statement of financial
position at amortised cost. The number of T-Bills held increased to £25.0 million over the year, from £nil as at 31 December 2020 which
was temporarily required to be utilised as collateral against the Term Funding Scheme with additional incentives for SMEs,

All of the debt securities had a rating agency designation, based on Moody's long-term ratings of Aa3 (2020: Aa2). None of the debt
securities were either past due or impaired.

The accounting policy for debt securities is included in Note 1.5 Financial assets and financial liabilities accounting policy.

15. Loans and advances to customers

Group Group Company .« Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

fmillion fmillion Frillion frrillion

Gross loans and advances 2,598.1 2,441.6 2.511.2 2,349.7
Less: allowances for impairment of loans and advances {Note 17) (47.5) 82.7) {60.%) (79.9)

2,530.%6 2,358.9 2,450.3 2,269.8

The fair value of loans and advances to customers is shown in Note 42,
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15. Loans and advances to customers continued
Group and Company

At 31 December 2021 Retail Finance loans included in leans and advances to customers of £579.9 million {2020: £498.4 million) were
pre-positioned under the Bank of England’s liquidity support operations and Term Funding Scheme with additional incentives for

SMEs, and were available for use as collateral within the schemes.

The following loans are secured upon real estate:

2021 2024 2020 2020

Loan balance Loan-to-value Loan oalance Loan-to-value

£million Y £million %

Real Estate Finance 1,109.6 56% 1,051.9 56%

" Consumer Mortgages | - - 777 51%
1,109.6 1,129.6

Under its credit palicy, the Real Estate Finance business lends to a maximum loan-to-value of 70% for investment loans and 60% for
residential development loans and up to 65% for pre-let commercial development leans (based on gross development value).

All property valuations at loan inception, and the majority of development stage valuations, are performed by independent Chartered
Surveyors, who perform their work in accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Valuation — Professional Standards.

Group

£3.5 million of cash collateral has been received as at 31 December 2021 in respect of certain loans and advances (2020; £3.7 million).

The accounting policy for loans and advances to customers is included in Note 1.5 Financial assets and financial liabilities

accounting policy.

-
3
16. Finance lease receivables 2
Loans and advances to customers include finance lease receivables as foliows: :_?
Group Group Company Company §
2021 2020 2021 XN g
fmillion £million Emillion freillion 3
Gross investment in finance |ease receivables: 7
- Not more than one year 1371 143.9 1359 141.5
— Later than one year and no later than five years 2532 239.0 2529 2376
3%0.3 3829 388.8 379.1
Unearned future finance income on finance leases {105.7) {(103.3) {105.5) {102.6)
Net investment in finance leases 284.6 279.6 283.3 276.5
The net investment in finance leases may be analysed as follows:
— Not more than one year 875 93.2 865 1.3
— Later than one year and no {ater than five years 197.1 © 1864 196.8 185.2
284.6 279.6 283.3 276.5

Finance lease receivables include Vehicle Finance to consumers, Asset Finance and the RentSmart loan book.

Lessor accounting policy

The present value of tha lease paymenis cn assets leased to customers under agreements which transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership, with or without ultimate legal title, are recognised as a receivable. The difference between the gross
receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income. Lease income is recognised over the
term of the lease using the net investment method, which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.
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17. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances

Group
Not creditimpaired Credit-impsired
Stage 1 Stage 2: Stage 3:
125::::?5&?. ||f§:|;nh’:céét Irf::?r{:cégl’. Total provision Gms:el::i:isﬂg Pravision cover
£million £million £million £million £million b
31 December 2021
Business Finance:
Real Estate Finance 0.1 04 2.7 3.2 11128 0.3%
Commercial Finance 0.5 0.1 0.5 1.1 314.4 0.3%
Consumer Finance:
Retail Finance 100 7.4 4.1 21.7 7865 2.8%
Vehicle Finance:
Voluntary termination provision 42 - - 42
(Other impairment 37 1.2 14.4 30.0 J
7.9 11.9 14.4 34.2 297.5 11.5%
Debt Management - - 73 73 86.9 8.4%
185 20.0 29.0 67.5 2,598.1 2.6%

Not cred =mpaired

Credit-'mpaired

S:age 1: Stage 2: Stage 3
enEeL  WameER WensROL  Tomloovson . isconsiies  Frovsion cover
Emillion £million £mllion £mTlion _fmillon %
31 December 2020
Business Finance:
Real Estate Finance 1.4 2.7 13 5.4 1,057.3 0.5%
Asset Finance 0.6 0.1 1.3 20 12.4 16.1%
Commercial Finance 0.7 05 0.1 1.3 2320 0.6%
Consumer Finance:
Retail Finance 132 79 35 246 6830 3.6%
Vehicle Finance:
Voluntary termination provision 4.8 - - 48
LDther impairment 6.2 16.0 15.2 374
1.0 16.0 15.2 422 28461 14.8%
Debt Management - - 7.0 7.0 88.8 7.9%
Consumer Moartgages 02 - - 0.2 779 0.3%
Other - - - - 4.1 0.0%
27.1 27.2 28.4 82.7 2,441.6 3.4%
The impairmeant charge disclosed in the income statement can be analysed as follows:
2021 2020
£million £million
Expected credit losses: impairment charge 49 50.3
Charge in respect of off balance sheet loan commitments 0.2) 0.7
Loans written off, net of amounts utilised - 0.6
Recoveries of loans written off 0.2) {0.3)
45 51.3
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17. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances continued

Total provisions above include expert credit judgements as follows:

2021 2020

Emillian £million

Specific overlays held against credit-impaired secured assets held within the Business Finance portfolio (0.4) (3.4)
Management judgement in respect of.

Consumer Finance affordability ] 4.4 -

Vehicle Finance used car valuations 7 1.5 0.7

Uncertainty over the future impact of the COVID-1% pandemic 0.4 35

POCI adjustment {see below) 73 6.7

Other {0.1) 0.7

Expert credit judgements over the IFRS 9 model results 13.3 8.2

The specific overlays for Business Finance have been estimated on an individual basis by assessing the receverability and condition of
the secured asset, aloeng with any other recoveries that may be made.

For further details on Consumer Finance affordability and Vehicle Finance used car valuations, see Notes 17.1.2. and 17.1.5 respectively.

POCI adjustment

The Group’s debt management business purchases credit-impaired loans from the Company and ather unrelated third parties.
Under IFRS 9, these are classified as Purchased and Originated Credit-Impaired (POCY) loans. As a practical expedient, income on
POC loans is initially recognised by applying the original eredit-adjusted EIR to the expected future cash flows arising from the POCI
assets. The Group's accounting policy is 1o recognise POC income by applying the original credit-adjusted EIR to the amortised cost
of the assets. Expected changes in cash flows since the date of purchase are recognised as an impairment gain or loss in the income
statement. At the year end, reductions in credit guality resulted in a £7.3 milfion (2020: £6.7 million) impairment provision.

Reconciliations of the opening to cosing allowance for impairment of loans and advances are presented below:

Not credit-impaired Creditdimpaired

Stage 1: Stage 2: Stage 3;
IzmenhECL  lfeiatCh  Wetime £CL Total
£million emillian £millian £millian
At 1 January 2021 27 27.3 28.3 82.7

{Decrease)/increase due to change in credit risk

— Transfer to stage 2 {(5.3) 271 (0.2} 21.6
— Transfer to stage 3 {0.1) (15.7) 2046 4.8
— Transfer to stage 1 2.9 5.3 - (2.4
Passage of time (10.9 6.7 (3.00 (20.6)
New loans originated 18.2 - - 18.2
Matured and derecognised loans , 4.1 4.0 - (8.2)
Changes to model methadology {0.1) 0.2) 09 0.6
Changes to credit risk parameters {8.0) (2.3) 0.7 (9.6)
Other adjustments 0.5 - - 0.5
Charge to income statement {69 (7.2) 19.0 49
Allowance utilised in respect of write-offs {1.7) 0.1 {18.3) (20.1)
31 December 2021 18.5 20.0 29.0 67.5

During the year £1.6 million was utilised in respect of the Asset Finance and Consumer Mortgage book sales.
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17. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances continued

Not cradit-impairad

Creditimpaired

Stage 1: Stage 2: Stage 3
e E letme  liemeter Toto

£millian frmillion fmillion £mllion
At 1 January 2020 216 244 149 0.6
(Decrease)/increase due to change in credit risk
— Transfer to stage 2 (5.4 338 - 284
— Transfer to stage 3 - (20.7) 283 7.6
—~ Transfer to stage 1 3.1 (5.5) - (3.5
Passage of time {(10.9) {10.5) 37 (17.7)
New loans originated 1.9 - - 1.9
Matured and derecognised loans {2.5) (2.9 - (5.4)
Changes to credit risk parameters 1.4 10.1 7.4 289
Other adjustrments 0 - - 0.1
Charge to income statement 7.7 32 394 50.3
Allowance utilised in respect of write-offs {2.2) - {26.0) (28.2)
31 December 2020 271 27.3 28.3 82.7

The tables above have been prepared based on menthly movements in the ECL.

Passage of time represents the impact of accounts maturing through their contractual life and the associated reduction in PDs.
For stage 3 assets it represents the unwind of the discount appiied in calculating the ECL,

Changes to model methodology represent movements that have occurred due to enhancements made to the models during the year.

Changes to credit risk parameters represent movemnents that have occurred due te the Group updating model inputs. This would
include the impact of, for example, updating the macroeconomic scenarios applied to the models.

Other adjustments represents the movement in the Vehicle Finance voluntary termination provision,

Stage 1 write-offs arise on Vehicle Finance accounts where borrowers have exercised their right ta voluntarily terminate their agreements.

A braakdown of the gross receivable by internal credit risk rating is shown below:

2021 2020
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
fmillion £miltion £million £millian fmillion £million £million Emillian
Business Finance:
Strong 107.6 - - 107.6 521.8 269 104 559.1
Good 915.8 266 - 942.4 156.2 138.3 - 294.5
Satisfactory 179.7 138.2 52 3234 3910 14.4 0.1 405.5
Weak ' - 14.1 40.0 54.1 45 228 15.3 42.6
1,203.1 178.9 45.2 1,427.2 1,073.5 202.4 25.8 1,301.7
Consumer Finance:
Good 360.3 957 53 467.3 2882 76.8 5.5 370.5
Satisfactory 3385 433 7.7 408.9 3020 55.4 7.4 364.8
Weak 167.6 348 114 2138 1726 477 135 2338
Consumer Mortgages - - - - 779 - - 779
Debt Management - - 86.9 86.9 - - 838 888
866.4 1923.8 110.7 1,170.9 840.7 179.9 115.2 1,135.8

Intemal credit risk rating is based an the most recent credit risk score of & customer.

During 2021 the credit rating methodclogy for Real Estate Finance was updated. As a result the year on year change is not

directly comparable.
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17. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances continued

Company
Not credit-impaired Credit-impaired
Stage 1: Stage 2: Stage 3:
R iimeR e RCL  Totslprosion  secchvables  Pravision cover
£million £million £million £million £million %
31 December 2021
Business Finance:
Real Estate Finance 0.1 0.4 27 32 1,112.8 0.3%
Commercial Finance 0.5 0.1 0.5 11 314.4 0.3%
Consumer Finance:
Retail Finance 10.1 7.7 4.1 21.9 784.5 2.8%
Vehicle Finance:
Voluntary termination provision 4.2 - - 4.2
Other impairment 37 12.1 14.7 30.5
79 12.1 14.7 347 2975 11.7%
18.6 20.3 22.0 60.9 2,511.2 2.4%
Mot credit-impaired Cred'-impaired
By o i Bt Gross loans end
S oo oo i o v
31 December 2020 é
Business Finance: §
Real Estate Finance 14 2.7 13 54 1,057.3 05% 3
Asset Finance 0.6 0.1 13 2.0 12.4 16.1% 2
Commercial Finance : 07 05 0.1 13 232.0 0.6%
Consumer Finance:
Retail Finance 13.8 8.2 3.6 25.6 683.0 3.7%
Vehicle Finance:
Voluntary termination provision 48 - - 48
Other impairment &6 17.4 16.6 40.6
1.4 174 16.6 45.4 2866 15.8%
Consumer Mortgages 0.2 - - 0.2 779 0.3%
Other - - - - 05 0.0%
281 28.9 22.9 79.9 2,349.7 3.4%

Total provisions above include expert credit judgements of £6.0 million (2020: £1.2 millian), being the same as Group but excluding the
PCCIl adjustment.
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17. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances continued

Reconciliations of the opening to clasing allowance for impairment of loans and advances are presented below:

Not credit-impairad

Credit-impaired

bt Siae S
12-month ECL lifetime ECL iifetime ECL Tatal
£million Fmillion f£million £million
At 1 January 2021 28.2 2920 227 79.9
{Decrease)/increase due to change in credit risk
— Transfer to stage 2 (5.6) 2846 0.2) 228
—~Transfer to stage 3 0.1) (16.5) 215 4.9
— Transfer to stage 1 3.1 {(5.6) - (2.5)
Passage of time (12.5) (8.2) 4.7 (25.4)
New loans originated 19.1 - - 19.1
Mature and derecognised loans 4.3 4.4 - 8.7
Changes to model methodelogy {0.1) 0.2} 0% 0.6
Changes to credit risk parameters 8.0) (2.3} 04 2.9)
Other adjustments L 0.5 - on 04
Charge to income statement 7.9 8.4) 17.8 1.3
Allowance utilised in respect of write-offs (1.7 (o)) [18.5) (20.3)
31 December 2021 18.6 20.3 22.0 60.9
Not eredit-impaired Credit-impaired
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage ¥
P A A O e Tetal
£rmillion £million Emillior: gmillion
At 1 January 2020 228 269 19.0 687
(Decrease)/increase due to change in credit risk
— Transfer to stage 2 (5.7) 36.2 — 305
— Transfer to stage 3 - (22.5) 305 8.0
— Transfer to stage 1 3.2 {6.5) - (3.3)
Passage of time {11.3) {12.0) 1.2 (22.1)
New loans originated 12.6 - - 12.6
Matured and derecognised loans 2.7 3.2 - (5.9
Changes to model methodology - - - -
Changes to credit risk parameters 1.4 10.1 1.7 19.8
Other adjustments 0.1 - - 01
Charge to income statement 746 2.1 300 397
Allowance utilised in respect of write-offs (2.2) - {(26.3) (28.5)
31 December 2020 28.2 29.0 22.7 79.9

The tables above have been prepared based on manthly mavements in the ECL. Stage 1 write-offs arise on Vehicle Finance accounts

that have exercised their right to voluntarily terminate their agreements.

Passage of time represent the impact of accounts maturing through their contractual life and the associated reduction in PDs.

For stage 3 assets it represents the unwind of the discount applied in calculating the ECL.

Changes to model methodology represent movements that have occurred due to enhancements made to the models during the year.
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17. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances continued

Changes to credit risk parameters represent maovements that have occurred due to the Group updating madel inputs. This would
include the impact of, for example, updating the macroeconomic scenarios applied to the models.

Other adjustments represents the movement in the Vehicle Finance voluntary termination provision.
Stage 1 write-offs arise on Vehicle Finance accounts that have exercised their right to voluntarily terminate their agreements.

Impairment of financial assets and loan commitments accounting policy

The Group recagnises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on all financial assets carried at amortised cost,
including lease receivables and loan commitments.

Stage 1 assets

Credit loss allowances are measured as an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following assets, for which they are
measured as 12-month ECL:

 Financial assets determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
* Financial assets which have not experienced a significant increase in credit risk since their initial recognition.

* Financial assets which have experienced a significant increase in credit risk since their initial recagnition but have subsequently
met the Group’s cure policy, as set out below.

A low credit risk asset is considered to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent to the widely understood
definition of ‘investment grade’ assets. The Group has assessed all its debt securities, which represents UK Treasury bills, and loans
held in STB Leasing Limited, for which credit risk is retained by its partner RentSmart, to be low credit risk.

Stage 2 assets

Assets which have experienced a significant increase in credit risk sinca their initial recognition and have not subsequently met the
Group's cure policy are classified as stage 2 assets and are reclassified from stage 1, for which lass allowances are measured at an
armount equal to 12-month ECL, to stage 2, for which ECL is measured as lifetime ECL.

The Group's definitions of a significant increase in credit risk and default are set out below.

For Consumer Finance, the credit risk of a financial asset is‘considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition where there has been a significant increase in the remaining lifetime probability of default of the asset.
The Group may alsa use its expert credit judgement and where possible relevant historical and current performance data,
including bureau data, to determine that an exposure has undergone a significant increase in credit risk.

SUBLLIBIEIG (rIDUBLY

For Business Finance, the credit risk of a financial asset is considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk where
certain early warning indicators apply. These indicatars may include notification of county court judgements or, specifically for the
Real Estete Finance portfolio, cost over-runs and timing delays experienced by borrowers.

As a backstop, the Group considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs no later than when an asset is more than 30 days
past due for all portfolios.

Stage 3 assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired or defaulted
{stage 3). A financial asset is considered to be credit-impaired when an event or events that have a detrimental impact on
estimated future cash flows have occurred, or have other specific unlikeliness to pay indicators. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

* Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings,

» Notification of bereavement.

« |dentification of loan meeting debt sale criteria.

* Initiation of repossession proceedings.

e A material covenant breach that has remained unremedied for mere than 90 days.

In addition, a loan that is 90 days or mare past due is considered credit-impaired for all portfolios. The credit risk of financial assets
that become credit-impaired are not expected to improve so they remain credit-impaired.

For Commercial Finance facilities that do not have a fixed term or repayment structure, evidence that a financial asset is
creditimpaired includes:

s the client ceasing to trade; or

» unpaid debtor balances that are dated at least six maonths past their narmal recourse pericd.
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17. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances continued

Cure policy

The credit risk of a financizl asset may improve such that it is no longer considered to have experiencad a significant increase in
cradit risk if it meets the Group's cure policy. The Group's cure palicy for all portfalios requires sufficient payments to be made to
bring an account back within less than 30 days past due and for such payments to be maintained for six consecutive menths.

The Group has determined stage 3 to be an absorbing state. Once a loari is in default it is not therefore expected to cure back to
stage 1 or 2.

Calculation of expected credit loss

ECL are probahility weighted estimates of credit losses which are measured as the present value of all cash shorifalls. Specifically,
this is the difference between the contractual cash flows due and the cash flows expected to be received, discounted at the
original effective interest rate o, for portfolios purchased outside of the Group by Debt Managers {Services) Limited, the-credit
adjusted effective interest rate. For undrawn loan commitments ECL is measured as the difference between the contractual cash
flows due if the commitment is drawn and the cash flows expected to be received,

Lifetime ECL is the ECL that results from all possible default events over the expected iife of a financial asset.

12-month ECL is the portion of lifetime ECL that results from default events on a financial asset that zre possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

ECL are calculated by multiplying three main compenents: the probability of default (PD), exposure at default and loss given
default {LGD") discounted at the original effective interest rate of an asset. These variables are derived from internally developed
statistical models and historical data, adjusted to reflect forward-ooking information and are discussed in turn further below.
Management adjustments are rmade to modelled cutput to account for situations where known or expected risk factors have not
been considered in the modelling process.

Probability of default {'PD’} and credit risk grades

Credit risk grades are a primary input into the determination of the PD for exposures. The Group allocates each exposure to

a credit risk grade at origination and at each reporting peried to predict the risk of default. Credit risk grades are determined
using qualitative and quantitative factors that are indicative of the risk of default e.q. arrears status and loan applications scores.
These factors vary for each loan portfolio. Exposures are subject to engoeing monitoring, which may result in an exposure being
moved to a different credit risk grade. In monitoring exposures information such as payment records, request for forbearance
strategies and forecast changes in economic conditions are considered for Consumer Finance. Additionally, for Business Finance
portfolios information obtained during periodic client reviews, for example audited financieal statements, management accounts,
budgets and projections are considered, with particular focus on key ratios, compliance with covenants and changes in senior
management teams.

Excgenaous, Maturity, Vintage modelling is used in the production of forward-looking lifetime PDs, This method entails modelling
the effects of external (exogenous) factors against cohorts of lending and their time on the books creating a clean relationship to
best demonstrate the movement in default rates as macroeconomic variables are changed. These models are extrapolated to
provide PD estimates for the future, based on forecasted economic scenarios.

Exposure at default (EAD’)

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. EAD is derived from the current exposure and potential changes
to the current amount allowed under the terms of the contract, including amortisation overpayments and early terminations.

The EAD of a financial asset is its gross carrying amount. For loan commitments the EAD includes the amount drawn as well as
potential future amounts that may be drawn under the terms of the contract, estimated based on historical observations and
torward-looking farecasts.

For Commercial Finance facilities that have no specific term, an assumption is made that accounts close 36 months after the
reporting date for the purposes of measuring lifetime ECL. This assumption is based on industry experience of average client Ife.
These facilities do not have a fixed term or repayment structure but are revolving and increase or decrease to reflect the value of
the collateral i.e. receivables or inventory. The Group can cancel the facilities with immediate effect, although this contractual right
is not enfarced in the normal day-to-day management of the facility. Typically, demand would only be made an the failure of a
client business or in the event of a material event of default, such as a fraud. In the normal course of avents, the Group's exposure
is recovered through receipt of remittances from the client’s debtors rather than from the client itself.

The ECL for such facilities is estimated taking into account the credit risk management actions that the Greup expects to take to
mitigate against losses. These include a reduction in advance rate and facility limits or application of reserves against a facility to
improve the likelihood of full recovery of exposure from the debtors.
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17. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances continued

Alternative recovery routes mitigating ECL would include refinancing by ancther funding provider, taking security over other asset
classes or secured personal guarantees from the client’s principals.

Loss given default {('1.GD")

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss in the event of default. This takes into account recoveries either through curing or, where
applicable, through auction sale of repossessed collateral and debt sale of the residual shortfall amount. For leans secured by
retail property, loan-to-value ratios are key parameters in determining LGD. LGDs are calculated on a discounted cash flow basis
using the financial instrument’s origination effective interest rate as the discount factor.

Incorporation of forward-looking data

The Group incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition and its measurement of expected credit loss. This is achieved by developing &
number of potential economic scenarios and modelling expected credit losses for each scenario. To ensure material non-linear
relationships between aconomic factors and credit losses are reflected in the caleulation of ECL, a severa stress scenario is used as
one of these scenarios. The outputs from each scenario are combined using the estimated likslihood of each scenario cccurring
to derive a probability weighted expected credit loss. The four scenarios adopted and probability weighting applied are set

out below.

The Group has considered which economic variables impact credit risk and credit losses. The key drivers of credit risk and credit
{osses included in the macroeconamic scenarios for all portfolios, with the exception of Real Estate Finance, have been identified
as annual unemployment rate growth and annual house price index growth. For the Real Estate Finance portfolio the key drivers
have been identified as unemployment rate growth and the annual house price index growth. Base case assumptions applied
for each of these variables have been sourced from external consensus or Bank of England foracasts. Further details of the
assumptions applied to other scenarios are presented below.

Expert credit judgements
Where the FCL model output does not reflect the level of credit nisk, jJudgement is used to calculate expert credit judgements.

Presentation of loss allowance
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the staternent of financial position as follows with the loss recagnised in the
income statement:

* Financial assets measured at amortised cost: 2 a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

SIUBWSIELS [BIDURU:

» Other loan commitments: generally, as a provision.

For the Real Estate Finance and Commercial Finance portfolios, where a loan facility is agreed that includes both drawn and
undrawn elements and the Group cannct identify the ECL on the loan commitment separately, a combined loss allowance for
bath drawn and undrawn components of the loan is presented as & deduction from the gross carrying ameunt of the drawn
component, with any excess of the loss allowance.over the gross drawn amount presented as a provision.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related ECL allowance. Such loans are written off after all necessary
procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.

Vehicle Finance voluntary termination provision

In addition te recognising allowances for ECLs, the Group helds a provision for voluntary terminations {'VT") for all Vehicle Finance
financial essets. VT is a legal right provided to customers wha take out hire purchase agreements. The provision is calculated by
multiplying the probability of VT of an asset by the expected shortfall on VT discounted back at the original effective interest rate
of the asset. VT allowances are not held against loans in default {stage 3 loans).

The VT provision is presented in the staterment of financizl pesition as 2 deduction from the gross carrying amount of Vehicle
Finance assets with the loss recognised in the income statement.

Wirite off

Loans and advances to customers are written off partially or in full when the Group has exhausted all viable recovery options.
The majority of write-offs arise from Debt Relief Orders, insolvencies, IVAs, deceased customers where there is no estate and
vulnerable customers in certain circumstances. Amounts subsequently recavered on assets previously written off are recognised
in the impairment charge in the income statement.

Intercompany receivables

The parent company’s expected credit loss on amounts due from related companies, calculated by applying probebility of default
and loss given default 1o the amount ocutslanding at the year-end, was not material at 31 December 2021 or 31 December 2020.
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17. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances continued

17.1. Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Estimations which could have @ material impact on the Group's financial resultsand are therefore considered to be key sources of
estimation uncertainty all relate to the impairment charge on loans and advances to customers and are therefore set out balow.

The continuing potential impact of COVID-19 on the macroeconomic environment has been considerad in determining
reasonably possible changes in key sources of estimation uncertainty which may occur in the next 12 manths.

The impairment charge comprises of two principal elements:

* modelled expect credit losses (ECLs"), and
* expert credit judgements, which are overlaid onto the output from the models.

As discussed above modelled ECLs are calculated by multiplying three main components; the probability of default {PD),
exposure at default and loss given default (LGD'), These variables are derived from internally developed statistical medels and
historical data, adjusted to reflect forward-locking information.

Exogencus, Maturity, Vintage maodelling is used in the production of-forward-locking lifetime PDs in the calcufation of ECLs. As the
Group's performance data does not go back far enough to capture a full economic cycle, the proxy series of the quarterly rates of
write offs for UK unsecured lending data is used to build an economic response made! to incorporate the effects of recessicn.

The Group's policy for the determination of LGD is outlined above.
The determination of both the PD and LGD require estimation which is discussed further below.

17.1.1. Estimation of PDs

Sensitivity to reasonably possible changes in PD could potentially result in material changes in the ECL allowance for Vehicle
Finance and Retail Finance.

A 15% change in the PD for Vehicle Finance would immediately impact the ECL allowance by £2.3 million {2020: a 10% change
impacted the ECL allowance by £2.2 million).

A 30% change in the PD for Retail Finance would immediately impact the ECL allowance by £4.6 million (2020: 2 20% change
impacted the ECL allowance by £5.0 million).

During the year, there was a 14% (2020: 3%) change in PD for Vehicle Finance, and a 27% (2020: 209%) change in PD for
~ Retail Finance. )

Due to the relatively low levels of provisions on the Business Finance books, sensitivity to reasonably possible changes in PD are
not considered material.

17.1.2. Consumer Finance customer affordability

A new PD judgement has alsc been applied at the year end to reflect the heightened risk of lower customer affordability in the
Censumer businesses due to the increased cost of living. A 15% uplift has been applied to the ECL on loans identified as most
likely to be impacted by increases in cost of living, which impacts the ECL by £4.4 million. If the uplift factor was increased to 20%,
the ECL would be impacted by a further £0.9 million.

17.1.3. Vehicle Finance cure rates

Where loans are in stage 3 and return to less than 90 days past due, expected future cure rates are an element of the PD
caleulation. Cure rates are currently above the assumption used in the model of 6.3%, but management are expecting that
cure rates will return to their pre-COVID-19 pandemic levels. An increase in the cure rate to 12% would decrease the ECL by
£2.0 million.

17.1.4. Vehicle Finance recovery rates

With the exception of the Veehicle Finance portfolio, the sensitivity of the ECL allowance to reasanably possible changes in the
LGD is not considered material. The Vehicle Finance portfolio is particularly sensitive to changes in LGD due to the range of
outcomes which could crystallise depending on whether the Group is able to recover the vehicle as security. For the Vehicle
Finance portfolio a 20% change in the LGD is considered reasonably possible due to delays in the vehicle collection process.
A 20% reduction in the vehicle recovery rate assurnption element of the LGD for Vehicle Finance would increase the ECL by
£2.0 million {2020: £1.9 million). During the year, there was a 0% (2020: 16%) change in the vehicle recovery rate assumption.
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17. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances' continued

17.1.5. Vehicle Finance used car values

Since the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, we have cbserved an increase in used car prices of 32%. This increase in used
car prices has been incorporated into the modelled LGD reducing the ECL provision by £3.0m (2020: £0.7 million), however,
the Directors believe that only 12% of the increase in used car prices will be permanent and have applied an overlay for lower
recoveries with an increased provision of £1.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: £0.7 million).

17.1.6. LGD on Real Estate Finance loans in stage 3

The ECL on Real Estate Finance loans in stage 3 is calculated using a probability weighted expected outcome for each loan, with
the scenarios ranging from best case to downside casa{s) to worst case. If the base cases were removed, with a corresponding
increase in downside case(s) and no movement in worst case, which management cansiders to be a reasonably possible outcome,
the ECL would increase by £2.2 million. The average actual weighting given to the base cases at December 2027 was 62.5%.

17.1.7. Incorporation of forward-looking data

The Group incorporates forward-locking information into both its assessment of whether the creditrisk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition and its measurement of expected credit loss by developing a number of potential
economic scenarios and modelling expected credit losses for each scenario. Further detail on this process is provided above.

The macroeconomic scenarios used were internally developed, having regard to externally published scenarios. The scenarios and
weightings applied are summarised below:

UK Unemployment Rate — Annual Aversge UK HFf - movement from December 2021
I Weightings 2022 2023 2024 5 ¥ Average 2022 2028 2024 5 Yr Average
December 2021 ‘
Upside 20% 41 4.0 4.0 40 08 39 8.1 83 g
Base 50% 49 44 4.2 43 1.0 1.9 39 49 g
Downside 25% 5.7 5.6 48 49 (3.0 1.9 2.1 2.7 %
Severe 5% &8 8.3 6.8 6.3 {10.7 {11.2) 7.2) 6.2) <
®
&
UK Unemployment Rate - Aanual Average UK HF| - movement fram Decsmber 2020
2021 2022 2023 5Yr Average 201 2002 2023 5YrAverage
Scenario Weightrgs % % % % % % % %
December 2020
Upside 20% 59 5% 52 ’ 5.1 {2.2) 2.9 1.9 3.7
Base 45% 75 8.2 7.0 6.6 (4.1} 7.4 {2.8) (0.3
Downside 25% 7.7 8.4 7.2 6.7 (4.4 7.0y {2.2) 0.0)
Severe 10% 84 101 8.3 7.5 (16.4) (24.4) {20.4) (16.3)
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17. Allowances for impairment of loans and advances continued

The sensitivity of the ECL allowance to reasonably possible changes in macroeconomic scenario weighting is presented below:

Increase in downsids case Incresse in severe stress case

weighting by 108 and reduction in weighting by 5% and reduction in

upside case base case

2021 2020 2021 2020

fmillion fmilion £millian fmillion

Vehicle Finance 0.2 04 0.2 0.2
Retail Finance 0.3 05 0.2 0.2

The sensitivity is immaterial for other lending products.

The Group recognised an impairment charge of £4.5 million (2020: £51.3 million). Were each of the macraeconomic scenarios to
be applied 100%, rather than using the weightings set out above, the increase/{decrease] on ECL provisions would be as foflows:

Vehicle Finance Retail Finance Business Finance Total Group

2021 2021 2021 2021

Scenario £million £millian £million £million
Upside (1.2 (2.0) (2.5) 5.7
Base 0.4) 0.4) (1.9 2.1
Downside 1.0 1.5 0.5 30
Severe 33 4.6 8.4 16.3
Veh cle Finance Retail Finange  Business Finarce Tatal Group

2020 2020 2020 . 2020

Scenaric frnillion fmillion Ermillion £illion
Upside ‘ (3.0) {3.8) 2.m 8.9
Base 0.1 0.1 0.4 0.6
Downside : 1.0 1.2 - 2.2
Severe 3.2 4.1 8.4 157

17.1.8. Debt Management forecast collections on POCI debt

A +/-8.0% change in Debt Management forecast collections, which the Directors consider to be a reasonable possible change,
would increase or decrease loans and advances to customers by £6.4 million (2020: £6.5 million) respectively, resulting in a
corresponding £6.4 million (202C: £6.5 million) increase or decrease in profit or loss.

17.1.9. Climate-risk impact

The Group has considered the impact of climate-related risks on the financial statements, in particular the impact on impairment
within the Vehicle Finance business. While the effects of climate change represent a source of uncertainty {in respect of potential
transitional risks such as those that may arise from changes in future Government policy), the Group does not consider there to be
a material impact on its judgements and estimates from the physical, transition and other climate-related risks in the short-term.
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18. Derivative financial instruments
Group and Company

Interest rate swaps are held for risk mitigation purposes. The table below provides an analysis of the notional amount and fair value
of derivatives by hedge accounting relationship. The armount of ineffectiveness recognised for each hedge type is shown in Note 7.
Notional amount is the amount on which payment flows are derived and does not represent amounts at risk.

National

Assats

Liabilities

Notional Arsedts

Lizhifities

2021 2021 2021 2020 2020 2020
£millian £millian £million £miltion £million £rmillicn

Interest rate swaps designated in fair value hedges
In less than one year 3821 0.3 0.7 228.4 0.4 {0.4)
More than one year but less than three years 564.6 29 3.0 599.7 23 {3.1)
More than three years but less than five years 194.3 0.4 ' (2.2 263.4 2.0 {2.4)
More than five years - - - 1.8 0.1 -
1,141.0 3.6 (5.9) 1,0935 = 48 {6.1)

Interest rate swaps designated in cash flow hedges
In less than one year - - -
More than one year but less than three years 4.7 - 0.1 - - -
Mare than three years but less than five years 9.4 - (0.2) 4.7 - -
14.1 - (0.3} 47 - _

Foreign exchange swaps

In less than ane year 15.3 0.2 - 13.0 - -
1,170.4 3.8 (6.2) 1,111.2 4.8 (6.1)

In order to manage interest rate risk arising from fixed rate financial instruments, the Group reviews interest rate swaps requirements

on a monthly basis. The exposure from the portfolio frequently changes due to the origination of new instruments, contractual
repayments and early prepayments made in each period. As a result, the Group adopts a dynamic hedging strategy (sometimes

referred to as 'macro’ or ‘portfolio’ hedge) to hedge its exposure profile by closing and entering into new swap agreements on a
monthly basis. The Group establishes the hedging ratio by matching the noticnal of the derivatives with the principal of the portfolio

being hedged.
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18. Derivative financial instruments continued

The following table sets out details of the hedged exposures covered by the Group's hedging strategies:

Carry amount of

Accumulated amount
of fair value adjustments

Carry arount of

Accumulated amourt
of fair value adjustmants

hedged item in the hedged items hedged iam in the hedged items
Assetf(liahzi:]az,? Assgt/aiatg:m Asseuuiatgg;% Assel/{\‘ag}ggg
£million £mifiion £milhion frillion
ASSETS
Interest rate fair value hedges
Leans and advances to customers
Fixed rate Real Estate Finance loans - 354.9 (2.1 300.0 43
Fixed rate Vehicle Finance loans 84.3 0.4) 97.2 0.7
Fixed rate Retail Finance loans 160.4 (1.0) 116.2 0.5
Fixed rate Consumer Mortgages Loans - - 99 0.2
601.6 {3.5) 523.3 5.7
Interest rate fair value hedges
Cash and balances at Central banks
Bank of England reserve 14.1 N/A 4.7 N/A
615.7 (3.5} 528.0 3.7
LIABILITIES
Interest rate fair value hedges
Deposits from customers
Fixed rate customer deposits {539.5) 5.3 (570.2) {4.7)
{539.5) 5.3 (570.2) 4.7)

The accumulated amount of fair value hedge adjustments remaining in the statement of financial position for hedged items that have

ceased to be adjusted for hedging gains and losses is £nil (2020: £nil).

The following table shows the impact of financial assets and financizl liabilities relating to transactions where:

» there is an enforceable master netting agreement in place but the offset criteria are not otherwise satisfied, and

» financial collateral is paid and received.

Gross amount

reported on  Master netting Finandial Net amaunts
balance sheet arrangements collateral  after offsetting
£million Emillion £million £million
31 December 2021
Derivative financial assets
Interest rate swaps 3.6 (3.6) - -
Foreign exchange swaps 0.2 - - 0.2
3.8 {3.6) - 0.2
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate swaps (6.2) 3.6 2.7 . 0.1

Gross emourt

repored an Mas-er netting Financial Net amounts after
calance sheet arrangemerts collazeral offsetting
Emillion trillion fillion frrilion
31 December 2020
Interest rate swaps
Derivative financial assets 4.8 {4.8) - -
Derivative financial liabilities (6.1 4.8 1.3 -
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18. Derivative financial instruments continued

Master netting arrangements do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the statement of financial position. This is because the
arrangement creates an agreement for @ right of set-off of recognised amounts which is enforceable only following an event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or counterparties. Furthermere, the Group and its counterparties do not intend to settle on a
net basis or realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultanecusly.

Financial collateral consists of cash settled, typically daily or weekly, to mitigate the credit risk on the fair value of derivatives.

19. Assets and liabilities held for sale

As at 31 Decermnber 2021, assets of £1.3 million relating tc a loan book and 2 liability of £2.0 million relating to collateral held, both in
STB Leasing Limited, were in the process of being sold ta its partner, RentSmart Limited. Under IFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations, these are required to be reclassified as "Held for sale” an the face of the statement of financial
position as they are expected to be sold within 12 menths of the balance sheet date. The assets and liabilities were sald far their
carrying amount on 31 January 2022.

The business is nat significant enough to be classified as discontinued operations, or to be disclosed as a separate operating
segment in Note 3. There is no provision held against the RentSmart lozans, as the credit risk asscciated with those loans is retained by
RentSmart Limited. No impairment losses have been recognised on the classification of these operations as held for sale.

20. investment property

Crmiion mition
Fair value
At 1 January 2020 48 48
Transfer from property, plant and equipment - 1.1 -
Revaluation {0.5) {0.4) g.
At 31 December 2020 ' 4.3 5.3 5
Revaluation 04 04 &f
At 31 December 2021 4.7 57 g

The Group's investrment properties, which are let to third party occupiers, comprise:

s Secure TJrust House, Boston Drive, Bourne End, S5L8 5YS.,
* 50% of Yorke House, Arlestan Way, Shirley, Solihull, B90 4LH, excluding land.

The Company's investment preperties includes the two properties above and 25 and 26 Neptune Court, Vanguard Way,
Cardiff CF24 5PJ, which is occupied by one of the Company’s subsidiaries.

Investment properties are stated at falr value as at 31 December 2021 based on external valuations performed by professionally
qualified valuers Knight Frank LLP. These valustions have been undertaken in accordance with the current editions of RICS

Valuation — Global Standards, which incorporate the International Valuations Standards, and the RICS UK National Supplement.

The valuations were carried cut using the comparative and investment methods, and were arrived at by reference to market evidence

. of the transaction prices paid for similar properties, together with evidence of demand within the vicinity of the subject properties.

In estimating the fzir value of the properties, the valuers consider thehighest and best use of the properties. Knight Frank LLP were
paid a fixed fee for the valuations. Knight Frank LLP also undertakes some professional work in respect of the Group's Real Estate
Finance business, althcugh this is limited in relation to the activities of the Group as a whole. An increase in the fair value of investment
property has been recognised and its carrying value has been adjusted accordingly. Movements in the fair value of investment
property are recognised oparating expenses in the income statement.
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20. Investment property continued

Investment property accounting policy

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and for capital appreciation, is measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at fair value. External valuations are
performed on a triennial basis. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are included in the
income statement in the period in which they arise.

An investment propetty is derecognised upan disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property {calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement in

the period in which the property is derecognised.

21. Property, plant and equipment

Group
Cormputer
mdidng ey eopmen Tora
£rmdhan Emiltion £millian £mllion

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2020 7.4 0.1 8.4 15.9
Additions - - 0.7 0.7
Revaluation {0.8) - - {0.8)
At 31 December 2020 4.6 0.1 9.1 15.8
Additions. - - 0.2 0.2
Revaluation 03 - - 0.3
At 31 December 2021 6.9 0.1 2.3 16.3
Accumulated depreciation )
At 1 January 2020 - - 4.6) {4.6)
Depreciation charge .1 - (1.3) (1.4)
Revaluation 0.1 - - 0.1
At 31 December 2020 - - (5.9} (5.9)
Depreciation charge 0.2) - {1.1) (1.3)
Revaluaticn 0.2 - - 0.2
At 31 December 2021 - - (7.0) (7.0
Net book amount
At 31 December 2020 6.6 0.1 3.2 9.9
At 31 December 2021 6.9 0.1 2.3 9.3

The Group's freehold properties, which are accupied by the Group, camprise:

* the Registered Office of the Company.
* 50% of Yorke House, Arleston Way, Shirley B0 4LH, plus the value of the land.
* 25 and 26 Neptune Court, Vanguard Way, Cardiff CF24 5PJ
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21. Property, plant and equipment continued

Company
Computer

Zrz?;\s e:rfpiﬂ;:; Total

Frmillion £milion gmillion
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2020 35 4.1 2.4
Additions - ‘ 03 0.3
Transfer to investment properties (1.1 - (1.1
Revaluation {0.3) - (0.3)
At 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021 21 6.4 85
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2020 — R 3.1
Depreciation charge 0.1 {0.9) {1.0)
Revaluation : 0.1 - 0.1
At 31 December 2020 - (4.0). (4.0
Depreciation charge - (0.8} {0.8)
At 31 December 2021 - {4.8) (4.8)

-

Net book amount é
At 31 December 2020 2.1 2.4 45 &
At 31 December 2021 241 1.6 3.7 g
The Company’ freehold properties are the same as Group, but exclude 25 and 26 Neptune Court, Vanguard Way, Cardiff C24 5P, %
which is not occupied by the Company. @

Freehaold properties are stated at fair value as at 31 December 2021 based on external valuations performed by professicnally qualified
valuers Knight Frank LLP, which is performed on the same basis as investment properties (see Note 20). A increase in the fair value of
freehold property has been recognised and its carrying value has been adjusted accordingly. Movements in the fair value of freehcld
property are recognized in other comprehensive income, to the extent that any reductions do not exceed the initial increase, which
resulted in the following revaluation mavements:

Group Group Company Corpany

2021 2020 201 2020

£millian £million fmillion £rrillion

Revaluation surplus/{deficit) recognised in other comprehensive income 05 {0.4) - -
Revaluation deficit recognised in the income statement - {0.3) - 0.2

The carrying value of freehold land which is included in the total carrying value of freehold land and buildings and which is net
depreciated is £1.3 million (2020: £1.3 million).
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21. Property, plant and equipment continued

The historical cost of freehold property included at fair value is as follows:

Group

Group

Company

Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

£million fmillion fmillion frillion

Cost 5.4 54 1.6 1.6
Depreciation 1.7) (1.6) - -
Net book value 3.7 3.8 1.6 1.6

Property, plant and equipment accounting policy

Property is held at its revalued amount, being its fair value at the date of valuation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation.
Revaluations are carried out annually at the reporting date, and movements are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income, net

of any applicable deferred tax. External valuations are performed on a triennial basis.

Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cast includes expenditure that is directly attributable

to the acquisition of the itemns. Pre-installed computer software licences are capitalised as part of the computer hardware it is
installed on. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allacate their cost to their residual values over their

estimated useful lives, which are subject to reqular review:

Land not depreciated

Freehold buildings 50 years

Leasehold improvernents shorter of life of lease or seven years
Computer equipment three to five years

Other equipment five to ten years

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts. These are included in the

income statement.

The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether property, plant and equipment is impaired.
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22. Right-of-use assets

Group Company
Leased mator Leased mator
Leasehald preperty vehicles Tota!  Leasehold praperty vehicles Tetal
£milfion fmillion £millor frnillion fmillion, gmillion
Cost .
At 1 January 2020 4.2 0.3 4.5 29 0.2 3.1
Additions 0.2 0.1 0.3 0.2 - 0.2
At 31 December 2020 4.4 0.4 4.8 3.1 0.2 3.3
Disposals - {0.1) {0.1) - - -
At 31 December 2021 4.4 0.3 4.7 31 0.2 3.3
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2020 0.7 (0.2) 09 {0.5) {0.1) {0.8)
Depreciation charge 0.6) 0.1 07N 0.4) 0.1 {0.5)
Impairment 0.3) .- 0.3) o2 - {0.2)
At 31 December 2020 {1.6) {0.3) (1.9 (1.1) {0.2) (1.3
Depreciation charge : 0.6) {0.1) (0.7 {0.5) - {0.5)
Disposals - 0.1 G - -
At 31 December 2021 {2.2) (0.3) (2.5) {1.6) {0.2) (1.8)
Net book amount
At 31 December 2020 2.8 0.1 2.9 20 - 2.0
At 31 December 2021 2.2 - 2.2 1.5 - 1.5

Lessee accounting policy

The Group assesses whether a contract is or centains a lease at inception of the contract. The Group recegnises a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to zll lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term
lesses {(defined as leases with a lease term of 12 menths or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Group
recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless ancther
systemnatic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments, discounted by using the rate implicit in
the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate. It is subsequently measured by
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability {using the effective interest rate method) and by reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made, and is presented as a separate line in the consolidated staterment of
financial position.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease lizbility, lease payments made at or before
the cornmencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment charges and are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of
the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease. The right-of-use assets are presented as a
separate line in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group applies AS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use
asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss as described in the ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ palicy.

Rentsls made under operating leases for less than 12 months in duration, and cperating leases on low value items, are recognised
in the income statemant on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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23. Intangible assets

Group
Computer Other

Goodwill software  intangible assets Total

£million £milion £million £million
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2020 1.0 16.7 2.2 19.9
Additions - 1.1 - 1.1
Transfers from property, plant and equipment - 0.1 - 0.1
Disposals - {1.3) - {1.3)
At 31 December 2020 1.0 16.6 2.2 19.8
Additions - 1.1 - 1.1
Transfers to cloud software development prepayments - (oxA} - 0.4}
At 31 December 2021 1.0 17.3 2.2 20.5
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2020 ’ - (2.3) {1.8) {10.9)
Amortisation charge - {1.8) 0.2) (2.0)
Disposals - 0.8 - 0.8
At 31 December 2020 - {10.3) {1.8) 12.1)
Amortisation charge — {1.3) 0.2) (1.5
At 31 December 2021 — {11.6) (2.0} {13.6)
Net book amount
At 31 December 2020 1.0 6.3 0.4 7.7
At 31 December 2021 1.0 5.7 0.2 4.9

Goodwill above relates to the following cash generating units, which are part of the Retail Finance operating segment:

2021 2020

£miflion fmilkon

Music business ) Q3 03
V12 0.7 0.7 ’

Total 1.0 1.0

The recoverable amount of these cash generating units are determined on a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial forecasts covering a three-year period, and a discount rate of 11.97% (2020: 8%). Cash flow projections during

the forecast period are based on the expected rate of new business. A zero growth based scenario is also considered, The Directors
believe that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount is based would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the cash generating unit.
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23. Intangible assets continued

Other intangible assets were recognised as part of the V12 Finance Group acquisition. These were recorded at fair value, and arc

being amortised or a straight-line basis as follows:

Years
Distribution channel 10
Company
Computer

Goadwil sofware Total

fmillion Emillian fmillion
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2020 0.3 124 12.7
Additions - 09 0.9
Disposals - {1.3) {1.3)
At 31 December 2020 0.3 12.0 12.3
Additions - 0.8 0.8
Transfers to cleud software development prepayments - {0.4) {0.4)
At 31 December 2021 6.3 12.4 12.7
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2020 - {5.3) (5.3
Amortisation charge - (1.6) {1.6)
Disposals - 08 0.8
At 31 December 2020 - (6.1) (6.1
Amortisation charge - {1.2) (1.2)
At 31 December 2021 - (7.3) {7.3)
Net book amount
At 31 December 2020 0.3 5.9 6.2
At 31 December 2021 0.3 5.1 5.4

Goodwill above relates to the music business cash generating unit, which is part of the Retail Finance operating segment,
The recoverable amount is determined on the same basis as for the Group.

Intangible assets accounting policy
{a) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition aver the fair value of the Group$ share of the net identifiable assets

acquired at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is held at cost less accumulated impairment charge and is deemed to have an

infinite life,

The Group reviews the goodwill for impairment at least annually or when events or changes in econamic circumstances indicate

that impairment may have taken place. An impairment charge is recognised in the income statement if the camrying amount

exceeds the recoverable amaounils,
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23. Intangible assets continued

{b) Computer software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred
unless the technical feasibility of the development has been demonstrated, and it is probable that the expenditure will enable
the asset to generate future economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed standard of performance, in which case they
are capitalised.

These costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives, which are between three to ten years.

{c) Other intangibles

The acquisition of subsidiaries has been accounted for in accordance with IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’, which requires the
recognition of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their acquisition date fair values. As part of this process,
it was necessary to recagnise certain intangible assets which are separately identifiable and which are not included on the
acquiree’s balance sheet, which are amontised over their expected useful lives, as set out above,

The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether an intangible asset is impaired.

24, Investments in group undertakings

Company

Ermiflion
Cost and net book value
At 1 January 2020 and December 2020 4.1
Equity contributions to subsidiaries in respect of share options 0.2
At 31 December 2021 4.3

Shares in subsidiary undertakings of Secure Trust Bank PLC are stated at cost less any provision for impairment. All subsidiary
undertakings are unlisted and none are banking institutions. All are 100% owned by the Company. The subsidiary undertzkings were
all incorporated in the UX and wholly owned via ordinary shares. All subsidiary undertakings are included in the consolidated financial
statements and have an accounting reference date of 31 December.

Details are as follows:

Prircipal activity

Owned directly

Debt Managers (Services) Limited Debt management

Secure Homes Services Limited Property rental

STB Leasing Limited Leasing

V12 Finance Group Limited Holding company
Owned indirectly viz an intermediate holding company

V12 Personal Finance Limited : Darmant

V12 Retail Finance Limited Sourcing and servicing of unsecured loans

The registered office of the Company, and al! subsidiary undertakings, is One Arleston Way, Shirley, Solihull, West Midlands BY0 4LH.

Secure Homes Services Limited, STB Leasing Limited and V12 Personal Finance Limited are exernpt from the requirements of

the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of individual accounts by virtue of 54794, and the Company has given guarantees
accordingly under s479C in respect of the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, or period ended 30 June 2020in
the case of STB Leasing Limited.
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25, Deferred taxation

Restated Restated
ot oo o e
Emillion fmillion Emillian £million
Deferred tax assets:
Other short-term timing differences 69 Ah 6.8 7.1
At 31 December 6.9 6.6 6.8 7.1
Deferred tax assets:
Prior period closing (as previously stated) 6.6 7.5 7.1 8.1
Deferred tax on Software-as-a-Service adjustment - 0.5 - 0.5
Prior period closing (as restated) 8.6 8.0 7.1 8.6
Income statement 03 (1.2) 0.4 (1.1
Qther comprehensive income ’ - {0.2) 0.1 (0.4)
At 31 December 6.9 6.6 6.8 7.1

Prior year deferred tax has been restated. See Note 1.3 for further details.

Deferred tax accounting policy

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities, and they
relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, when they intend to setile

current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be rezlised simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.

26. Other assets

Restated Restated

Group Group Company Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

£million fmillion £million fmillion

Other receivables : 04 33 0.3 2.3
Amounts due from related companies - - 89.3 %0.9
Cloud software develepment prepayment 4.8 4.6 48 4.6
Other prepayments and accrued income &7 7.7 54 6.6
11.9 15.6 99.8 104.4

Cloud software development costs, principally relating to the Group's Motor Transformaticn Programme, do not meet the intangible
asset recagnition criteria and are therefore classified as 2 prepayment, which is expensed to the income statement over the useful
economic life of the software. The pricr year cloud software development prepayment figure has been restated. See Nate 1.3 for

further details.

27. Due to banks

Group Group Company Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

£million fmilion £millian £miilion

Amounts due under the Bank of England’s liquidity support operations, Term 3900 2730 3900 273.0
Funding Scheme and Term Funding Scheme with additional incentives for SMEs

Amounts due to other credit institutions 0.7 33 0.7 33

Accrued interest 0.1 oA 0.1 0.1

3%0.8 276.4 390.8 276.4

The accounting policy for amounts due to banks is included in Nete 1.5 Financial assets and financial liabilities accounting policy.
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28. Deposits from customers

Group and Company
2021 2020
£million fmillion
Access accounts ’ 1.7 81.4
Fixed term bonds 974.6 10764
Notice accounts 771.9 705.1
ISAs 255.0 129.6
2,103.2 1,992.5
The accounting policy for deposits from customers is included in Note 1.5 Financial assets and financial liabilities
accounting policy.
29. Lease liabilities -
Group Group Company Company
2021 2000 2021 2020
£nvillion E£mllion £million Emikion
At 1 January 3.9 45 2.9 33
New leases - 0.3 - 0.2
Payments 0.9 {1.0) 0.7) {0.7)
Interest expense 01 0.1 0.1 0.1
At 31 December 341 3.9 2.3 29
Lease liabilities — Gross
—No later than one year 0.9 0.9 0.7 0.7
— Later than one year and no later than five years 23 30 1.7 2.4
— Mare than five years 0.1 03 - -
33 4.2 24 31
Less: Future finance expense 0.2) 0.3} 0.1) {0.2)
Lease liabilities — Net 3.1 _ 39 2.3 2.9
Lease liabilities — Gross
— No later than one year 0.8 0.9 0.7 0.4
— Later than one year and no later than five years 22 2.7 1.6 23
~ More than five years 01 0.3 - -
34 3.9 23 2.9

The accounting policy for lease liabilities is included in Note 22 Lessee accounting policy.
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30. Other liabilities

Group Group Company Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

£million fmillion £million frrilfian

Other payables 18.3 46.2 14.9 411
Amounts due to related companies ' - - 17.9 12.6
Accruals and deferred income 132.0 10.1 1.0 8.1

31.3 56.3 43.8 61.8

31. Provisions for liabilities and charges
Group and Company

ECL. allowance
Customer an loan

redress  commimments Other Total

£million gmiliion £million £reillion
Balance at 1 January 2020 02 04 0.1 0.7
{Release)/charge to income statement {0.2) 0.7 14 19
Utilised - - 0.7) (0.7)
Balance at 31 December 2020 - 1.1 0.8 1.9
(Release)/charge te income statement — 0.2y 0.3 0.1
Utilised - - ©7) 0.7
Balance at 31 December 2021 - 0.9 0.4 1.3

Customer redress provision

The Group provided for its best estimate of redress payable in respect of outstanding claims relating to historical sales of accidant,
sickness and unemployment insurance, by cansidering the likely future uphold rate for claims, in the context of confirmed issues and
histarical experience.

The Financial Conduct Authority announced a deadline for making these customer redress claims, which gave consumers until

29 August 2019 to make a clzim, so no further clzims were accepted zfter this date. At 31 December 2021, all such claims had been
settled and therefore no further customer redress provision was required.

SluBLUEIEIS |2IaueUl

ECL allowance on loan commitments

In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 the Group holds an ECL allowance against loans it has committed to lend but have

not yet been drawn. For the Real Estate Finance and Commercizl Finance portfolios, where a loan fadility is agreed that includes both
drewn and undrawn elements and the Group cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment separately, a combined loss allowance
for both drawn and undrawn components of the loan is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn
component, with any excess of the loss allowance over the gross drawn amount presented as a provision. At 31 December 2021 no
provision was held for losses in excess of drawn amounts.

Other
Other includes

» provisicn for fraud, which relates to cases where the Group has reasonable evidence of suspected fraud, but further investigation is
" required before the cases can be dealt with appropriately

* restructuring provision; and

* 575 Consumer Credit Act 1974 provision.

The Directors expect all provisions to be fully utilised within the next 12 months,

Provisions for liabifities and charges accounting policy

A provisicn is recognised where there is a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the obligation will be
settfed and it can be reliably estimated.
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32, Subordinated liabilities
Group and Company

2021 2000
‘ £million Emillian

Notes at par value 50.0 500
Unamortised issue costs (0.3) 0.4
Accrued interest ‘ 1.2 1.2
50.9 50.8

Subordinated liabilities comprises two tranches of 6.75% Fixed Rate Reset Callable Subordinated Notes due 2028 {'the Nates') issued
in 2018. The Notes mature in 2028 but the issuer may at its discretion redeern the Notes in 2023. The Notes are listed on the Global
Exchange Market of the Irish Stock Exchange ple trading as Furenext Dublin.

» The Notes are redeemable for cash at their principal amount on a fixed date.

* The Company has a call option to redeamn the securities early in the event of a "tax event’ or a 'capital disqualification event’,
which is at the full diseretion of the Company. :

 Interest payments are paid at six menthly intervals and are mandatory.

* The Nates give the holders’ rights to the principal amount on the Notes, plus any unpaid interest, on liquidation. Any such claims
are subordinated to senior creditors, but rank pari passu with holders of other subordinated obligations and in priority to holders
of share capital. '

The above features provide the issuer with a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holders,
and therefore the Notes are classified as financial liabilities.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the Notes and are deducted from the financial liability and expensed to
the income statement on an effective interast rate basis over the expected life of the Notes.

The Notes are treated as Tier 2 regulatory capital which is used to support the cortinuing growth of the business taking into account
increases in regulatory capital buffers. The issue of the Notes is part of an ongoing programme to diversify and expand the capital
base of the Group.

The accounting policy for subordinated lizbilities is included in Note 1.5 Financial assets and financiai liabilities accounting policy.

33. Contingent liabilities and commitments

33.1 Contingent liabilities

As a financial services business, the Group must comply with numerous laws and regulations, which significantly affect the way it does
husiness. Whilst the Group believes there are no material unidentified areas of failure to comply with these laws and regulations,
there can be ne guarantee that all issues have been identified.

33.2 Capital commitments

At 31 December 2021, the Group and Company had no capitat commitments {2020 £nil).

33.3 Credit commitments

Group and Company

Commitrments to extend credit to customers were as follows:

2021 2020
Eenillion £millian
Business Finance

Real Estate Finance 68.9 635
Cemmercial Finance . 1209 1284

Consumer Finance
Retail Finance 83.6 4%9.3
Vehicie Finance a5 0.2
2739 261.5
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34. Share capital

Numbar £million
At 1 January 2020 ' 18,477,500 7.4
lssued during 2020 154,162 0.1
At 31 December 2020 18,633,652 7.5
Issued during 2021 14,143 -
At 31 December 2021 18,647,805 75

Share capital comprises ordinary shares with a par value of 40 pence sach.

Equity instruments accounting policy

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issuance costs. Any amounts
received over nominal value are recorded in the share premium account, net of direct issuance costs. Costs associated with the
listing of shares are expensed immediately.

35. Share-based payments

At 31 December 20271 and 31 December 2020, the Group had four share-based payment schemes in operation:
» 2017 long term incentive plan

» 2017 Sharesave plan

e 201/ deferred bonus plan

¢ 'Phantom’ share option scheme

A summary of the movements in share options during the year is set out below:

Weightec Weignted
exercz;e;fiz: exercwz\ée;;;:gz
Ferfeite Vested and of apticns of optiors
lapsed and Ouwstandrgat  exercisable at outstandngat  autstanding at
Qutstanding at Granted cancellea Exercised 31 December 31 December 31 Decemper 31 Dezember
1January 2021 dunngthe year  during the year  dunirg the year 2021 2021 Vesting 201 2020
Nurnber Number MNumber Numnbar Number Numbe- dates £ L
Equity settled
2017 long term incentive
plan 473,096 243550  {300,999) (13,847 401,800 5,572 2022-2024 0.40 0.40
2017 Sharesave plan 572,464 57,645 (87,663) - 542,446 8,589 2022-2024 617 12.28
2017 deferred bonus plan 51,319 13023 {43,830 (826) 19,686 1,670 2022-2024 0.40 0.40
1,096,879 314,218 {432,492) (14,673) 963,932 15,831 3.65 5.26
Weighted average
exercise price 5.26 2.29 2.76 0.40 3.65
Cash settled
‘Phantom’
share option scheme 281,667 - {187,500 — @4.167 Q4,167 2019 25.00 25.00
Group Grouo Company Cormpany
2021 2020 201 2020
£million fmillion £million £rmillion
Expense incurred in relation to share-based payments 0.9 - 0.9 -
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35. Share-based payments continued

35.1. Long term incentive plan {‘'LTIP")

The LTIP was established on 3 May 2017, Two separate awards to a number of participants were made under this plan during the year,
as set out below.

35.1.1 LTIP Restricted share award

56,023 (2020: Nil) options were awarded which were not subject to any parformance conditions. The awards will vest three years
from the date of grant. The original grant date valuation was determined using a Black-Scholes model. Measurement inputs and
assumptions used for the grant date valuation were as follows:

Awarded during
. 2021
Share price at grant date £11.73
Exercise price £0.40
Expected dividend yield 5.49%
Expected stack price volatility 46.27%
Risk froe interest rate 0.00%
Average expected life lyears) 3.00
Original grant date valuation £9.94

35.1.2LTIP

187,527 (2020: 267,602) opticns were awarded which are subject to four performance conditions, which are based on:

= rank of the total shareholder return { TSR") over the performance period against the TSR of the comparator group of peer
group companies;

» rank of the TSR over the performance period against the TSR of the FTSE Small Cap Index;

* growth of the TSR in absolute terms; and

maintaining appropriate risk practices over the performance period reflecting the longer-term strategic risk management
of the Group.

The awards have & performance term of three years, and will be released to the participants on the vesting date. The awards will vest
on the date on which the Board determines that these conditions have been met.

Of the share options exerdsed during the year, 13,317 {2020: 1,112) were exercised for shares, and 530 (2020: 1,537} were exercised for
a cash alternative al a deemed market price of £11.90 (2020: £9.11).

The original grant date valuation was determined using a Black-Scholes model for the EPS and risk management tranches, and a
Mante Carlo mode! for the TSR tranche. Measurement inputs and assurmpticns used for the grant date valuation were as follows:

Awarded during  Awarded duving
2021

2020
Share price at grant date £11.73 £7.32
Exercise price £0.40 £0.40
Expected dividend yield 5.49% 4.18%
Expected stock price volatility 45.56% 43.87%
Risk free interest rale 0.11% -0.07%
Average expected life lyears) 3.00 3.00
Original grant date valuation £6.99 f4.08

35.2. Sharesave plan
The Sharesave plan was established on 3 May 2017.

This plan allows all employees to save for three years, subject to 2 maximum monthly amount of £500, with the option to buy shares
in Secure Trust Bank PLC when the plan matures. Participants cannot change the amount that they have agreed to save each month
but they can suspend payments far up to six months. Participants can withdraw their savings at any time but, if they do this before
the completion date, they lose the option to buy shares at the Option Price, and in most circumstances if participants cease to hold
plan-related employment before the third anniversary of the grant date, then the options are also lost. The options ordinarily vest
approximately three years after grant date, and are exercisable for a period of six months following vesting.
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35. Share-based payments continued

35.2. Sharesave plan

The ariginal grant date valuation was determined using a Black-Schaoles model. Measurement inputs and assumptions used were
as follows:

Awarded during  Awarded during

2021 2020
Share price at grant date f12.45 f6.32
Exercise price £10.69 £5.31
Expected stock price volatility 53.84% 44.97%
Expected dividend yield 5.49% 13.92%
Risk free interest rate 0.74% 0.00%
Average expected life {years) 3.00 3.00
Original grant date valuation f£4.12 £0.93

35.3. Deferred bonus plan
The deferrad bonus plan was established on 2 May 2017.

In 2021 and 2020, awards were granted to certain Senicr Managers of the Group. The awards vest in three equal tranches after one,
two and three years following deferral. Accordingly, the following awards remain cutstanding under the plan, entitling the members of
the scheme to purchase shares in the Company;

Awards grantad  Awards gracted  Awerds grarted

Vesting after Vesting after Vesting after

One year two years three years  Awards grantad

Nymber Number Number Total
At 1 January 2020 9,886 9,886 2,850 29,662
Granled 11,679 11,679 11,682 35,040
Exercised {9.886) {3,497) - {13,383
At 31 December 2020 11,679 18,068 21,572 51,319
Granted ’ 4,057 4,340 4,626 13,023
Exercised (8264} - — (824)
Cancelled (9,183 {15,572 {19,075) {43,830)
At 31 December 2021 5,727 6,836 7.123 19,686
Vested and exercisable 1,670 - - 1,670
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35. Share-based payments continued
35.3. Deferred bonus plan

Two separate awards were made under this plan during the year, 1,702 in April 2021 and 11,321 in September 2021. The original grant

date valuation was determined using a Black-Scholes model. Measurement inputs and assumptions used were as follows:

Granted in April  Granted in April  Granted in April Granted in
201 2021 September 2021

Awards vesting  Awards vesting  Awards vesting  Awards vesting
after one year  after two years after three years after one year

Granted in
September 2021
Awards vesting
after two years

Granted in
Septemhber 2021
Awards vesting
after three years

Share price at grant date £11.73 £11.73 £11.73 £12.45 £12.45 £12.45
Exercisa price £0.40 £0.40 £0.40 £0.40 £0.40 £0.40
Expected dividend yield 5.49% 5.49% 5.49% 5.49% 5.49% 5.49%
Expected stock price volatility 46.54% 53.22% 46.27% 42.06% 60.86% 53.84%
Risk free interest rate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.74% 0.74% 0.74%
Average expected life {years) 1.00 2.00 3.00 0.58 1.58 258
Criginal grant date valuation £10.85 £10.39 £9.94 £11.54 £11.06 £10.59
Granted 2020 Grantes 2020 Granted 7020

Awards vesting Awards vesting Awards vesting

ofier oneyear  after two years  aar thrae years

Share price at grant date £7.32 £7.32 7.32
Exercise price £0.40 £0.40 £0.40
Expected dividend yield 12.02% 12.02% 12.02%
Expected stock price volatility &6.54% 53.01% 4576%
Risk free interest rate Q.00% 6.00% 0.00%
Average expected life (years) 1.00 2.00 3.00
Original grant date valuation £6.09 £5.36 £4.70

35.4 Cash settled share-based payments

On 16 March 2015, a four-year ‘phantom’ share option scheme was established in order to provide effective long term incentive to
senior management of the Group. Under the scheme, no actual shares would be issued by the Company, but those granted awards
under the scheme would be entitled to a cash payment. The amount of the award is calculated by reference to the increase in the
value of an ordinary share in the Company over an initial value set at £25 per ordinary share, being the price at which the shares
resulting from the exercise of the first tranche of share options under the share option scheme were sold in November 2014.

During the year, 187 500 awards under this plan were cancelled. As at 31 December 2027, 94,167 {2020: 281,667) share options
remained outstanding, The options vested during 2019 and are exercisable for a period of 10 vears after grant date.

As at 31 December 2021, the estimated fair value has been prepared using the Black-Scholes model. Measurement inputs and

assurnptions used were as follows:

2021 2000

Share price at reporting date £12.35 f8.75

Expected stock price volatility 45.30% 45.89%

Expected dividend yield 5.49% 10.06%

Risk frea interest rate 0.55% 0.00%

Average expected life (years) 3.34 492

Fair value £1.06 £0.30
This resulted in the following being recognised in the financizl staternents:

2021 2020

£million froufiion

Liability 0.1 0.2
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35. Share-based payments continued
35.4 Cash settled share-based payments

For each award granted during the year, expectad volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Group's
share price over the period equivalent to the expected term of the opticns being granted. The expected life used in the

model has been adjusted, based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions,
and behavioural cansiderations.

Share-based compensation accounting policy

The fair value of equity setlled share-based payment awards are calculated at grant dale and recognised over the periodin
which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the awards (the vesting period). The amount is recognised in operating
expenses in the income statement, with a corresponding increase in equity. Further details of the valuation methadology is set
out above,

The fair value of cash settled share-based payments is recognised in operating expenses in the income statement with a
carresponding increase in liabilities over the vesting period. The liability is remeasured at each reporting date and at the
settlement date based on the fair value of the options granted, with a corresponding adjustment to operating expenses.

36. Cash flow statement
34.1. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following balances with less than three
months' maturity from the date of acquisition.

Group Graup Company Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

£millian fmillion £millian fillion
Cash and balances at central banks 235.7 181.5 235.7 1815 &
Loans and advances to banks (Naote 13) 50.3 63.3 474 61.7 §
Debt securities 250 - 250 - idtz
Less restricted cash §
Included in cagh and balances at central banks (1.7 1.0 (1.7) 00 5
Included in lozns and advances to central banks (Note 13) (6.3} (11.7} 6.3) {(11.7 "

Total restricted cash (8.0 (12.7} (8.0) (12.7}

303.0 2321 300.1 230.5

36.2. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

All changes in liabilities arising from financing activities arise from changes in cash flows, apart from £0.1 million (2020: £0.1 million) of
lease liabilities interest expense, as shown in Note 29, and £0.1 million (2020: £0.2 million) amortisation of issue costs on subordinated
liabilitics, as shown in Note 32.

Cash and cash equivalents accounting policy

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprisa cash in hand and demand deposits, and cash
equivalents, being highly liquid investments which are convertible into cash with an insignificant risk of changes in value with a
maturity of three ronths or less at the date of acquisition, including certain loans and advances to banks and short-term highly
liquid debt securities.

37. Financial risk management strategy

By their nature, the Group's activities are principally related to the use of financial instruments. The Directors and senior management
of the Group have formally adopted a Group risk appetite staternent which sets out the Board's attitude to risk and internal controls.
Key risks identified by the Directors are formally reviewed and assessed at least cnce a year by the Board. In additicn key business
risks are identified, evaluated and managed by operating managemenl on an ongoing basis by means of pracedures such as physical
controls, credit and cther authorisation limits and segregation of duties. The Board also receives regular reports on any risk matters
that need to be brought to its attention. Significant risks identified in connection with the development of new activities arc subject to
considerstion by the Board. There are budgeting procedures in place and reports are presented regularly to the Beard detailing the
results of each princical business unit, variances against budget and prior year, and ather performance data.

A more detailed description of the risk gavernance structure is contained in the Strategic Report beginning on page 26.
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37. Financial risk management strategy continued

Included within the principal financial risks inherent in the Group's business are credit risk (Note 38), market risk (Note 39), liquidity risk
{Note 40), and capital risk (Note 41).

38. Credit risk

The Company and Group take on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to satisfy their debt
servicing commitments when due. Counterparties include the consumers to whom the Group lends on a secured and unsecured basis
and the small and medium size enterprises {'SME'} to whom the Group lends on a secured basis as well as the market counterparties
with whom the Group deals. :

impairment provisions are provided for expected credit losses at the statement of financial position date. Significant changes

in the economy could result in losses that are different from those provided for at the statement of financial position date.
Management therefare carefully manages the Group's exposures to credit risk as it considers this to be the most significant risk to the
business. Disclosures relating to collateral on loans and advances to customners are disclosed in Note 15.

The Board moniters the ratings of the counterparties in relation 1o the Group's loans and advances to banks. Disclosures of these at the
year-end are contained in Note 13. There is no direct expasure to the Eurozone and peripheral Eurozone countries.

See page 28 for further details on the mitigation and change during the year of credit risk.

Group

With the exception of loans and advances to customers, the carrying amount of financial assets represents the Group's maximum
exposure to cradit risk. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit sk far loans and advances to customers by portfolio and IFRS 9
stage without taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements attached was as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
e e Total  crodiimpaned  credit mpaired Total
£million £million Emillion £mitlicn £miltian £million Emillion £nmillian

31 December 2021
Business Finance

Real Estate Finance 9114 161.4 - 161.4 400 - 400 11128

Commercial Finance 291.7 17.5 - 175 52 - 52 3144
Consumer Finance

Retail Finance 659.4 1201 26 1227 44 - 4.4 7865

Vehicle Finance 207.0 689 2.2 717 19.4 - 19.4 297.5

Debt Management - - - - 10.8 761 86.9 86.9
Total drawn exposure 2,069.5 367.9 4.8 372.7 79.8 76.1 1559 2,598.1
Off balance sheet

Loan commitments 271.0 2.9 - 2.9 - - - 2739
Total gross exposure 2,340.5 370.8 4.8 375.6 79.8 761 155.9 2,872.0
Less:
Impairment allowance (18.5) {16.6) (3.4 {20.0) (23.1) 5.9 {29.0) (67.5)
Provision for loan
commitments 0.9) - - - - - - 0.9
Total net exposure 2,321 354.2 1.4 355.6 56.7 70.2 126.9 2,803.6

£50.3 million {2020: £35.4 million) of collateral in the form of property has been pledged as security for Real Estate Finance Stage 3
balances of £37.3 million (2020: £24.0 million). £8.9 millien (2020: £9.2 million) of collateral in the form of vehicles has been pledged as
security for Vehicle Finance Stage 3 balances of £18.0 million (2020: £22.5 million).

160 Secure Trust Bank PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2021



38. Credit risk continued

Siage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
R Tl ednimpied  credingod
£milion frnllion £mllion fnidhan fmillon £million frvillian £milian

31 December 2020
Business Finance

Real Estate Finance 8589 1365 379 174.4 240 - 24.0 1,057.3

Asset Finance 25 14 - 1.4 1.5 - 1.5 124

Commercial Finance 205.1 26.6 - 2866 0.3 - 0.3 2320
Consumer Finance

Retail Finance 589.1 8468 3.3 0.1 38 -~ 38 6830

Vehicle Finance 173.7 87.2 2 83.8 22.6 - 22.6 284.1

Debt Management - ~ - - 1.7 77.1 86.8 888

Consumer Mortgages 749 - 1.8 1.8 1.2 - 1.2 779
Other 4.1 - - - - - - 4.1
Total drawn exposure 1,915.3 3385 45.6 3841 65.1 771 142.2 2,441.4
Off balance sheet

Loan commitments 261.5 - - - - - - 2615
Total gross exposure 2,176.8 3385 45.6 384.1 65.1 771 142.2 2,7031
Less:
Impairment allowance 27.1 (22.7) {4.5) (27.2 217 (&7 {28.4) (82.7)
Provision for loan
commitments (1.1 — - — — — - [4AD)
Total net exposure 2,148.4 315.8 411 356.9 43.4 70.4 113.8 2,619.3

A reconciliation of opening to closing allowance for impairment of loans and advances to customers is presented in Note 17,
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38. Credit risk continued

Company

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for loans and advances to customers by portfolio and IFRS 9 stage without taking
account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements attached was as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Tpotdes  pastdus Total  sediimpayed  <redtimpared Total
fmillion £million Emillion £milfion £millian £million £rmillion £million
31 December 2021
Business Finance
Real Estate Finance 911.4 161.4 - 161.4 400 - 40.0 1,112.8
Commercial Finance 291./ 115 - 175 52 - 52 3144
Consumer Finance
Retail Finance 6594 1201 2.6 122.7 4.4 — 4.4 786.5
Vehicle Finance 2070 68.9 2.2 711 19.4 — 9.4 297.5
Total drawn exposure 2,069.5 367.9 4.8 372.7 69.0 - 692.0 2,511.2
Off balance sheet
Loan commitments 271.0 29 — 2.9 - - - 273.9
Total gross exposure 2,340.5 370.8 4.8 375.6 69.0 - 49.0 2,785.1
Less:
Impairment allowance (18.64) {16.7) (3.6 (20.3) (22.0 - (22.0) (60.9
Provision far loan
commitments 0.9 - — - - - - 0.9
Total net exposure 2,321.0 354.1 1.2 355.3 47.0 - 47.0 2,723.3
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38. Credit risk cantinued

Stage 1 Staga 2 Stage 3 Tosal
" pasi e et on Tl edhmoned  sedvimeied Tota
£million £million frrullion fmilen £million £ lhar £rallion £rmullion

31 December 2020
Business Finance

Real Estate Finance 858.9 1345 37.9 174.4 24.0 - 24.0 1,057.3

Asset Finance 9.5 1.4 - 1.4 1.5 — 1.5 124

Commercial Finance 2051 26.6 - 266 0.3 - 03 232.0
Consumer Finance

Retail Finance 589.1 86.8 3.3 0.1 3.8 - 38 683.0

Vehicle Finance 174.0 8/.5 2.6 90.1 22.5 - 225 285.6

Consumer Mortgages 74.9 - 1.8 1.8 1.2 - 1.2 77.9
Other 0.5 - - - - - - 05
Total drawn exposure 1,912.0 338.8 45.6 384.4 53.3 - 53.3 2,349.7
Off balance sheet

Loan commitments 2615 - - - - - - 261.5
Total gross exposure 2,173.5 338.8 45.6 3844 53.3 - 53.3 2,611.2
less:
Impairment allowance 28.1) (24.2) @.7) 28.9) (22.9) - (229 79.9)
Provision for loan
commitments (1.1 - - - - - - {1.1)
Total net exposure 2.144.3 314.6 40.9 3555 30.4 - 304 2,530.2

38.1. Concentration risk

Management assesses the potential concentration risk from geographic, product and individual loan concentration. Due to the
nature of the Group’s lending cperations the Directors consider the lending operations of the Group as a whole to be well diversified.
Details of the Group's loans and advances to customers and loan commitments by praduct is provided in Notes 3 and 33 respectively.

Geographical concentration
The Group's Real Estate Finance loan book is secured against UK property only. The gacgraghical concentration of these business

loans and advances to customers, by location of the security is as follows:

Group and Company

Resl Estate Consumer Real Estzie Corsurner

Emlban bl = T

2021 2021 2020 2020

Central England 0.1 - 139.7 14.6
Greater Landen 619.7 - 638.4 10.2
Northern England 66.2 — 465.8 16.2
South East England {excl. Greater London) 258.7 - 171.3 254
South West England 30.7 - 18.1 7.3
Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland 47.4 — 24.0 40
Gross loans and receivables 1.112.8 — 1,057.3 779
Allowance for impairment (3.2 - (5.4 0.2
Total 1,109.6 - 1,051.9 77.7
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38. Credit risk continued
38.2. Forbearance
Business Finance
* Roal Estate Finance: Where clients provided evidence of payment difficulties, the business supported by providing one, or both of
extensians to maturity dates and altered payment profiles to provide shart-term payment halidays for all or part of payments due.
In total, 15% of customers by valume were granted a form of payment holiday during the prior year. As at 31 December 2021 0.9% of |
customers by volume remained on a payment holiday.
Consumer Finance
* Retail Finance: Appreximately 2.1% of customers were granted COVID-19 payment holidays during 2020. As at 31 December 2021
ne customers remained on the payment holiday.

* Vehicle Finance: Approximately 15.6% of customers were granted COVID-19 payment holidays during 2020. As at 31 December
2021 no customers rermained on the payment holiday.

Where consumer customers have come to the end of their payment holiday, under COVID-19 arrangements, and have been unable to
retumn to regular payments, they have been provided with & reduced payment arrangement.

Throughout 2021 the Greup did nat routinefy reschedule cantractual arrangements where customers default on their repayments.
In cases where it offered the customer the option to reduce or defer payments for a short period, the loans retained the normal
contractual payment due dates and were treated the same as any other defaulting cases for impairment purpaoses. Arrears tracking
would continue on the account with any impairment charge being based on the original contractual due dates for ali products.

All forbearance arrangements are formally discussed and agreed with the customer. By offering customers in financial gifficulty the
option of forbearance the Group potentizlly exposes itself to an increased level of risk through prolonging the period of non contractual
payment and/or potentially placing the customer inte a detrimental position at the end of the forbearance periad. All forbearance
arrangements are reviewed and monitored regularly to assess the ongaing potential risk, suitability and sustainability to the Group.

Where forbearance measures are not possible or are considered not to be in the customer’s best interests, or where such measures
have been tried and the customer has not adhered to the forbearance terms that have been agreed, the Group will consider realising
its security and taking possession of the property in order to sell it and clear the outstanding debt.

39. Market risk
The Group's, market risk is primarily linked to interest rate risk. Interest rate risk refers to the exposure of the Group's financial position

to adverse movements in interest rates.

When interest rates change, the present value and timing of future cash flows change. This in turn changes the underlying value of
the Group's assets, lizbilities and off-balance sheet instruments and hence its economic value. Changes in interest rates also affect the
Group’s earnings by altering interest-sensitive income and expenses, affecting its net interest income.

The principal currency in which the Group operates is Sterling, although a small number of transactions are completed in US dollars,
Euros and other currencies in the Commercial Finance business. The Group has no significant exposures to foreign currencies and
hedges any residual currency risks to Sterling. The Group does not operate a trading book.

See page 31 for further details on the mitigation and change during the year of market risk.

Interest rate risk
Group and Company

The Group seeks to 'match’ interest rate risk on either side of the statement of financial position. However, this is not a perfect match
and interest rate risk is present on the mismatch between fixed rate loans and savings products and variable rate assets and liabilities.
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39. Market risk continued

The Group monitars the interast rate mismatch on at least 2 monthly basis using market value sensitivity and earnings at risk, which

were as follows at 31 December:

2021 Restated 2020
£million £mlhan
Market value sensitivity

+200bp parallel shift in yield curve 27 22
-200bp parallel shift in yield curve 2.7 0.1

Earnings at risk sensitivity
+100bp parallel shift in yield curve 14 1.0
-100bp parallel shift in yield curve (0.4) ©on

In 2020 a zero percent interest rate floor was applied to the yield curve within the above metrics. In 2021 the Group decided to remove
this floor following the addition of negative policy rates to the Bank of England'’s monetary policy toolkit. This has resulted in the large

variance year-on-year.

The Directors consider thal 200bps in the case of Market value sensitivity and 100bps in the case of Eamings at risk are a reasonable

approximation of possible changes.

40. Liquidity and funding risk

Liquidity and funding risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its obligations as they fall due or can enly do so at excessive cost.
The Group maintains adequate liquidity resources and a prudent, stable funding profile at all times to cover liabilities as they fall due in

normal and stressed conditions.

The Group manages its liguidity in line with internal and regulatory requiraments, and at least annuzlly assesses the robustness of the
liquidity requirermnents as part of the Group's Internal Liguidity Adequacy Assessment Process (ILAAPY.

See page 29 for further details on the mitigation and change during the year of liquidity and funding risk.

The tzbles below analyse the contractual undiscounted cash flows for financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings:

Not mare  More than three

Maore than

Gross nominal than three  monthsbutless one year but less More than
Larrying amount sutflow months than one year  than five years five years
fmillion Emillion £million fmillion Fmillian Fmillion

At 31 December 2021
Due to banks 390.8 394.1 0.7 1.0 3930 -
Deposits frem customers 2,103.2 2,131.9 /52.6 807.4 566.1 58
Subcrdinated liabilities 50.9 56.8 0.8 2.5 53.5 -
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 2.0 2.0 2.0 - - -
Lease liabilities 341 33 0.9 2.3 0.1 -
Other financial liabilities 18.3 18.3 18.3 - - -
2,568.3 2,606.4 774.7 813.2 1,012.7 5.8
Derivative financial [iabilities &7 55 0.1 1.5 39 -
2,574.5 2,611.9 774.8 814.7 1,016.6 5.8

Mare than tree More than

Gross norminal Notmerethan  monthscutless  one year but jess More than
Carrying amaou-t autllow three manths than one year tha~ five years five years
£rmillan £eillion gillion £rillion £rrillicn £rill on

At 31 December 2020
Due to banks 2764 2767 134 113.3 150.0 -
Depaosits from customers 1,9925 2,029.3 919.4 464.5 &609.7 3.7
Subordinated lizhilities 50.8 59.2 0.8 25 55.9 -
Lease liabilities 39 4.2 0.9 3.0 0.3 -
Other financial liabilities 46,2 46.2 46.2 - - -
2,369.8 2,415.6 980.7 615.3 815.9 3.7
Derivative financial liabilities 6.1 4.6 0.5 1.5 2.4 -
2,375.9 2,420.2 281.2 616.8 818.5 37
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40. Liquidity and funding risk continued
Company

The contractual undiscounted cash flows for financial liabilities of the Company are the same as above except for the following:

Not more Mare than three More than
Gross naminat than three  months but less one year but less More than
Carrying amount autflow manths than one year  than five years five years
£rmillion fimillion £million £million Emillion £million
At 31 December 2021
Lease liabilities 23 24 07 17 - -
Other financial liabilities 328 - 32.8 328 - - -
Nan-derivative financial lizbilities 2,580.0 2,6180 787.0 812.6 1.012.6 5.8
Total 2,686.2 2,6235 71871 814.7 1,016.5 58
Not mere  More than three More than
Gross nominal than three  months but less one year but less More than
Carrying amount outflow manths than one year  than five years five years
£million £millien £miflion £million £million £million
At 31 December 2020
Lease liabilities 29 31 07 24 - -
Cther financial lizbilities 53.7 53.7 53.7 - - -
Non-derivative financial liabilities 2,376.3 2,422.0 G88.0 6147 815.6 3.7
Total 2,382.4 2,426.6 988.5 616.2 818.2 37
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41. Capital risk

Capital risk is the risk that the Group will have insufficient capital rescurces to meet minimum regulatory requirements and to support
the business. The Group adopts a conservative approach to managing its capital and at least annually assesses the robustress of the
capital requirements as pant of the Group’s Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAPY). The Group manages Tier 1 and
Tier 2 as capital, noting the regulatory adjustments required in the table below

Further information on capital is included within our Pillar 3 disclosures: which can be found on the Group's website.

See page 30 for further details on the mitigation and change during the year of capital risk.

The following table, which is unaudited end therefore not in scope of the independent auditor's report, shows the regulatory capital
resources for the Group. The Group has adopted the IFRS G transitional rules. For further detail see the Financial Review on page 16.

Tier 2 capital comprises solely subordinated debt, excluding accrued interest, capped st 25% of the capital requirement.

Restated
S
{unaudited) {anaudited)

Tier 1
Share capital 7.5 7.5
Share premium 82.2 82.2
Retsined earnings 217 1770
Revaluation reserve 1.3 0%
IFRS 9 transition adjustment 13.9 269
Goodwiil (1.0 {1.0)
Intangible assets net of attributable deferred tax {4.3) {4.5)
CET1 capital before foreseeable dividend 311.3 289.0
Foreseeable dividend a7 (8.2)
CET1 capital 303.6 280.8
Tier 2
Subordinated liabilities 50.9 50.8
Less ineligible portion (3.9 (5.7)
Total Tier 2 capital 47.0 45.1
Own Funds 350.6 325.9
Reconciliation to total equity:
IFRS 9 transition adjustment (13.9) (269
Eligible subordinated ligkilities (47.0) {45.1)
Cash flow hedge reserve (0.3} -
Goodwill and other intangible assets net of attributable deferred tax 53 5.5
Foreseeable dividend 7.7 8.2
Total equity 302.4 267.6

The Group is subject to capital requirements imposed by the PRA on all financial services firms. During the periods, the Group

complied with these requirements.
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42. Classification of financial assets and liabilities
Group

Total carrying Total carryng

amount Fair value Fair value amourt Fair value Fa value

£million £million  hierarchy level £rillion fillon  nierarchy level

2021 2021 2021 2020 2020 2020

Cash and balances at central banks 2357 2357 Level 1 181.5 181.5 Level 1
Laans and advances to banks 50.3 50.3 Level 2 633 63.3 Level 2
Debt securities 250 250 Leve! 1 - - -
Loans and advances to customers 2.530.6 2,568.6 Level 3 2,358.9 2,420.6 Level 3
Derivative financial instruments a8 3.8 Level 2 4.8 4.8 Level 2
Assets held for sale 1.3 1.3 Level 3 — - -
Other financial assets 0.4 0.4 Level 3 33 33 Level 3

2,847.1 2,885.1 2,611.8 2,673.5
Due to banks 390.8 390.8 Level 2 276.4 2764 Level 2
Deposits from customers 2,103.2 2,106.9 Level 3 1,992.5 2,010.2 Level 3
Derivative financial instruments 6.2 6.2 Level 2 6.1 6.1 Level 2
Liabilities held for sale 20 20 Llevel 3 - - -
Lease liabilities 3.1 3.1 Level 3 39 39 Level 3
Other financial liabilities 18.3 18.3 Level 3 46.2 46.2 Level 3
Subordinated lizbilities 50.9 50.7 Level 2 50.8 50.6 Level 2
2,574.5 2,578.0 2,375.9 2,393.4

All financial assets and liabilities at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 were carried at amortised cost, except for derivative
financial instruments which are at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore, for these assets and liabilities, the fair value hierarchy

noted above relates to the disclosure in this note only.

Company

o ?nﬂﬂgt Fair value Fair value ol s Farr value Fair value
£million £million  hierarchy level £milfion frellion Ferarchy level
2021 2021 2021 2020 2020 2020

At 31 December 2021
Cash and balances at central banks 235.7 2357 Level 1 181.5 181.5 Level 1
Loans and advarices to banks 47.4 47.4 Level 2 41.7 617 Level 2
Debt securities 25.0 250 Level 1 - - -
Loans and advances to customers 2,450.3 24871 Level 3 2,269.8 2333 Level 3
Derivative financial instruments 38 38 Level 2 4.8 4.8 Level 2
Other financial assets 89.6 8%.6 Level 3 93.2 932 Level 3

2,851.8 2,888.6 2,611.0 2,672.5
Due to banks 3908 3%90.8 Level 2 2764 2764 Level 2
Deposits from customers 2,103.2 72,1069 Level 3 1,992.5 2,010.2 Level 3
Derivative financial instruments 62 62 Level 2 6.1 6.1 Level 2
Lizhilities associated with assets held {or sale 2.0 20 lLevel 3 - - -
Lease liabilities 2.3 2.3 Level 3 29 29 Level 3
Other financial liabilities 328 32.8 Level 3 537 53.7 Level 3
Subordinated liabilities 50.9 50.7 Level 2 508 50.4 Lovel 2
2,588.2 2,591.7 2,382.4 2,399.9

Al financial assets and liabilities at 31 December 2021 and 31 Decernber 2020 werc carried at amortised cost except for derivative
financial instruments which are valued at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore, for these assets, the fair value hierarchy noted

above relates to the disclosure in this note only.
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42. Classification of financial assets and liabilities continued
Fair value classification

The tables sbove include the fair values and fair value hierarchies of the Group and Company’s financial assets and liabilities.
The Group measures fair value using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making measurements:

* Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabllities.

e Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, cither directly
{i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices).

¢ Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Loans and advances to customers and Deposits from customers

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities, is calculated based upon the present value of the expected future principal and
interest cash flows. The rate used to discount the cash flows was the rmarket rate of interest at the balance sheet date. For loans and
advances to customers, the same assumptions regarding the risk of default were applied as those used to derive the carrying value.

Pebt securities
The fair value of debt securities is based on the quoted price where available.

Derivative financial instruments

The fair value of derivative finandial instruments is calculated based on the present value of the expected future cash flows of the
instruments. The rate used to discount the cash flows was the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date.

Subordinated liabilities
The fair value subordinated liabilities is calculated based on quoted market prices where available, or where an active market quote is
not available, a proxy is used from similar issuznces.

For all remaining financial assets and liabilities, the fair value of financial assets and liabilities is caleulated te be equivalent to their
carrying value, due to their short maturity dates.

43. Related party transactions

Related parties of the Company and Group include subsidiaries, key management personnel, close family members of key
management persannel and entities which are centrolled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced, or for which significant voting
power is held, by Key Managemenit Perscnnel or their close family members.

SIUBWBIRIS [BIDURLS

A numnber of banking transactions were enterad into with related parties in the normal course of business on normal commercial terms.
These include loans and deposits as set out balow. The tables that follow relate to key manzgement personnel, members of their close

family and related entities as described above:

2021 2090

Emitlion £millign
Loans
Loans outstanding at 1 January 0.4 14
Change in related parties during the year {0.4) (4.0)
Loans outstanding at 31 December - 0.4
Deposits
Deposits outstanding at 1 January 0.2 0.2
Change in related parties during the year {0.2)
Deposits cutstanding at 31 December - 0.2
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43. Related party transactions continued

The loan outstanding in the prior year above comprised a £0.4 million advance as part of a refinanced £0.4 million facility agreed with
a company in which a former member of the Key Management Personnel of the Company holds 50% of the voting shares, which was
secured by property and personal guarantees.

This transaction was agreed by the Group’s Real Estate Finance business and arose during the normal course of business, was subject
to the usual Board governance and Credit Committee approval procedures and was on substantially the same terms as for comparable
transactions with third parties.

The Company undertook the following transactions with other companies in the Secure Trust Bank Group:

2021 2020

£rmilkion £millian

Interest income and similar income (21.0) {18.8)

Gain on sale of defaulted debt 0.1 02

Operating expenses Q.7 (0.8)

Investment inceame 1.8 5.7

{16.8) {13.7)

Equity contribution to subsidiaries re. share-based payments 0.2 -
The loans and advances with, and amounts receivable and payable to, related companies are noted below:

Company Company

2021 2020

£million fmillion

Arnounts receivable from subsidiary undertakings 89.3 86.7

Amaunts due to subsidiary undertakings {17.9) {(12.6)

71.4 74.1

All amounts above are repayable on demand and the Company charged interest at a variable rate on amounts outstanding.

Directors’ remuneration
The Directors' emoluments (including pension contributions and benefits in kind} for the year are disclosed in the Directors’
Remuneration Repaort beginning on page 74.

At the year-end the ordinary shares held by the Directors are disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report beginning on page 76.
Details of the Directors’ holdings of share options, as well as details of those share options exercised during the year, are also disclosed
in the Directors' report.

44, Immediate parent company and ultimate controlling party
The Company has had no immediate parent company or ultimate controlling party.

45. Country-by-Country reporting
The Capital Requirements (Country-by-Country Reporting) Regulaticns 2013 introduced reporting obligations for institutions within the
scope of CRD V. The requirements aim to give increased transparency regarding the activities of institutions.

The Country-by-Country Information is set out below:

Tax paid
Nature Turnover  Number of FTE Profit before tax on profit
MName of activity Location £millian employees Erillion Emillion
31 December 2021
Banking
Secure Trust Bank PLC services UK 194.3 973 56.0 12.6
Restated Taxpa'd
Nature Tur-ower  Numberof FTE  Prof: befora tax an profiz
Neme of aztety Leczuan £millian embicy22s £mill on fmillisn
31 December 2020
Banking
Secure Trust Bank PLC services UK 2085 1,021 19.1 4.8
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46. Post balance sheet events

46.1 Acquisition of AppToPay Limited

On 25 November 2021, the Company announced its intention to acguire 100% of the ordinary share capital of AppToPay Limited,
the owner of & proprietary technology platform. The acquisition is complementary to the Group's existing retait finance propositian
and supports its planned entry into the Digital Buy Now Pay Later market. The acquisition is subject to regulatory approval and the
AppToPay management team will continue in the business.

The cash cunsideration lor the company of £1.0 million will be paid on completion. In addition to this, an earn-cut of a maximum of
£0.2 miltion is payable in 2023, subject to certain performance conditions. The net identifiable assets of AppToPay Limited, prior to fair
value adjustments, comprises solely of intangible assets.

The acquisition of AppToPay Limited will be accounted for in accordance with IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’, which raquires the
recegnition of the identifizble assets acquired and liabilities assumed at their acquisition date fair values. As part of this process, it wil
be also necessary o identify and recognise certain assets and lizbilities which are not included on the acquiree’s balance sheet, for
example intangitle essets. The valuation of these assets and liabilities will be performed on completion of the acquisition and reported
in the June 2022 Interim Report.

46.2 Sale of loan book and associated liabilities to Rentsmart Limited

As at 31 December 2021, assets of £1.3 million relating to a loan book and 2 liability of £2.0 million relating to collateral held, both in
STB Leasing Limited, were in the process of being sold to its partner, RentSmart Limited. These assets and liabilities were sold for their
carrying amount on 31 January 2022. Further details are set out in Note 19.

46.3 Sale of Debt Managers {Services) Limited loan portfolio

Following a strategic review, the Board has decided to exit the delbt purchase market and, on 11 March 2022 announced that it had
agreed to sell Debt Managers (Services) Limited's portfclio of loans to intrum UK Finance Limited. The value of the portfolio as at
30 September 2071 was £84.7 million and the value of the consideration for the portfolio as at 30 September 2021 was £94.0 miltion.
The Group estimates that in 2022 the sale will (taking into account anticipated markst exit costs) generate a net profit before tax
benefit and the release of around £72 million of risk weighted assets on completion. Completion is subject to approvals from
originators of the loans which is expected to complete by June 2022,

All the above items are non-adjusting events.
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Five year summary (unaudited)

Restated Restated™
2021 2029 2019 2018 2007
£million Emillicn Emilion £erilhion £rilkon
Profit for the year
Interest and simitar inceme 180.0 192.5 191.4 169.2 149.3
Interest expense and similar charges (29.2) {41.4) (46.0) (35.5) 26.7)
Net interest income 150.8 150.9 145.4 133.7 122.6
Net fec and commission income 13.7 15.2 20.1 17.9 14.9
Operating income 164.5 166.1 165.5 151.6 137.5
Net impairment charge on loans and advances to custarmers {4.5) {51.3) {32.4) {32.4) {346.9)
Gains/(losses) on modification of financial assets 1.5 3.1 - - -
Loss on disposal of loan books (1.4) - - - -
Losses from derivatives and hedge accounting 0.1} - ~ - -
Profit on sale of equity instruments available-for-sale - - ~ - 0.3
Operating expenses {104.0) (92.6} (96.8) {84.5) (71.6)
Profit before income tax 56.0 191 36.1 34.7 29.3
2021 2029 2019 2018 2017
£millian fmillan Leilion £ibion £illan
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the equity holders
of the Company during the year {pence per sharg)
Basic earnings per ordinary share 2447 B2.7 168.3 153.2 128.8
2020 2019
2021 Restated Restatac 2018 2017
£million grnillion Ereillon grrillion £millhon
Financial position
Cash and balances at central banks 2357 181.5 105.8 1697 226.1
Loans and advances to banks 50.3 63.3 484 44.8 34.3
Debt securities 250 - 250 1497 5.0
Loans and advances to customers 25306 2,358.9 2,450.1 2,028.9 1,598.3
Fair value adjustment for portfofio hedged risk (3.5 57 0.9 - -
Derivative financial instrurnents 38 4.8 09 - —
Other assets 44.0 470 314 51.2 27.9
Total assets 2,885.9 2,661.2 2,680.7 2,444.3 1.891.6
Due to banks 3%0.8 276.4 308.5 2635 113.0
Depaosits fram customers 2,103.2 1,992.5 2,020.3 1,847.7 1,483.2
Fair value adjustment for portfolio hedged risk (5.3 4.7 07N - -
Derivative financial instruments 6.2 6.1 0.6 - -
Subordinated liabilities 50.9 50.8 50.6 50.4 -
Other liabilities 37.7 631 45 4 454 463
Total shareholders’ equity 302.4 267.6 2520 2371 2461
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 2,885.9 2,661.2 2,680.7 2.444.3 1.891.6

* The 2019 income staterment has been restated to reflect the IFRS Interpretations Committee’s dlarification on the accounting

treatment of Software-as-a-Service arrangement. Operating expenses have been increased by £2.4 millian.
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Appendix to the Annual Report (unaudited)

Key performance indicators and other alternative performance measures
{i) Net interest margin ratio

Net interest margin is calculated as interest income and similar income less interest expense and similar charges for the financial
period as a percentage of the average ioan book. The calculation of the average loan bock is the average of the monthly balance of
loans and advances to customers, net of provisions, aver 13 months:

2021 2020
Emillion fmilicn
Interest income and similar incoms 180.0 192.5
Interest expense and similar charges (29.2) (41.6)
Net interest income 150.8 150.9
Opening loan book 2,358.9 2,450.1
Closing loan book {including loans included in assets held for sale of £1.3 million) 25319 2,3589
Average loan book 2,3/4.0 2,406.0
Net interest margin 6.4% 6.3%
The net interest margin ratic measures the yield of the loan book.
{ii} Core loans and advances to customers and annual growth rate
Annual growth rate is caleulated as the annualised growth in *core’ lcans and advances ta customers:
2021 20720
£million £million
Loans and advances to customers 2,530.6 2,358.9
Less non-core loan portfolios:
Asset Finance (sold during 2021) — (10.4)
Consumer Mortgages (sold during 2021} - {(77.4)
Other - (4.1)
Total non-care portfolios - (92.2)
Core loans and advances to customers 2,530.6 2,266.7
11.6% (1.8%)

{iii) Return on average equity
Annualised return on average equity is calculated as the profit after tax for the previous 12 months as a percentage of average equity.

Average equity is calculated as the average of the monthly equity balances.

Restatad

2021 2020

£million fmiltion

Profit after tax 45.4 15.4
Opening equity 267.6 2520
Closing equity 3024 267.6
Average equity 2870 2611
Return on average equity 15.9% 5.9%

Return on average cquity is a measure of the Group's ability to generate profit from the equity available (o it.
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Appendix to the Annual Report (unaudited)
continued

Key performance indicators and other alternative performance measures continued
{iv} Cost to income ratio

Cost to income ratio Ts calculated as operating expenses for the financial period as a percentage of operating income for the
financial period:

Restated
2021 2020
£millian £rrillion
Operating expenses 104.0 9246
Operating income 164.5 166.1
Cost to income ratio 63.2% 55.7%
The cost to income ratic measures how efficiantly the Group is utilising its cost base in producing income.
{v} Cost of risk
Cost of risk is calculated as the total of the net impairment charge on loans and advances to customers and gains and losses an
modification of financial assets for the financial period as a percentage of the average loan book:
2021 2020
£million frmillion
Net impairment charge on loans and advances to customers 45 51.3
{Gains)/losses on modification of financial assets {1.5) 3.1
Total lean impairment charges 30 54.4
Average loan bock 2,3740 2,406.0
Cost of risk 0.1% 2.3%
The cost of risk measures how effective the Group has been in managing its impairment charge. '
{vi) Cost of funds
Cost of funds is calculated as the interest expense (excluding interest on liability swaps) for the financial period expressed as a
percentage of average loan book
2021 2020
£million Fmillion
Interest expense and similer charges 292 41.6
Interest on liability swaps 1.8 1.9
31.0 435
Average lcan book 2,374.0 2,406.0
Cost of funds 1.3% 1.8%

The cost of funds measures the cost of money being lent to customers.

{vii) Funding ratio

The funding ratio is calculated as the total funding at the year-end, being the sum of deposits from custormners, borrowings under the
Bank of England’s liquidity support operations, Term Funding Scheme and the Term Funding Scheme with additional incentives for
SMEs, Tier 2 capital and equity, dvided by the loan beok at the year-end:

2021 2020

£millian fmill o

Deposits from customers 2,103.2 1,992.5
Borrowings under the Bank of England’s liguidity support aperations, Term Funding Scheme and the

Term Funding Scheme with additional incentives for SMEs (including accrued interest) 390.1 2731

Tier 2 capital (including acerued interest) 50.9¢ 50.8

Equity 302.4 2674

2846.6 2.584.0

Loan bock (including loans included in assets held for sale of £1.3 million) 25319 23589

Funding ratio 112.4% 109.5%

The funding ratio measure the Group's liquidity.
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Glossary

Term

Explanation

ALCO

The Assets and Liabilities Committee. The remit of the Committee can be found on the Group's
website: www.securetrustbank.com/our-corporate-information/risk-management.

Compound Annual Growth
Rate (CAGRY)

CAGR is the annual growth rate calculated as the annualised compound growth in ‘core’ loans and
advances to customers since 31 December 2020.

CET1 capital

Common Equity Tier 1 capital comprises share capital, share premium, retained eamnings, revaluation
reserve and regulatory adjustments.

CET1 capital ratio

The Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio is the ratic of the bank's CET1 capita! to its Total Risk
Exposure. This signifies a banks financial strength. The CET1 capital ratio is monitored by regulators
and investors because it shows how well a bank can withstand financial stress and remain solvent.

Capital requirement
regulation and CRD V

The revised Capital Requirements Directive and Regulation, commonly referred to

as CRD V and CRR 2, refine and continue to implement Basel Il by the UK, making important
amendments in a number of areas including large exposures, leverage ratio, liquidity, market risk,
counterparty credit risk, as well as reporting and disclosure requirements.

Feefo

Feefo collects independent reviews from the customers of businesses acress many sectors,
including financial services.

Financial Conduct Authority

The Financial Conduct Authority is the conduct regulator for financial services firms and
financial markets in the UK. Its aims are to protect consumers, enhance market integrity and
promote competition.

High Quality Liquid Assets

High Quality Liquid Assets are assets with a high potential to be converted easily and quidkly into cash.
This comprises of cash and balances at central banks and Treasury Bills,

ICAAP

Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process. A firm must carry out an ICAAP in accordance with the
PRAS rules. These include requiremants on the firm to undertake a regular assessment of the amounts,
types and distribution of capital that it considers sdequate to cover the level and nature of the risks to
which it is or might be exposed.

The Internal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment Process allows firms to assess the level of liquidity

and funding that adequately supports all relevant current and future liquidity risks in their business.

In undertaking this process, a firm should be able to ensure that it has appropriate processes in place
to ensure compliance with the CRD. This requires firms to develop and use apprepriate risk and
liquidity management techniques.

LCR

The Liguidity Coverage Ratio regime requires management of net 30-day cash outflows as a
proportion of High Quality Liquid Assets. The Group has set a more prudent internal limit than that set
by the regulator.

OLAR

The Overall Liquidity Adequacy Rule is the Board's own view of the Group's liquidity needs as set out
in the Board approved ILAAP.

Piflar 1, Pillar 2 and Pillar 3

Basel lll uses a 'three pillars’ concept = (1) Pillar 1 — minimum capital requirements {addressing risk)
using a standardised approach for credit, market and operational risk, (2} Pillar 2 ~ supervisory review
pracess and (3) Pillar 3 — market discipline and enhanced disclosures.

PRA

The Prudential Regulation Authority is a part of the Bank of England and responsible for the prudential
regulation and supervision of banks, building societies, credit unions, insurers and major investment
firms. It sets standards and supervises financial institutions at the level of the individual firm. The PRA's
objectives are set out in the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, but the main objective is to
promote the safety and soundness of the firms it regulates.

SME

Srmall ta medium-sized enterprises.
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Term

Exptanation

Term Funding Scheme
{‘TFS)/Term Funding
Scheme with additional
incentives for SMEs
{TFSMEN

The TFS was introduced in August 2016, and was designed to reinforce the transmission of Bank of
England Base Rate cuts to those interest rates actually faced by households and businesses. The TFS
closed to new lending in February 2018.

The TFSME was launched in March 2020 as part of measures to respond to the economic shock from
COVID-19. The scheme is designad to incentivise eligible participants to provide credit to businesses
and households Lo bridge thirough the current period of economic disruption, with additional
incentives to provide credit to SMEs. ‘

Both schemes allowed access to four year funding at rates very close to Bank of England Base Rate,
allowing eligible participants to borrow central bank reserves in exchange for eligible collateral.

Tier 2 capital

Tier 2 capital is the secondary component of bank capital, in addition to Tier 1 capital, and is
composed of subordinated liabilities, net of issue costs.

Tatal Capital Requirement

Guidance given to a firm about the amount and quelity of capital resources that the PRA considers
that firm should hold at all times under the overall financial adequacy rule as it applies on a solo level
or a consolidated level.

Total Risk Exposure

Total Risk Exposure is the total of the Group's risk-weighted assets.
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